
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MIDWEST CITY 

 

MEETING AGENDAS FOR 
February 14, 2017 

 
 

 

 

 

 

STAFF BRIEFING 

City Hall, Midwest City Council Conference room – second floor, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard 
 

February 14, 2017 – 6:00 PM 
 

Special Assistance requests – tcoplen@midwestcityok.org or 739-1002. (Please provide no less than 24 
hours’ notice) Special assistance request during a meeting call 739-1388. 

 
DISCUSSION. 
 
Clarification of agenda items, handouts, and presentation of new or additional information for items on 
the agendas for the City Council, Municipal Authority, and Hospital Authority for February 14, 2017. 
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CITY OF MIDWEST CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

City Hall, Midwest City Council Chambers, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard 
February 14, 2017 – 7:00 PM 

 
 

A.      CALL TO ORDER. 

B.      OPENING BUSINESS. 
 Invocation - Public Works Director, Vaughn Sullivan 

 Pledge of Allegiance - JROTC Cadets Emily Green 

 Community-related Announcements  
 Proclamations for Retirees Robert Broyles and  Fredia Cox 

C.      CONSENT AGENDA.  These items are placed on the Consent Agenda so that members 
           of the City Council, by unanimous consent, can approve routine agenda items by one  
           motion. If any item proposed on the Consent Agenda does not meet with approval of all  
           Council members, or members of the audience wish to discuss a proposed item with the  
           Council, that item will be removed and heard in regular order. 

1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the January 24, 2017 special 
meeting and the January 24, 2017 regular staff briefing and meeting, as submitted. (City Clerk 
- S. Hancock)   

2. Discussion and consideration of appointing Councilmember Pat Byrne as the second alternate 
replacement delegate to the Association of Central Oklahoma Governments (ACOG) Board of 
Directors, 9-1-1 ACOG Board of Directors, Intermodal Transportation Policy Committee, and 
the Garber-Wellington Association Policy Committee replacing Daniel McClure Jr., as he has 
resigned from Council. (City Manager - G. Henson)  

3. Discussion and consideration of appointing Councilmember Rick Dawkins as an alternate to 
the Central Oklahoma Regional Transit Authority Task Force replacing Daniel McClure Jr., as 
he has resigned from Council. (City Manager - G. Henson)  

4. Discussion and consideration of appointing Councilmember Susan Eads as a replacement for 
Daniel McClure Jr. on the Original Mile Reinvestment Committee as he has resigned from the 
Council. (City Manager - G. Henson) 

5. Discussion and consideration of appointing Councilmember Pat Byrne to fill Daniel McClure 
Jr.’s seat on the Residential Parking Review Committee as he has resigned from the Council. 
(City Manager - G. Henson) 

6. Discussion and consideration of accepting a grant of Permanent Easement from Hari Aum 
L.L.C., across a certain parcel of land located within the corporate boundaries of Midwest City 
in Lots 1 and 2 of Kuhlman Commercial District. (Community Development - B. Harless)         

7. Discussion and consideration of accepting maintenance bonds from H & H Plumbing and 
Utilities, Inc. in the amount of $5,745.00, $10,107.00, and $19,617.46, respectively.  
(Community Development - P. Menefee)
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City of Midwest City Council Meeting of February 14, 2017 2 
Consent Agenda continued. 

8. Discussion and consideration of accepting a grant of Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement 
from Hudiburg Real Estate Partners L.L.C., across a certain parcel of land located within the 
corporate boundaries of Midwest City in the Southwest Quarter (SW/4) of Section Nine (9) 
Township Eleven (11) North Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian, in Midwest City, 
Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. (Community Development - B. Harless)         

9. Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into an engineering contract funding 
agreement for Federal-aid Project Number J3-1480(046)ST, State Job Number 31480(46), 
with the Oklahoma Department of Transportation to receive federal funds in the amount of 
$16,852.00 for the design of the Eastside (now the Midwest City) Elementary School trail 
extension.  (Community Development - P. Menefee) 

10. Discussion and consideration of entering into and approving an Agreement for Professional 
Surveying Services with Cedar Creek, Inc. in the amount of $8,837.75 for a Topographic 
Survey of Reno Avenue from Midwest Boulevard to Douglas Boulevard.  (Community 
Development - P. Menefee) 

11. Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into a Sponsorship and Marketing 
Consulting Agreement with STAAR Solutions in the amount of $3,000 plus sponsorship sales 
commissions and a $2,500 stipend fee to MindsEye Advertising to effectively assist the City of 
Midwest City in achieving its goals and initiatives for the 2017 Star Spangled Salute Air 
Show. (Public Works - V. Sullivan) 

12. Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into the National Museum of the 
United States Air Force Static Display Program 2017 Loan Agreement, SDA0241 with the 
United States of America, represented by the National Museum of the United States Air Force, 
for the T-38A 61-0817 aircraft on static display in Bicentennial Park for the period from April 
1, 2017 through March 31, 2018. (Public Works - V. Sullivan) 

13.  Discussion and consideration of 1) declaring various computer equipment obsolete items of 
city property on the attached list surplus; and 2) authorizing their disposal by public auction or 
sealed bid.  (Information Technology - R. Rushing) 

D.      DISCUSSION ITEM. 

1. Discussion and consideration of accepting the financial audit of the City of Midwest City as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2016. (Finance - C. Barron) 

E.      NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC DISCUSSION. 

F.      EXECUTIVE SESSION. 

1. Discussion and consideration of 1) entering into executive session as allowed under 25 O.S. § 
307 (B) (2) to discuss negotiations concerning employees and representatives of employee 
groups; and 2) in open session, authorizing the city manager to take action as appropriate 
based on the discussion in executive session. (City Manager - G. Henson) 

G.        ADJOURNMENT. 
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Notice of this Special Midwest City Council Meeting were filed with the City Clerk of Midwest City and 
copies of the agenda for this meeting were posted at City Hall and on the City’s website, accessible to 
the public for at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

January 24, 2017 – 5:30 PM 
 
This special meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Chamber at City Hall, 100 N. Midwest 
Boulevard, Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of Oklahoma. The following members were 
present: Mayor Matt Dukes; Councilmembers Pat Byrne, Rick Dawkins, Sean Reed, and Christine Allen; 
and City Clerk Sara Hancock. Absent: Jeff Moore.  
 
Call to Order.  Mayor Dukes called the meeting to order at 5:33 PM.  
 

Discussion Items. 
 
1. Discussion and consideration of swearing in Susan Eads as the Ward 1 replacement to fill the 

vacant unexpired term of Daniel McClure Jr. Motion was made by Reed, seconded by Dawkins, 
to swear in Ms. Susan Eads as Ward 1 Councilmember. Voting aye: Byrne, Dawkins, Reed, Allen, 
and Mayor Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: Moore. Motion carried. Mayor Dukes swore in Susan Eads.  

 

Adjournment. There being no further business, Mayor Dukes adjourned the meeting at 5:37 p.m. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
         _____________________________ 
         MATTHEW D. DUKES, II, Mayor 
 
_________________________  
SARA HANCOCK, City Clerk 
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Notice of regular staff briefings for the Midwest City Council was filed for the calendar year with 
the City Clerk of Midwest City and copies of the agenda for this meeting were posted at City Hall 
and on the City’s website, accessible to the public for at least 24 hours in advance of this meeting. 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR STAFF BRIEFING FOR MIDWEST CITY COUNCIL 
 

January 24, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. 
 
This regular meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Conference Room on the second 
floor of City Hall, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of 
Oklahoma. The following members were present: Mayor Matt Dukes; Councilmembers Susan 
Eads, Pat Byrne, Rick Dawkins, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff Moore; and City Clerk Sara 
Hancock. Absent: none.  
 
Mayor Dukes called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 
DISCUSSION.  Clarification of agenda items, handouts, and presentation of new or 

additional information for items on the City Council agenda for January 24, 2017. Mayor 
Dukes, City Manager Guy Henson and Public Works Director Vaughn made community-related 
announcements. Staff briefed the councilmembers on various items on the agenda, and the 
councilmembers sought clarification and discussed individual agenda items with staff. Human 
Resource Director Catherine Wilson noted a scrivener’s error on page 20, line 2 under “Current 
Fund Balance: $1,543,687” on the bottom of the page. 
 
Mayor Dukes closed the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 ________________________________________ 
ATTEST: MATTHEW D. DUKES, II, Mayor 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
SARA HANCOCK, City Clerk 
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Notice of regular Midwest City Council meetings was filed for the calendar year with the City Clerk of 
Midwest City and copies of the agenda for this meeting were posted at City Hall and on the City’s 
website, accessible to the public for at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MIDWEST CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

January 24, 2017 – 7:00 p.m. 
 
This regular meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Chambers at City Hall, 100 N. Midwest 
Boulevard, Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of Oklahoma. The following members were 
present: Mayor Matt Dukes; Councilmembers Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, Rick Dawkins, *Sean Reed, 
Christine Allen, and Jeff Moore; and City Clerk Sara Hancock. Absent: none. Mayor Dukes called the 
meeting to order at 7:10 p.m.  
 
Opening Business. The meeting opened with the invocation by Public Works Director Vaughn Sullivan, 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by JROTC Cadets Desiree Henderson and Marissa Baxter. 
Mayor Dukes and City Manager Guy Henson made community-related comments and announcements.   
 

Consent Agenda. Motion was made by Dawkins, seconded by Moore, to approve the items on the 
Consent Agenda, as submitted. 
 
1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the staff briefing and regular meeting of 

January 10 2017, as submitted. 
 

2. Discussion and consideration of accepting the City Manager's Report for the month of December 
2016. 
 

3. Discussion and consideration of supplemental budget adjustments to the following funds for FY 
2016-2017, increase: Reimbursed Projects Fund, revenue/Intergovernmental (14) $11,000; expenses/ 
General Gov’t (14) $11,000; revenue/ Intergovernmental (39) $14,000; expenses/Grants Manage-
ment (39) $14,000; expenses/Grants Management (39) $3,942. Fire Fund, revenue/Miscellaneous 
(00) $1,500; expenses/Fire (64) $1,500. 
 

4. Discussion and consideration of accepting the monthly report on the City of Midwest City 
Employees’ Health Benefits Plan by the City Manager and action as deemed necessary by the 
Council to maintain the plan. 
 

5. Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into, effective February 15 2017, (1) the 
MassMutual Administrative Services Agreement with Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance 
Company to govern the terms and conditions under which it will administer the City’s Section 457 
Deferred Compensation Plan including recordkeeping and other administrative services; (2) the 
Investment Agreement, a group annuity contract, with Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance 
Company; and (3) the Trust Agreement and Resolution with Reliance Trust Company which will 
govern the Trust Assets of the City’s 457 (b) Deferred Compensation Plan and hold and administer 
the assets of the Plan in accordance with the Investment Agreement.
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Minutes of the January 24, 2016 Midwest City Council Meeting 2 
Consent Agenda continued. 

6. Discussion and consideration of renewing the Cityworks License Agreement contract, without 
modification, for FY 2017-18 with Azteca Systems, Inc. a Utah corporation in the amount of 
$60,000.00. 
 

7. Discussion and consideration of entering into a contract with Oklahoma Earthbike Fellowship, Inc. 
(OEF) for the upkeep and routine maintenance of the Soldier Creek Industrial Park (SCIP) 
recreational trail. 
 

8. Discussion and consideration of entering into a contract with Tony Boone Trails, LLC in the amount 
of $50,000 to provide design/build services in construction of the SCIP Recreational Trail. 
 

9. Discussion and consideration of entering into an agreement with Fugro Geospatial, Inc. for digital 
orthophotography (aerial photography) for a total price of $10,098. 
 

10. Discussion and consideration of accepting a grant of Permanent Easement from Red Oak L.L.C., 
across a parcel of land located within the corporate boundaries of Midwest City in Block One (1) Lot 
Three (3) of Red Oak Development Addition to the Northeast Quarter (NE/4) of Section Eleven 
(11), Township Eleven (11) North Range Two (2) West of the Indian Meridian, Oklahoma County, 
Oklahoma. 
 

11. Discussion and consideration of awarding the bid to and entering into a contract with Luckinbill, Inc. 
in the amount of $247,970.00 for the Soldier Creek Industrial Park Water and Sewer Line Public 
Improvements Project. 
 

12. Discussion and consideration of the acceptance of and making a matter of record Permit No. 
WL000055161034 from the State Department of Environmental Quality for the Soldier Creek 
Industrial Park Water Line Extension Project, Midwest City, Oklahoma. 
 

13. Discussion and consideration of the acceptance of and making a matter of record Permit No. 
SL000055160932 from the State Department of Environmental Quality for the Winco Foods 
Grocery Store Sewer Line Extension Project, Midwest City, Oklahoma. 
 

14. Discussion and consideration of the acceptance of and making a matter of record Permit No. 
WL000055160931 from the State Department of Environmental Quality for the WinCo Foods 
Grocery Store Water Line Extension Project, Midwest City, Oklahoma. 
 

15. Discussion and consideration of approving Joel Porter as a fourth candidate for a Municipal and 
Alternate Judge. 
 

16. Discussion and consideration of approval of the Mayor’s appointment of Joel Porter as a Municipal 
and Alternate Judge. 
 

17. Discussion and consideration of declaring a fire department brush truck, unit number 07-03-13, 
surplus and authorizing its disposal by public auction or sealed bid.  
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Minutes of the January 24, 2016 Midwest City Council Meeting 3 
Consent Agenda continued. 
 

 
18. Discussion and consideration of declaring fire department winter coats and dress jackets, surplus and 

authorizing their disposal by public auction or sealed bid. 
 

19. Discussion and consideration of 1) declaring one (1) Auto License CarDetector Kit, which consists 
of one (1) 25MM Camera; one (1) 35MM Camera; one (1) 50MM Camera; one (1) Garmin GPS 
Unit; and one (1) Condor DSP, from the Police Department as surplus property; and 2) authorizing 
the disposal of this property by public auction or sealed bid. 

 
Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Dawkins, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Mayor Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: none. 
Motion carried. 
 
Discussion Items. 
 
1. Public hearing with discussion and consideration of a resolution declaring the structure 

located at 7203 SE. 15th Street a dilapidated building as defined in Title 11-22-112(C) 1. 

Oklahoma State Statutes and setting dates to demolish and remove the structure from the site. 

Motion was made by Dawkins, seconded by Byrne, to approve Resolution 2017-03, as submitted. 
Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Dawkins, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Mayor Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: 
none. Motion carried. 
 

2. (CA-75)  Public hearing with discussion and consideration of an appeal to Section 9-394(e) of 

the Municipal Code which states that freestanding signs shall be brought into compliance with 

the ordinance at the time any modifications or repairs are made to the sign located at 9900 SE 

15th St. Carol McKee, 9412 S. Caldwell Dr., and staff spoke with the Council. Motion was made by 
Byrne, seconded by Eads, to approve the appeal. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Dawkins, Allen, Moore, 
and Mayor Dukes. Nay: Reed. Absent: none. Motion carried. 
 

3. Discussion and consideration of budget amendments to reduce appropriations for fiscal year 

2016-2017 due to declining revenues. Doug Beabout, 13200 Shirley Lane, Finance Director 
Christy Barron and Public Works Director Vaughn Sullivan spoke with the Council. Motion was 
made by Reed, seconded by Byrne, to approve Resolution 2017-05. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, 
Dawkins, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Mayor Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: none. Motion carried.  
 

4. Discussion and consideration of approving and adopting a new ordinance making it an offense 

to limit the line of sight into and out of convenience stores, providing for definitions; setting a 

penalty; providing for codification, providing for severability; providing for repealer and 

declaring an emergency. Ray Owens, 115 S. Westminister, spoke with the Council. Motion was 
made by Eads, seconded by Reed, to approve and adopt Ordinance 3288. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, 
Dawkins, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Mayor Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: none. Motion carried. No 
action was taken on the emergency clause of Ordinance 3288; therefore, it shall go into effect on 
February 24, 2017.   
 

New Business/Public Discussion. There was no new business or public discussion. 
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Minutes of the January 24, 2016 Midwest City Council Meeting 4 
 

Executive Session. 

 

1. Discussion and consideration of (1) entering into executive session, as allowed under 25 O.S., 

§ 307(B)(4), to discuss McGowen, et al v. City of Midwest City, Case No. CJ-2015-1802, and (2) 

in open session, authorizing the city manager to take action as appropriate based on the 

discussion in executive session. Motion was made by Allen, seconded by Reed, to go into executive 
session. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Dawkins, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Mayor Dukes. Nay: none. 
Absent: none. Motion carried.  
 

The Council went into executive session at 8:00 p.m.  
 
Mayor Dukes reconvened the meeting in open session at 8:40 p.m. *Councilmember Reed left the 
meeting at 8:40 PM and returned at 8:41 PM. Motion was made by Dawkins, seconded by Eads, to 
authorize the city manager to take action as appropriate based upon the discussion in executive 
session. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Dawkins, Allen, Moore, and Mayor Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: 
Reed.  Motion carried. 
 

Adjournment. There being no further business, Mayor Dukes adjourned the meeting at 8:41 p.m. 
 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
ATTEST:        MATTHEW D. DUKES, II, Mayor 
         
 
_______________________  
SARA HANCOCK, City Clerk  
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  City Manager 

100 N. Midwest Boulevard 
Midwest City, OK  73110 

 Office: 405.739.1204 
Fax: 405-739-1208 

www.midwestcityok.org 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: J. Guy Henson, City Manager 
 
DATE: February 14, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of appointing Councilmember Pat Byrne as the second 

alternate replacement delegate to the Association of Central Oklahoma Governments 
(ACOG) Board of Directors, 9-1-1 ACOG Board of Directors, Intermodal 
Transportation Policy Committee, and the Garber-Wellington Association Policy 
Committee replacing Daniel McClure Jr., as he has resigned from Council.   

 
 
A new appointment of a second alternate on the ACOG Boards needs to be made as former 
Councilmember Daniel McClure Jr., has resigned. A formal designation by the Council is necessary 
so that the new appointment is authorized to act on Midwest City’s behalf.  
 
Mayor Dukes is currently the delegate and Rick Dawkins is the first alternate on the ACOG Board of 
Directors, 9-1-1 ACOG Board of Directors, Intermodal Transportation Policy Committee, and the 
Garber-Wellington Association Policy Committee; however, a third alternate is required by ACOG 
in the event either of the first two delegates are unable to attend a meeting.  
 
I’ve attached the ACOG forms for your reference.     
 

 
J. GUY HENSON, AICP 
City Manager 
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  City Manager 

100 N. Midwest Boulevard 
Midwest City, OK  73110 

 Office: 405.739.1204 
Fax: 405-739-1208 

www.midwestcityok.org 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: J. Guy Henson, City Manager 
 
DATE: February 14, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of appointing Councilmember Rick Dawkins as an 

alternate to the Central Oklahoma Regional Transit Authority Task Force replacing 
Daniel McClure Jr., as he has resigned from Council.   

 
 
Mayor Dukes is currently the delegate; however, a new alternate delegate needs to be formerly 
appointed to the Central Oklahoma Regional Transit Authority Task Force as former 
Councilmember Daniel McClure Jr., has resigned. A formal designation by the Council is necessary 
so that the new appointments are authorized to act on Midwest City’s behalf.  
 
I’ve attached the ACOG forms for your reference. As you will see, one person does not have to 
commit to all the boards and committees.    
 

 
J. GUY HENSON, AICP 
City Manager 
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City Manager 
100 N. Midwest Boulevard 

Midwest City, OK 73110  
Office 405.739.1207 

ghenson@midwestcityok.org 
www.midwestcityok.org 

 

 

 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Council 

From:  Guy Henson, City Manager 

Date:  February 14, 2017 

Re:  Discussion and consideration of appointing Councilmember Susan Eads as a replacement 
for Daniel McClure Jr. on the Original Mile Reinvestment Committee as he has resigned 
from the Council. 

 

The Original Mile Reinvestment Committee was established on September 8, 2015 and meets 
twice a year. Current council members include Mayor Dukes, Rick Dawkins, and Daniel 
McClure Jr. As Mr. McClure has resigned, a new council member needs to be named.  

Action is at the discretion of the Council.  

 

_______________________________         
Guy Henson, City Manager 
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City Manager 
100 N. Midwest Boulevard 

Midwest City, OK 73110  
Office 405.739.1207 

ghenson@midwestcityok.org 
www.midwestcityok.org 

 

 

 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Council 

From:  Guy Henson, City Manager 

Date:  February 14, 2017 

Re:  Discussion and consideration of appointing Councilmember Pat Byrne to fill Daniel 
McClure Jr.’s seat on the Residential Parking Review Committee as he has resigned from 
the Council. 

 

The Residential Parking Review Committee was established on April 14, 2015 and meets on call. 
Current council members include Jeff Moore, Pat Byrne, and Daniel McClure Jr. As Mr. 
McClure has resigned, a new council member needs to be named.  

Action is at the discretion of the Council.  

 

_______________________________         
Guy Henson, City Manager 
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 100 N. Midwest Boulevard - Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES (405) 739-1220 - FAX (405)739-1399 - TDD (405) 739-1359 
 An Equal Opportunity Employer 

 

 

 

The City of 
MIDWEST CITY 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 William Harless, Community Development Director 
             Patrick Menefee, City Engineer   

 
              TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 
              FROM: Patrick Menefee, P.E., City Engineer  
 
              DATE: February 14, 2017  

 
SUBJECT:          

 
Discussion and consideration of accepting a grant of Permanent Easement from Hari 
Aum L.L.C., across a certain parcel of land located within the corporate boundaries of 
Midwest City in Lots 1 and 2 of Kuhlman Commercial District.          

                ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Acquisition of the property is needed in connection with a drainage project at Traveler’s Inn located at  
6821 SE 29th Street. 
 
Staff recommends approval.  
 
 
 
Patrick Menefee, P.E. 
City Engineer 
 

 
Attachments 

 
 
 
 
 

. 

 BUILDING INSPECTION DIVISION 
Charles Belk, Building Official 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
Patrick Menefee, City Engineer 

G.I.S. DIVISION 
Kathy Spivey, Manager 
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100 N. Midwest Boulevard  Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110 

Engineering Division (405) 739-1220  FAX (405) 739-1399  TDD (405) 739-1359 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
  Patrick Menefee, City Engineer 

CURRENT PLANNING DIVISION 
Kellie Gilles, Manager 

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING  
Julie Shannon, Comprehensive Planner 
BUILDING INSPECTION DIVISION 

Charles Belk, Building Official 
GIS DIVISION 

Kathy Spivey, GIS Coordinator 

The City of 

MIDWEST CITY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT -  
ENGINEERING DIVISION 
 
Billy Harless, Community Development Director 
Patrick Menefee, P.E., City Engineer 

     
 
 
TO : 

 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 

  
FROM : Patrick Menefee, P.E., City Engineer 
  
DATE : February 14th, 2017 
  
SUBJECT : Discussion and consideration of accepting maintenance bonds from H & H 

Plumbing and Utilities, Inc. in the amount of $5,745.00, $10,107.00, and 
$19,617.46, respectively. 
 

 
 

 
The one year maintenance bonds from H & H Plumbing and Utilities, Inc. are for the storm sewer 
line, sanitary sewer line, and water line improvements installed in conjunction with the new 
residential development of the Boulevard at Oakwood East Addition off of S.E. 15th Street 
 
 
 
Staff recommends acceptance as this is consistent with past policy 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Patrick Menefee, P.E. 
City Engineer 
 
 
Attachments 
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 100 N. Midwest Boulevard - Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES (405) 739-1220 - FAX (405)739-1399 - TDD (405) 739-1359 
 An Equal Opportunity Employer 

 

 

 

The City of 
MIDWEST CITY 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 William Harless, Community Development Director 
             Patrick Menefee, City Engineer   

 
              TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 
              FROM: Patrick Menefee, P.E., City Engineer  
 
              DATE: February 14, 2017  

 
SUBJECT:          

 
Discussion and consideration of accepting a grant of Permanent Sanitary Sewer 
Easement from Hudiburg Real Estate Partners L.L.C., across a certain parcel of land 
located within the corporate boundaries of Midwest City in the Southwest Quarter 
(SW/4) of Section Nine (9) Township Eleven (11) North  Range Two (2) West of the 
Indian Meridian, in Midwest City, Oklahoma County, 
Oklahoma.          

                ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Acquisition of the property is needed in connection with replacement of a sanitary sewer line  
located at 5800 Tinker Diagonal.  
 
 
Staff recommends approval.  
 
 
 
Patrick Menefee, P.E. 
City Engineer 
 

 
Attachments 

 
 
 
 
 

. 

 BUILDING INSPECTION DIVISION 
Charles Belk, Building Official 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
Patrick Menefee, City Engineer 

G.I.S. DIVISION 
Kathy Spivey, Manager 
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100 N. Midwest Boulevard  Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110 

Engineering Division (405) 739-1215  FAX (405) 739-1399  TDD (405) 739-1359 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
  Patrick Menefee, City Engineer 

CURRENT PLANNING DIVISION 
Kellie Gilles, Manager 

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING  
Julie Shannon, Comprehensive Planner 
BUILDING INSPECTION DIVISION 

Charles Belk, Building Official 
GIS DIVISION 

Kathy Spivey, GIS Coordinator 

The City of        

MIDWEST CITY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT -  
ENGINEERING DIVISION 
 
Billy Harless, Community Development Director 
Patrick Menefee, P.E., City Engineer 

     
 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and Council 
 
From:  Patrick Menefee, P.E., City Engineer 
 
Date:  February 14th, 2017 
 
Subject: Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into an engineering 

contract funding agreement for Federal-aid Project Number J3-1480(046)ST, State 
Job Number 31480(46), with the Oklahoma Department of Transportation to 
receive federal funds in the amount of $16,852.00 for the design of the Eastside 
(now the Midwest City) Elementary School trail extension.  

 
 
The federal funds were granted through the Safe Routes to School Program to design and 
construct the Eastside (now the Midwest City) Elementary School trail.  The trail will be a multi-
use trail along the south side of Midwest City Elementary School extending from Key Boulevard 
to Midwest Boulevard.  The preliminary estimate for the design cost is $21,065.00.  This project 
will be funded by 80% federal funds, 20% local match.  The city will be required to contribute 
$4,213.00 to ODOT to cover design costs as required with the 20% local match provision.  The 
City entered into a design agreement with R.L. Shears Company on April 28th, 2015 to generate 
the engineering construction plans. 
 
 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
Patrick Menefee, P.E.,  
City Engineer 
 

 
 Attachments  
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J3-1480(046)ST JOBPIECE 31480(26) 
(05) 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

ENGINEERING CONTRACT FUNDING AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN  

THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY 

AND 

           THE OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES INVOLVING 

CITY OF MIDWEST EASTSIDE ELEM. SCH. 
 

This agreement, made the day and year last written below, by and between the City of Midwest City, 
hereinafter referred to as the CITY, and the Department of Transportation of the State of 
Oklahoma, hereinafter referred to as the DEPARTMENT, is for the following intents and purposes and 
subject to the following terms and conditions, to wit: 

 
WHEREAS, the OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, ODOT, has authorized the 
expenditure of allocated federal STP funds toward the engineering of an eligible improvement for the 
CITY, specifically described as follows: 

Design Engineering Services  

Project 

Type 

Div County JP No Project No. Work Type Description Fiscal 

Year 

Federal 

Amt. 

Total 

Amt. 

CITY 

STREET 

4 OK 31480(46) J3 -1480 (046) 

ST 

PEDESTRIAN 

IMPROVEMENTS 

SRS - EASTSIDE ELEM. SCH. 

INFRASTRUCTURE(PE FOR 

31480(26)) 

2018 $16,852 $21,065 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY requests authorization to contract for the described engineering services 
with R,L. SHEARS COMPANY, P.C. Professional Cooperation and a qualified consultant. 

 

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT is of the opinion that the CITY is capable of administering the described 
engineering contract in a satisfactory manner; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by the CITY and the DEPARTMENT that: 

 
1) The CITY agrees to provide to the DEPARTMENT a fully executed, negotiated engineering 

contract by and between the CITY and the consulting engineer for the described 
engineering services. Said agreement shall include and encompass all current applicable Federal 
Highway Administration Contract Provisions. 

 
2) The CITY agrees to comply with the DEPARTMENT’S current Guidelines for the 

Administration of Consultant Contracts, and hereby certifies that this engineering contract has 
been executed in full compliance with the aforementioned policy. 

 

3) The CITY agrees to administer the execution of the engineering contract, and to submit the 
necessary certifications and DEPARTMENT claim forms for progress payments as designated 
within the specific engineering contract. 

 
4) Based on an negotiated COST PLUS not to exceed contract amount of Twenty-One-Thousand-

Sixty-Five-Dollars ($21,065), it is agreed the project referenced above will be financed as follows 
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in Paragraphs 5 and 6 below: 
 

5) Federal STP funds shall be used to finance 80% of the federally participating engineering 
costs of Sixteen-Thousand-Eight-Hundred-Fifty-Two-Dollars ($16,852). 
 

6) City funds provided by the City shall be provided to finance the balance of the eligible 
participating project engineering costs, estimated at Four-Thousand-Two-Hundred-Thirteen-

Dollars ($4,213), which shall be placed on deposit with the DEPARTMENT upon execution 
of this agreement. 

 
7) The CITY shall be entirely responsible for the administration and completion of all work 

associated with this contract, through its consultant. 
 

8) Progress payments will be made to the consultant by the DEPARTMENT upon receipt of a 
properly executed claim form, approved by the CITY, accompanied by suitable evidence of the 
completion of the work claimed, as detailed in the engineering contract. 

 
9) It is further understood and agreed by the CITY that no State funds have been allocated towards 

this engineering contract. 
 

10) The CITY agrees to hold the Federal Government and the DEPARTMENT harmless from, 
and shall process and defend at its own  expense, all claims, demands, or suits, whether at law 
or equity brought against the CITY, the DEPARTMENT, or Federal Government, arising 
from the CITY's execution, performance, or failure to perform any of the provisions of this 
Agreement, or arising by reason of the participation of the DEPARTMENT or Federal 
Government in the project, PROVIDED, nothing herein shall require the CITY to reimburse 
the DEPARTMENT or Federal Government for damages arising out of bodily injury to 
persons or damage to property caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the Federal 
Government or the DEPARTMENT.  

 
11) When any alleged act, omission, negligence, or misconduct may be subject to the 

limitations, exemptions, or defenses which may be raised under the Governmental Tort Claims 
Act, 51 O.S. Sec. 151, et seq., all such limitations, exemptions, and defenses shall be available 
to and may be asserted by the CITY. No liability shall attach to the DEPARTMENT or Federal 
Government except as expressly provided herein. 

 
12)    The City agrees to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 O.S. § 252.42, 42 

U.S.C. §§ 200d et seq., and all requirements imposed by or pursuant to 49 CFR, Part 
21,“Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation – 
Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.” 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Deputy Director of the Department of Transportation, pursuant to 
authority vested in him by the Transportation Commission, has hereunto subscribed his name and the 
CITY has executed same pursuant to authority prescribed by law. 

 

The CITY on this day of , , and the  DEPARTMENT on the day 
of , . 

 
 

CITY OF MIDWEST CITY 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGALITY 

 
 

By By 
CITY ATTORNEY MAYOR 

 
 
 
 
 

By   
ATTEST: CITY CLERK (SEAL): Approved - City of MIDWEST 

 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

 

 

 

 
  

BY: LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION BY: DIRECTOR OF CAPITAL PROGRAMS 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM APPROVED 
AND LEGALITY 

 
 
 
 

  

BY: GENERAL COUNSEL BY: DEPUTY DIRECTOR 
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OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

INVOICE 
 
Make check PAYABLE, and MAIL TO: Oklahoma Department of Transportation 

Comptroller Division 

200 N.E. 21
st
 Street 

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma   73105-3204 
 
To:    The City of Midwest City     Department Invoice No 31480(46) 

  January 30, 2017 
 

Project 
Type 

Div County JP No Project No. Work Type Description Fiscal Year Federal 
Amt. 

Total Amt. 

CITY 
STREET 

4 OK 31480(46) J3 -1480 (046) 
ST 

PEDESTRIAN 
IMPROVEMENTS 

SRS - EASTSIDE ELEM. SCH. 
INFRASTRUCTURE(PE FOR 31480(26)) 

2017 $16,852 $21,065 

 
 

Description – Explanation of Charge 
 

Quantity 
 

Price Each 
 

Total 
 
Due Date:      Upon Receipt       
 
 
Total Estimated Cost: 
      
Less Federal Share  
 
Less Sponsor Initial Deposit  
 
Local Share Due 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 $ 21,065.00 
 

($ 16,852.00) 
 

($ 0,00.00) 
                      

 $ 4,213.00 
    
 
 
 
 
 

 
Accounting Use Only 

 
 

 
Invoice Total 

 
  $ 4,213.00 

 
 
Distribution: 
 
City 
Remit with Payment 
Division Project File 
Comptroller Division      
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100 N. Midwest Boulevard  Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110 

Engineering Division (405) 739-1215  FAX (405) 739-1399  TDD (405) 739-1359 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
  Patrick Menefee, City Engineer 

CURRENT PLANNING DIVISION 
Kellie Gilles, Manager 

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING  
Julie Shannon, Comprehensive Planner 
BUILDING INSPECTION DIVISION 

Charles Belk, Building Official 
GIS DIVISION 

Kathy Spivey, GIS Coordinator 

The City of        

MIDWEST CITY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT -  
ENGINEERING DIVISION 
 
Billy Harless, Community Development Director 
Patrick Menefee, P.E., City Engineer 

     
 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and Council 
 
From:  Patrick Menefee, P.E., City Engineer 
 
Date:  February 14th, 2017 
 
Subject: Discussion and consideration of entering into and approving an Agreement for 

Professional Surveying Services with Cedar Creek, Inc. in the amount of $8,837.75 
for a Topographic Survey of Reno Avenue from Midwest Boulevard to Douglas 
Boulevard. 

 
 
The accompanying proposal is for surveying services to assist the design of engineered 
construction plans for the Reno Avenue from Midwest Boulevard to Douglas Boulevard roadway 
revitalization project.  The funds for this project were designated in the 065 budget. 
 
 
Staff recommends entering into the agreement. 
 
 
 
 
Patrick Menefee, P.E. 
City Engineer 
 
 
Attachments 
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January 18, 2017 

 

Patrick Menefee, City Engineer 

Community Development Department 

City of Midwest City 

100 N Midwest Blvd 

Midwest City, OK 73110 

 

RE:  Proposal to Provide Survey Services for the future federal aid resurfacing/sidewalk project at Reno 

Ave from Midwest Boulevard to N Blake Drive. 

 

Dear Mr. Menefee, 

 

As requested Cedar Creek Consultants, Inc., here after known as CCC, provides the following proposal for 

review and consideration by City of Midwest City (Client). This proposal is comprised of the following 

sections: 

 

1. Project Criteria 

2. Project Prerequisites 

3. Defined Scope of Services 

4. Specific Exclusions from Defined Scope of Services 

5. Fees and Reimbursable Expenses 

6. General Terms and Conditions 

 

1. PROJECT CRITERIA: 

This project consists of providing a full topographic survey including ROW lines, utilities, and 

pertinent depth data at storm, sewer, and water lines. 

 

2. PROJECT PREREQUISITES 

This proposal assumes that Client will furnish the following information with respect to the 

Project: 

 

A. Deeds & Plats 

 

3. DEFINED SCOPE OF SERVICES 

See Attached Exhibit A hereto. Each Task will be completed in accordance with a schedule 

approved by Client. Tasks are sometimes herein referred to as “Services”. 

 

4. SPECIFIC EXCLUSIONS FROM DEFINED SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. All real estate activities are the responsibility of Client. 

B. The specifications for or remediation of environmental concerns affecting the proposed site 

and the removal of and discovered hazardous materials in accordance with applicable local, 

state, and federal regulations are not part of the Defined Scope of Services. 

C. Building Elevations for city or neighborhood approval process. 

D. Preparation for and attendance at public hearings and/or dispute resolution proceedings. 

E. Building design services, including architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing 

and fire protection engineering services. 

F. Record Drawings, as modified by the contractor in the field. 
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5. FEES AND REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES: 

A. Fixed Fee for Defined Scope of Services: 

 

A Fixed Fee amount of $8,837.75  for the topographic survey. This amount includes 

compensation for Surveyor’s and Engineer’s Basic Services. The total Fixed Fee amount accounts 

for labor, overhead, and profit. 

 

B. Additional Site Visits: The fee for required or requested site visits in excess of those provided 

for in the Defined Scope of Services will be billed on an hourly basis at the rates set forth in 

the attached General Terms and Conditions, plus Reimbursable Expenses. 

 

C. Reimbursable Expenses: Reimbursable expenses are in addition to the fees outlined above 

and will be invoiced at a multiple of 1.15 times the expense incurred. Reimbursable 

expenses include travel, lodging, printing, and shipping. 

 

D. Payment Terms: 

 

1) Invoicing will be based on percentage of work complete and payment is 

due thirty (30) days from presentation of invoice. 

2) Invoices not paid when due will bear interest from the due date at the rate 

of 18% per annum. 

 

6. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

The attached General Terms and Conditions are part of his proposal, as well as Exhibit “A” & “B” 

 

This proposal supersedes all prior proposals and/or agreements between the parties, whether 

oral or in writing. If the foregoing is satisfactory, please print, date and sign this document in the 

space provided below and email back to me at jdoyle@cedarcreekinc.com .  Receipt of this 

document with signature will constitute a formal contract between noted parties. 

 

Sincerely, 

Cedar Creek Consulting, Inc. 

CA-5864, exp 06/30/2018 

 

 

 

 

Jon Doyle, PE 

405.778.3385 

 

Via (e-mail) 

  

By: ________________________     Date:_______________________ 

      Authorized Signature 

 

Cedar Creek Consulting, Inc. 

CA-5864, exp 06/30/2018 

 

 

 

 

Jon Doyle, PE 

405.778.3385 
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GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

1. MANNER OF PROVIDING SERVICES: CCC shall provide all Services set forth in the Proposal: 

  

A. In accordance with professional standards of practice applicable to such Services prevailing 

in the jurisdiction of the Project Site. 

B. In accordance with applicable laws, building codes, ordinances, rules and other regulations, 

including but not limited to those affecting the health, welfare, and safety of the public, duly 

promulgated by state and local governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the 

Project. 

C. As expeditiously as is consistent with professional skill and care. 

2. LIMITATIONS: The obligations of CCC to provide the Services set forth in the Proposal, and the 

responsibility of CCC for any such Services so provided shall be subject to the following 

limitations, conditions, qualifications, and exclusions: 

 

A. Any construction cost estimates, budget evaluations, research and any other estimates or 

evaluations provided by CCC to the Client shall constitute only CCC’s best judgment with 

respect to the subject thereof. CCC disclaims any warranties or representations that actual 

costs, budgets, etc. will be within or equal to the estimates or evaluations. 

B. In any review by CCC of product data, samples, shop drawings, or other information 

submitted by the Client’s contractors, CCC shall have no obligation to determine the 

accuracy, adequacy or completeness of construction details, construction methods, safety 

precaution or performance criteria. CCC’s approval of any such submittals shall not 

constitute a determination of any such items. Such approval shall be an indicator by CCC of 

its belief that the Client’s contractors understand the design concept of CCC’s Construction 

Documents and have prepared all product data, samples, shop drawings, or other 

information in conformance with that design concept. 

C. CCC shall be entitles to rely upon the accuracy and completeness of all reports, surveys, and 

information provided by the Client pursuant to this Proposal. 

D. The Client shall bear all risk of the presence of any hazardous or toxic materials at or near 

the Project. 

E. If the Project is permitted for construction based on construction documents supplied by 

CCC, the Client shall cause the Project to be construction in accordance with those 

construction documents. 

F. CCC shall not have control over or charge of and shall not be responsible for any Project 

construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures, or safety. 

G. CCC shall not be responsible for the compliance with the requirements of applicable codes, 

ordinances, or laws by the Project construction contractor or by vendors for the Project. 

 

3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES: Additions or changes to the Defined Scope of Services, the Design 

Criteria, or other changes or delays which impact the Defined Scope of Services may result in 

additional services, the fees for which shall be set by mutual agreement at the time such 

additions or changes are requested, or, absent such agreement, at the following hourly rates: 
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Project Engineer   $100.00 

    Project Designer   $  75.00 

    Administrative Staff  $  50.00 

 

4. CONFIDENTIALITY: CCC shall maintain the confidentiality of the location of potential and selected 

sites for the Project, together with any other information supplied to CCC by the Client and 

designated by the Client as confidential, except: 

 

A. When such confidential information becomes generally known to the public through no fault 

of CCC; or 

B. To comply with the order of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 

5. INSURANCE: Upon 10 days of execution of contract 

6. OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DOCUMENTS: All drawings, specifications or other documents 

deliverable to the Client by CCC or its Consultants pursuant to this Proposal (“the Documents”), 

whether in electronic or non-electronic format, shall be the property of the Client, subject 

however, to the following: 

 

A. All technology, skill, processes, knowledge, and computer software developed or acquired 

by CCC or its Consultants to manipulate the data which comprises the Documents shall be 

the property of CCC or, as applicable, its Consultants/ 

B. The client may modify CCC’s work without the consent or additional compensations to CCC; 

but in such event: 

 

1) The Client shall indemnify and hold CCC and, if applicable, its Consultants, harmless 

form all claims and liability which results from such reuse, including all costs and 

attorneys fee pursuant  to City’s charter and ordinances; and 

2) The Client shall remove any reference to CCC or its Consultant’s name and/or logo on 

the documents. 
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EXHIBIT ‘’A’’ 

 

CONTRACT INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING: 

 

1. Reno Avenue from Midwest Boulevard to N Blake Drive ($   8,837.75) 

• Begin at east side of Midwest Boulevard  
• End full survey at pavement joint near Village Oaks Dr.  Continue north side back of curb to 

10' east of Blake Dr.  
• Survey 20' back of ROW for gas station parking lot and west coachlight apt entrance  
• Back 30' on both sides of Towry Dr.  
• At park, go to South side of Sidewalk/Trail  
• Detail box culvert and railing, part of project will bring EX parapet and guardrail up to current 

standards. 

 

 

CONTRACT DOES NOT INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Reimbursable Expenses 

2. Title Work 

3. Construction Staking 

4. Exhibits 

5. Easement abandonment 

6. Offsite information 

7. Filing Fees 
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EXHIBIT “B’’ 

 

 

1.)  Prior to performing any of the services, CCC shall obtain and keep in force, at its sole expense, 

insurance and upon request shall provide to the Client within ten (10) business days of execution 

of this Agreement a copy of the certificate, binder, declarations page or other satisfactory 

evidence for such insurance. 

 

2.)  To the fullest extent permitted by law, CCC shall indemnify and hold harmless Client and is 

agents, employees and representatives from and against all costs, damages, fines, losses and 

expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, investigation 

costs and all other reasonable costs and expenses arising out of, in connection with, or resulting 

from CCC’s performance of the services under this Agreement, but only to the extent caused by 

the negligence or breach of contract by CCC, its employees, agents, sub-CCCs or others for whose 

acts it may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused 

in part by a party indemnified hereunder.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, 

abridge or otherwise reduce insurance requirements or other rights or obligations of indemnity 

which otherwise exist as to CCC.  CCC’s obligations under this Section 2 shall survive the 

expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 

3.) The acceptance of final payment by CCC pursuant to this Agreement shall constitute a full 

release, discharge and waiver of all rights and claims for compensation for services that CCC may 

have against Client or its property under applicable common and statutory law.  Upon receipt of 

final payment, CCC shall, upon the request of Client, execute and deliver to Client any necessary 

lien waiver. 

 

4.)  The relationship of Client and CCC is that of Client and independent CCC and no employer-

employee relationship is hereby created.  Neither Client nor CCC shall enjoy any of the benefits 

nor be subject to any of the burdens that would arise, result or proceed or project from an 

employer-employee relationship, but instead all the rights and duties of each party shall be 

limited to those provided in this Agreement for independent contractual services.  CCC shall be 

solely responsible for the payment of all social security and unemployment taxes, wage 

withholding and any other requirements with respect to its employees. 

 

5.)  In the event of a conflict between any provisions of this Agreement and anything in the exhibits 

attached hereto or in any of CCC’s documents, contracts, proposals, estimates or specifications, 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall prevail. 

 

6.) All notices, consents, approvals, requests, demands, and other communications (collectively, 

“Notices(s)”) which may or are required to be sent, delivered, given or obtained pursuant to the 

terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given either by hand delivery, by prepaid 

United States certified mail, or by a reputable overnight delivery service that guarantees next day 

delivery and provides a receipt.  All notices shall be addressed to the parties at their respective 

addresses set forth on the first page of this Agreement, as same may be changed from time to 

time.  Either party may, by notice in the manner provided above, change its address for all 

subsequent Notices.  All Notices given by certified mail shall be deemed given two (2) business 

days after they are so mailed.  All Notices given by overnight delivery or hand delivery shall be 
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deemed given on delivery. A party’s failure or refusal to accept service of a Notice will constitute 

delivery of the Notice. 

 

7.)   CCC will perform the professional services in a timely manner consistent with sound engineering 

practices. 

 

8.) This agreement may be terminated by either party upon ten (10) days written notice.  In the 

event of termination, CCC shall be paid for services performed to the date the Agreement is 

terminated. 

 

9.)  The law of the State of Oklahoma will govern the validity of the Agreement terms, their 

interpretation and performance. 

 

10.)  This Agreement is binding upon the parties, their heirs, successors and assigns. 

 

11.) The parties have read the foregoing, understand completely the terms and conditions, and 

willingly enter into this Agreement. 

 

THE FOREGOING PROVISIONS ARE PART OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CCC AND CLIENT. 
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Public Works Administration  

Vaughn Sullivan, Director 

vsullivan@midwestcityok.org 
R. Paul Streets, Assistant Director 

                                              rstreets@midwestcityok.org 
      www.midwestcityok.org                                                8730 S.E. 15th Street, 

                                                                   Midwest City, Oklahoma  73110 
                                                              O: 405-739-1060 /Fax: 405-739-1090 

        
Memorandum 

 
To:  Honorable Mayor and Council 

From:  Vaughn K. Sullivan, Community Services Director 
 
Date:  February 14, 2017 
 
Subject: Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into a Sponsorship and   Marketing 

Consulting Agreement with STAAR Solutions in the amount of $3,000 plus sponsorship 
sales commissions and a $2,500 stipend fee to MindsEye Advertising to effectively assist 
the City of Midwest City in achieving its goals and initiatives for the 2017 Star Spangled 
Salute Air Show. 

 
 
STAAR Solutions brings certified IEG experience in sponsorship consulting, valuation, 
measurement and strategy. STAAR will assist the Parks and Recreation Department in selling a 
$25,000 sponsorship package to one or more sponsors.  The sponsorship/sponsorships will cover the 
costs associated with hosting and executing the Aviators Reception and any other sponsorship if 
requested by the City of Midwest City. STAAR will work to coordinate the sales, contracting and 
sponsorship deliverables oversight process. 
 
The comprehensive artwork services provided by MindsEye Advertising are relative to the creation 
of sponsorship collaterals and sponsorship deliverables. 
 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
Vaughn K. Sullivan 
Public Works Director 
 
Attachment: Agreement with attachments 
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      February 3, 2017 
 
This letter will set forth the terms and conditions of the arrangement between the City of Midwest City 
and STAAR Solutions (STAAR) whereby Chris Moler dba STAAR Solutions and associated subcontractors 
of STAAR including MindsEye Advertising agree to create and manage a comprehensive sponsorship and 
marketing campaign for the 2017 Star Spangled Salute Air Show including other related events and 
entertainment options hereinafter (Star Spangled Salute) on behalf of the combined Non-Federal 
Organizations (NFO) of which the City of Midwest City is a NFO to Tinker AFB. Said services include the 
creation and management of a comprehensive sponsorship campaign with goals set by each of the NFOs 
and Tinker AFB for one unified campaign. Together, STAAR and the NFOs will create external pre-event 
promotional and community based entertainment options as they may become available. Additionally, 
STAAR will oversee and manage a comprehensive marketing and promotions campaign for the Star 
Spangled Salute Air Show recognizing the 75th Anniversary of both Tinker AFB and the City of Midwest 
City. The Star Spangled Salute Air Show is scheduled for May 20-21, 2017. 
 

The following is a list of anticipated support services and accompanying payments:  
 

1) Support for re-creation of a comprehensive sponsorship campaign. STAAR will lead the efforts 
on behalf of the NFO groups to build a sponsorship campaign that consists of a set of custom 
sales power point presentations, sales prospectus, contract agreement forms, promotional 
items and related support collaterals. STAAR Solutions will receive a stipend payment of $3,000 
for the above services to support staff management and associated costs related to this effort; 
particularly on behalf of the Aviators Reception that is produced by the City of Midwest City.   

 
2) Coordination of Sale of Sponsorships. STAAR Solutions will take the lead on the sale of all 

sponsorships related to the Aviators Reception and any other sponsorship requests that may 
arise. Funds raised by STAAR Solutions will be used by the City of Midwest City to create and 
provide a high profile Aviators Reception on Friday, May 19, 2017.   
 

3) Commission for Sale of Sponsorships. The City of Midwest City will pay STAAR Solutions the 
following commission structure:  

a. Twenty percent (20%) commission on all cash sponsorships sold by STAAR.  
b. Fifteen percent (15%) commission for each agreed and contracted Value In Kind (barter-

trade) sponsorship. 
c. Ten percent (10%) commission for each agreed and contracted media and marketing 

related sponsorship sold through the City of Midwest City if requested.  
d. Commission on the full sponsorship amount will be paid within 20 business days of 

receipt of the sponsorship monies. If sponsorships are paid to the City of Midwest City in 
installments, the commission percentage will reflect the installment amount received 
and will be paid to STAAR within 20 business days of receipt of each installment. 

e. Value in Kind (VIK) individual sponsorship commissions will not exceed $4,000 for any 
single sponsorship. VIK sponsorships may be budget relieving items such as printing, 
food and beverage services and/or products, sound and lighting equipment, staging, 
tenting, audio visual or other negotiated barter or trade services. VIK values and limits 
are set by the sponsor and not by the City of Midwest City or STAAR.  
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f. Media individual sponsorship commissions will not exceed a payment of $3,000 for each 
media sponsorship agreement regardless of a value exceeding $30,000. Media values 
and limits are set by the sponsor, not by the City of Midwest City or STAAR. Media 
partnerships through the City of Midwest City are not anticipated at this time.  

 
 Subcontracts and Services:  STAAR has subcontracted MindsEye Advertising firm for all 

comprehensive artwork services relative to sponsorship collaterals and sponsorship 
deliverables. These services will be shared by the City of Midwest City, Eastern 
Oklahoma County Tourism Council and Aerospace America who paid their portion prior 
to the organization’s dismantlement. The City of Midwest City agrees to pay a one-third 
equal stipend fee of $2,500 to Mind’s Eye Advertising as the contracted entity for the 
services outlined below.  

 
i. Creative design for the overall look of the Star Spangled Salute Air Show. This 

artwork will become the basis of all artwork including that used by Tinker AFB. 
ii. Artwork for all three NFO entities to use for updating and/or recreating website 

pages that offers consistency for the same look and feel to users.  
iii. All artwork associated with Star Spangled Salute including, but not limited to 

posters, flyers, invitations, banners, programs, print, TV, and outdoor 
advertisements, VIP chalet area signage, VIP parking passes, VIP credentials, etc. 
as needed to support the Air Show for the NFOs and their sponsors.  

iv. Support artwork for all associated pre-events including a possible Dodgers 
tribute baseball game, Oklahoma River activity, Energy Soccer game activity or 
other achievable pre-events that will be associated with sponsor benefits. 

v. All associated artwork to support the Aviators Reception including invitations, 
tickets, program, PowerPoint Presentation, etc.  

vi. Press release, press writing and media planning support. 
vii. Ad creation and advertising coordination will go through STAAR Solutions with 

approval by the City of Midwest City, EOCTC and Tinker AFB Public Affairs to 
alleviate NFO staff time. 

viii. Site planning and mapping for signage campaign to include external areas of 
Tinker AFB, entrances and area signage as approved by Tinker AFB and the VIP 
area.  

ix. Official map design for the air show that is used by Tinker AFB Public Affairs, all 
sponsor related publications, etc. 

x. Other services deemed as appropriate and reasonable to suffice the needs of 
Star Spangled Salute and any pre-events as agreed upon by the NFOs. 

xi. This cooperative effort buy-in assures full NFO partner recognition to the City of 
Midwest City, STAAR Solutions and EOCTC in all related advertisements, posters, 
flyers and other collateral creation and advertising recognition.  

 
4) Sponsorship Account Protection. STAAR Solutions will reserve the right to maintain account 

protection for the 2019 (and/or next) Star Spangled Salute for all contacts initiated and sold by 
STAAR for the 2017 Star Spangled Salute if retained by the City of Midwest City to support the 
next air show event. This also includes account protection as per the previous agreement for the 
sale of sponsorships sold in 2014 including sponsors such as Tinker Federal Credit Union, FNB 
Bank, Anheuser Busch, Coca-Cola, etc.  
 

5) Sponsorship Contacts. There may be times when a City of Midwest City representative may 
work directly with STAAR to secure an entree and/or meeting, attend the meeting and assist 
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with closing the actual sponsorship agreement. This is to execute the initial sale and to support 
the existing relationship. STAAR will work directly with the City of Midwest City representative 
to approve a series of leads and divide the leads up within the City of Midwest City team 
members. STAAR will still take primary responsibility for contracting and execution of the 
sponsorship that it is responsible for and as a result will receive full commission payment. It will 
be understood that once a sponsor contact or exhibitor has been assigned to a particular 
account representative that no other party will make contact with the potential sponsor unless 
jointly working with a member or key leader from the City of Midwest City. Internal controls will 
be managed by the City of Midwest City representative.  

 
6) Term.  This agreement shall remain in force until and up to 60 days past the air show date to 

allow time to close all business and to create a final summary of execution for all sponsors. 
However either party may terminate with or without cause, by giving fifteen (15) days written 
notice to the other in writing.  In the event of termination as contemplated herein by the City of 
Midwest City, the City of Midwest City would remain liable to STAAR for all activities as 
contracted and herein provided prior to the date of termination. Should the City of Midwest City 
terminate this agreement after delivery of the drafted sponsorship campaign, then the City of 
Midwest City would pay a onetime stipend fee of $3,000.00 cash for services rendered to create 
the campaign and campaign materials.  
 

7) Prior Approval.  STAAR must receive approval by the City of Midwest City prior to approaching 
new potential sponsors that are mutually agreed upon. All materials used by STAAR in 
connection with this Agreement must also be approved by the City of Midwest City 
representative. Similarly, STAAR will not enter into any sponsorship agreements, like in-kind 
donations and any other obligations on behalf of the City of Midwest City without prior 
approval. All sponsorships will be recognized by a signed and consummated contractual 
agreement between the City of Midwest City and the sponsor unless otherwise agreed upon in 
advance by the City of Midwest City.   

 
8) Collection of Sponsorship Pledges.   The City of Midwest City and STAAR will work together in 

connection with the collection of sponsorship pledges, sponsorship services and/or vendor fees, 
but the City of Midwest City will have the ultimate responsibility for collection.  

 
9) Independent Contractor.  STAAR shall be deemed an independent contractor in connection with 

the performance of this Agreement.  
 

10) Agreement Location. In the event of arbitration, settlement, dispute, original record or other 
need for legal action, this agreement shall be deemed an Oklahoma agreement in the State of 
Oklahoma in Oklahoma County.  

 
If the foregoing terms are acceptable, please indicate in the space provided below. 
 
    Very truly yours, 
 
    STAAR Solutions 
 
    By: _____________________________________________ 
     Chris Moler, President STAAR Solutions 
     2708 N.W. 120th Street, Oklahoma City, OK 73120 
     (405) 749-1953   chris@staarsolutions.com 
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Chris B. Moler 
February 3, 2017 
Page 4 
  
 

 Agreed to and accepted this ___________day of February, 2017.  
 
 
   

STAAR SOLUTIONS 
 
 
 
  ______________________ 
  Chris Moler, President 
 
 
 
Passed and approved by the City on the ___________day of February, 2017. 
 
 
 
CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 
 
 
 
 
  _____________________ 
  Matthew D. Dukes II, Mayor 
 
 
Attested: 
 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Sara Hancock, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED as to form and legality this ______________day of February, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Phil Anderson, City Attorney 
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Public Works Administration  

Vaughn Sullivan, Director 

vsullivan@midwestcityok.org 
R. Paul Streets, Assistant Director 

                                              rstreets@midwestcityok.org 
      www.midwestcityok.org                                                8730 S.E. 15th Street, 

                                                                   Midwest City, Oklahoma  73110 
                                                              O: 405-739-1060 /Fax: 405-739-1090 

        
Memorandum 

 
To: Honorable Mayor and Council 

From: Vaughn K. Sullivan, Public Works Director 
 
Date: February 14, 2017 
 
Subject: Discussion and consideration of approving and entering into the National Museum of the 

United States Air Force Static Display Program 2017 Loan Agreement, SDA0241 with the 
United States of America, represented by the National Museum of the United States Air 
Force, for the T-38A 61-0817 aircraft on static display in Bicentennial Park for the period 
from April 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018. 

 
Renewal of this agreement is required by the National Museum of the Air Force on an annual basis. 
The agreement allows the City of Midwest City to continue to display the T-38 aircraft, on loan from 
the Air Force, in Bicentennial Park. 
 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
Vaughn K. Sullivan 
Public Works Director 
 
Attachment: Agreement with attachments 
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NATIONAL MUSEUM OF THE UNITED STATES AIR FORCE (NMUSAF) 

STATIC DISPLAY LOAN PROGRAM 

 

2017 LOAN AGREEMENT, SDA0241 

 
1.0.  Parties.  The United States of America or "the Government," represented by the National Museum of 

the United States Air Force (NMUSAF), and collectively referred to hereinafter as "the Lender," hereby 

establishes with the MIDWEST CITY hereinafter called "the Borrower,” incorporated and operating under 

the laws of the State/Country of OKLAHOMA, and located at MIDWEST CITY, a Loan Agreement 

hereinafter called “the Agreement” for U.S. Air Force (USAF) historical property.  This Agreement is 

entered pursuant to Public Law 80-421 [10 United States Code (USC) §2572], and any amendments thereto, 

and is effective for the period commencing 1 April 2017 and ending 31 March 2018.  This Agreement is 

not transferable. 

 

2.0.  Borrower Obligations/Costs.  The Borrower has applied, in writing, for the loan of USAF historical 

property, and hereby agrees to be responsible for all arrangements and, in accordance with 10 USC §2572, 

is required to pay all costs, charges and expenses incident to the loan of this property, including, but not 

limited to, the cost of preparation, demilitarization, hazardous material removal, disassembly, packing, 

crating, handling, maintenance, repair, restoration, transportation and all other actions incidental to the use 

and/or movement of the loaned property to or from the Borrower's location. 

 

3.0.  Loaned Property.  The NMUSAF shall loan to the Borrower the historical property identified in the 

inventory report, which has been included in the loan package and is incorporated into this Agreement by 

reference as if fully rewritten herein (hereinafter the “Property”).  The Borrower accepts the Property on an 

“as is, where is” basis, and the Lender makes no warranties, expressed or implied, as to the Property’s 

condition, fitness for any particular purpose, or other warranty of any kind. 

 

4.0  Loan Conditions. 

 

4.1.  The Borrower agrees that the Property shall be used for static display purposes only.  Loaned 

aerospace vehicles will not be flown or restored to flying condition under any circumstance, nor will they 

be licensed with the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA).  The Borrower shall not remove any parts 

from loaned aircraft except as directed in paragraph 4.2.  Relocation of the Property for temporary special 

events (parades, ceremonies, air shows, etc.) is not authorized under any circumstances.  No decorations of 

any type, for any purpose (special event, seasonal display, ceremonies, etc.) are authorized to be displayed 

on any of the Property.  The Property shall not be used in a manner that provides the appearance of 

endorsement by the USAF of any non-federal entity or political candidate, or the expression of a political 

viewpoint of any kind.  The Property shall not be used for political purposes of any kind or as part of a 

political event, including, but not limited to, advertising or promotion of a political event, or as background 

for a political debate, speech or other political event.   

 

4.2.  The Borrower agrees to allow the Lender to remove parts from loaned aerospace vehicles for the 

NMUSAF or military requirements, upon written direction from the NMUSAF.  Such parts are generally 

internal in nature and removal or replacement should not alter the external aesthetic appearance of the 

aerospace vehicle.   

 

4.3.  The Borrower shall not part with possession of the Property or any component of the Property in 

any manner to any third party either directly or indirectly.  The Borrower shall not enter into any 

negotiations with a third party regarding any future disposition of the loaned material, in whole or in part. 
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4.4.  The Borrower agrees to all of the following:  to use the Property in a careful and prudent manner; 

to not modify the Property in any manner, without prior written permission of the Lender, which would 

alter the original form, design, or the historical significance of said Property; to perform routine 

maintenance to include (but not limited to) annual upkeep, periodic painting, tire inflation, repair of damage, 

day-to-day care and management of the Property, so as to provide an acceptable appearance and to not 

reflect negatively on the Lender; and to display and protect the Property in accordance with the instructions 

set forth in Attachments 1 and 2, which are incorporated into this Agreement by reference as if fully 

rewritten herein. 

 

4.5.  The Borrower agrees that any additions, modifications or alterations that improve the Property 

become part of said Property and are owned by the NMUSAF. 

 

4.6.  Interior access to loaned aerospace vehicles (cockpit, cargo areas, etc.) for purposes other than 

maintenance or restoration work by persons other than staff or authorized maintenance personnel is 

prohibited.  This is to ensure not only the integrity and preservation of the aircraft, but more importantly, 

the safety and security of the public. 

 

5.0.  Use as Security, Sale or Lease.  The Borrower agrees not to use the Property as security for any loan, 

and not to sell, lease, rent, lend or exchange the Property under any circumstances. 

 

6.0.  Professional Photography.  The Borrower shall not make or allow the use of the Property for any 

commercial purpose, including, but not limited to, use of the Property for still photography, motion picture, 

television or video production, without prior written approval from the Lender.  Casual photography or 

motion video created by visitors for personal or non-promotional use is permitted. 

 

7.0.  Incident Reporting.  The Borrower shall within one (1) working day of discovery, notify the Lender 

of any instance of loss, damage or destruction of the Property. 

 

8.0.  Title.  The Borrower shall obtain no interest in the Property by reason of this Agreement and title shall 

remain in the Lender at all times. 

 

9.0.  Receipt, Custody & Liability. 

 

         9.1.  This Agreement shall be executed prior to the Borrower accepting physical custody of the 

Property or on or before 1 April 2017. 

 

         9.2.  The Borrower agrees to provide a receipt to the Lender at the time it assumes physical custody 

of the Property (unless the Property is already in its possession). 

 

 9.3.  The Borrower agrees that it is strictly liable for up to the full replacement value (FRV) of the 

Property, as identified in the inventory report, and to accept such liability upon assuming physical custody 

of the Property or execution of this Agreement, whichever occurs first. 

 

 9.4.  The Borrower agrees that the FRV of the Property is as identified in the inventory report and 

waives any right to contest the FRV in any legal proceeding.  In the event any item of historical property 

does not have an FRV identified in the inventory report, the FRV shall be determined at the sole discretion 

of the NMUSAF. 

 

 9.5.  The Borrower agrees that if the Property, or any portion thereof, has been irreparably damaged, 

destroyed or stolen the NMUSAF may direct the Borrower to either replace the Property with an historical 

item of equal value to the satisfaction of the NMUSAF or require monetary reimbursement equaling the 
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FRV.  In the event of less than total loss to the Property, or any portion thereof, the Borrower agrees to 

repair/replace the damage to the Property to the satisfaction of the NMUSAF or reimburse the NMUSAF 

for the full value of the damage, as determined by the NMUSAF.  The election of a remedy under this 

subparagraph is at the sole discretion of the NMUSAF.  This subparagraph is not intended to waive or limit 

the Government’s rights and remedies, legal or equitable, and the Government reserves all such rights and 

remedies. 

 

 9.6.  The Borrower agrees to place the Property on exhibit within ninety (90) days from the date it 

takes physical custody, or as otherwise mutually agreed upon. 

 

10.0.  Borrowers Responsibilities. 
 

         10.1. The Borrower agrees to the greatest extent permitted by OKLAHOMA Law to indemnify, hold 

harmless, and defend the Lender from and against all claims, demands, actions, liabilities, judgments, costs, 

and attorney's fees, arising out of, claimed on account of, or in any manner predicated upon personal injury, 

death, or property damage caused by or resulting from possession and/or use of the Property. Nothing herein 

shall be construed to waive or limit the federal Government’s rights and remedies permitted by law. 

 

         10.2.  The Borrower agrees to report, as requested, to the Lender on the condition and location of the 

Property.  Further, the Borrower agrees to allow authorized Department of Defense representatives access 

to the Borrower's records and facilities to assure accuracy of information provided by the Borrower and 

compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 

         10.3.  The Borrower agrees to return said Property to the Lender on termination of this Agreement or 

earlier, if it is determined that the Property is no longer required, at no expense to the Lender.  In the event 

of a partial termination, the Borrower agrees to the return of all items of the Property subject to the partial 

termination, at no expense to the Lender. 

 

11.0.  Initial Loan Agreement Requirements. 

 

 11.1.  The Borrower agrees to furnish the Lender a CD/DVD containing digital images of the Property 

within fifteen (15) days of taking physical possession of the Property.  The image file name must be the 

accession number for that item (e.g. SD-2000-0123.JPG).  For aircraft and ballistic missiles, images will 

include views showing all external surfaces including tail number and all accessible interior areas including 

instrument panels, avionics racks and equipment, aircrew, passenger, cargo and payload compartments, 

wheel wells, and bomb bays.  Digital images for all other artifacts will be of sufficient detail to ensure 

positive identification of each object. 

 

 11.2.  The Borrower shall arrange insurance coverage for the Property on an all-risk, wall-to-wall 

basis, at a minimum, for an amount that equals the total agreed upon FRV for all items in the inventory 

report, plus any additional amount to cover the inventory that does not have an identified FRV, so long as 

the Property remains in its possession.  The Borrower further agrees to furnish the Lender proof of said 

insurance.  For Borrowers with private insurance coverage, proof shall constitute a copy of the insurance 

certificate from the commercial provider, noting any deductible, and showing coverage up to the FRV of 

the Property and any additional coverage for Property that does not have an FRV identified in the inventory 

report.  For self-insured organizations, proof shall constitute a written and signed statement attesting to its 

ability to reimburse the Government for the FRV of the Property (as identified in the inventory report and/or 

as determined by the NMUSAF). 
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12.0.  Annual Loan Renewal Requirements. 

 

 12.1.  The Borrower agrees to furnish the Lender a CD/DVD containing digital images of the 

Property.  The image name must be the accession number for that item (e.g. SD-2000-0123.JPG).  Digital 

images of aircraft and missiles will provide general views to include sufficient detail to show the overall 

condition and tail number of the airframe.  Digital images for all other artifacts will be of sufficient detail 

to ensure positive identification of each object and its current condition. 

 

 12.2.  The Borrower agrees to furnish a copy of the most recent annual financial statements to include 

revenue and expense reporting and a projected budget for the next operating year. 

 

 12.3.  The Borrower agrees to furnish the Lender proof of insurance as required in subparagraph 11.2 

for each renewal period. 

 

 12.4.  The Borrower agrees to furnish a signed inventory as provided by the Lender with the annual 

renewal package, which accurately reflects the Property in its possession.  Discrepancies in the inventory 

provided by the Lender shall be noted on the inventory report by the Borrower to the extent that such notes 

accurately reflect the current inventory held by the Borrower.  In the event of a dispute, the Lender shall 

make the final determination of the current inventory on or near the renewal date and document the 

NMUSAF records accordingly. 

 

13.0.  Display/Maintenance Requirements. 

 

 13.1.  No aircraft will be renovated, reconfigured, painted, have markings changed, or tail number 

altered, or any parts added, removed, or replaced as part of a planned restoration effort without prior written 

approval from the NMUSAF. 

 

          13.2.  The Borrower agrees that all aircraft, missiles and artifacts on display will have an 

identification sign adjacent to each display.  For aircraft and missiles note the type, model, and serial 

number.  If the aircraft or missile has been reconfigured, markings changed, or serial number altered after 

acquisition for display purposes, it will be stated on the sign and noted in all records as follows: 

 

 “The (item) on display is actually (nomenclature), Serial No._________, but painted and marked 

to depict (nomenclature), Serial No. ___________, assigned to the (Unit  and/or person) in (location or 

theater) during (year).” 

 

 13.3.  The sign will state that the item is part of the NMUSAF collection as follows: 

 

 "This (artifact/object) is on loan from the National Museum of the United States Air Force." 

 

 13.4.  For aircraft on which the serial number has been altered for display purposes with prior written 

approval, the mission, design and series (e.g. F-100C or F-4C) along with the original serial number will 

be stenciled in two inch letters using contrasting paint colors on the fuselage under the horizontal stabilizers. 

 

 13.5.  All record keeping will reflect the true serial number. 

 

14.0.  Radioactive Components. 
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          14.1.  Completion of Section 2 of Air Force Form 3580, (USAF Museum Aerospace Vehicle Static 

Display Acceptance Condition and Safety Certificate), or comparable certification indicating that a 

complete radioactive material survey has been accomplished shall be included in the official file. 

 

 14.2.  In accordance with Attachment 1, (“NMUSAF Loan and Static Display Programs’ Instructions 

for Preparation and Maintenance of Aerospace Vehicles”), if radioactive items are determined to have been 

installed or reinstalled during later inspections, the Borrower will pay the cost of removal of the radioactive 

items and any decontamination required. 

 

15.0.  Loan Termination. 
 

 15.1.  The Borrower agrees to return said property to the NMUSAF on termination of this Agreement 

or earlier, if it is determined that the property is no longer required, at no expense to the NMUSAF. 

 

 15.2.  The failure of the Borrower to observe any of the conditions set forth in this Agreement 

and Attachments 1 and 2 thereto shall be sufficient cause for the Lender to terminate the loan and 

repossess the Property.  Repossession of all or any part of the Property by the Lender shall be made at no 

cost to the Government; the Borrower shall be responsible for paying all maintenance, freight, storage, 

crating, handling, transportation and other costs or charges attributable to such repossession. 

 

 15.3.  In the event the loan is terminated for any reason, the provisions of this Agreement will remain 

in effect until all of the Property, or in the event of a partial termination that portion of the Property at issue, 

has been relocated and in a condition that is satisfactory to the NMUSAF. 

 

 15.4.  Termination of the loan and subsequent repossession of all or any part of the Property at the 

option of the Borrower shall require no less than thirty (30) days advance notice to the Lender in writing.  

This requirement may be waived by the Lender only through the provision of a written waiver to the 

Borrower prior to the return of the Property. 

 

 15.5.  The Lender reserves the right not to renew this Agreement, in all or part, and to recall the 

Property if required by the Lender to meet the requirements of the NMUSAF, Wright-Patterson AFB, OH 

or for other military requirements.  The Lender will provide a written thirty (30) day notice of intent to 

recall to the Borrower.  In the event of recall, movement of the recalled Property from the Borrower's site 

will be accomplished at the Lender's expense. 

 

16.0.  Dispute Resolution.  In the event a dispute arises between the parties over the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement reasonable attempts will be undertaken to resolve the matter through negotiation between 

the parties or persons appointed, in writing, by the parties.  This Agreement shall be construed and 

interpreted in accordance with Federal law.  If any provision herein is held unlawful or otherwise 

unenforceable by the Court any remaining provisions shall be considered divisible and remain in full force 

and effect.  In the further event that negotiations fail to reach a resolution, the parties agree that the Federal 

District Court for the Southern District of Ohio, at Dayton, Ohio, will be the exclusive venue for resolving 

such disputes. 
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Executed on behalf of the Lender this Seventh Day of February, 2017 at Wright-Patterson AFB OH. 

 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

 

                      By:  PATRICIA OCHS 

                   Title:  Static Display Program Administrator 

 

               Agency:  National Museum of the United States Air Force 

 

              Address:  NMUSAF/MUC 

                              1100 Spaatz St 

                              Wright-Patterson AFB OH 45433-7102 

 

          Telephone:  (937) 255-4770  Fax Number:   (937) 656-4081 

     

                 Email:   patricia.ochs@us.af.mil 

 

 

ACCEPTANCE 
 

The Borrower, through its authorized representative, hereby accepts responsibility of the Property subject 

to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement set forth above.  The Borrower certifies that they 

have read, understand and acknowledge that concealing a material fact and/or making a fraudulent 

statement in dealing with the federal government may constitute a violation of federal law in accordance 

with 18 USC §1001. 

 

Executed on behalf of the Borrower this _____day of __________ 2017, at ______________________. 

 

 

                             ____________________________________________ 

                             (Name of Borrower/Organization) 

 

                      By:  ____________________________________________ 

                             (Signature) 

 

                             ____________________________________________ 

                             (Typed or Printed Name & Title) 

 

               Address:  ____________________________________________ 

 

                               ____________________________________________ 

 

           Telephone:  ________________________ Fax Number:  __________________ 

 

         Email:  _____________________________________________________ 
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Information Technology 

100 N. Midwest Boulevard 
Midwest City, OK 73110 

Office 405.739.1374 
Fax 405.869.8602  

www.MidwestCityOK.org 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Ryan Rushing, Information Technology Director 
 
DATE:  February 14, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of 1) declaring various computer equipment obsolete items of 

city property on the attached list surplus; and 2) authorizing their disposal by public auction 
or sealed bid. 

 
The following computer equipment and peripheral devices are obsolete, defective or have been replaced. 
 
Staff recommends approval 
 
 
 
 
  
Ryan Rushing, Information Technology Director 
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100 N. Midwest Boulevard 
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Office 405.739.1374 
Fax 405.869.8602  

www.MidwestCityOK.org 

 
  CPU  

INVENT 

# 

MIS# MANUFACTOR SERIAL NUMBERS 

 711 Dell Optiplex 380 J8RJFQ1 
 578 Dell Optiplex 360 117PMJ1 
 664 Dell Optiplex 380 51KWKM1 
 IT493 Dell D630 Laptop 7D8QLF1 
 IT515 Dell M4300 Laptop 548C1G1 
 IT248 Dell Inspiron 1100 49RHS31 
 653 Dell Optiplex 380 87PMQL1 
 793 Dell Optiplex 390 3Z3SXV1 
 719 Dell Optiplex 380 HRRYHQ1 
 712 Dell Optiplex 380 J8S9FQ1 
 739 Dell Optiplex 390 6V31KS1 
 744 Dell Optiplex 390 6V1YJS1 
 709 Dell Optiplex 380 J8S8FQ1 
 459 ToughBook CF-19 7IKSA81079 
 458 ToughBook CF-19 7IKSA80942 
 457 ToughBook CF-19 7IKSA81253 
 na ToughBook CF-19 7IKSA80963 
 319 ToughBook CF-18 4FKSA40520 
 461 ToughBook CF-19 7IKSA81263 
 456 ToughBook CF-19 7IKSA81038 
    
  MONITORS  

INVENT 

# 

MIS # MANUFACTURE SERIAL NUMBERS 

 417 Dell CN0U828K74445023968S 
 524 Dell CN06H6FX7444522DCKTM 
 486 Dell Cn-OU828K-74445-13C-

CVHL 
 458 Dell CN0U828K7444508HBSZS 
 465 Dell CN0MCG227444508I701S 
 713 Dell CN0NDMRP7426134Q5FLU 
 484 Dell CN0U828K74445159B5US 
 n/a Dell CNOFJ44J7444561JBH9MA0

1 
 309 Dell CN0KU311641808351BSM 
 310 Dell CN0KU311641808351BTM 
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Office 405.739.1374 
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 377 Dell MX0H095G707158B43S0M 
  Dell CN0MCG227444508I200S 
  Dell CN0U828K74445021BYFS 
  Dell CN0MCG227444508I700S 
  Dell CN06H6FX7444525GD3TM 
  Dell CN0X764G6418089Q2SSS 
  Dell CN0KU311641808441DNM 
  Dell CN0U828K74445021BY5S 
  Dell CN0FP04F728722C3A8HM 
  Dell CN0MCG227444508I408S 
  Dell CN0U828K74445021BY9S 
  Dell MX0H095G707158B43S4M 
  Dell CN0KU311641808550AWM 
  Dell CN0MCG227444508I063S 
  Dell CN0U828K744459BH951S 
  Dell CN0MCG227444508I540S 
  Dell CN0MCG227444508I689S 
  Dell CN0U853F728729291K0I 
  Dell MX0H095G707158B42UPM 
  Dell CN0MCG227444508I059S 
  Dell CN0U853F7287296R1U0I 
  Dell CN0F180G641809260XZL 
  ccx S05B43300706 
    
  MISCELLANEOUS  

Quantity MIS # Hardware Type Serial Number 

11  Kronos time Clock  
1  ipad two DMTH1AJHDFHW 
1  ipad one HW106C4ZA90 
1  ipad one HW106C6EA90 
1  ipad one HW106C8AA90 
1  ipad one HW106C61A90 
1  ipad one HW106C3VA90 
1  ipad one HW106CCMA90 
1  ipad one HW107J20ETU 
1  White Ipad sleeve  
2  ipad cases with built in 

keyboard 
 

1  4050 HP Printer USCC024931 
1  Box of Misc  
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www.MidwestCityOK.org 

30  Monitor Stands  
1  AIN Boom Box  
9  Stacked Monitor Stands  
1  4050 printer USBB349832 
1  4050 PRINTER USBB404072 
1  4050 PRINTER USCF012287 
2  4050 paper trays  
1  Cisco 3560G  
1  Cisco 2970  
1  Cisco 3550  
8  Cisco 3500  
1  Cisco router  
6  Panasonic CF-VEB181  
1  Rackmount server  
15  Boxes of Misc  
1  camera controler  
1  dell docking station  
1  box of as400 cabels  
1  box of spray paint  
1  visio tv LSPACAH0405616 
1  visio tv ASLEDBAH040040 
1  phillips tv  
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           THE CITY OF 

      MIDWEST CITY 
                       
         Finance Department 

 
 
TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Christy Barron, Finance Director 
 
DATE:  February 14, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:   Discussion and consideration of accepting the financial audit of the City of Midwest City 

as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
The financial audit for the City of Midwest City as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016 and the 
required communications by the auditor are attached to your council agenda. The financial audit report 
expressed an unmodified opinion for the year ending June 30, 2016 with no audit findings.  
 
The auditor communicated three uncorrected misstatements that are immaterial, both individually and in 
the aggregate, to the City’s financial position.   Therefore, no audit adjustments were required. The 
uncorrected misstatements related to 1) accrual of an estimated legal liability, 2) accrual of estimated sick 
leave liability and 3) accrual of accounts payable liability. 
 
The Federal threshold for requiring an audit of Federal grant compliance requirements was $750,000 for 
fiscal year 2015-16.  Since the City did not expend more than $750,000 in Federal funds during fiscal 
year 2015-16, a Federal single audit was not required.  
 
Mike Gibson of RSM US LLP will be at the February 14, 2017 meeting to present the report and answer 
any questions. 
 

 
 
Attachments:   Financial Audit Report - FY15-16 
  Required Communications by Auditor - FY15-16   
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City of Midwest City, 
Oklahoma 
 
Report to the City Council 
December 28, 2016 
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531 Couch Drive
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 

T +1 405 239 7961
F +1 405 235 0042 

www.rsmus.com 

 

 

December 28, 2016 
 
 
City Council and Management 
City of Midwest City, Oklahoma 
 
 
We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the basic financial statements of the City of 
Midwest City (the City) for the year ended June 30, 2016. This report summarizes certain matters required 
by professional standards to be communicated to you in your oversight responsibility for the City’s financial 
reporting process. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. It will be our pleasure 
to respond to any questions you have about this report. We appreciate the opportunity to continue to be of 
service to the City of Midwest City. 
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Required Communications 
Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditor’s Communication With Those Charged 
With Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor 
and those charged with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our 
responsibilities regarding the basic financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit 
that are significant and relevant to your responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process. 
 

Area  Comments 
   

Our Responsibilities With 
Regard to the Financial 
Statement Audit 

 Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, have been 
described to you in our arrangement letter dated June 27, 2016. Our 
audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or 
those charged with governance of their responsibilities which are also 
described in that letter. 

Overview of the Planned 
Scope and Timing of the 
Financial Statement Audit 

 We have issued a separate communication regarding the planned 
scope and timing of our audit and have discussed with you our 
identification of and planned audit response to significant risks of 
material misstatement. 

Accounting Policies and 
Practices 

 Preferability of Accounting Policies and Practices 
Under generally accepted accounting principles, in certain 
circumstances, management may select among alternative 
accounting practices. In our view, in such circumstances, 
management has selected the preferable accounting practice. 

Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies 
Management has the ultimate responsibility for the appropriateness of 
the accounting policies used by the City. Following is a description of 
significant accounting policies or their application that were either 
initially selected or changed during the year. 

Statement No. 72 Fair Value Measurement and Application, is effective 
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015.  This Statement defines 
fair value, provides measurement techniques and approaches, 
establishes a hierarchy of inputs to valuation techniques, and describes 
what should be reported at fair value and what should be disclosed 
about fair value measurements.  The implementation of this standard 
resulted in additional disclosures in the financial statements. 
 
 
 

  Significant or Unusual Transactions 
We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions or 
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

  Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates 
Summary information about the process used by management in 
formulating particularly sensitive accounting estimates and about our 
conclusions regarding the reasonableness of those estimates is in the 
attached Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates. 
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Area  Comments 
   

Audit Adjustments  There were no audit adjustments made to the original trial balance 
presented to us to begin our audit. 

Uncorrected Misstatements  Uncorrected misstatements are summarized in the attached Summary 
of Uncorrected Misstatements. 

Disagreements With 
Management 

 We encountered no disagreements with management over the 
application of significant accounting principles, the basis for 
management’s judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the 
audit, or significant disclosures to be included in the basic financial 
statements. 

Consultations With Other 
Accountants 

 Except for consulting services provided by Crawford & Associates, we 
are not aware of any consultations management had with other 
accountants about accounting or auditing matters. 

Significant Issues 
Discussed With 
Management 

 No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed with or 
were the subject of correspondence with management. 

Significant Difficulties 
Encountered in Performing 
the Audit 

 We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with 
management during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in 
Accordance with 
Government Auditing 
Standards 

 We have separately issued a report on internal control over financial 
reporting and on compliance and other matters based on an audit of 
the financial statements performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards.  

Significant Written 
Communications Between 
Management and Our Firm 

 Copies of material written communications between our firm and the 
management of the City, including the representation letter provided 
to us by management, are attached as Exhibit A. 
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The City of Midwest City 
Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates 
Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon 
management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and 
experience about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to 
monitor throughout the year the process used to determine and record these accounting estimates. The 
following describes the significant accounting estimates reflected in the City’s June 30, 2016, basic 
financial statements. 
 

Estimate Accounting Policy 
Management’s 

Estimation Process 

Basis for Our 
Conclusions on 

Reasonableness of 
Estimate 

Net Pension Liability 
(NPL) Assumptions 

The City records a 
liability for the net 
pension liability 
associated with the 
Oklahoma Firefighters 
Pension and Retirement 
Plan, the Oklahoma 
Police Pension and 
Retirement System, and 
the City of Enid 
Retirement Plan, along 
with corresponding 
deferred inflows and 
outflows. 
 

The Police and Fire 
Pension Systems and 
the City for its single-
employer plan, engages 
the services of certified 
actuaries to compute the 
liability based on 
information provided by 
the respective pension 
systems and the City, 
including mortality rates, 
discount rates and 
inflation rates.  These 
actuary reports are made 
available to the City, and 
City management 
reviews the actuarial 
results. 
 

We tested the payroll 
information submitted to 
the Plans, obtained the 
actuarial report and 
audited pension 
allocation schedules. We 
had an internal actuarial 
specialist review the 
significant assumptions 
and conclusions used by 
the Plans. We concluded 
that the estimates are 
reasonable. 

Fair Value of 
Investments  

Investments are stated 
at fair value based on 
quoted market prices or 
other measures based 
on types of investments. 

Fair value is determined 
by custodian bank and 
provided to the City 
monthly. 

We tested the 
information underlying 
management’s 
estimates. We used an 
independent pricing 
service and based on our 
procedures, we conclude 
that management’s 
estimates are 
reasonable. 

 
Depreciable Life of 
Capital Assets 

The depreciable life of 
capital assets is set at 
the estimated useful life 
of the related asset. 

The determination is 
made at the time the 
asset is placed into 
service and involves 
various judgments and 
assumptions, including 
the estimated useful life 
and prior experience. 
 
 
 
 
 

We scanned the 
estimated useful lives 
assigned to current year 
additions by 
management. We 
believe the estimates are 
reasonable. 
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Estimate Accounting Policy 
Management’s 

Estimation Process 

Basis for Our 
Conclusions on 

Reasonableness of 
Estimate 

Other 
Postemployment 
Benefit Plan 
Assumptions 

Liabilities are reported in 
the government-wide 
and proprietary fund 
financial statements for 
the difference between 
annually required 
contributions and the 
actual contributions 
made by the City. 

The City relies on the 
actuarial computed Net 
Other Postemployment 
Benefit Obligation based 
on data provided by the 
City of Midwest City 
turnover, retirement age, 
wages and mortality. 
These factors and the 
actuary assumptions are 
based upon historical 
and general market data, 
and are reviewed by 
management. 

We analyzed the City’s 
methodology, obtained 
actuarial calculation 
reports and concluded 
that the estimates are 
reasonable. 

Incurred But Not 
Reported Workers 
Compensation Liability 

Losses related to 
worker’s compensation 
claims should be 
recognized in the period 
in which the underlying 
event occurs.  An IBNR 
claim should be 
recognized as a liability if 
it is probable both 1) that 
the claim will be 
asserted and 2) that the 
claim, once asserted, will 
prevail. 

Management relies on 
an actuary to determine 
the liability and uses the 
actuarially generated 
loss run report to record 
the year end estimate for 
incurred but not reported 
claims. 

We reviewed the current 
year estimate and 
performed a lookback at 
the prior year estimate 
and compared that to an 
independent estimate 
calculated by RSM.  
Based on the testing 
performed, the estimates 
appeared reasonable. 

Allowance for Doubtful 
Accounts related to 
Account Receivable 
(Utility Billings and 
Court Fines) 

Accounts receivable 
balances must be 
recorded at their 
collectable balance. Any 
receivables that may be 
uncollectable should 
have an allowance for 
doubtful accounts 
recorded against the 
receivable balance. 

The City calculates the 
allowance by reviewing 
historical collections for 
each type of accounts 
receivable and booking 
an allowance related to 
the accounts receivable 
based on that collection 
percentage.  

We recalculated 
management’s estimate 
of the allowance based 
on an independently 
formed expectation. 
Additionally, we 
performed a look-back at 
the amounts recorded in 
the allowance in the prior 
year and compared 
those amounts to the 
actual collection 
experience for the 
accounts receivable 
outstanding in the prior 
year. Based on the 
testing performed, the 
estimates appeared 
reasonable. 
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The City of Midwest City 
Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements 
Year Ended June 30, 2016 

During the course of our audit, we accumulated uncorrected misstatements that were determined by 
management to be immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial position, results of 
operations, and cash flows and to the related basic financial statement disclosures. Following is a 
summary of those differences. 
 
Opinion Unit: Governmental Type Activities 
 

Description Assets Liabilities Net Position Revenue Expense
Non-reversed opening equity 
misstatements -$          -$               96,143  $        122,827  $           (26,684)        

To record judgemental 
misstatement related to potential 
adverse legal outcomes

-            (600,000)        -                  -                       600,000       

To record known misstatements 
related to estimated sick leave 
payouts for employees between 5-
10 years. 

-            (347,514)        -                  -                       347,514       

-$          (947,514)  $    96,143            122,827  $           920,830  $   
Current year effect on net position 1,043,657       
Total 1,139,800  $   

Effect - Debit (Credit)

 
 
Opinion Unit: Business Type Activities 
 

Description Assets Liabilities Net Position Revenue Expense
Non-reversed opening equity 
misstatements -$          -$              771,825  $   -$          (771,825)       

To record known misstatements 
related to estimated sick leave 
payouts for employees between 5-
10 years. (1) 

-            (45,704)         -               -            45,704          

To record known misstatements 
related to estimated sick leave 
payouts for employees between 5-
10 years. (2)

-            (37,026)         -               -            37,026          

Projected Misstatement: To record 
misstatement related to non-
accrual of accounts payable.(2)

-            (23,405)         -               -            23,405          

-$          (106,135)  $   771,825       -$          (665,690)  $   
Current year effect on net position (665,690)      
Total 106,135  $   

(1) Midwest City Municipal Authority Opinion Unit - Total current year effect is $45,704.
   The net effect on ending net position is $45,704.

(2) Aggregate Non-Major Opinion Unit - Total current year effect is $37,026.
   The net effect on ending net position is $37,026

(3) Midwest City Municipal Authority Opinion Unit - Total current year effect is $23,405.
   The net effect on ending net position is $23,405.

Effect - Debit (Credit)
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 

Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Midwest City, Oklahoma 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Midwest City, Oklahoma, (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 28, 2016. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.   
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Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
December 28, 2016  
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
The City of Midwest City 
Midwest City, Oklahoma 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Midwest City, 
Oklahoma, (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Midwest City, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 
2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, schedules of pension plan funding progress and other post-employment benefits 
funding progress, and the general fund, police fund, and fire fund budgetary comparison schedules, as 
listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements and the other governmental fund budgetary comparison schedules, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The 
supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and related directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The accompanying statistical section, as listed in the table of contents, has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report (under separate 
cover) dated December 28, 2016, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
 
 

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
December 28, 2016 
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The City of Midwest City’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in 
focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the City’s financial activity, (c) 
identify changes in the City’s financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent years’ 
challenges), (d) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and (e) 
identify individual fund issues or concerns.  
 
Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year’s 
activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the City’s 
financial statements beginning on page 18. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, by $516,929,402 (net position).  Of this amount, unrestricted net 
position of the governmental activities was a deficit of $20,260,132 with the business type activities 
reporting an unrestricted net position of $9,396,345. The unrestricted net position may be used to 
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.   

 
   The Primary Government’s total net position decreased by $3,242,754 or .62% from the prior year.  

This was a result of a decrease of $5,847,274 in the governmental activities while the business-type 
activities had an increase of $2,604,520.  Both revenues and expenses increased over the prior year.   
The detailed changes made from the Governmental Fund Statements to the Statement of Net Position 
can be found on page 25.  
 

 The City’s total deferred inflows decreased by $2,385,231 or, 28.68%. 2002 general obligation bond 
will be paid off in fiscal year 2017 from sinking fund balances instead of property tax, therefore 
deferred property tax inflows decreased by $1,239,511. Also, police and fire pension related deferred 
inflows decreased by $1,145,720.  
  

 Sales tax is the major source of revenue for governmental activities.  Sales and use tax collections for 
fiscal year 2016 totaled $33,475,086 compared to FY 2015 which totaled $33,008,553.  The total 
increase in sales and use tax collection was $466,533. A historical review of governmental activity 
revenues can be found in statistical information of the report.  

 
    At the end of the fiscal year 2016, the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $4,257,831 

or 14.4% of General Fund revenues. 
 

    Health Insurance premiums decreased $329,679 from the prior year or 5.88%.  This was due to more 
employees choosing low premium insurance plans offered by the City in fiscal year 2016.   

 
 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of 
Midwest City’s basic financial statements.  The City’s basic financial statements comprise of three 
components:  (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements and (3) notes to the 
financial statements.    This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements. 
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Government-wide Financial Statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances in a manner similar to the private-sector 
business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows,  
liabilities, and deferred inflows with the difference between the four elements reported as net position.  
Over time, increases or decreases in net position serve as a useful indicator on whether the financial 
position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless 
of when cash is received or paid.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the statement for some 
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and fines and 
earned but not used vacation and sick leave as stated in City policy and union contracts).  Both the 
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting as opposed to the modified accrual basis used for Fund Financial Statements of the 
governmental funds. 
 
In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided between two types of 
activities: 
 
    Governmental activities.  Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including general 

government, public safety, streets, culture and recreation, health and welfare and economic 
development.  Sales taxes and franchise taxes finance most of these activities as reflected on page 19. 

   
    Business-type activities.  The City charges a fee to customers to cover the cost of services it 

provides.  The City’s utility system (water, sewer, sanitation, and drainage), conference center/hotel, 
golf, trailer park and industrial park activities are reported here. 

 
 
Fund Financial Statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  Fund financial statements 
provide detailed information about the most significant funds, but not the City as a whole.  Some funds 
are required to be established by state law or bond covenants.  However, the City Council establishes 
many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is 
meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other monies.  All of the funds of the City 
can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
 Governmental funds.   The majority of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, 

which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are 
available for spending.  These funds are reported using an accounting method identified as the 
modified accrual basis of accounting which measures cash and all other financial assets that can 
readily be converted to cash.  The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view 
of the City’s general governmental operations and the basic services it provides.  Governmental fund 
information helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can 
be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.  By comparing information presented for 
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
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government’s near-term financing decisions.  The relationship or differences between governmental 
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental funds are detailed in a reconciliation following the fund financial statements on page 23 
and 25 of this report.  

 
The City of Midwest City maintains individual governmental funds.  Information is presented 
separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General, Police, Fire, and Hospital 
Authority funds.  Data from the debt service fund, 14 special revenue funds, and 6 capital project 
funds, all of which are considered to be governmental, are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the 
form of combining statements starting on page 81 of this report. 
 

     Proprietary funds.  The City charges customers for certain services it provides, whether to outside 
customers or to other units within the City.  These services are generally reported in proprietary 
funds.  Proprietary funds are reported in the same manner that all activities are reported in the 
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.  In fact, the City’s enterprise funds (a 
component of proprietary funds) are similar to the business-type activities that are reported in the 
Government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.  
The internal service funds (the other component of proprietary funds) are utilized to report activities 
that provide supplies and services for the City’s other programs and activities, such as the risk 
management functions, health self-insurance fund, fleet services, surplus property activities and 
public works function.  Because these services benefit both governmental and business-type 
functions, they have been included in both the governmental and business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. 

 
The City of Midwest City maintains one major enterprise fund.  The City uses this fund to account for 
its water, sewer, sanitation, conference center/hotel, debt service and drainage operations.  The fund 
provides the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more 
detail and includes some of the internal service fund-type activity.  The City considers this enterprise 
fund activity to be a major fund.  Data from 6 non-major enterprise funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these non-major enterprise funds is 
provided in the form of combining statements starting on page 88 of this report. 

 
 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
 

As of June 30, 2016, the City’s combined net position is $516,929,402, of which $401,793,617 can be 
attributed to governmental activities and $115,135,785 is attributed to business-type activities. This 
analysis focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the City’s 
governmental and business-type activities. 
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The largest portion of the City’s net position, 82.5%, reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, water rights, building, machinery and equipment, less any related debt used to acquire those 
assets that is still outstanding).  The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the City’s investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this 
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. The net change in capital assets can be reviewed in Table 1 with key element 
changes shown in Table 3. 
 

TABLE 1
NET POSITION (In Thousands)

% Inc. % Inc. % Inc.
(Dec.) (Dec.) (Dec.)

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Current and other assets 155,954$       154,784$      1% 22,327$      23,240$    -4% 178,281$      178,024$   0%
Capital assets 324,230         335,228        -3% 163,369      164,248    -1% 487,599        499,476     -2%

     Total assets 480,184         490,012        - 185,696      187,488    -1% 665,880        677,500     -2%
Deferred outflow of resources 7,346             2,737            168% 928             982           -5% 8,274            3,719         122%

Long-term debt outstanding 64,473           61,934          4% 65,962        69,640      -5% 130,435        131,574     -1%
Other liabilities 15,333           14,858          3% 5,527          6,299        -12% 20,860          21,157       -1%
     Total l iabilities 79,806           76,792          4% 71,489        75,939      -6% 151,295        152,731     -1%

Deferred inflow of resources 5,931             8,316            -29% -             -            0% 5,931            8,316         -29%

Net position:
  Net investment in capital assets 322,494         331,128        -3% 103,868      100,696    3% 426,362        431,824     -1%
   Restricted 99,560           98,153          1% 1,871          2,126        -12% 101,431        100,279     1%
   Unrestricted (deficit) (20,261)         (21,640)         -6% 9,396          9,709        -3% (10,865)         (11,931)      -9%
     Total net position 401,793$       407,641$      -1% 115,135$    112,531$  2% 516,928$      520,172$   -1%

Total Primary Government
Governmental

Activities Activities
Business-Type

 
Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by $5,847,274 or 1.12%. The business type 
activities increased the City’s net position by $2,604,520 or .2% for a net decrease of $3,242,754, or 
.6%.  The key elements of these changes are contained in Table 2.      
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Table 2 
Changes In Net Position 

(In Thousands) 
 

% Inc. % Inc. % Inc.

(Dec.) (Dec.) (Dec.)

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Revenues:

Program revenues:

  Charges for services 8,233$        6,825$      21% 28,074$    27,377$    3% 36,307$   34,202$   6%

  Operating grants and contributions 4,724          4,865        -3% -            -           0% 4,724       4,865       -3%

  Capital grants and contributions 125             2,594        -95% -            -           0% 125          2,594       -95%

General revenues:

  Sales and use taxes 33,475        33,009      1% -            -           0% 33,475     33,009     1%

  Other taxes 7,308          7,266        1% -            -           0% 7,308       7,266       1%

  Other general revenue 3,704          8,469        -56% 962           1,433        -33% 4,666       9,902       -53%

     Total revenues 57,569        63,028      -9% 29,036      28,810      1% 86,605     91,838     -6%

Program expenses:

  General government 7,167          6,431        11% -            -           -      7,167       6,431       11%

  Public safety 28,732        26,748      7% -            -           -      28,732     26,748     7%

  Streets 15,404        14,939      3% -            -           -      15,404     14,939     3%

  Cultural, parks and recreation 1,909          1,641        16% -            -           -      1,909       1,641       16%

  Health and welfare 465             430           8% -            -           -      465          430          8%

  Economic development 4,361          3,845        13% -            -           -      4,361       3,845       13%

  Interest expense 1,462          1,567        -7% -            -           -      1,462       1,567       -7%

  Water -              -            -     7,008        6,820        3% 7,008       6,820       3%

  Sewer -              -            -     9,408        6,256        50% 9,408       6,256       50%

  Sanitation -              -            -     4,596        4,155        11% 4,596       4,155       11%

  Drainage -              -            -     688           638           8% 688          638          8%

  Conference center -              -            -     7,400        8,858        -16% 7,400       8,858       -16%

  Other activities -              -            -     1,247        1,082        15% 1,247       1,082       15%

     Total expenses 59,500        55,601      7% 30,347      27,809      9% 89,847     83,410     8%

     Excess (deficiency) before

       transfers (1,931)         7,427        -126% (1,311)       1,001        -231% (3,242)      8,428       -138%

Transfers (3,916)         (3,857)       2% 3,916        3,857        2% -           -           

Increase (decrease)

  in net position (5,847)$       3,570$      -264% 2,605$      4,858$      -46% (3,242)$    8,428$     -138%

Total Primary Government

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities

 
 

Governmental Activities.  The revenues reflect a decrease over last year of $5,460,461. This 
significant decrease is primarily the result of decrease in investment income of $4,859,300.  The 
Hospital Authority had a decrease of $4,958,658 in investment income over last year.  The Hospital 
Authority is the only fund authorized to invest in the stock market which can result in large fluctuations 
based on the market performance.  All other fund investments are FDIC insured, collateralized or direct 
obligations of the United State Government. 
 
The most significant governmental activities expense was providing public safety with a cost of 
$28,732,258. These expenses were funded by revenue collected from a variety of sources with the 
largest being a transfer from General Fund in the amount of $17,469,337 and dedicated sales tax of 
$5,464,697 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  The most significant portion of public safety 
expense is the cost of personnel. Salaries and benefits totaled $25,378,074 Other significant 
governmental expenses are for the streets in the amount of $15,404,119 of which $11,945,366 is 
depreciation expense. 
 
Business-type Activities.  Business-type revenue increased by $226,677 or 2.3% from the prior year. 
The investment income decreased from $1,431,852 to $889,843 due to the unrealized loss on 
investments in FY 2016.  
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Budgetary Highlights.  For fiscal year 2015-2016, General Fund revenue (including transfers) budget 
was amended by $482,136 or 1.27% of the original budget of $37,419,532. The actual revenue 
(including transfers) is less than the final budget projection by $106,031, or 0.28%. General Fund actual 
expenditures (including transfers) on a budgetary basis was $36,346,390 compared to the final budget of 
$38,294,807. See page 74 of the report for more detail. 
 
The Police Fund revenue (including transfers) budget was increased by $173,623, or 1.34%, of the 
original budget of $12,789,952. The actual revenue (including transfers) is more than the final budget 
projection by $17,075 or 0.13%. The actual expenditures (including transfers) on a budgetary basis 
were $12,718,926 compared to the final budget of $13,853,779.  Actual expenditures (including 
transfers) were $1,134,853 or 8.19% below budget projections. Some vacant positions were budgeted 
but not staffed.  Capital outlay of $575,670 for equipment was not spent.  
 
The Fire Fund revenues (including transfers) budget was amended by $134,383 or 1.27%. The actual 
revenue (including transfers) was less than the final budget projection by $72,408. The actual 
expenditures (including transfers) on a budgetary basis were $10,284,339 compared to the final 
budget of $11,176,072. Actual expenditures (including transfers) were $891,733 or 7.69 % below 
projections. Some vacant positions were budgeted but not staffed.  Capital outlay appropriation of 
$439,503 was not spent.   
 
The budget to actual comparisons for these funds can be found on pages 75-78 of the report. 

 
Capital Asset     At the end of fiscal year 2016, the City had $487,599,772 invested in a broad range of 
capital assets, including police and fire equipment, buildings, conference center and hotel, park 
facilities, roads, bridges, water and sewer facilities and distribution systems. This amount represents a 
net decrease (including additions and deductions) of $10,538,497 for the governmental activities. 
Although the City had land additions of $138,198, building additions of $165,912, equipment additions 
of $730,668, vehicle additions of $539,440, construction in progress additions of $1,732,064 and 
infrastructure additions of $1,199,058; the depreciation expense of $14,406,124 caused the current year 
reduction, with street depreciation for the year amounting to of $11,945,366.  
 
The business activities had a net increase of $824,348.  The Sewer Facility construction in progress of 
$65,437,015 was moved to the infrastructure category upon completion of the project. Table 3 reflects 
the net key elements that make up the capital assets by type and source.    
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Capital Assets

(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total Primary Government

  

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Land 32,682$       32,544$     7,572$       7,550$       40,254$               40,094$              

Water rights -               -             4,673         4,673         4,673                   4,673                  

Construction in progress 4,661           3,519         2,443         66,463       7,104                   69,982                

Buildings 29,551         29,385       31,966       31,363       61,517                 60,748                

Machinery and equipment 19,998         19,328       13,182       12,925       33,180                 32,253                

Vehicles 9,235           9,047         8,367         8,032         17,602                 17,079                

Infrastructure 440,578       439,838     178,922     110,923     619,500               550,761              

536,705       533,661     247,125     241,929     783,830               775,590              

Less: Depreciation (212,476)      (198,433)    (83,755)      (77,679)      (296,231)              (276,112)             

     Totals 324,229$     335,228$   163,370$   164,250$   487,599$             499,478$            

TABLE 3

 
 
 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found on pages 48-49 of this report. 
 
Debt Administration. At year end, the City had $93,076,634 in long term debt outstanding compared to 
$98,605,500 at the end of the prior fiscal year, a decrease of 5.6% as shown in Table 4.  See pages 52-55 
for a more in depth review of long-term debt. 
 

TABLE 4

Long-Term Debt

(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total Primary Government

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

General obligation bonds 2,700$             4,100$             -$              -$                2,700$            4,100$          

Notes payable 21,983             22,592             216               428                 22,199            23,020          

Accrued compensated absences 5,044               4,215               57,860          61,915            62,904            66,130          

Revenue bonds -                  -                  2,353            2,619              2,353              2,619            

Revenue bonds premium -                  -                  1,468            1,434              1,468              1,434            

Refundable deposits 78                    82                    1,374            1,221              1,452              1,303            

     Totals 29,805$           30,989$           63,271$        67,617$          93,076$          98,606$        

 
 
FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 
Economic Outlook. Oklahoma’s unemployment rate continues inching toward the national average, 
which is negative news in a state that had been the trendsetter in new job creation prior to 2014.  
Nevertheless, eastern Oklahoma County has been somewhat insulated from the energy sector 
downturn thanks to good jobs in and around Tinker Air Force Base.  Boeing Aircraft during the next 
calendar year is expected to add approximately 400 more positions to its campus on SE 59th ST, just 
south of the City limits.  The city expects continued slow growth in some of the companies that 
service Tinker Air Force Base, Boeing and the like.  
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We offer the following review of local economic sectors: 
 

 Retail. In the past year the Sooner Rose Shopping Center has risen from the intersection of 
SE 15th ST and S Sooner RD with Academy Sports + Outdoors and Hobby Lobby as its first 
tenants.   
 
A new center is coming online at 2601 S Douglas BLVD that is reportedly 60% pre-leased.  
Another is in the works at 1011 S Air Depot BLVD, but construction is moving very slowly.  
A small center is also planned for the 2300 block of S Douglas BLVD. 
 
The biggest retail “splash” is expected to be the completion of the WinCo Foods store 
sometime in late 2017.  While the start of construction will create spikes in use tax 
collections, we do not expect doors to open until late this fiscal year or early in FY 2017 – 
2018.  
 
OnCue Express is vigorously working to complete its third location in Midwest City.  The 
latest store will be situated at the SW corner of NE 23rd ST (U.S. Highway 62) and N 
Douglas BLVD on the north side of the city.   

 
 Hospitality. Restaurant activity has been a great source of sales tax collections that remains 

virtually unaffected by e-commerce.  More and more families are choosing to dine out, and 
we feel this trend will continue into 2017.   
 
Zaxby’s Chicken continues making rapid progress on its new location on S Douglas BLVD 
where it will join the recently completed Freddy’s Frozen Custard & Steakburgers on our 
east restaurant row.   

 
Meanwhile, there are at least six new restaurant pad sites in the works including two at the 
Sooner Rose Center, three in the S Douglas BLVD corridor and another in TCP.  We are 
also working to recruit restaurants to the area around the new OnCue. No building plans 
have been filed and no start dates have been announced on any of these projects. 
 
The lodging business is not doing quite as well.  Hotels are being erected in many parts of 
the OKC Metro area; however, they may be three years too late. A lot of franchisees 
overbuilt based on the strength of oilfield traffic, but overall room availability frequently 
exceeds demand. Midwest City has a Hilton Home 2 Suites that will contribute another 91 
rooms to this surplus when it opens in 2017. 

 
 

 Industrial. The Soldier Creek Industrial Park (“SCIP”) was recently certified by the 
Oklahoma Department of Commerce as being a “Site Ready” light industrial park.  The 
preliminary plat was approved in November and all utilities should be installed in early 
2017.  The completion of SCIP’s first phase opens up approximately 40 acres up for 
industrial development with over 100 undeveloped acres remaining in the neighboring area. 
The city has  responded to two Oklahoma Department of Commerce requests for proposals 
for manufacturing facilities where SCIP may be a good candidate.  The city has also seen 
some fleeting interest in the 107,000 ft.² Chromalloy building which has long been vacant. 
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 Office and Professional. The glut of Metro area hotel rooms leftover from the decrease in 
energy sector activities may only be surpassed by the amount of office space available.  
Significant vacancies remain citywide in Class B and Class C office space.  The silver lining 
lies in the fact there was a shortage of Class A space before the Boom that still exists. In 
fact, Midwest City’s only new Class A space, Mid-Town Office Park, seems to be doing 
well and there may be plans for expansion.  Although office development does not produce 
sales tax revenue, the number of type of jobs being created is advantageous to the local 
economy.   

 
 
FY 2016-2017 Budgets and Rates. The fiscal year 2016-2017 expenditure budgets presented to the 
Council and Board of Trustees was $100,987,189, which is net of $48,975,154 inter/intra-fund transfers.   
 
The three major governmental funds reflect the following budgets adopted for FY 16-17: 
 
 

 Revenues Transfers In  Expenditures Transfer Out  (Use) of Fund Balance
General $26,927,381  $10,817,890  $12,189,935  $26,232,963  ($677,627) 
Police   $  2,835,897  $  9,825,091  $12,906,635  $     234,000  ($479,647) 
Fire          $  2,327,040  $  7,957,488  $10,318,247  $     378,500  ($412,219) 
 
 
Personal services were budgeted with the merit steps included for all pay plans; non-represented, police 
and fire.  A 1.0% cost of living (COLA) was included for all non-represented employees. The non-
represented employees participate in a defined contribution plan; the contribution by the City is 14%. 
 
Through later negotiations, a total of 0.5% increase was implemented for police. The statutory 
contribution requirement for the police defined benefit pension plan will remain the same at 21% in which 
13% is to be paid by the City and 8% by the employee. 
 
Through later negotiations, a total of 2.3% increase was implemented for fire. The statutory contribution 
requirement for fire defined benefit pension plan will remain the same at 23%. The City currently pays 
18% and the employee pays 5%.  
 
The City through self-insurance sponsors medical, prescription and dental insurance to full time 
employees and qualifying retirees and their families. Annual health insurance premium amounts are 
established by the City Council. The “Affordable Care Act” (ACA) has certain costs that are not to be 
passed on to the employee or retiree. For FY 2016-2017 the budgeted is $112,537. 
 
City is currently offering two medical insurance plans, Blue Option Plan and Blue Preferred Plan. Blue 
Preferred Plan has lower premium with a reduced network to employees.   
 
Emergency reserves are contained in the operational fund budgets of the City. The General fund is 
required to maintain a 10% reserve while all others are required to maintain a 5% reserve. The reserves 
are equal to the annual operating budget less transfer outs and capital outlay. The reserves are only 
accessible if a significant event should occur such as a downturn in the economy greatly affecting the 
funding of the City’s operations, uses for natural disasters or one-time non-recurring emergency that 
disrupts the cash receipts of the City. With this resolution in place for maintaining a reserve, the City 
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becomes more financially stable and better equipped to handle any unforeseen emergencies or major loss 
of revenues. 

Request for Information.   This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s 
finances, comply with finance-related laws, regulations and demonstrate the City’s commitment to public 
accountability.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for 
additional information should be addressed to the City of Midwest City, Finance Department, 100 N. 
Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110. 
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Statement of Net Position– June 30, 2016 
 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 14,954,984$             2,913,820$               17,868,804$             
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted -                                2,887,325                 2,887,325                 
Investments 104,793,098             12,556,389               117,349,487             
Accounts receivable, net 5,155,745                 3,204,010                 8,359,755                 
Interest receivable 66,582                      22,430                      89,012                      
Other receivable 19,826                      86,303                      106,129                    
Inventory 113,639                    249,589                    363,228                    
Internal balances 785,480                    (785,480)                   -                                
Prepaid items 4,615                        -                                4,615                        
Due from other governments 4,974,080                 -                                4,974,080                 
Lease receivable 20,169,837               -                                20,169,837               
Deposits held by others 4,915,851                 -                                4,915,851                 
Investments, non- current, restriced -                                1,193,028                 1,193,028                 
Capital assets:

Land, water rights, and construction in progress 37,343,012               14,688,433               52,031,445               
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 286,887,366             148,680,961             435,568,327             

Total assets 480,184,115             185,696,808             665,880,923             

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding -                            927,989                    927,989                    
Deferred amount related to pensions 7,346,012                 -                            7,346,012                 

Total deferred outflows 7,346,012                 927,989                    8,274,001                 

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,613,032                 4,295,881                 6,908,913                 
Wages payable 1,429,863                 453,525                    1,883,388                 
Claims payable 2,353,088                 -                                2,353,088                 
Due to other governments 8,550                        -                                8,550                        
Accrued interest payable 34,214                      777,621                    811,835                    
Unearned revenue 8,894,591                 -                                8,894,591                 
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 3,789,945                 5,071,939                 8,861,884                 
Due in more than one year 60,682,556               60,890,047               121,572,603             

Total liabilities 79,805,839               71,489,013               151,294,852             

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount related to pensions 5,638,139                 -                            5,638,139                 
Deferred amount related to property taxes 292,532                    -                            292,532                    

Total deferred inflows 5,930,671                 -                            5,930,671                 

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 322,493,871             103,868,269             426,362,140             
Restricted for:

Debt service 1,434,476                 1,871,171                 3,305,647                 
Hospital 76,250,368               -                                76,250,368               
Capital improvements 11,587,425               -                                11,587,425               
Public Safety 6,584,361                 -                                6,584,361                 
Street operations 1,506,138                 -                                1,506,138                 
Culture and recreation 1,436,763                 -                                1,436,763                 
Economic Development 732,604                    -                                732,604                    
Other 27,743                      -                                27,743                      

Unrestricted  (deficit) (20,260,132)              9,396,344                 (10,863,788)              

Total net position 401,793,617$           115,135,784$           516,929,401$           

Primary Government

 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Statement of Activities –Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

Program Revenue

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for 

Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions
Governmental 

Activities
Business-type 

Activities Total
Primary government

Governmental activities
General government 7,166,992$              3,499,283$           164,975$              -$                          (3,502,734)$             -$                                      (3,502,734)$                
Public safety 28,732,258              2,629,817             3,591,649             27,230                  (22,483,562)             -                                        (22,483,562)                
Streets 15,404,119 141,648                529,784                15,467                  (14,717,220)             -                                        (14,717,220)                
Culture and recreation 1,909,102 505,466                63,554                  -                            (1,340,082)               -                                        (1,340,082)                  
Health and welfare 464,889 -                        -                        -                            (464,889)                  -                                        (464,889)                     
Economic development 4,360,854                1,456,957             374,374                82,309                  (2,447,214)               -                                        (2,447,214)                  
Interest expense 1,461,517                -                            -                            -                            (1,461,517)               -                                        (1,461,517)                  

Total governmental activities 59,499,731              8,233,171             4,724,336             125,006                (46,417,218)             -                                        (46,417,218)                

Business-type activities:
Water 7,007,982                7,202,813             -                            -                            -                               194,831                            194,831                       
Wastewater 9,408,356                8,018,367             -                            -                            -                               (1,389,989)                        (1,389,989)                  
Sanitation 4,595,959                5,910,071             -                            -                            -                               1,314,112                         1,314,112                    
Drainage 688,044                   480,287                -                            -                            -                               (207,757)                           (207,757)                     
Conference center 7,399,848                5,343,154             -                            -                            -                               (2,056,694)                        (2,056,694)                  
Golf 1,195,429                1,119,514             -                            -                            -                               (75,915)                             (75,915)                       
Mobile home park 27,279 145                       -                            -                            -                               (27,134)                             (27,134)                       
Industrial park 23,988 -                            -                            -                            -                               (23,988)                             (23,988)                       

Total business-type activities 30,346,885              28,074,351           -                            -                            -                               (2,272,534)                        (2,272,534)                  

Total primary government 89,846,616$            36,307,522$         4,724,336$          125,006$             (46,417,218)           (2,272,534)                        (48,689,752)              

General revenues:
Taxes:

Sales and use taxes 33,475,086               -                                        33,475,086                  
Property tax 3,630,576                 -                                        3,630,576                    
Franchise and public service taxes 2,610,661                 -                                        2,610,661                    
Hotel/motel taxes 597,837 -                                        597,837                       

Intergovernmental revenue not restricted to specific programs 467,541                    -                                        467,541                       
Investment income 3,113,120                 889,842                            4,002,962                    
Miscellaneous 590,695                    71,639                              662,334                       

Transfers - internal activity (3,915,572)               3,915,572                         -                                  
Total general revenues and transfers 40,569,944               4,877,053                         45,446,997                  

Change in net position (5,847,274)               2,604,519                         (3,242,755)                  

Net position - beginning 407,640,891             112,531,265                     520,172,156                

Net position - ending 401,793,617$           115,135,784$                   516,929,401$              

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Governmental Funds Balance Sheet - June 30, 2016 
 

General Fund Police Fund Fire Fund
Midwest City 

Hospital Authority

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,298,525$               457,990$                  290,458$                  8,417,710$               3,659,454$               14,124,137$             
Investments 4,839,610                 2,190,477                 1,426,233                 77,142,586               14,717,346               100,316,252             
Receivables:
  Accounts receivable 1,179,309                 70,720                      923                           3,128,469                 691,458                    5,070,879                 
  Accrued interest receivable 10,453                      3,416                        2,624                        6,779                        32,131                      55,403                      
  Due from other funds 41,968                      1,134,461                 852,411                    2,689                        828,455                    2,859,984                 
  Deposits held by others -                                -                                -                                4,223,251                 692,600                    4,915,851                 
  Prepaid items 4,615                        -                                -                                -                                -                                4,615                        
  Other receivable 15,177                      4,475                        874                           -                                -                                20,526                      
  Due from other governments 2,868,013                 351,718                    314,360                    -                                1,439,989                 4,974,080                 
Inventory -                                -                                -                                -                                60,000                      60,000                      
Advance from other funds 1,271,817                 -                                -                                181,059                    141,476                    1,594,352                 

Total assets 11,529,487$             4,213,257$               2,887,883$               93,102,543$             22,262,909$             133,996,079$           

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 291,273$                  8,014$                      13,079$                    1,070,391$               911,051$                  2,293,808$               
  Accrued interest payable -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                
  Wages payable 402,112 520,577                    380,554                    3,868                        73,623                      1,380,734                 
  Unearned revenue -                                -                                -                                8,894,591                 -                                8,894,591                 
  Refundable deposits - court 78,055 -                                -                                -                                -                                78,055                      
  Due to other funds 1,881,934 -                                -                                846,845                    723,800                    3,452,579                 
  Due to other governments 8,550                        -                                -                                -                                -                                8,550                        
 Advance to other funds 141,476 -                                1,271,817                 -                                62,340                      1,475,633                 

Total liabilities 2,803,400                 528,591                    1,665,450                 10,815,695               1,770,814                 17,583,950               

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue 912,119 57,609                      -                                549,109                    566,403                    2,085,240                 

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 1,276,432                 -                                -                                4,223,251                 752,600                    6,252,283                 
Restricted 1,572,213                 3,496,564                 1,222,433                 77,514,488               16,976,545               100,782,243             
Assigned 1,979,309                 130,493                    -                                -                                2,258,887                 4,368,689                 
Unassigned (deficit) 2,986,014                 -                                -                                -                                (62,340)                     2,923,674                 

Total fund balances 7,813,968                 3,627,057                 1,222,433                 81,737,739               19,925,692               114,326,889             

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances 11,529,487$             4,213,257$               2,887,883$               93,102,543$             22,262,909$             133,996,079$           

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
 
Fund Balance – Net Position Reconciliation – June 30, 2016: 
 

Fund balances of governmental funds 114,326,889$           

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation of $211,431,196 323,266,885             

Certain long-term assets are not available to pay for current fund liabilities and, therefore, along 
with deferred outflows, are a deferred outflow of resources in the funds or not reported in the 
funds:

 Due from other governments 113,773                    
 Other receivable, net of allowance 1,678,935                 
 HMA hospital receivable 20,169,837

21,962,545

Certain  deferred outflows are not available to pay current period expenditures and certain long-
term liabilities and deferred inflows are not due and payable from current financial resources, and 
therefore, are not reported in this fund financial statement, but are reported in the governmental 
activities of the Statement of Net Position.

 Pension related deferred outflows 7,346,012                 
 Net pension liability (27,828,299)              
 Pension related deferred inflows (5,638,139)                

(26,120,426)              

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities to individual 
funds.  An allocation of the assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in 
governmental activities in the statement of net position. 4,490,490                 

Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable from current financial resources and, therefore, 
along with deferred inflows, are not reported in the funds:

 General obligation bonds payable (2,700,000)                
 Notes payable (21,983,066)              
 Accrued compensated absences (4,904,866)                
 OPEB Obligation - obligation shared by governmental function $2,320,819,  police $2,505,664,   
and fire $1,684,135 (6,510,620)                
 Accrued interest payable (34,214)                     

(36,132,766)              

Net position of governmental activities 401,793,617$           

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Year 
Ended June 30, 2016 
 

General Fund Police Fund Fire Fund

Midwest City 
Hospital 

Authority

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
REVENUES
Taxes 23,308,700$        2,885,595$       2,579,102$           935,362$                10,588,220$         40,296,979$         
Intergovernmental 881,619               837,945            2,447,937             -                              1,200,457             5,367,958             
Charges for services 2,273,604            102,497            23,019                  -                              1,859,931             4,259,051             
Fines and forfeitures 1,690,351            125,594            -                            -                              155,201                1,971,146             
Licenses and permits 367,757               2,600                9,990                    -                              187,595                567,942                
Investment income 329,678               111,760            49,018                  2,125,093               930,813                3,546,362             
Miscellaneous 602,192               45,549              52,181                  975,342                  263,672                1,938,936             

Total revenues 29,453,901          4,111,540         5,161,247             4,035,797               15,185,889           57,948,374           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 5,409,617            -                        -                            1,412,994               560,804                7,383,415             
Public safety 923,340               13,267,060       12,102,205           -                              724,084                27,016,689           
Streets 2,754,360            -                        -                            -                              93,943                  2,848,303             
Culture and recreation 1,024,887            -                        -                            -                              477,680                1,502,567             
Health and welfare 413,564               -                        -                            -                              -                            413,564                
Economic development 2,866,830            -                        -                            -                              1,048,025             3,914,855             

Capital outlay 478,422               257,123            99,342                  37,633                    3,561,019             4,433,539             
Debt service:

Principal retirement -                           -                        -                            608,693                  1,400,000             2,008,693             
Interest and fiscal  charges 8,238                   -                        51,426                  1,245,046               191,891                1,496,601             

Total expenditures 13,879,258          13,524,183       12,252,973           3,304,366               8,057,446             51,018,226           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures 15,574,643          (9,412,643)        (7,091,726)            731,431                  7,128,443             6,930,148             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 10,803,483          9,703,727         7,778,045             300,000                  1,154,644             29,739,899           
Transfers out (25,971,414)         (34,433)             (191,946)               (300,150)                 (7,154,378)            (33,652,321)          
Total other financing sources and uses (15,167,931)         9,669,294         7,586,099             (150)                        (5,999,734)            (3,912,422)            

Net change in fund balances 406,712               256,651            494,373                731,281                  1,128,709             3,017,726             

Fund balances - beginning 7,407,256            3,370,406         728,060                81,006,458             18,796,983           111,309,163         

Fund balances - ending 7,813,968$          3,627,057$       1,222,433$           81,737,739$           19,925,692$         114,326,889$       

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Changes in Fund Balances – Changes in Net Position Reconciliation – Year Ended June 30, 2016: 
 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: 3,017,726$               

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report 
depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets:
   Capital asset purchases capitalized 3,885,312                 
   Capital asset donated 15,467                      
   Loss on disposal of capital assets (506,620)                   
   Depreciation expense (14,337,983)              

(10,943,824)              

In the Statement of Activities, the net cost of pension benefits earned is calculated and 
reported as pension expense.  The fund financial statements report pension contributions as 
pension expenditures.  This amount represents the difference between pension contributions 
and calculated pension expense.

1,753,171                 

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure and collections of leasehold receivables are a 
revenue in the governmental funds.  However, the repayments reduce long-term liabilities or the 
long-term assets in the Statement of Net Position:
   Leasehold receivable receipts (489,098)                   
   Note payable principal payments 608,693                    
   General obligation bond principal payments 1,400,000                 

1,519,595                 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not 
reported as revenues in the funds:
   Change in unavailable revenue 259,259                    

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:
   Change in OPEB obligation (163,877)                   
   Change in accrued interest payable (21,376)                     
   Change in accrued compensated absences (814,013)                   

(999,266)                   

Internal service fund activity is reported as a proprietary fund in fund financial statements, but 
certain net revenues/expenses are reported in governmental activities on the Statement of 
Activities.
   Total change in net position for internal service funds (453,935)                   

Change in net position of governmental activities (5,847,274)$              

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Position - June 30, 2016 
 

Midwest City 
Municipal 
Authority

Nonmajor 
Enterprise 

Funds Total
Internal 

Service Funds
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,443,647$              419,020$             2,862,667$         882,000$            
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 2,652,850                234,475               2,887,325           -                          
Investments 10,426,510              1,897,104            12,323,614         4,709,621           
Accounts receivable, net 3,134,204                69,806                 3,204,010           84,166                
Other receivable 82,954                     3,349                   86,303                -                          
Accrued interest receivable 19,280                     3,150                   22,430                11,179                
Inventory 246,468                   3,121                   249,589              53,639                
Due from other funds 735,120                   907,733               1,642,853           599                     

Total current assets 19,741,033              3,537,758            23,278,791         5,741,204           

Non-current assets:
  Investments, restricted -                               1,193,028            1,193,028           -                          
  Advance  from other funds 1,393,125                -                           1,393,125           -                          
  Land, construction in progress, and water rights 8,465,248                6,223,185            14,688,433         1,141                  
  Other capital assets, net 138,053,194            10,472,983          148,526,177       1,117,136           

Total non-current assets 147,911,567            17,889,196          165,800,763       1,118,277           

Total assets 167,652,600            21,426,954          189,079,554       6,859,481           

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding 927,989                   -                       927,989              -                      

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4,090,530 202,093               4,292,623           329,951              
Claims liability -                               -                           -                          1,101,088           
Wages payable 349,031                   69,820                 418,851              76,334                
Due to other funds 741,384                   72,550                 813,934              236,923              
Accrued interest payable 777,621                   -                           777,621              -                          
Accrued compensated absences 354,380                   75,338                 429,718              96,021                
Refundable deposits 48,208                     143,230               191,438              -                          
Notes payable 216,090                   -                           216,090              -                          
Revenue bonds payable 4,185,000                -                           4,185,000           -                          

Total current liabilities 10,762,244              563,031               11,325,275         1,840,317           

Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 644,838                   150,677               795,515              192,041              
Claims liability -                               -                           -                          1,252,000           
Net OPEB obligation 2,074,362                451,841               2,526,203           492,917              
Advance to other funds -                               1,511,844            1,511,844           -                          
Refundable deposits -                               1,276,614            1,276,614           -                          
Revenue bonds payable, net 56,028,024              -                           56,028,024         -                          

Total non-current liabilities 58,747,224              3,390,976            62,138,200         1,936,958           

Total liabilities 69,509,468              3,954,007            73,463,475         3,777,275           

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 87,017,317              16,696,168          103,713,485       1,118,277           
Restricted for debt service 1,871,171                -                           1,871,171           -                          
Restricted for other purposes -                               314,423               314,423              -                          
Unrestricted 10,182,633              462,356               10,644,989         1,963,929           

Total net position 99,071,121$            17,472,947$        116,544,068$     3,082,206$         

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because
certain internal service fund balances are included with business-type activities and reported 
as interfund balances (1,408,284)          

Total net position per Government-Wide financial statements 115,135,784$     

 
 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Year Ended 
June 30, 2016 
 

Midwest City 
Municipal 
Authority

Nonmajor 
Enterprise Funds Total

Internal Service 
Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 25,802,731$             2,150,985$               27,953,716$             10,341,515$             
Fees, licenses and permits 32,050                      -                                32,050                      -                                
Miscellaneous 24,578                      -                                24,578                      76,618                      
Total operating revenues 25,859,359               2,150,985                 28,010,344               10,418,133               

OPERATING EXPENSES
  Personal services 9,867,376                 1,636,489                 11,503,865               2,265,596                 
  Materials and supplies 3,522,665                 216,986                    3,739,651                 1,393,724                 
  Other services and charges 7,660,414                 310,379                    7,970,793                 4,326,559                 
  Insurance claims and expense -                                -                                -                                3,543,711                 
  Depreciation and amortization 4,925,468                 514,933                    5,440,401                 101,470                    

Total operating expenses 25,975,923               2,678,787                 28,654,710               11,631,060               

Operating income (loss) (116,564)                   (527,802)                   (644,366)                   (1,212,927)                

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 724,383                    165,459                    889,842                    323,171                    
Interest expense and fiscal charges (1,244,791)              (29,964)                   (1,274,755)              -                               
Gain on asset retirement 1,383                        4,645                        6,028                        -                                
Other non-operating revenue -                                151,169                    151,169                    -                                
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (519,025)                   291,309                    (227,716)                   323,171                    

Income (loss)  before transfers (635,589)                   (236,493)                   (872,082)                   (889,756)                   
                      

Capital contributions -                                3,591                        3,591                        -                                
Transfers in 16,654,305               1,533,070                 18,187,375               -                                
Transfers out (14,123,997)              (149,649)                   (14,273,646)              (4,898)                       

Change in net position 1,894,719                 1,150,519                 3,045,238                 (894,654)                   

Total net position - beginning 97,176,402               16,322,428               113,498,830             3,976,860                 

Total net position - ending 99,071,121$             17,472,947$             116,544,068$           3,082,206$               

Change in net position per above 3,045,238$               
Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Activities are 
 different because the net revenue (expense) of certain internal service funds is reported with
 business-type activities (440,719)                   

Change in Business-Type Activites in Net Postion per Government-Wide Financial Statements 2,604,519$               

 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

Midwest City 
Municipal 
Authority

Nonmajor Enterprise 
Funds Total

Internal Service 
Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 25,974,709$             2,302,286$                     28,276,995$                       10,370,354$              
Payments to suppliers (10,614,270)              (1,064,255)                      (11,678,525)                        (5,653,876)                
Payments to employees (9,342,443)                (1,469,910)                      (10,812,353)                        (1,719,577)                
Receipts (payments) from interfund loans (334,139)                   (823,877)                         (1,158,016)                          12,472                       
Receipt of customer deposits -                                520,622                          520,622                              -                                
Return of customer deposits -                                (492,830)                         (492,830)                             -                                
Claims and benefits paid -                                -                                      -                                      (3,807,391)                

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,683,857                 (1,027,964)                      4,655,893                           (798,018)                   

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 16,654,305               1,533,070                       18,187,375                         -                                
Transfers to other funds (14,123,997)              (149,649)                         (14,273,646)                        (4,898)                       

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 2,530,308                 1,383,421                       3,913,729                           (4,898)                       

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased (4,588,249)                (826,084)                         (5,414,333)                          (21,926)                     
Principal paid on capital debt (4,267,039)                -                                      (4,267,039)                          -                                
Proceeds from interfund loan for capital purchases -                                1,398,797                       1,398,797                           -                                
Payments of interfund loan for capital purchases (211,986)                   (176,727)                         (388,713)                             -                                
Interest and fiscal charges paid on capital debt (1,501,674)                (29,964)                           (1,531,638)                          -                                
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 4,966                        4,645                              9,611                                  -                                

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (10,563,982)              370,667                          (10,193,315)                        (21,926)                     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments 1,177,069                 (844,058)                         333,011                              222,586                     
Interest and dividends 686,887                    162,043                          848,930                              309,492                     

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,863,956                 (682,015)                         1,181,941                           532,078                     

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (485,861)                   44,109                            (441,752)                             (292,764)                   

Balances - beginning of year 5,582,358                 609,386                          6,191,744                           1,174,764                  

Balances - end of year 5,096,497$               653,495$                        5,749,992$                         882,000$                   

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,443,647$               419,020$                        2,862,667$                         882,000$                   
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,652,850                 234,475                          2,887,325                           -                            

Total cash and cash equivalents 5,096,497$               653,495$                        5,749,992$                         882,000$                   

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
  operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (116,564)$                 (527,802)$                       (644,366)$                           (1,212,927)$              
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)  to net cash provided
   by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 4,925,468                 514,933                          5,440,401                           101,470                     
Loss on impairment of capital asset 826,576                    -                                  826,576                              -                            
Other nonoperating revenue -                            151,169                          151,169                              -                            

Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (130,064)                   132                                 (129,932)                             (47,779)                     
Other receivable 238,964                    -                                  238,964                              -                            
Due from other funds (664,325)                   (837,469)                         (1,501,794)                          (524)                          
Inventory (13,402)                     (418)                                (13,820)                               14,851                       
Accounts payable (244,365)                   (536,472)                         (780,837)                             179,359                     
Claims liability -                            -                                  -                                      (391,483)                   
Due to other funds 330,186                    13,592                            343,778                              12,996                       
Due to employees 54,961                      6,479                              61,440                                12,220                       
Refundable deposits 6,450                        27,792                            34,242                                -                            
Net OPEB obligation 363,501                    139,103                          502,604                              492,917                     
Accrued compensated absences 106,471                    20,997                            127,468                              40,882                       

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,683,857$               (1,027,964)$                    4,655,893$                         (798,018)$                 

 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The City of Midwest City’s (the “City”) accounting and financial reporting policies conform to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America (GAAP).  GAAP includes all 
relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.  The accounting and 
reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent 
subsections of this note. 
 

 
1.A.   Financial Reporting Entity   
 

The City of Midwest City – operates the public safety, health and welfare, streets and highways, parks 
and recreation, and administrative activities  
 
The City of Midwest City is an incorporated municipality located in central Oklahoma. The City 
operates under a council-manager form of government with a charter that provides for three branches of 
government: 

 
 Legislative – the governing body includes an elected seven-member City Council and Mayor 
 Executive – the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City Council 
 Judicial – the Municipal Judges are practicing attorneys appointed by the City Council 

 
In determining the financial reporting entity, the City of Midwest City complies with the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity” and 
Statement No. 61, “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus” and includes all component units for 
which the City is financially accountable. The City’s financial reporting entity primary government 
presentation includes the City of Midwest City and certain component units as follows: 

 
Blended Component Units: Separate legal entities for which the City Council members serve as the 
trustees/governing body of the City and /or the City is able to impose its will on the Authorities through 
required approval of all debt obligations issued by these entities. These component units funds are 
blended into the City’s by appropriate fund type to comprise part of the primary government 
presentation. 

 
Midwest City Utilities Authority –created for industrial development. 
Midwest City Municipal Authority – created to operate the water, wastewater, sanitation and 
conference center/hotel. 
Midwest City Hospital Authority – created to operate the hospital, however, in 1996 the hospital 
was leased for a 30 year term. In March 2009, this lease was extended to May 2048. The Trustees 
manage activities related to the hospital lease. 
Urban Renewal Authority – created for economic development. 
 

Each of these component units listed above are Public Trusts established pursuant to Title 60 of 
Oklahoma State law.  Public Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power.  The Authorities are generally 
created to finance City services through issuance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt 
and to enable the City Council to delegate certain functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the 
Authority.  The Authorities generally retain title to assets which are acquired or constructed with 
Authority debt or other Authority generated resources.  In addition, the City has leased certain existing 
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assets at the creation for the Authorities to the Trustees on a long-term basis.  The City, as beneficiary 
of the Public Trusts, receives title to any residual assets when a Public Trust is dissolved. 
 
In accordance with state law, the City Council must approve, by two-thirds vote, all debt obligations of 
these public trusts prior to incurring the obligation.  This is considered sufficient imposition of will to 
demonstrate financial accountability and to include the trusts within the City’s financial reporting 
entity.  The public trusts do not issue separate annual financial statements. 
 

1.B.   Basis of Presentation and Accounting 
 

This annual report is presented in a format that substantially meets the presentation requirements of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  The presentation includes financial statements that communicate the City’s financial condition 
and changes therein at two distinct levels: 
 

 The City as a Whole (a government-wide presentation) 
 The City’s Funds (a presentation of the City’s major and aggregate non-major funds) 

 
Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
 
The Government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its 
component units.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these 
statements. In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two 
kinds of activities:  
 
Governmental activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police, fire, 
general administration, streets, parks and recreation.  Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and state and 
federal grants finance most of these activities. 
 
Business-type activities – Services where the City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of 
the cost of the services it provides.  The City’s water, sewer, sanitation systems and the hotel/conference 
center activities are reported here. 

 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
The statements of net position and activities are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic 
resources measurement focus.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses (including depreciation and amortization) are recorded when the liability is incurred 
or economic asset used.   
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Fund Financial Statements: 

 
Governmental Funds: 
Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows 
into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.  
Governmental funds report their activities on the modified accrual basis of accounting and current 
financial resources measurement focus that is different from other funds. For example, these funds 
report the acquisition of capital assets and payments for debt principal as expenditures and not as 
changes to asset and debt balances.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.   For this 
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of 
the current fiscal period except for reimbursement type grants that are recorded as revenues when the 
related expenditures are recognized.  Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as 
under accrual accounting.   However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences, claims, judgments, and net pension liabilities are recorded only when payment 
is due. 
 
Sales and use taxes, property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, court fines and interest associated with the 
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual, and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period.  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the City. 
 
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government 
operations and the basic services it provides.  Governmental fund information helps one determine 
(through a review of changes to fund balance) whether there are more or fewer financial resources that 
can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.  The City’s governmental funds include: 

 
Major Funds: 

 General Fund – accounts for all activities not accounted for in other special-purpose funds. 
For reporting purposes the General Fund includes the activities of the Reimbursed Projects 
Account, Employee Activity Account, Activity Account, Animals Best Friend Account, 
Disaster Relief Account, and Retiree Health Claims Account. 

 Police Fund – is a special revenue fund that accounts for police services funded by a 
restricted sales tax, a transfer of 34.21% of General Fund revenues per ordinance legally 
restricted for police operations, and fines and fees restricted for traffic enforcement 
operations. For reporting purposes, the Police Fund includes the Jail Fund. 

 Fire Fund –– is a special revenue fund that accounts for fire protection services funded by 
sales tax legally restricted for fire and a transfer  of 27.66% of General Fund revenues per 
ordinance legally restricted for fire operations. 

 Midwest City Hospital Authority – is a special revenue fund that manages activities related to 
the hospital lease, funded by interest income and in lieu of taxes. 
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Aggregated Non-Major Funds (reported as Other Governmental Funds): 
 

Special Revenue Funds include Grants, Juvenile, Parks and Recreation, Emergency Operations,  
Technology, Welcome Center, Police Impound Fees, Street and Alley, Police Special Projects, Police 
Lab Fee, Convention/Visitors Bureau, Urban Renewal Authority Funds, Tax Increment Financing, and 
General Government Sales Tax. 

 
Debt Service Fund – accounts for ad-valorem taxes levied by the City for use in retiring general 
obligation bonds, and their related interest expenses. 

 
Capital Project Funds: 

 Capital Improvement Fund – accounts for assessed fees that help fund capital projects for 
various functions of the City. 

 Downtown Redevelopment Authority – accounts for the lease proceeds from the 29th street 
redevelopment.   Proceeds are used to fund various needs of the City. 

 2002 Street Project Fund – accounts for the proceeds from the 2002 General Obligation Street 
Bonds which funds capital street projects. 

 Dedicated Tax 2012 Fund – accounts for the sales tax restricted for street, parks, trails, 
sidewalks and public transportation projects. 

 Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund – accounts for sales tax restricted by a vote of the 
citizens for capital improvements, including debt retirements. 

 Capital Outlay Reserve Fund – accounts for funds set aside to fund the five year capital needs 
projects. 
 
  

The reconciliation of the governmental funds financial statements to the governmental activities 
presentation in the government-wide financial statements is the result of the use of the accrual basis of 
accounting and economic resources measurement focus at the government-wide level. 
 
Proprietary Funds: 
 
When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these services are generally reported in 
proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise 
funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. Internal service 
funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to other funds or departments of the City. 
Proprietary funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement 
focus. For example, proprietary fund capital assets are capitalized and depreciated and principal 
payments on long-term debt are recorded as a reduction to the liability.   
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 
the Midwest City Municipal Authority, non major enterprise funds and of the City’s internal service 
funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and 
internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation 
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 
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The City’s proprietary funds include the following: 
 
Enterprise Funds  
 
Major: 
 Midwest City Municipal Authority includes the following accounts: 
 

 Water Account (includes the Water Operating Account and the Water Capital Projects Account) 
accounts for the activities providing water services to the public.  

 Sewer Account (includes the Sewer Operating Account and the Sewer Capital Projects Account) 
accounts for the activities providing sewer services to the public.  

 Sanitation Account (includes the Sanitation Operating Account) accounts for the activities 
providing sanitation services to the public.  

 Conference Center/Hotel Account (includes the Conference and Hotel Operating Account) 
accounts for the activities related to the Conference Center and Hotel.  

 Drainage Account (includes the Drainage Operating Fund and the Capital Projects Account) 
accounts for the activities providing drainage services to the public. 

 Debt Service Account accounts for the debt activities related to the 2011 and 2011A Revenue 
Bonds. 

 
Non-Major: 

 Utilities Authority Fund –accounts for industrial development activities. 
 Utility Services Fund – accounts for activities related to billing for water, sewer, sanitation, storm 

water, and drainage. 
 Utilities Capital Fund – accounts for capital purchases for the water, sewer, and sanitation 

systems. 
 Customer Deposit Fund –accounts for utility customer deposits. 
 Golf Course Fund –accounts for activities of the John Conrad and the Hidden Creek golf courses. 
 29th and Douglas –accounts for activities of the trailer park at 29th and Douglas.  

 
Internal Service Funds (aggregated in a single column for reporting purposes) 

 
 Risk Management Fund -  accounts for the cost of providing various insurance services (i.e 

workers compensation, general liability, vehicle and property) to other funds and departments 
of the City 

 Public Works Administration Fund - accounts for the cost of centralization of administrative 
resources to various departments of the City.  This fund primarily serves the business-type 
activities. 

 Fleet Services Fund - accounts for fuel, maintenance and repairs for the City’s fleet. 
 Surplus Property Fund - accounts for the disposal of surplus property on behalf of all 

departments. 
 L&H Benefits Fund - accounts for health and life benefits to employees.  
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1.C.   Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance 
 

Deposits and Investments: 
 
Cash and cash equivalents includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit or short-
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less, and money market investments.  
Trust account investments in open-ended mutual fund shares are also considered cash equivalents. 
 
Investments, other than Hospital investments, consist of long-term certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury 
bonds and notes, and U.S. agency securities. Certificates of deposit are reported at cost, while the U.S. 
Treasury and agency securities are reported at fair value which is determined by quoted market value.  
Hospital investment consist of mutual funds, equities, and foreign equities.  Investments are reported 
at fair value.  
 
Restricted Assets: 
 
Certain proceeds of the enterprise funds promissory notes, as well as certain resources set aside for 
their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the Statement of Net Position because they are 
maintained in separate bank accounts, and their use is limited by applicable loan covenants.  The debt 
service fund accounts are used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the 
next 12 months.  In addition, amounts held for meter deposit refunds are considered restricted. 
 
Receivables and Unearned Revenue 
 
In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet 
received.  Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the 
periodic aging of accounts receivable.   Major receivable balances for the governmental activities 
include sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, grants and court fines.  Business-type activities report 
utilities as its major receivable. 

 
In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals 
such as sales tax, franchise tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues.   Non-
exchange transactions collectible but not available are reported as a deferred inflow of resources in the 
fund financial statements in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, but not reported 
as a deferred inflow of resources in the government-wide financial statements in accordance with the 
accrual basis.  Interest on investment earnings are recorded when earned only if paid within 60 days 
since they would be considered both measurable and available.  Proprietary fund material receivables 
consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received.  Utility accounts receivable and interest 
earnings comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables.  Allowances for uncollectible accounts 
receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. 
 
Inventories: 
 
Inventories are valued at cost.  Governmental fund inventory is related to parts of vehicle and 
equipment maintenance. Proprietary fund inventory is related to material on hand for repairs and 
improvements to the utility system. The cost of inventories are recorded as expenditures when 
consumed rather than when purchased. 
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Capital Assets: 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets are reported in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements.  Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated 
acquisition value at the date of donation. 
 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
The City capitalizes interest on construction in progress for enterprise funds that have outstanding long 
term debt.  The City capitalized $309,125 in interest costs. 
 
 
Depreciable capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. The range of 
estimated lives by type of assets is as follows: 

 
 Buildings/improvements     25-60 years 
 Utility systems     25-99 years 
 Infrastructure     25-99 years 
 Machinery and equipment    5-20 years 
 Vehicles 5-25 years 

 
Depreciation of capital assets is included in total expenses and is charged or allocated to the activities 
primarily benefiting from the use of the specific asset. 
 
Long-term obligations: 
 
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statements of Net Position.  Bond premiums 
and discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of bond premium or discount.  Deferred amount on refundings are amortized over the 
shorter of the life of the new debt or the remaining life of the refunded debt using the straight line 
method.   Deferred amounts are shown as deferred inflows or outflows. 
 
Long-term obligations of governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund financial 
statements.  The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and 
interest reported as expenditures. 
 
The City’s long term debt consists of general obligation bonds, revenue bonds and notes, accrued 
compensated absences, contracts payable, net pension liability, net OPEB obligation, and refundable 
deposits. 
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Compensated Absences: 
 
Under the terms of union contracts and City personnel policies, City employees are granted vacation 
and sick leave in varying amounts.  Regular full-time civilian employees earn vacation leave per pay 
period in varying amounts from 80.08 hours per year to 204.10 hours per year based upon years of 
service. Upon separation from the city, a civilian employee is paid for accrued vacation up to a 
maximum of 192 hours plus current year accrual earned to date of separation.  Civilian employees earn 
sick leave per pay period of 3.7 hours, for a total of 96.20 hours per year with the exception of Fire 
Rookies working 24 hour shifts who earn 5.54 hours per pay period for an annual total of 144.04 hours 
per year.  Civilian employees who separate from employment with the city will be compensated for all 
accrued but unused sick leave as follows: Upon separation from the city after 10 years of service, a 
civilian employee is paid for accrued sick leave up to a maximum of 960 hours plus current year accrual 
earned to date of separation at 1/2 his/her hourly rate of pay.   Civilian employees who separate from 
employment prior to 10 years of service shall receive no compensation for accrued sick leave benefits.  

 
Police union employees earn vacation leave per pay period in varying amounts from 80.08 hours per 
year to 204.10 hours per year based upon years of service. Upon separation from the city, a police 
union employee is paid for accrued vacation up to a maximum of 216 hours plus current year accrual 
earned to date of separation.  Police union employees earn sick leave per pay period of4.6 hours for an 
annual total of 119.60 hours.  Police union employees who separate from employment with the city will 
be compensated for all accrued but unused sick leave as follows: Upon separation from the city after 10 
years or more of service, a police union employee is paid for accrued sick leave up to a maximum of 
1100 hours plus current year accrual earned to date of separation at ½ his/her hourly rate of pay.  Police 
union employees who separate from employment prior to 10 years of service shall receive no 
compensation for accrued sick leave benefits.  100% of the sick leave balance shall be paid to the police 
union employee’s named beneficiary in the event an employee is killed in the line of duty.   
 
 
Fire union employees earn vacation leave per pay period in varying amounts from 80.08 hours per year 
to 301.34 hours per year based upon shift worked and years of service. Upon separation from the city, a 
fire union employee is paid for accrued vacation up to a maximum of 300 hours plus current year 
accrual earned to date of separation for 24 hour workers; up to a maximum of 216 hours plus current 
year accrual earned to date of separation for 8 hour workers.  Fire union employees earn sick leave per 
pay period of 5.54 for a total of  144.04 hours per year for 24 hour workers and 96.20 hours per year for 
8 hour workers.  Fire union employees who separate from employment with the city will be 
compensated for all accrued but unused sick leave as follows: Upon separation from the city after 10 
years or more of service or with an on-the-job injury, a fire union employee is paid for accrued sick 
leave up to a maximum of 1314 hours for 24 hour workers; up to a maximum of 939 hours for 8 hour 
workers at 1/3  his/her hourly rate of pay.  Hours accumulated over the maximum are paid at the rate of 
½ his/her hourly rate of pay each bi-weekly pay period. Employees, regardless of years of service, will 
be paid out at ½ for separation due to on the job injury. Fire union employees who separate from 
employment prior to 10 years of service and without an on-the-job injury shall receive no compensation 
for accrued sick leave benefits.  
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Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources: 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expenses/expenditure) until then.  The government only has two items that 
qualify for reporting in this category.    A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in 
the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred and amortized 
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The city also reports deferred outflows for 
pension-related amounts. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as 
in inflow of resources (revenues) until that time.  The governmental funds report unavailable revenues 
from court fines and property taxes.  These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of 
resources in the period that the amounts become available.    In the City’s government-wide statements 
the property tax revenues remain as a deferred inflow under the full accrual basis of accounting and will 
become an inflow in the year for which they are levied.   The government-wide Statement of Net 
Position reports deferred inflows for pension-related amounts.   
 
Fund Equity: 
  
Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: 
 
Net position is displayed in three components: 

 
a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, 
or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those 
assets, plus the remaining construction proceeds of debt issued for capital improvements. 
 
b. Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by 1) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments, 
or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
  
c. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” 
or “net investment in capital assets.” 

  
It is the City’s policy to first use unrestricted net position prior to the use of restricted net position when 
an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. 
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Governmental Fund Financial Statements: 
 
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance.   Fund balance is further classified as 
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.  These classifications are defined as: 
 
a. Nonspendable – includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in   
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
b. Restricted – consists of fund balance with constraints placed on the use of resources either by (1) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 
(2) laws through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
c. Committed – includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed by formal action of the city’s highest level of decision-making authority. The City’s highest 
level of decision-making authority is made by ordinance.  While the Municipal Authority, Hospital 
Authority and Urban Renewal Authority highest level of decision-making authority is made by 
resolution. 

 
d. Assigned – includes amounts that are constrained by the city’s intent to be used for specific 
purposes but are neither restricted nor committed.  Assignments of fund balance may be made by city 
council action or management decision when the city council has delegated that authority.  Assignments 
for revenues in other governmental funds are made through budgetary process. 
 
e. Unassigned – represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been 
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. 
 
It is the City’s policy to first use unrestricted fund balance prior to the use of the restricted fund balance 
when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are 
available.  The City’s policy for the use of fund balance amounts require that unassigned amounts 
would be reduced first followed by assigned amounts and then committed amounts when expenditures 
are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications 
could be used.   
 

1.D.   Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses 
 

Program Revenues: 
 
Program revenues within the Statement of Activities that are derived directly from each activity or from 
parties outside of the City’s taxpayers are reported as program revenues.  The City has the following 
program revenues in each activity: 

 
 Public Safety – Fire, Police, 911 –fines and forfeitures, restricted operating grants, 911 

revenue, and restricted capital grants, property seizure, donations, state on-behalf 
pension contributions 

 Streets – commercial vehicle and gasoline excise tax shared by the State. 
 Culture and recreation – pool fees, rental of community center and senior center, 

programming fees,  park fees,  softball fees, operating and capital grants 
 Health and Welfare – FEMA grants 
 Economic Development – rental income and operating grants 
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 General Government – license and permits, technology and false alarm fees, impact fees, 
and operating grants 

 
All other governmental revenues are reported as general revenues.  All taxes are classified as general 
revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.  
 
Sales Tax Revenue: 
 
Sales tax revenue represents a 3.85 cents tax on each dollar of taxable sales  which is collected by the 
Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City.   Upon final allocation the sales tax is broken 
down as follows: 
 

General Government 1.04 27.01% 
Police 1.10 28.57% 
Fire .92 23.90% 
911 .04 1.04% 
Capital Improvements .25 6.49% 
Parks and Recreation .05 1.30% 
Sewer Plant .40 10.39% 
Streets/Parks/Sidewalks/Trails/and Public 
Transportation 

 
.05 

 
1.30% 

Totals 3.85 100% 
 
Property Tax Revenue: 
 
In accordance with state law, a municipality may only levy a property tax to retire general obligation 
debt approved by the voters and to pay judgments rendered against the City. Property taxes levied by 
the City are billed and collected by the County Treasurer's Office and remitted to the City in the month 
following collection. Property tax is levied each October 1st on the assessed valuation of non-exempt 
real property located in the City as of the preceding January 1st, the lien date. Property taxes are due on 
November 1st following the levy date, although they may be paid in two equal installments (if the first 
installment is paid prior to January 1st, the second installment is not delinquent until April 1st). 
Property taxes are collected by the County Treasurer and are remitted to the City. Property tax 
receivables are recorded on the lien date, although the related revenue is reported as a deferred inflow 
of resources and will not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied. Property taxes 
unpaid for the fiscal year are attached by an enforceable lien on property in the following October.  For 
the year ended June 30, 2016, the City's net assessed valuation of taxable property was $296,030,326.  
The taxes levied by the City per $1,000 of net assessed valuation for the year ended June 30, 2016 was 
$5.18. 
 
Property tax accrued on the lien date of January 1, 2016 and recorded as a deferred inflow of resources 
was $292,532. 

 
Expenditures and Expenses: 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, expenses, including depreciation of capital assets, are 
reported by function or activity. In the governmental fund financial statements, expenditures are 
reported by class as current (further reported by function), capital outlay and debt service. In the 
proprietary fund financial statements, expenses are reported by object or activity. 
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1.E.   Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities 
 
In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide statement of net 
position and statement of activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the 
fund financial statements have been eliminated or reclassified. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
 
Interfund activity, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide financial statements as 
follows: 
 

1. Internal balances – amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund 
receivable and payables are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities 
columns of the statement of net position, except for the net residual amounts due between 
governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Internal Balances. 

2. Internal activities - amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund transfers 
are eliminated in the government-wide statement of activities except for the net amount of 
transfers between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as 
Transfers - Internal Activities.  The effect of interfund services between funds is not 
eliminated in the statement of activities. 

3. Primary government and component unit activity and balances - resource flows between 
the primary government and the discretely presented component units are reported as if 
they were external transactions and are classified separately from internal balances and 
activities within the primary government. 

 
Fund Financial Statements: 
 
Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprietary fund categories is 
reported as follows in the fund financial statements: 

 
1. Interfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as 

interfund receivables and payables. 
 
2. Interfund services - sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as 

revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
  
3. Interfund reimbursements - repayments from funds responsible for certain 

expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as 
reimbursements but as adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the respective funds. 

 
4. Interfund transfers - flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not 

expected are reported as transfers in and out. 
 

1.F. USE OF ESTIMATES 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
certain reported amounts and disclosures; accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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1.G. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
The city implemented GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application – the  
Statement provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes.  
This Statement also provides guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures 
related to all fair value measurements.    Implementation has resulted in additional disclosures in the 
investment note. 

 
The City implemented Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and 
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68 – GASB No. 73 was issued in June 2015 and establishes 
requirements for defined benefit pensions that are not within the scope of Statement No. 68, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as well as for the assets accumulated for purposes of providing 
those pensions. In addition, it establishes requirements for defined contribution pensions that are not 
within the scope of Statement 68. It also amends certain provisions of Statement No. 67, Financial 
Reporting for Pension Plans, and Statement 68 for pension plans and pensions that are within their 
respective scopes. Implementation has resulted in additional disclosures in the investment note. 
 
The City implemented GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles for State and Local Governments – GASB No. 76 was issued in June 2015, and was issued 
to identify the context of the current governmental financial reporting environment—the hierarchy of 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The “GAAP hierarchy” consists of the sources of 
accounting principles used to prepare financial statements of state and local governmental entities in 
conformity with GAAP and the framework for selecting those principles. This Statement reduces the 
GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and 
nonauthoritative literature in the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is 
not specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. This Statement supersedes Statement No. 55, The 
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments.  
Implementation had no material impact on the financial statements. 
 
The City implemented GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues – An Amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 67, 68 and No. 73. The objective of this Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised 
with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and 
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) 
the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of 
assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for 
financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy 
employee (plan member) contribution requirements. Implementation had no material impact on the 
financial statements. 
 

 
2.   Cash and Cash Equivalents, Deposits and Investments 

    
Deposits and Investments Risks 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an investment in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.  The City categorizes its fair value measurements within 
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the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is 
based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; 
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
 

Quoted Prices Significant Significant
in Active Markets Other Observable Unobservable

for Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value

US agency securities 556,576$              38,744,972$            -$                       39,301,548$               
Real Estate -                      -                         3,163,362                3,163,362                   
Mutual Fund - equities 15,084,215           -                         -                         15,084,215                 
Mutual Fund - International 5,343,606             -                         -                         5,343,606                   
Mutual Fund - Fixed Income 5,742,044             -                         -                         5,742,044                   

26,726,441$          38,744,972$            3,163,362$              68,634,775$               

 
 
Real estate investments classified in Level 3 are valued using the change in assessed property tax land 
values for similar properties from the county assessor. 

 
Certain investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value are measured at net asset value 
(NAV), or its equivalent.  NAV per share is calculated as of the City’s year-end in a manner 
consistent with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s measurement principles.  The 
valuation method for investments measured at the NAV per share (or its equivalent) is presented on 
the following table. 
 

Investments Measured at Net Asset Value Fair Value Redemption Frequency Redemption Notice Period

International equity index funds 
(1) 

3,951,852$                Daily 1 day

US equity index funds 
(2)

31,586,146              Daily 2 days

US fixed income debt funds 
(3)

8,500,664                Daily 2 days
44,038,662$              

 
 

(1) International equity index funds – The fund seeks to achieve investment results that are similar 
to the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses of the MSCI EAFE Index. The Fund 
uses a replication indexing strategy to manage the underlying fund by investing in substantially 
all of the securities of the Index in approximately the same proportions as the Index.  The 
investment is valued at the net asset value of units held at the end of the period based upon the 
fair value of the underlying investments. 
 

(2) US equity index funds – The Fund is an index fund that seeks investment results that correspond 
generally to the S&P 500 Index.  The Fund is invested and reinvested in a portfolio of equity 
securities with the objective of approximating as closely as practicable the capitalization weighted 
total rate of return of that segment of the U.S. market for publicly traded equity securities 
represented by the larger capitalized companies.  The investment is valued at the net asset value 
of units held at the end of the period based upon the fair value of the underlying investments. 
 

(3) US fixed income debt funds – The US fixed income debt fund is an index fund that establishes 
an objective of delivering investment performance approximating as closely as practicable the 
total rate of return of the market for debt securities as defined by the Barclays U.S. Aggregate 
Bond Index. The Fund uses a "passive" or indexing approach to try to achieve the Fund's 
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investment objective. The investment is valued at the net asset value of units held at the end of 
the period based upon the fair value of the underlying investments. 

 
 
The City of Midwest City primary government and blended component units are governed by the 
deposit and investment limitations of state law and trust indentures. The deposits and investments 
held at June 30, 2016 by these entities are as follows: 
 
Schedule  of Deposits and Investments by Type - June 30, 2016

Carrying Credit On Less

T ype Value Rating Demand Than One 1 - 5 6 - 10 More than 10

Demand deposits 11,895,541$          n/a 11,895,541$   -$                -$              -$              -$                

T ime deposits 6,213,363              n/a -                  3,000,000       3,213,363     -                -                  

Government Money Market Accounts 8,515,546              AAAm 8,515,546       -                  -                -                -                  

U.S. Agencies Obligations 38,744,972            n/a -                  -                  -                279,201        38,465,771     

    Sub-total 65,369,422            20,411,087$   3,000,000$     3,213,363$   279,201$      38,465,771$   

Real Estate 3,163,362              

Mutual Funds 49,699,944            

Mutual Funds - equities 19,059,448            

Foreign equities 2,006,468              

    Sub-total 73,929,222            

    Total Deposits and Investments 139,298,644$        

Reconciliation to Financial Statements:

  Cash and cash equivalents 17,868,804$          

  Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 2,887,325              

  Investments 117,349,487          

  Investments, restricted 1,193,028              

139,298,644$        

Maturit ies in Years

 
Custodial Credit Risk – Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds 
deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized; collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
financial institution, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name; or collateralized 
without a written or approved collateral agreement. Exposure to custodial credit risk related to 
investments exists when the City holds investments that are uninsured and unregistered, with securities 
held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name. 
 
The City’s policy as it relates to custodial credit risk is to secure its uninsured deposits with collateral, 
valued at  no more than market value, at a minimum level of 110% of the uninsured deposits and accrued 
interest thereon. The City’s policy limits acceptable collateral to U.S. Treasury securities, federally 
insured obligations, or direct debt obligations of municipalities, counties, and school districts in 
Oklahoma. Also, as required by Federal 12 U.S.C.A., Section 1823(e), all financial institutions pledging 
collateral to the City must have a written collateral agreement 
 
At June 30, 2016, the City had no exposure to custodial credit risk as defined above. 
  
Investment Credit Risk – The City’s investment policy limits investments, excluding Hospital Authority, 
to the following: 
 
a. Obligations of the U. S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities;  
b. Collateralized or insured non-negotiable certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit that are 

either insured or secured with acceptable collateral with an in-state financial institution, and fully 
insured deposits in out-of-state institutions; 

c. Insured or fully collateralized negotiable certificates of deposit; 
d. Repurchase agreements that have underlying collateral consisting of those items specified in paragraph 

a above; and 
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e. Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the investments 
mentioned in the previous paragraph a.  

 
Investment credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterpart to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations.  The City has no formal policy limiting investments based on credit rating, but discloses any 
such credit risk associated with their investments by reporting the credit quality ratings of investments in 
debt securities as determined by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations—rating agencies—
as of the year end. Unless there is information to the contrary, obligations of the U.S. government or 
obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk and do not 
require disclosure of credit quality.  
 
 
Investment Interest Rate Risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely 
affect the fair value of an investment. The City’s investment policy indicates that the investment portfolio, 
shall remain sufficiently liquid to enable the City to meet all operating requirements as anticipated.  The 
City discloses its exposure to interest rate risk by disclosing the maturity dates of its various investments 
by date range. 
 
As noted in the preceding schedule of deposits and investments, at June 30, 2016, the investments held by 
the City mature between 2016 through 2030. 

 
Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - Exposure to concentration of credit risk is considered to exist 
when investments in any one issuer represent a significant percent of total investments of the City (any 
over 5% are disclosed). Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and 
investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from 
this consideration. The city’s investments in Blackrock exceed 5%. 
 
Hospital Authority Investments: 
 
The Authority policy provides that assets be invested to preserve its principal, produce a proscribed level 
of income, and provide for growth of principal with no outside additions to the fund being anticipated.  
Assets are to be invested in a diversified portfolio to achieve attractive real rates of return.  The 
investment policy of the Hospital Authority allows for the investment of funds in domestic and 
international common stocks, government and corporate bonds, short-term fixed income securities 
maturing in one year or less (cash equivalents); by utilizing primarily index funds, mutual funds, or 
collective trust funds.   In addition, the Authority may invest portions of the fund corpus, or income, in 
real estate.  Such real estate investments would typically include developed or undeveloped real property 
located in Midwest City, Oklahoma or its environs, or commingled funds which invest in various kinds of 
property located throughout the United States.  The overall rate of return objective of the portfolio is a 
highest possible rate of return consistent with the risk levels established by the Board.   
 
The acceptable long-term rate of return is expected to provide equal or superior results, using a three to 
five year moving average, relative to the following benchmarks: 
 

1. An absolute return objective of the Consumer Price Index plus 4% compounded annually. 
2. An income return sufficient to meet any disbursement requirement as stipulated by the Board. 
3. A return exceeding the 90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill rate (risk-free rate). 
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4. Domestic equity fund returns which exceed the S&P 500 Stock index return by 1% (100 basis 
points), per year and fixed income return which exceed the Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond 
Index by ½% per year (50 basis points). 

5. Stock and bond returns which fall into the top 25% of the Consultant’s Universe (or other 
representative universe approved by The Board) of common stock and bond funds (referred to 
as equity and fixed income), with some consistency. 

6. Passive domestic returns which replicate the return of the Standard and Poor’s 500 Stock Index, 
passive fixed returns which replicate the return of the Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond Index, 
and passive international returns which replicate the return of the MSCI EAFE International 
Index.   

7. Active international equity returns which exceeds the MSCI EAFE Index by 1% per year. 
 
Asset allocation guidelines for the Hospital Authority are as follows: 
 

Class Target Maximum June 2016 Percent

Equities - Domestic 20%-70% 85% 64.3%
Equities - International 0% 0% 7.6%
Fixed Income 2.5%-30% 80% 18.0%
Real Estate 0% 20% 0%
Cash Equivalents 0% 36% 10.1%

 
 

Restricted Cash and Investments 
 
The amounts reported as restricted assets of the Enterprise Funds on the Statement of Net Position are 
comprised of amounts held by the Midwest City Proprietary Debt Service accounts of the trustee bank for 
revenue bond retirement, and the Customer Deposit Account for refundable deposits held by others.  The 
restricted assets as of June 30, 2016 are as follows: 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Pooled Cash Restricted for Debt Service 2,652,850$           
Pooled Cash Restricted for Refundable Deposits 234,475

2,887,325$           

Investments:
Pooled Investments Restricted for Refundable Deposits 1,193,028$           

1,193,028$           

 
 

3.   Receivables 
 
The Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority (the Authority) entered into an agreement with the 
Midwest Regional Medical Center (now known as Alliance Health Midwest) to provide funds up to 
$25,000,000 to construction two additional floors onto the existing six floor patient tower. The loan is 
amortized over a 25 year with interest rate of 7.5%, will be repaid within 9 years from December 2010, 
with a balloon payment in November 2019. The loan is secured with a lease receivable for future rental of 
the facility.   At the end of the fiscal year, the City reflects a $20.2 million receivable in the governmental 
activities. 
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4.   Capital Assets and Depreciation  
 

Capital Assets: 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, capital assets balances changed as follows: 
 

Balance at Balance at

July 1, 2015 Additions Disposals June 30, 2016

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

Governmental activities:

  Capital assets not being depreciated:

    Land 32,544,209$     138,198$              -$                   32,682,407$           

    Construction in progress 3,518,506         1,732,064             589,965          4,660,605               

      Total capital assets not being depreciated 36,062,715       1,870,262             589,965          37,343,012             

  Capital assets  being depreciated: .

    Buildings 29,385,249       165,912                -                     29,551,161             

    Machinery and equipment 19,327,994       730,668                60,225            19,998,437             

    Vehicles 9,047,114         539,440                351,350          9,235,204               

Infrastructure 439,837,953     1,199,058             458,872          440,578,139           

      Total other capital assets at historical cost 497,598,310     2,635,078             870,447          499,362,941           

  Less accumulated depreciation for:

    Buildings 10,978,634       719,133                -                     11,697,767             

    Machinery and equipment 13,212,474       1,033,825             47,168            14,199,131             

    Vehicles 4,507,549         596,238                316,659          4,787,128               

Infrastructure 169,734,621     12,056,928           -                     181,791,549           

      Total accumulated depreciation 198,433,278     14,406,124           363,827          212,475,575           

  Capital assets  being depreciated, net 299,165,032     (11,771,046)         506,620          286,887,366           

 Governmental activities capital assets, net 335,227,747$   (9,900,784)$         1,096,585$     324,230,378$         

Balance at Balance at

July 1, 2015 Additions Disposals June 30, 2016

Business-type activities:

  Capital assets not being depreciated:

    Land 7,549,649$       22,800$                -$                   7,572,449$             

   Water rights 4,672,610         -                           -                     4,672,610               

   Construction in progress 66,463,084       1,653,234             65,672,944     2,443,374               

      Total capital assets not being depreciated 78,685,343       1,676,034             65,672,944     14,688,433             

  Capital assets  being depreciated:

    Buildings 31,362,796       603,310                -                     31,966,106             

    Machinery and equipment 12,924,544       338,270                81,240            13,181,574             

    Vehicles 8,031,670         515,052                180,034          8,366,688               

Utility systems 110,923,120     68,019,387           20,608            178,921,899           

      Total other capital assets at historical cost 163,242,130     69,476,019           281,882          232,436,267           

  Less accumulated depreciation for:

    Buildings 9,193,225         718,291                -                     9,911,516               

    Machinery and equipment 8,176,628         649,962                57,074            8,769,516               

    Vehicles 4,209,008         422,062                174,494          4,456,576               

Utility systems 56,100,583       4,518,342             1,227              60,617,698             

   Total accumulated depreciation 77,679,444       6,308,657             232,795          83,755,306             

  Capital assets  being depreciated, net 85,562,686       63,167,362           49,087            148,680,961           

   Business-type activities capital assets, net 164,248,029$   64,843,396$         65,722,031$   163,369,394$         
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Depreciation: 
 
Depreciation expense has been allocated as follows: 
 

408,617$        
Public safety 1,343,198
Streets 11,945,366

312,846
Health and welfare 33,577

294,379
  Sub-total governmental funds depreciation 14,337,983

Depreciation on capital assets held by the
City's internal service funds is charged
to the various functions based upon usage 68,142
  Total 14,406,125$   

Culture and recreation

Economic development

Governmental Activities:

General government

 
 

Business-Type Activities:

Water 1,025,613$     
Sewer 2,640,864
Sanitation 439,116
Drainage 269,001
Conference center/hotel 939,947
Golf 101,872
Industrial park 23,988
  Total Business Type Activities 5,440,401

Depreciation on capital assets held by the
City's internal service funds is charged
to the various functions based upon usage 33,328
  Total 5,473,729$     

 
 
Wastewater expenses include an impairment loss of $834,928 on the old wastewater treatment plan due to 
changes in environmental factors.  The same amount is included in additions to accumulated depreciation 
in the above schedule. 
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5.   Internal and Interfund Balances and Transfers  
 

Internal and Interfund Balances: 
 
Interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2016 were as follows: 
 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount Nature of Interfund Balance

General Gov Sales Tax Surplus Property 47,772$                   Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

General Fund Comm Dev Block Grant 41,968                     To cover negative balance in pooled cash

General Fund Fire Fund 1,271,817                Long-term loan for capital improvements

Police Fund General Fund 1,040,585                Restricted sales tax payable

Police Fund Surplus Property 93,876                     Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Juvenile Fund Surplus Property 780                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Fire Fund General Fund 841,349                   Restricted sales tax payable

Fire Fund Surplus Property 11,062                     Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Welcome Center Surplus Property 323                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Convention & Visitor Bureau Surplus Property 148                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Emergency Operating Fund Surplus Property 287                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Emergency Operating Fund Grant Fund 3,750                       Grants to be transferred

CDBG Surplus Property 1,222                       Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Grant Fund Police Impound 283                          Revenue accrued to be transferred

Downtown Redevelopment Reimbursed Project 141,476                   Long-term loan for capital improvements

Hospital Authority 29th and Douglas 181,059                   Long-term loan

Hospital Authority Surplus Property 2,689                       Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Capital Improvements Fund Debt Service 33,890                     Revenue accrued to be transferred

Capital Improvements Fund Hotel & Conference Center 740,000                   Capital outlay subsidy

Fleet  Services Fund Surplus Property 598                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Sewer Fund Surplus Property 54                            Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Water Fund Utility Capital Outlay 1,330,785                Long-term loan for economic improvments

Water Fund Customer Deposits 13,592                     Revenue accrued to be transferred

Sewer Fund Tax Increment Financing Fund 62,340                     Long-term loan for economic improvements

Utilities Capital Outlay Hospital Authority 846,845                   To cover negative balance in pooled cash

Utility Services Utility Capital Outlay 58,958                     To cover negative balance in pooled cash

Sanitation Fund Surplus Property 50,744                     Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Water Fund Surplus Property 13,679                     Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Sewer Fund Surplus Property 939                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Hotel/Conference Center Surplus Property 12,203                     Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Golf Surplus Property 546                          Surplus properties sales proceeds to be distributed

Customer Deposit Water Fund 1,384                       Meter deposit  liability

Capital Improvement Rev. Bond Revenue Bond Sinking Fund 643,909                   Revenue accrued to be transferred

7,490,912$              

Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements:
Due From Other 

Funds
Advance From 
Other Funds

Due To Other 
Funds

Advance To 
Other Funds

Net Internal 
Balances

Governmental Funds 2,859,984$              1,594,352$            3,452,579$        1,475,633$            (473,876)$     
Proprietary Funds 1,642,853                1,393,125              813,934             1,511,844              710,200$      
Internal Service Funds 599                          -                        236,923             -                        (236,324)$     
  Total 4,503,436$              2,987,477$            4,503,436$        2,987,477$            -$              

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Net Internal Balances 710,200$                 
Internal Service Fund Activity reported in Business-Type Activities (1,495,680)               
  Net Internal Balances (785,480)$                
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Internal and Interfund Transfers: 
 
The City’s policy is to eliminate interfund transfers between funds in the Statement of Activities to 
avoid the grossing up of balances.  Only the residual balances transferred between governmental and 
business-type activities are reported as internal transfers and then offset in the total column.  Internal 
activities between funds and activities for the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows: 
 

 
Transfer In Transfer Out Amount Nature of Transfer

General Fund Fire Fund 166,000                   Code Enforcement Allocation

General Fund Storm Water Quality Fund 41,907                     Indirect Cost Allocation

General Fund Sanitation Fund 763,936                   Indirect Cost Allocation

General Fund Water Fund 748,459                   Indirect Cost Allocation

General Fund Sewer Fund 772,099                   Indirect Cost Allocation

General Fund Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Fund 8,291,332                Debt Service Subsidy

General Fund Grants Fund 19,750                     Grant Subsidy

General Gov Sales Tax General Fund 35,028                     Capital Outlay Subsidy

General Gov Sales Tax G.O.Debt Services 32,442                     Capital Outlay Subsidy

General Gov Sales Tax Park & Recreation 647                          Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Risk Management 289                          Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Convention & Visitor Bureau 428                          Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Emergency Operations Fund 536                          Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Welcome Center 589                          Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Public Works Administration 867                          Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Downtown Redevelopment Authority 123                          Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Juvenile Fund 429                          Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Community Development Block Grant 621                          Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Police Fund 34,433                     Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Hospital Authority 150                          Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Technology Fund 601                          Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax Fire Fund 25,946                     Contract Cost Allocation

General Gov Sales Tax L&H Benefits 161                          Contract Cost Allocation

Street and Alley Fund Water Fund 60,708                     Reimburse Repair Cost

Technology Fund Emergency Operations Fund 45,673                     Contract Cost Allocation

Police Fund General Fund 9,703,451                Ordinance Obligation

Police Fund Grants Fund 276                          Grant Subsidy

Juvenile Fund General Fund 25,000                     Operating Subsidy

Fire Fund General Fund 7,765,886                Ordinance Obligation

Fire Fund Grants Fund 12,159                     Grant Subsidy

Emergency Management Fund Grants Fund 18,750                     Grant Subsidy

Community Development Block Grant General Fund 147,126                   City Match of CDBG Program 

Grants Fund Police Impound Fee 1,682                       Grant Subsidy

Urban Renewal Authority Downtown Redevelopment Authority 65,000                     Operating Subsidy

Hospital Authority Downtown Redevelopment Authority 300,000                   Return on owners investment

Capital Improvement Fund Conference Center / Hotel Fund 360,000                   Capital Outlay Subsidy

Capital Improvement Fund Revenue Bond Sinking Fund 297,415                   Capital Outlay Subsidy

Trailer Park Fund Downtown Redevelopment Authority 135,894                   Debt Service Subsidy

Drainage Tax Fund Capital Improvements 180,000                   Capital Outlay Subsidy

Drainage Tax Fund Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Fund 35,746                     Capitalize Interest  Cost

Capital Water Improve Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Fund 90,583                     Capitalize Interest  Cost

Construction Loan Payment Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Fund 114,649                   Capitalize Interest  Cost

Sewer Construction Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Fund 729,374                   Capitalize Interest  Cost

Utilit ies Capital Outlay Sanitation 747,884                   Capital Outlay Subsidy

Utilit ies Capital Outlay Capital Drainage Improvement 804                          Contract Cost Allocation

Utilit ies Capital Outlay Storm Water Quality Fund 1,357                       Contract Cost Allocation

Utilit ies Capital Outlay Public Works Administration 881                          Contract Cost Allocation

Utilit ies Capital Outlay Interservice fund 2,593                       Contract Cost Allocation

Utilit ies Capital Outlay Surplus Property 107                          Contract Cost Allocation

Utilit ies Capital Outlay Utility Services 2,813                       Contract Cost Allocation

Utilit ies Capital Outlay Water Fund 6,893                       Contract Cost Allocation

Utilit ies Capital Outlay Sewer Fund 9,540                       Contract Cost Allocation

Utilit ies Capital Outlay Golf 4,019                       Contract Cost Allocation

Utilit ies Capital Outlay Utility Services 97,976                     Contract Cost Allocation

Water Fund Customer Deposits Fund 44,841                     Interest  earnings

Sewer Fund Grant Fund 3,800                       Grant Subsidy

Utility Authority Grant Fund 82,309                     Capital Outlay Subsidy

Utility Authority Capital Sewer 140,000                   Capital Outlay Subsidy

Utility Authority Hospital Authority 300,000                   Capital Outlay Subsidy

Golf General Fund 3,591                       Capital Donation

Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Fund Sewer Construction Fund 1,208,726                Debt Service Subsidy

Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Fund Revenue Bond Sinking Fund 5,955,254                Debt Service Subsidy

Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Fund General Fund 8,291,332                Debt Service Subsidy

47,930,865$            
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Internal and Interfund Transfers: 
 

Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements:
 Transfers From 

Other Funds 
Transfers To 
Other Funds Net Transfers

Governmental Funds 29,739,899$            (33,652,321)$      (3,912,422)$ 

Proprietary Funds 18,187,375              (14,273,646)        3,913,729     

Internal Service Funds -                          (4,898)                 (4,898)          

  Total 47,927,274$            (47,930,865)$      (3,591)$        

Reconciliation to Statement of Activities:

Net Transfers 3,911,981$   

Capital Contributions to Enterprise Fund 3,591            

Transfers - Internal Activity 3,915,572$   

 
 
6.   Long-Term Liabilities 

 
The City’s long term debt consists of general obligation bonds, notes payable, revenue bonds payable 
accrued compensated absences, net OPEB obligation and net pension liabilities.   For the year ended June 
30, 2016, the City’s long-term debt balances changed as follows: 
 
Primary Government:   
 

Balance Balance Due Within
Type of Debt July 1, 2015 Additions Deductions June 30, 2016 One Year

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds 4,100,000$          -$                   1,400,000$    2,700,000$                1,400,000$     

    Notes Payable 22,591,759          -                     608,693         21,983,066                646,956
Accrued Compensated Absences 4,215,069            3,386,188      2,557,408      5,043,849                  1,664,934

Total Governmental Activities 30,906,828$        3,386,188$    4,566,101$    29,726,915                3,711,890       

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Plus: Net OPEB Obligation 6,839,232                  -                     
          Net Pension Liability 27,828,299                -                     
          Refundable Deposits 78,055                       78,055            

64,472,501$              3,789,945$     

Business-Type Activities:
Notes Payable 428,129$             -$                   212,039$       216,090$                   216,090$        
Revenue Bonds Payable 61,915,000          -                     4,055,000      57,860,000                4,185,000
Revenue Bonds Premium 2,618,915            -                     265,891         2,353,024                  -                     
Refundable Deposits 1,433,811            520,434         486,193         1,468,052                  191,438
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,220,728            992,619         839,035         1,374,312                  479,411

Total Business-Type Activities 67,616,583$        1,513,053$    5,858,158$    63,271,478$              5,071,939$     

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Plus: Net OPEB Obligation 2,690,508                  -                     

65,961,986$              5,071,939$     

 
 
Accrued compensated absences liability of the governmental activities is liquidated by the General Fund, 
Police Fund, the Fire Fund, Juvenile Fund, Grant Fund, Welcome Center Fund, Convention and Visitors 
Bureau Fund, Technology Fund, Park and Recreation Fund, Downtown Redevelopment Fund, Hospital 
Authority, and the Emergency Operations Fund. 
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Governmental activities long-term debt payable from property tax levies or other governmental revenues 
includes the following: 
 

General Obligation Bonds:
$4,500,000 general obligation bonds dated May 1, 2006 for public safety, payable in 
annual installments of $275,000 the first year and $325,000, thereafter, with interest 
rates of 3.75% to 3.95%, repaid by property tax levies.  Final maturity in May 2021. 
Current portion $325,000. 1,625,000$      

$15,000,000 general obligation bonds dated February 1, 2002 for street 
improvements, payable in annual installments of $1,025,000 the first year and 
$1,075,000, thereafter, with interest rates of 5.00% to 5.25%, repaid by property tax 
levies.  Final maturity in February 2017. Current portion $1,075,000. 1,075,000       

 
Total general obligation bonds 2,700,000$      

Current 1,400,000$      
Non-current 1,300,000       

Total 2,700,000$      

Notes Payable:

$25,000,000 construction loan for hospital addition, payable in monthly installments 
beginning December 2010 of $154,710; final payment due November 2019 of 
$19,773,124; interest rate equal to the variable rate equal to the "Prime Rate," as 
quoted in the Money Rates Section of The Wall Street Journal, adjusted daily, with 
a minimum interest rate of five and one-half percent (5.50%) per annum and a 
maximum interest rate of eleven percent (11%) per annum with payments adjusted 
annually; current rate is 5.5%; construction interest rate of 5.5%.  Secured by a 
first mortgage lien on the property.  Current portion $646,956. 21,983,066$    

Total notes payable 21,983,066$    

Current 646,956$        
Non-current 21,336,110      

Total 21,983,066$    

 
 
 
Business-type activities long-term debt payable from net revenues generated and taxes pledged to the 
City’s business-type activities include the following: 
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Revenue Bonds Payable:

$26,630,000 Series 2011 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, due in annual 
principal installments of $855,000 to $1,740,000 through September 1, 2033; interest 
rate from 0.4% to 5.0%. 23,115,000$    

Unamortized Revenue Bond Premium 98,216            
Total Revenue Bonds, Net 23,213,216$    

Current 940,000$        
Non-current 22,175,000      

Total 23,115,000$    

$46,550,000 Series 2011A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, due in annual 
principal installments of $2,605,000 to $4,530,000 through June 30, 2025; interest 
rate from 0.5% to 5.0%. 34,745,000$    

Unamortized Revenue Bond Premium  2,254,808       
Total Revenue Bonds, Net 36,999,808$    

Current 3,245,000$      
Non-current 31,500,000      

Total 34,745,000$    

Notes Payable:

$3,222,911 contract payable with the Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy 
District maturing October 1, 2016.  The contract provides the City with a share of 
the District's water supply.  The City pays its share of the costs of the facilities and 
its operations to the District.  The City has pledged water revenues to secure this 
obligation.  Debt principal payments are due annually, with interest at 2.742%. 216,090$        

Current 216,090$        

 
 
Long-term debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

 

Governmental-Type Activities

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2017  $     1,400,000  $         120,625  $          646,956  $    1,209,573 
2018            325,000               51,350              683,969        1,172,560 
2019            325,000               38,513              723,100        1,133,429 
2020            325,000               25,675         19,929,041           462,927 
2021            325,000               12,837                        -                       -   

2,700,000$     249,000$         21,983,066$      3,978,489$     

Notes PayableG.O. Bonds Payable
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Business-Type Activities

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2017 216,090$           5,925$              4,185,000$           2,318,762$         
2018 -                        -                        4,325,000             2,185,788           
2019 -                        -                        4,495,000             2,000,538           
2020 -                        -                        4,715,000             1,774,662           
2021 -                        -                        4,925,000             1,575,288           

2022-2026 -                        -                        23,080,000           4,693,088           
2027-2031 -                        -                        7,130,000             1,772,647           
2032-2034 -                        -                        5,005,000             315,459              

216,090$           5,925$              57,860,000$         16,636,232$       

Revenue Bonds PayableNotes Payable

 
 
Pledge of Future Revenues 
 
Sales Tax Pledge  - The City has pledged one-fourth of one percent (or .25%) of future sales tax revenues to 
repay the 2011 Revenue Bonds which are payable through 2033.  Proceeds from the bond provided 
financing to advance refund the 2003 Revenue Bonds which were originally used for construction and 
equipping the Sheraton Hotel and the Reed Conference Center.   The total principal and interest payable for 
the remainder of the life of the bond is $32,114,819.  Pledged sales taxes transferred in the current year was 
$13,849,343.  Debt service payments on 2011 Revenue Bonds of $1,797,625 for the current fiscal year were 
13.0% of pledged sales tax.  Other sources of revenues such as water and sewer are also pledged.    Total net 
revenues including utilities and sales tax pledged was $17,259,575. 
 
Sales Tax Pledge  - The City has pledged one-fourth of one percent (or .25%) of future sales tax revenues to 
repay the 2011A Revenue Bonds which are payable through 2025.  Proceeds from the bond provided 
financing for construction and improvements to the wastewater treatment plant.   The total principal and 
interest payable for the remainder of the life of the bond is $42,381,413.  Pledged sales taxes transferred in 
the current year was $13,849,343.  Debt service payments on the bonds were $4,711,663 for the current 
fiscal year or 34.0% of pledged sales tax.  Other sources of revenues such as water and sewer are also 
pledged. Total net revenues including utilities and sales tax pledged was $17,259,575. 
 
Utility Revenue Pledge – The City has pledged the revenues from the future sale of water to repay the 
Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District note payable which is payable through 2016.  Proceeds 
from the note provided funding for improvements and expansion of the water transportation and 
distribution system.  The total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life of the bond is 
$222,015.  Water revenues received in the current year was $6,460,751.  Debt service payments of 
$223,778 for the current fiscal year were 3.5% of pledged water revenue. 
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7.    Net Position and Fund Balances   

 
The following table shows the net position as restricted: 
 

Fund Restricted By Amount

Hospital Authority Enabling legislation  76,250,368$               
Technology Fund Enabling legislation 490,617                      
Police Impound Fund Enabling legislation 165,450                      
Urban Renewal Authority Enabling legislation 3,804                          
Capital Outlay Reserve Fund Enabling legislation 746,652                      
General Fund Enabling legislation 137,312                      

77,794,203                 

Street and Alley Fund Statutory requirements 1,506,138                   
Juvenile Fund Statutory requirements 75,077                        
Police Special Projects Statutory requirements 175,408                      
Police Lab Fee Statutory requirements 17,468                        

1,774,091                   

Grant Fund External contracts 198,962                      
General Fund External contracts 1,434,901                   
Police Fund External contracts 3,496,564                   
Fire Fund External contracts 1,222,433                   
Park and Recreation Fund External contracts 592,788                      
Emergency Operation Fund External contracts 688,529                      
Welcome Center External contracts 359,102                      
Convention and Visitors Bureau External contracts 213,673                      
GO Debt Service Fund External contracts 1,434,476                   
2002 GO Street Bond External contracts 2,787,632                   
Downtown Redevelopment External contracts 1,818,803                   
Dedicated Tax Fund External contracts 1,296,160                   
Capital Improvement Fund External contracts 2,555,863                   
General Government Sales Tax Fund External contracts 1,891,698                   

19,991,584                 

Total Restricted Net Position 99,559,878$               
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The following table shows the fund balance classifications as shown on the Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet: 
 

Other
General Police Fire Hospital Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Authority Fund Total
Fund Balance:

Nonspendable:
Inventory -$                     -$                -$                -$                 60,000$           60,000$         
Deposits held by others 1,271,817              -                  -                 4,223,251         692,600           6,187,668       
Prepaid expenses 4,615                    -                  -                 -                  -                 4,615             

1,276,432              -                  -                 4,223,251         752,600           6,252,283       

Restricted:
Public safety 743,432                 3,496,564         1,222,433        -                  1,121,932        6,584,361       
Hospital -                       -                  -                 77,514,488        -                 77,514,488     

General obligation debt service -                       -                  -                 -                  1,392,721        1,392,721       
Capital improvements -                       -                  -                 -                  7,013,016        7,013,016       
Street improvements -                       -                  -                 -                  4,083,792        4,083,792       
Street operations -                       -                  -                 -                  1,506,138        1,506,138       
Technology improvements -                       -                  -                 -                  490,617           490,617         
Culture and rec programs 484,873                 -                  -                 -                  951,890           1,436,763       
Economic development 316,165                 -                  -                 -                  416,439           732,604         
Health and welfare programs 27,743                  -                  -                 -                  -                 27,743           

Sub-total restricted 1,572,213              3,496,564         1,222,433        77,514,488        16,976,545       100,782,243   

Assigned in:
Culture and rec programs 88,206                  -                  -                 -                  -                 88,206           
Downtown redevelopment -                       -                  -                 -                  1,632,989        1,632,989       
Health and welfare programs 52,695                  -                  -                 -                  -                 52,695           
Capital improvements -                       -                  -                 -                  567,079           567,079         
Public safety  710,885                 130,493           -                 -                  -                 841,378         
Economic development  -                       -                  -                 -                  58,819             58,819           
Streets 60,022                  -                  -                 -                  -                 60,022           
Appropriation for use in FY 16-17 budget 677,627                 -                  -                 -                  -                 677,627         
General government - encumbrances 71,921                  -                  -                 -                  -                 71,921           
Public safety - encumbrances 1,765                    -                  -                 -                  -                 1,765             
Public works - encumbrances 34,549                  -                  -                 -                  -                 34,549           
Culture and rec - encumbrances 1,071                    -                  -                 -                  -                 1,071             
Economic development - encumbrances 50,784                  -                  -                 -                  -                 50,784           
Health and welfare - encumbrances 229,784                 -                  -                 -                  -                 229,784         

Sub-total assigned 1,979,309              130,493           -                 -                  2,258,887        4,368,689       

Unassigned (deficit): 2,986,014              -                  -                 -                  (62,340)           2,923,674       

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 7,813,968$            3,627,057$       1,222,433$       81,737,739$      19,925,692$     114,326,889$ 

Major Special Revenue Funds
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The following is a breakdown of encumbrances at June 30, 2016: 
 

Fund Balance
Major Funds:
General Fund 280,911$                            
Police Fund 238,586                              
Fire Fund 68,122                                
Hospital Authority 5,485,313                           

6,072,932$                         

Non Major Fund:
Capital Outlay Fund
General Govt Sales Tax 182,506$                            
Street and Alley Fund 671,996                              
Technology Fund 9,476                                  
Police Federal Projects 7,272                                  
Police Lab Fund 1,115                                  
Police Impound Fund 400                                     
Welcome Center Fund 15,135                                
Convention and Visitor Bureau 3,390                                  
Street Tax Fund 240,685                              
Emergency Operations Fund 18,970                                
Park and Recreation Fund 16,106                                
Grant Fund 34,205                                
Capital Improvement Fund 138,600                              
Downtown Redevelopment Fund 80,680                                
Debt Service 28,219                                

1,448,755$                         

 
 

Per resolution, the City Council has established a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund 
equal to ten percent (10%) of the fund’s budgetary operating expenditures each fiscal year.  In addition, 
a reserve equal to five percent (5%) of the budgetary operating expenditures for each fund has been 
established for the following funds: Police Fund, Fire Fund, Welcome Center Fund, Convention and 
Visitors Bureau Fund and the Juvenile Fund.  The reserves are to ensure the fiscal solvency of the City 
as a safeguard and all or a portion of the reserves may be appropriated by the city council as necessary 
in the event of a natural disaster or other catastrophic circumstances, or in the event of significant 
accounting errors. 
 

8.   Risk Management 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health and life; and natural disasters. The City 
manages these various risks of loss as follows: 

 
 General Liability – Covered through self-insurance with stop-loss for individual claims in 

excess of $250,000 and aggregate stop loss of $1,000,000. 
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 Physical Property – Covered through purchased insurance with deductibles, by coverage as 
follows: 

 
Wind/hail $100,000 
All other losses 25,000 
EDP 1,000 
Inland marine 5,000 
Fine arts deductible 1,000 
Automobile physical damage 2,500 

 
 

 Workers’ Compensation – Workers’ compensation is covered through self-insurance with the  
a third party administering the claims process.  The City carry’s stop-loss insurance for 
individual claims in excess of $450,000 for non-uniform employees and $500,000 for uniform 
employees with an aggregate stop loss of $1,000,000.  

 
 Employee’s Group Medical –Covered through self-insurance using a third party administrator  

to process medical claims.  The City uses the third party processor’s estimates to record group 
insurance claims payable.  The City also has a stop-loss policy which covers individual claims 
in excess of $150,000 during any year with aggregate stop loss of $6,243,193. 
 

Management believes the insurance coverage listed above is sufficient to preclude any significant 
uninsured losses to the City.  Settled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal years. 
 
Claims Liability Analysis 
 
The claims liabilities related to the above noted risks of loss that are retained are determined in 
accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 10, which requires 
that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements 
indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the 
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.   For the internal service self-insurance funds, changes in 
the claims liability for the City from June 30, 2013, to June 30, 2016, are as follows: 
 

Risk Fund Health Care Total

Claims liability, June 30, 2013 3,054,000              551,423          3,605,423          
Claims and changes in estimates (402,448)               7,679,394       7,276,946          
Claims payments (410,552)               (7,698,047)      (8,108,599)         

Claims liability, June 30, 2014 2,241,000              532,770          2,773,770          
Claims and changes in estimates 806,158                 6,799,627       7,605,785          
Claims payments (842,158)               (6,792,826)      (7,634,984)         

Claims liability, June 30, 2015 2,205,000              539,571          2,744,571          
Claims and changes in estimates 597,468                 5,761,091       6,358,559          
Claims payments (998,468)               (5,751,574)      (6,750,042)         

Claims liability, June 30, 2016 1,804,000$            549,088$        2,353,088$        
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9.   Retirement Plan Participation 
 
The City of Midwest City participates in three pension or retirement plans: 
 

1. Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS) - a statewide cost-sharing plan 
 

2. Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS) – a statewide cost-sharing plan 
 

3. Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OMRF-DCP) – an agent multiple-employer defined 
contribution plan 

 
Summary Defined Benefit Plans Balances: 
 

Governmental
Activities

Net Pension Liability
Police Pension System 94,795$          
Firefighter's Pension System 27,733,504      

Total Net Pension Liability 27,828,299$    

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Police Pension System 2,705,980$      
Firefighter's Pension System 4,640,032       

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 7,346,012$      

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Police Pension System 2,587,640$      
Firefighter's Pension System 3,050,499       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,638,139$      

 
 
 

Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement Systems 
 

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the Oklahoma Police Pension & Retirement System (OPPRS) and additions 
to/deductions from OPPRS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by OPPRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 
 
Plan description -  The City of Midwest City, as the employer, participates in the Oklahoma Police 
Pension and Retirement Plan—a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS). Title 11 of the 
Oklahoma State Statutes, through the Oklahoma Legislature, grants the authority to establish and 
amend the benefit terms to the OPPRS. OPPRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be 
obtained at www.ok.gov/OPPRS. 
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Benefits provided - OPPRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members of the plan.  
The normal retirement date under the Plan is the date upon which the participant completes 20 years of 
credited service, regardless of age. Participants become vested upon completing 10 years of credited 
service as a contributing participant of the Plan. No vesting occurs prior to completing 10 years of 
credited service. Participants’ contributions are refundable, without interest, upon termination prior to 
normal retirement. Participants who have completed 10 years of credited service may elect a vested 
benefit in lieu of having their accumulated contributions refunded. If the vested benefit is elected, the 
participant is entitled to a monthly retirement benefit commencing on the date the participant reaches 50 
years of age or the date the participant would have had 20 years of credited service had employment 
continued uninterrupted, whichever is later. 
 
Monthly retirement benefits are calculated at 2.5% of the final average salary (defined as the average 
paid base salary of the officer over the highest 30 consecutive months of the last 60 months of credited 
service) multiplied by the years of credited service, with a maximum of 30 years of credited service 
considered.  
 
Monthly benefits for participants due to permanent disability incurred in the line of duty are 2.5% of the 
participants’ final average salary multiplied by 20 years. This disability benefit is reduced by stated 
percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of impairment. After 10 years of credited 
service, participants who retire due to disability incurred from any cause are eligible for a monthly 
benefit based on 2.5% of their final average salary multiplied by the years of service. This disability 
benefit is also reduced by stated percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of 
impairment. Effective July 1, 1998, once a disability benefit is granted to a participant, that participant 
is no longer allowed to apply for an increase in the dollar amount of the benefit at a subsequent date.  
 
Survivor’s benefits are payable in full to the participant’s beneficiary upon the death of a retired 
participant. The beneficiary of any active participant killed in the line of duty is entitled to a pension 
benefit.  
 
Contributions - The contributions requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determine by 
Oklahoma Statute and are not based on actuarial calculations.  Employees are required to contribute 8% 
of their annual pay.  Participating cities are required to contribute 13% of the employees’ annual pay. 
Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $837,945.  The State of Oklahoma also made on-
behalf contributions to OPPRS in the amount of $788,612 this is reported as both revenue and 
expenditure in the Police Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance.  In 
the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenue is recognized for the state’s on-behalf 
contributions on as accrual basis of $825,107.   These on-behalf payments did not meet the criteria of a 
special funding situation. 
 
The City’s contract with the union provides that member contributions will be 3% and employer 
contributions will be 18%. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2016, the City reported a liability of $94,795 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 
2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on 
the City’s contributions received by the pension plan relative to the total contributions received by 
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pension plan for all participating employers as of June 30, 2015.  Based upon this information, the 
City’s proportion was 2.3249%. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $360,457.  At June 30, 2015, 
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual 
experience -$                       524,165$                
Changes of assumptions -                       -                       
Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 1,698,691                2,063,475               
Changes in proportion and differences 
between City contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 26,366                    -                        
City contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 980,923                  -                        
Total 2,705,980$              2,587,640$              

 
The $980,923 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are 
being amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected service lives of all 
employees as of the beginning of the measurement period, which was 5.77 years and 5.83 years as of 
July 1, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The deferred inflows relates to the difference between expected 
and actual investment earnings and is being amortized over a closed 5-year period as of the beginning 
of each measurement period. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 
2017 (351,829)$               
2018 (351,829)                 
2019 (351,829)                 
2020 348,373                  
2021 (12,251)                   

Thereafter -                         
(719,365)$               

 
 

Actuarial Assumptions-The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 
30, 2015, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the 
measurement: 
 
Inflation:    3% 
 
Salary increases:   4.5% to 17% average, including inflation 
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Investment rate of return:        7.5% net of pension plan investment expense 
 
Mortality rates:   Active employees (pre-retirement) RP-2000 Blue Collar 

Healthy Combined table with age set back 4 years with fully generational 
improvement using Scale AA. 

Active employees (post-retirement) and nondisabled pensioners: RP-
2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined table with fully generational 
improvement using scale AA. 

Disabled pensioners: RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined 
table with age set forward 4 years with fully generational 
improvement using Scale AA. 

 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2007, to June 30, 2012.  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building 
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015, are summarized in the following table: 
 

Asset Class  Real Rate of Return
Fixed income 2.24%
Domestic equity 4.87%
International equity 7.68%
Real estate 5.47%
Private equity/debt 5.80%
Commodities 2.96%

 
The current allocation policy is that approximately 60% of assets in equity instruments, including 
public equity, long-short hedge, venture capital, and private equity strategies; approximately 25% of 
assets in fixed income to include investment grade bonds, high yield and non-dollar denominated 
bonds, convertible bonds, and low volatility hedge fund strategies; and 15% of assets in real assets to 
include real estate, commodities, and other strategies. 
 
Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at 
contractually required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of 
Oklahoma will continue contributing 14% of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based on 
these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate-The following 
presents the net pension liability (asset) of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as 
well as what the Plan's net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage point lower (6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 
 

(6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%)

Employers' net pension liability (asset) 5,695,986$              94,795$                  (4,627,398)$         

 
 

Pension plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued financial report of the OPPRS; which can be located at 
www.ok.gov/OPPRS . 
 

Oklahoma Fire Pension and Retirement Systems 
 

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension & Retirement System (FPRS) and additions 
to/deductions from FPRS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by FPRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 
 
Plan description -  The City of Midwest City, as the employer, participates in the Firefighters Pension 
& retirement—a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
Oklahoma Firefighters Pension & Retirement System (FPRS). Title 11 of the Oklahoma State Statutes 
grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the FPRS. FPRS issues a publicly 
available financial report that can be obtained at www.ok.gov/fprs. 
 
Benefits provided - FPRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members of the plan.  
Benefits for members hired prior to November 1, 2013 are determined as 2.5 percent of the employee’s 
final average compensation times the employee’s years of service and have reached the age of 50 or 
have complete 20 years of service, whichever is later. For volunteer firefighters, the monthly pension 
benefit for normal retirement is $150.60 per month. Benefits vest with 10 years or more of service 
 
Benefits for members hired after November 1, 2013 are determined as 2.5 percent of the employee’s 
final average compensation times the employee’s years of service and have reached the age of 50 or 
have complete 22 years of service, whichever is later. For volunteer firefighters, the monthly pension 
benefit for normal retirement is $165.66 per month. Benefits vest with 11 years or more of service 
 
All firefighters are eligible for immediate disability benefits. For paid firefighters, the disability in-the-
line-of-duty benefit for firefighters with less than 20 years of service is equal to 50% of final average 
monthly compensation, based on the most recent 30 months of service. For firefighters with over 20 
years of service, a disability in-the-line-of-duty is calculated based on 2.5% of final average monthly 
compensation, based on the most recent 30 months, per year of service, with a maximum of 30 years 
of service. For disabilities not-in-the-line-of-duty, the benefit is limited to only those with less than 20 
years of service and is 50% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 60-
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month salary as opposed to 30 months. For volunteer firefighters, the not-in-line-of-duty disability is 
also limited to only those with less than 20 years of service and is $7.53 per year of service. For 
volunteer firefighters, the in-line-of-duty pension is $150.60 with less than 20 years of service, or 
$7.53 per year of service, with a maximum of 30 years. 
 
A $5,000 lump sum death benefit is payable to the qualified spouse or designated recipient upon the 
participant's death. The $5,000 death benefit does not apply to members electing the vested benefit. 
 
Contributions - The contributions requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determine by 
Oklahoma Statute and are not based on actuarial calculations.  Employees are required to contribute 
9% percent of their annual pay.  Participating cities are required to contribute 14% of the employees’ 
annual pay. Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $873,705.  The State of Oklahoma 
also made on-behalf contributions to FPRS in the amount of $2,447,937 this is reported as both a 
revenue and an expenditure in the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance. In the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenue is recognized for the state’s 
on-behalf contributions on an accrual basis of $2,838,898.   These on-behalf payments did not meet 
the criteria of a special funding situation. 
 
The City’s contract with the union provides that member contributions will be 5% and employer 
contributions will be 18%. 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2016, the City reported a liability of $27,733,504 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 
2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on 
the City’s contributions received by the pension plan relative to the total contributions received by 
pension plan for all participating employers as of June 30, 2015.  Based upon this information, the 
City’s proportion was 2.6129%. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $2,761,613.  At 
June 30, 2016, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual 
experience 547,928$          -$                          
Changes of assumptions -                 -                           
Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 983,165            3,050,499                   
Changes in proportion and differences 
between City contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 2,154,805          -                            
City contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 954,134            -                            
Total 4,640,032$        3,050,499$                 
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The $954,134 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are 
being amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected service lives of all 
employees as of the beginning of the measurement period, which was 6.31 years and 6.37 years as of 
July 1, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The deferred inflows of resources relates to the difference 
between expected and actual investment earnings and is being amortized over a closed 5-year period as 
of the beginning of each measurement period. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense 
as follows: 

2017 (220,585)$         
2018 (220,585)           
2019 (220,585)           
2020 796,247            
2021 449,219            

Thereafter 132,017            
715,728$          

 
Actuarial Assumptions-The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 
30, 2015, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the 
measurement: 
 
Inflation:    3% 
Salary increases:   3.5% to 9.0% average, including inflation 
Investment rate of return:    7.5% net of pension plan investment expense 
 
Mortality rates were based on the RP2000 combined healthy with blue collar adjustment as 
appropriate, with adjustments for generational mortality improvement using scale AA for healthy lives 
and no mortality improvement for disabled lives.  
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2007, to June 30, 2012.  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building 
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015, are summarized in the following table: 

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation  Real Rate of Return

Fixed income 20% 5.13%
Domestic equity 37% 8.02%
International equity 20% 9.49%
Real estate 10% 7.47%
Other assets 13% 6.25%
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Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will 
be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at 
contractually required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of 
Oklahoma will continue contributing 36% of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based 
on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate 
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate-The following presents the 
net pension liability of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the 
Plan's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage 
point lower (6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 
 

(6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%)

Employers' net pension liability 36,009,051$      27,733,504$               20,792,771$           

 
 
Pension plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued financial report of the FPRS; which can be located at 
www.ok.gov/fprs . 
 
 

OMRF Defined Contribution Plan: 
 
The City has also provided a defined contribution plan and trust known as the City of Midwest City Plan 
and Trust (the “Plan”) in the form of the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement System Master Defined 
Contribution Plan an agent multiple employer defined contribution plan.  OMRF operations are 
supervised by a nine-member Council of Trustees elected by the participating municipalities.  The Plan is 
administered by JPMorgan Chase of Oklahoma City.  The defined contribution plan is available to all 
full-time employees on a voluntary basis who are not participating in a state sponsored plan.  According 
to City Ordinance, the employee and employer are required to contribute amounts equal to 0.0% and 
14%, respectively, of the employee’s salary each month.  The employer’s contributions for each 
employee are 50% vested after five years, with 10% vesting for each subsequent year thereafter.   If an 
employee terminates before becoming fully vested, the employer’s contributions that are forfeited are 
allocated to the remaining fund participants based on percentage of contribution.  The authority to 
establish and amend the provisions of the plan rests with the City Council. For the year ended June 30, 
2016, the City contributed $2,111,914 to the plan, while the employee contributions totaled $2,177. 
 
OMRF issues separate plan financial statements which may be obtained by contacting the Oklahoma 
Municipal Retirement Fund, 525 Central Park Drive, Suite 320, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, 73105, or by 
calling (405) 606-7880. 
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10.  Postemployment Healthcare Plan 
 

Plan Description. The City sponsors Medical, Rx, and Dental insurance to qualifying retirees and their 
dependents.  Coverage is provided through self-insurance that collectively operates as a substantive 
single-employer defined benefit plan. Qualifying retirees are those employees who are eligible for 
immediate disability or retirement benefits under the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, 
Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System, or the City of Midwest City Retirement Plan.  
Retirees may continue coverage with the City by paying the determined rate.  Coverage is available for 
each of the lifetimes of retirees and their spouses. Authority to establish and amend benefit provisions rest 
with the City Council.  Retirees may continue coverage with the City by paying the premium rate.  
Benefits are paid from general operating assets of the City as assessed by the self-insurance fund.   The 
plan does not issue separate financial statements. 
 
Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established by the City 
Council. Annual health insurance premium amounts are established by the City Council. The required 
contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2015, the 
actuarially expected City contribution in the form of net age adjustment was $339,570 to the Plan.  Plan 
members receiving benefits contributed $980,725 of the total premiums, through their payment of the full 
determined premium in FY 2016. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) 
cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount 
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year 
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of thirty years. The 
following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost, the amount actually contributed to 
the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2016: 

Amortization of Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $                       1,293,611 

Normal Cost                             320,684 

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation                             384,164 

Amortization of Net OPEB Obligation                            (499,491)

Annual OPEB cost (expense)                          1,498,968 

Expected net benefits during the year                            (339,570)

Increase in net OPEB obligation                          1,159,398 

Net OPEB obligation—beginning of year                          8,370,342 

Net OPEB obligation—end of year $                       9,529,740 

 
The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation as follows: 

 

Fiscal Year 
Ended

Annual OPEB 
Cost

Percentage of Annual OPEB 
Cost Contributed

Net OPEB 
Obligation

6/30/14 2,718,990$              51% 8,087,659$            
6/30/15 1,498,968$              81% 8,370,342$            
6/30/16 1,498,968$              81% 9,529,740$            
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Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the 
Plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits was $20,823,987, and the 
actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of 
$20,823,987. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $30.3 
million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 68.77 percent.  Because the plan is a 
substantive plan there are no plan assets. 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject 
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued 
liabilities for benefits. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on 
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types 
of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
  
In the July 1, 2015, actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method was used. The 
actuarial assumptions included a 4.75 percent (1.75% real rate of return plus 3.00% inflation) investment 
rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of the expected long-term 
investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded 
level of the Plan at the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7 percent initially, 
reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5 percent in 2019. The UAAL is being amortized over 30 
years based on a level dollar basis on an open basis.  The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2014, 
was thirty years.  As of the date of this valuation, there are no plan assets.   
 
The city accounts for the retiree health benefits in an account of the General Fund.   The Net OPEB 
Obligation is shared by the governmental activities and the proprietary funds based upon their percentage 
of current employees.  The governmental activities and the proprietary funds record $6,839,231 and 
$2,690,509, respectively, of the Net OPEB Obligation.   In the governmental activities the obligation is 
shared by the general government function $2,320,820, the police function $2,505,664, and the fire 
function $1,684,135 and internal service allocation $492,917. 
 
 
11. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability  
 
By its nature as a local government unit, the City and its component units are subject to various federal, 
state and local laws and contractual regulations. Title 11, Section 17-211 of the Oklahoma Statutes 
prohibits the creation of a deficit fund balance in any individual fund of the City (excluding public trusts).  
At June 30, 2016, the city reported a deficit fund balance of $62,340 in the Tax Increment Financing 
Fund. This deficit is due to transfers out at the end of the fiscal year.   
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12.   Commitments and Contingencies 

 
Construction Contracts Outstanding  

  
The following construction contracts were outstanding at June 30, 2016: 

 
15th & Douglas Intersection 588,617$     
Carl Albert Water Tower 387,570       
CNG Fueiling Station 558,600       

1,534,787$   

 
Litigation 

 
The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of governmental 
operations.  The financial statements do not include accruals or provisions for loss contingencies that 
may result from these proceedings.  State statutes provide for the levy of an ad valorem tax over a 
three-year period by a City Sinking Fund for the payment of any court assessed judgment rendered 
against the City.  While the outcome of the above noted proceedings cannot be predicted, due to the 
insurance coverage maintained by the City and the State statute relating to judgments, the City feels that 
any settlement or judgment not covered by insurance would not have a material adverse effect on the 
financial condition of the City. 
 
Grant Programs 
 
The City of Midwest City participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from year to year.  
The grant/loan programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or loaning 
agency, the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or loan.  
The City has not been notified of any noncompliance with federal or state award requirements. Any 
liability for reimbursement which may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably determined 
at this time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material. 
 
Hospital Lease 
 
Midwest Regional Medical Center, now known as Alliance Health Midwest, is being operated by a 
private for-profit corporation under a lease agreement with the Midwest City Memorial Hospital 
Authority and the City of Midwest City.  In January 2014, that corporation was acquired by a third 
party.  Under the terms of the lease agreement, the Authority had to be provided a right of first refusal 
which provided an opportunity to terminate the lease under certain circumstances.  As part of the right 
of first refusal process, the Authority paid a good faith deposit of $4,193,251 but rescinded its exercise 
of its right of first refusal allowing the acquiring company to continue operating the hospital.  The 
Authority believes that the deposit should now be refunded and has recorded the payment as a 
refundable deposit in its financial statements.  The lessee is disputing this and the Authority has 
undertaken legal proceedings against the lessee. This matter was settled in late November and the 
Authority recovered the deposit and legal fees. 
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13.   Future Accounting Pronouncements 
 
The GASB has issued several new accounting pronouncements, which will be effective in subsequent 
years.  A description of the new accounting pronouncements, the fiscal year in which they are effective, 
and the City’s consideration of the impact of these pronouncements are described below: 
 
Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not 
within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 
and 68 – GASB No. 73 was issued in June 2015 and establishes requirements for defined benefit 
pensions that are not within the scope of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions, as well as for the assets accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions. In addition, it 
establishes requirements for defined contribution pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 
68. It also amends certain provisions of Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, and 
Statement 68 for pension plans and pensions that are within their respective scopes. The requirements 
of this Statement that address accounting and financial reporting by employers and governmental 
nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 68 are 
effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016, and the requirements of 
this Statement that address financial reporting for assets accumulated for purposes of providing those 
pensions are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015. The requirements of this Statement 
for pension plans that are within the scope of Statement 67 or for pensions that are within the scope of 
Statement 68 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015.  At this time the impact to the 
city is unknown. 
 
Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans -  
GASB No. 74 was issued in June 2015, and  replaces Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB 
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. It also includes requirements 
for defined contribution OPEB plans that replace the requirements for those OPEB plans in Statement 
No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined 
Contribution Plans, as amended, Statement 43, and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures. This 
Statement is effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016.  At this 
time the impact to the city is unknown. 
 
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions – GASB No., 75 was issued in June 2015, and addresses accounting and financial reporting 
for OPEB that is provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers. This Statement 
establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred 
inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For a defined benefit OPEB, this Statement identifies 
the methods and assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount 
projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of 
employee service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about defined 
benefit OPEB also are addressed. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2017.  The City has not yet determined the impact that implementation of GASB 75 will have on its net 
position, although it may be material. 
 
GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures -  GASB 77 was issued in August 2015, and 
establishes financial reporting standards for tax abatement agreements entered into by state and local 
governments. The disclosures required by this Statement encompass tax abatements resulting from both 
(a) agreements that are entered into by the reporting government and (b) agreements that are entered 
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into by other governments and that reduce the reporting government’s tax revenues. The requirements 
of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2015.  
At this time the impact to the city is unknown. 
 
GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided Through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit 
Pension Plans -  GASB 78 was issued in December 2015, and  amends the scope and applicability of 
Statement 68 to exclude pensions provided to employees of state or local governmental employers 
through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that (1) is not a state or local 
governmental pension plan, (2) is used to provide defined benefit pensions both to employees of state or 
local governmental employers and to employees of employers that are not state or local governmental 
employers, and (3) has no predominant state or local governmental employer (either individually or 
collectively with other state or local governmental employers that provide pensions through the pension 
plan). This Statement establishes requirements for recognition and measurement of pension expense, 
expenditures, and liabilities; note disclosures; and required supplementary information for pensions that 
have the characteristics described above. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The statement does not affect the city’s financial 
statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants – GASB 79 was 
issued in December 2015, and addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain external 
investment pools and pool participants. Specifically, it establishes criteria for an external investment 
pool to qualify for making the election to measure all of its investments at amortized cost for financial 
reporting purposes. An external investment pool qualifies for that reporting if it meets all of the 
applicable criteria established in this Statement. The specific criteria address (1) how the external 
investment pool transacts with participants; (2) requirements for portfolio maturity, quality, 
diversification, and liquidity; and (3) calculation and requirements of a shadow price. Significant 
noncompliance prevents the external investment pool from measuring all of its investments at amortized 
cost for financial reporting purposes. Professional judgment is required to determine if instances of 
noncompliance with the criteria established by this Statement during the reporting period, individually 
or in the aggregate, were significant. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after June 15, 2015, except for certain provisions on portfolio quality, custodial 
credit risk, and shadow pricing. Those provisions are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2015. At this time, the impact to the city is unknown. 
 
GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units – An Amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 14 – GASB 80 was issued in January 2016, and amends the blending 
requirements for the financial statement presentation of component units of all state and local 
governments. The additional criterion requires blending of a component unit incorporated as a not-for-
profit corporation in which the primary government is the sole corporate member. The additional 
criterion does not apply to component units included in the financial reporting entity pursuant to the 
provisions of Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units. 
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016. At 
this time, the impact to the city is unknown. 
 
GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements – GASB 81 was issued in March 2016, 
to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing 
recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the 
agreement. At this time, the impact to the city is unknown. 
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GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, issued December 2016, will be 
effective for the City beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.  Under Statement No. 83, a 
government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible 
capital assets is required to recognize a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources. The 
Statement identifies the circumstances that trigger the recognition of these transactions.  The Statement 
also requires the measurement of an asset retirement obligation to be based on the best estimate of the 
current value of outlays expected to be incurred while the deferred outflow of resources associated with 
the asset retirement obligation will be measured at the amount of the corresponding liability upon initial 
measurement and generally recognized as an expense during the reporting periods that the asset 
provides service. The Statement requires disclosures including a general description of the asset 
retirement obligation and associated tangible capital assets; the source of the obligation to retire the 
assets; the methods and assumptions used to measure the liability; and other relevant information. 
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 Budgetary Comparison Schedules – Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

GENERAL FUND
Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Final Budget
Original Final (Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance: 1,181,066$               1,040,560$               4,249,192$               3,208,632$               
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 23,408,281               23,729,398               23,421,884 (307,514)                   
Charges for services 489,167                    489,167                    486,195 (2,972)                       
Fines and forfeitures 1,628,507                 1,789,526                 1,786,146 (3,380)                       
Licenses and permits 242,435                    242,435                    367,757 125,322                    
Investment income 125,154                    125,154                    113,994 (11,160)                     
Intergovernmental 439,424                    439,424                    467,579 28,155                      
Miscellaneous 211,501                    211,501                    366,138 154,637                    
   Total Resources (Inflows) 26,544,469               27,026,605               27,009,693               (16,912)                     

   Amounts available for appropriation 27,725,535               28,067,165               31,258,885               3,191,720                 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):

City Manager 478,636                    481,492                    467,495                    13,997                      
City Clerk 582,091                    603,319                    570,956                    32,363                      
Personnel 382,636                    382,965                    362,859                    20,106                      
City Attorney 102,684                    102,684                    97,952                      4,732                        
Community Development 1,766,728                 1,772,758                 1,630,168                 142,590                    
Park & Recreation 625,523                    625,743                    590,304                    35,439                      
Finance 661,645                    683,117                    654,086                    29,031                      
Animal Welfare 440,907                    442,102                    413,704                    28,398                      
Streets 2,997,976                 3,015,780                 2,737,635                 278,145                    
General Government 1,144,851                 1,175,848                 1,053,160                 122,688                    
Neighborhood Services 1,149,770                 1,151,957                 1,099,975                 51,982                      
Information Technology 470,480                    485,352                    416,391                    68,961                      
Emergency Response 954,232                    954,903                    914,207                    40,696                      
Swimming Pools 274,156                    299,066                    285,696                    13,370                      
   Total Charges to Appropriations 12,032,315               12,177,086               11,294,588               882,498                    

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds 10,875,063               10,875,063               10,785,943 (89,120)                     
Transfers to other funds (25,811,673)              (26,117,721)              (26,051,802)              65,919                      
   Total other financing sources (uses) (14,936,610)              (15,242,658)              (15,265,859)              (23,201)                     

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance 756,610$                  647,421$                  4,698,438$               4,051,017$               

See accompanying notes to this schedule.  
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POLICE FUND
Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Final Budget
Original Final (Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance: 484,463$                  254,859$                  2,035,550$               1,780,691$                           
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 2,905,074                 2,905,074                 2,892,569 (12,505)                                 
Charges for services 99,307                      98,307                      102,497 4,190                                    
License and permits -                                -                                2,600 2,600                                    
Investment income 63,113                      63,113                      56,460 (6,653)                                   
Fines and forfeitures 138,215                    138,215                    131,097 (7,118)                                   
Miscellaneous -                                26,232                      49,352 23,120                                  
   Total Resources (Inflows) 3,205,709                 3,230,941                 3,234,575                 3,634                                    

   Amounts available for appropriation 3,690,172                 3,485,800                 5,270,125                 1,784,325                             

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):

Public Safety 13,433,601               13,819,346               12,684,493 1,134,853                             
   Total Charges to Appropriations 13,433,601               13,819,346               12,684,493               1,134,853                             

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds 9,585,243                 9,723,634                 9,746,074 22,440                                  
Transfers to other funds -                                (34,443)                     (34,443)                     -                                            
   Total other financing sources (uses) 9,585,243                 9,689,191                 9,711,631                 22,440                                  

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance (158,186)$                 (644,355)$                 2,297,263$               2,941,618$                           

  
 

FIRE FUND
Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Final Budget
Original Final (Budget Basis) Positive (Negative)

Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance: 665,200$                  (76,206)$                   1,481,072$               1,557,278$                           
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 2,596,513                 2,596,513                 2,585,336 (11,177)                                 
Charges for services 22,000                      22,000                      23,019                      1,019                                    
Investment income 47,915                      47,915                      37,704 (10,211)                                 
Licenses and permits 11,151                      11,151                      9,990 (1,161)                                   
Miscellaneous 103,197                    106,247                    44,728 (61,519)                                 
   Total Resources (Inflows) 2,780,776                 2,783,826                 2,700,777                 (83,049)                                 

   Amounts available for appropriation 3,445,976                 2,707,620                 4,181,849                 1,474,229                             

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):

Public Safety 10,616,922               10,984,126               10,092,393 891,733                                
   Total Charges to Appropriations 10,616,922               10,984,126               10,092,393               891,733                                

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds 7,670,310                 7,801,643                 7,812,285 10,642                                  
Transfers to other funds (166,000)                   (191,946)                   (191,946)                   -                                            
   Total other financing sources (uses) 7,504,310                 7,609,697                 7,620,339                 10,642                                  

Ending Budgetary Fund Balance 333,364$                  (666,809)$                 1,709,795$               2,376,604$                           

 
 
Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule: 
 

1.  The budgetary comparison schedules and budgetary fund balance amounts are reported on the 
modified cash basis of accounting. In addition, obligations that are required to be funded from ending 
budgetary fund balances are subtracted from total ending budgetary fund balances to arrive at the 
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unreserved budgetary fund balance. This presentation of unreserved fund balances on a budgetary basis 
is used to demonstrate compliance with Article 10, § 26 of the Oklahoma State Constitution. 

 
2.  The legal level of appropriation control is the department level within a fund. Transfers of 
appropriation between departments and object categories require the approval of the City Manager.  All 
supplemental appropriations require the approval of the City Council.   Supplemental appropriations 
must be filed with the Office of the State Auditor and Inspector. 
 
3.  The Hospital Authority does not present and budget to actual comparison because it is a Title 60 
Public Trust.   Title 60 Trust are required to prepare a budget and submit to the beneficiary, but there 
are no requirements related to form, content or monitoring. 
 
4.   The budgetary basis differs from the modified accrual (GAAP) basis as shown in the schedules 
below: 
 

GENERAL FUND Fund Balance Net Change in Fund Balance
June 30, 2015 Fund Balance June 30, 2016

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation:

Fund Balance - GAAP Basis 7,407,256$                406,712$                   7,813,968$              

Increases (Decreases):
  Revenues:
    Receivable (3,170,688)                (742,732)                    (3,913,420)               
    Change in fair value of investments 6,468                         (13,188)                      (6,720)                      

  Expenditures:
    Payables 2,562,995                  748,663                     3,311,658                
    Encumbrances (59,281)                     (101,059)                    (160,340)                  

  Impact of combining accounts:
    Reimbursed Projects Account (646,782)                   (7,506)                        (654,288)                  
    Employee Activity Account (15,875)                     (1,839)                        (17,714)                    
    Activity Account (303,015)                   34,406                       (268,609)                  
    Animals Best Friend Account (71,872)                     (6,460)                        (78,332)                    
    Disaster Relief Account (1,358,705)                30,940                       (1,327,765)               
Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis 4,350,501$                347,937$                   4,698,438$              

 
 

POLICE FUND Fund Balance Net Change in Fund Balance
June 30, 2015 Fund Balance June 30, 2016

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation:

Fund Balance - GAAP Basis 3,370,406$                256,651$                   3,627,057$              

Increases (Decreases):
  Revenues:
    Receivable (1,613,026)                (299,922)                    (1,912,948)               
    Change in fair value of investments 3,576                         (6,622)                        (3,046)                      

  Expenditures:
    Payables 274,594                     311,606                     586,200                   

Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis 2,035,550$                261,713$                   2,297,263$              
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FIRE FUND Fund Balance Net Change in Fund Balance
June 30, 2015 Fund Balance June 30, 2016

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation:

Fund Balance - GAAP Basis 728,060$                   494,373$                   1,222,433$              

Increases (Decreases):
  Revenues:
    Receivable (1,200,664)                24,915                       (1,175,749)               
    Change in fair value of investments 841                            (3,180)                        (2,339)                      

  Expenditures:
    Payables 1,952,835                  (287,385)                    1,665,450                

Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis 1,481,072$                228,723$                   1,709,795$              

 
 

Required Supplementary Information – Pension 
 
 
 

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTERS PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2014 2015

City's proportion of the net pension 
liability 2.392% 2.613%

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability 24,598,661$      27,733,504$  

City's covered-employee payroll 6,734,825$       7,151,904$   

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability as a percentage of its 
covered-employee payroll 365% 388%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension liability 68.12% 68.27%

*The amounts present for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Notes to Schedule:

Only the pevious two fiscal years are is presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
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Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF MIDWEST CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)
OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2014 2015

City's proportion of the net pension 
liability (asset) 2.2929% 2.3249%

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) (772,001)$  94,795$        

City's covered-employee payroll 6,171,257$ 6,571,604$  

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) as a percentage 
of its covered-employee payroll (12.51%) -(1.44%)

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension liability 
(asset) 101.53% 99.82%

*The amounts present for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Notes to Schedule:

Only the two previous fiscal years are  presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTERS PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016

Statutorily required contribution 1,001,267$  969,220$   

Contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution 1,064,424     969,270     

Contribution deficiency (excess) (63,157)$      (50)$          

City's covered-employee payroll 7,151,904$  6,922,999$

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 14.88% 14.00%

*The amounts present for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Notes to Schedule:
Only two pevious  fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

The City’s contract with the union provides that member contributions will be 5% 
and employer contributions will be 18%.
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SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016

Statutorily required contribution 854,309$        873,711$     

Contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution 1,021,780       873,705       

Contribution deficiency (excess) (167,471)$      6$               

City's covered-employee payroll 6,571,604$     6,720,857$   

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 15.55% 13.00%

*The amounts present for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Notes to Schedule:

Only the two previous fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

The City’s contract with the union provides that member contributions will be 3% 
and employer contributions will be 18%.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Required Supplementary Information –Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) 
 
 
The funded status and funding progress of the City’s defined benefit OPEB plan for the most recent 
actuarial valuations is as follows: 
 
 

July 1, 2010 July 1, 2012 July 1, 2014

Actuarial accrued liability - AAL (a) 29,797,397$      32,591,119$     20,823,987$     
Actuarial value of plan assets (b) -                     -                    -                    
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability - UAAL (funding excess) (a)-(b) 29,797,397        32,591,119       20,823,987       
Funded ratio (b)/(a) 0% 0% 0%
Covered payroll (c) 25,016,000$      28,628,580$     30,280,298$     
UAAL (funding excess) as a % of covered payroll [UAAL/(c)] 119% 114% 69%
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

170



CITY OF MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016                    

              

82 
 

Combining Balance Sheet – General Fund Accounts – June 30, 2016 
 
 

General Fund Accounts

General Fund
Reimbursed 

Projects Account
Employee Activity 

Account Activity Account
Animals Best 

Friend Account
Disaster Relief 

Account Totals
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 795,158$                  145,513$                  17,714$                    48,579$                    74,490$                    217,071$                  1,298,525$               
Investments 2,853,268                 662,165                    -                                219,698                    -                                1,104,479                 4,839,610                 
Accounts receivable 977,979                    26,750                      -                                -                               9,673                        164,907                    1,179,309                 
Accrued interest receivable 7,536                        -                                -                                -                               -                                2,917                        10,453                      
Other receivable 13,747                      -                                -                                1,430                        -                                -                                15,177                      
Due from other governments 2,867,575                 -                                -                                -                               -                                438                           2,868,013                 
Due from other funds 41,968                      -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                41,968                      
Prepaid items 4,615                        -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                4,615                        
Advance from other funds 1,271,817                 -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                1,271,817                 

Total assets 8,833,663$               834,428$                  17,714$                    269,707$                  84,163$                    1,489,812$               11,529,487$             

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 234,363$                  38,664$                    -$                              459$                         -$                              17,787$                    291,273$                  
Wages payable 395,196                    -                                -                                639                           -                                6,277                        402,112                    
Due to other governments 8,550                        -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                8,550                        
Refundable deposits 78,055                      -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                78,055                      
Due to other funds 1,881,934                 -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                1,881,934                 
Advance to other funds -                                141,476                    -                                -                               -                                -                                141,476                    

Total liabilities 2,598,098                 180,140                    -                                1,098                        -                                24,064                      2,803,400                 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable  revenue 768,305                    -                                -                                -                               5,831                        137,983                    912,119                    

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 1,276,432                 -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                1,276,432                 
Restricted 137,312                    594,266                    -                                198,117                    25,637                      616,881                    1,572,213                 
Assigned 1,067,502                 60,022                      17,714                      70,492                      52,695                      710,884                    1,979,309                 
Unassigned 2,986,014                 -                                -                                -                               -                                -                                2,986,014                 

Total fund balances 5,467,260                 654,288                    17,714                      268,609                    78,332                      1,327,765                 7,813,968                 
Total liabilities, deferred inflows  and fund balances 8,833,663$               834,428$                  17,714$                    269,707$                  84,163$                    1,489,812$               11,529,487$             
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – General Fund 
Accounts  – Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 
 
 

General Fund Accounts

General Fund

Reimbursed 
Projects 
Account

Employee Activity 
Account Activity Account

Animals Best 
Friend Account

Disaster Relief 
Account Totals

REVENUES
Taxes 23,308,700$        -$                      -$                            -$                          -$                              -$                          23,308,700$         
Intergovernmental 467,541               414,078            -                              -                            -                                -                            881,619                
Charges for services 2,051,689            80,213              -                              77,238                  -                                64,464                  2,273,604             
Investment income 222,630               17,968              352                          6,360                    1,458                         80,910                  329,678                
Fines & forfeitures 1,666,417            -                        -                              -                            23,934                       -                            1,690,351             
Licenses & permits 367,757               -                        -                              -                            -                                -                            367,757                
Miscellaneous 366,137               31,099              2,973                       91,314                  345                            110,324                602,192                

Total revenues 28,450,871          543,358            3,325                       174,912                25,737                       255,698                29,453,901           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 5,079,346            14,897              8,986                       -                            -                                306,388                5,409,617             
Public Safety 918,757               4,583                -                              -                            -                                -                            923,340                
Streets 2,754,360            -                        -                              -                            -                                -                            2,754,360             
Culture and recreation 884,604               1,236                -                              139,047                -                                -                            1,024,887             
Health & welfare 408,916               -                        -                              -                            4,648                         -                            413,564                
Economic development 2,747,782            119,048            -                              -                            -                                -                            2,866,830             

Capital outlay 9,370                   384,259            -                              70,164                  14,629                       -                            478,422                
Debt service:

Interest and fiscal charges -                           8,238                -                              -                            -                                -                            8,238                    

Total expenditures 12,803,135          532,261            8,986                       209,211                19,277                       306,388                13,879,258           

Revenues over (under) expenditures 15,647,736          11,097              (5,661)                     (34,299)                 6,460                         (50,690)                 15,574,643           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 10,783,733          -                        -                              -                            -                                19,750                  10,803,483           
Transfers out (25,967,716)         (3,591)               -                              (107)                      -                                -                            (25,971,414)          
Transfers in - interaccount -                           -                        7,500                       -                            -                                -                            7,500                    
Transfers out - interaccount (7,500)                  -                        -                              -                            -                                -                            (7,500)                   
Total other financing sources (uses) (15,191,483)         (3,591)               7,500                       (107)                      -                                19,750                  (15,167,931)          

Net change in fund balances 456,253               7,506                1,839                       (34,406)                 6,460                         (30,940)                 406,712                

Fund balances - beginning of year 5,011,007            646,782            15,875                     303,015                71,872                       1,358,705             7,407,256             

Fund balances - end of year 5,467,260$          654,288$          17,714$                   268,609$              78,332$                     1,327,765$           7,813,968$           
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Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – June 30, 2016 
 

Grant Fund
Juvenile 

Fund
Park & 

Recreation Fund
Emergency 

Operations Fund
Technology 

Fund
Welcome Center 

Fund
Police Impound 

Fund
Street & Alley 

Fund
Police Special 
Projects Fund

Police Lab Fee 
Fund

Convention/Visitors 
Bureau Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 215,462$               73,081$          99,008$                   118,337$                   85,151$              62,888$                    163,033$                  293,771$                  177,016$                  16,457$              34,669$                      
Investments -                            -                     450,542                   538,498                     387,486              286,175                    -                                1,494,733                 -                                -                          157,764                      
Accrued interest receivable -                            -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                3,948                        -                                -                          -                                  
Deposits held by others -                            -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                  
Other receivable 26,876                   61,804            3,200                       1,223                         159,593              -                                2,700                        -                                -                                6,090                  -                                  
Due from other governments 56,893                   -                     61,186                     42,921                       -                          17,565                      -                                48,364                      -                                -                          32,788                        
Due from other funds 1,505                     780                 -                               4,037                         -                          323                           -                                -                                -                                -                          148                             
Inventory 60,000                   -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                  
Advance from other funds -                            -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                  

Total assets 360,736                 135,665          613,936                   705,016                     632,230              366,951                    165,733                    1,840,816                 177,016                    22,547                225,369                      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 18,072                   -                     18,108                     -                                 11,317                1,037                        -                                334,678                    1,608                        90                       3,055                          
Wages payable 19,600                   7,195              3,040                       16,487                       9,160                  6,812                        -                                -                                -                                -                          8,641                          
Due to other funds 45,718                   -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                283                           -                                -                                -                          -                                  
Advance to other funds -                            -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                  

Total liabilities 83,390                   7,195              21,148                     16,487                       20,477                7,849                        283                           334,678                    1,608                        90                       11,696                        

Deferred inflows:
Unavailable revenue 18,384                   53,393            -                               -                                 121,136              -                                -                                -                                -                                4,989                  -                                  

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 60,000                   -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                  
Restricted 198,962                 75,077            592,788                   688,529                     490,617              359,102                    165,450                    1,506,138                 175,408                    17,468                213,673                      
Assigned -                            -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                  
Unassigned (deficit) -                            -                     -                               -                                 -                          -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                                  

Total fund balances 258,962                 75,077            592,788                   688,529                     490,617              359,102                    165,450                    1,506,138                 175,408                    17,468                213,673                      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances 360,736$               135,665$        613,936$                 705,016$                   632,230$            366,951$                  165,733$                  1,840,816$               177,016$                  22,547$              225,369$                    

(continued)
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Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – June 30, 2016 
 

Debt Service Fund

Urban Renewal 
Authority

General 
Government Sales 

Tax Fund
Tax Increment 
Financing Fund

Downtown 
Development 

Authority
2002 Street 
Project Fund

Dedicated Tax 
2012 Fund

Sales Tax 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fund

Capital 
Improvement 

Fund
Capital Outlay 
Reserve Fund

G.O. Debt Services 
Fund Totals

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 62,623$                    319,352$                  -$                              477,300$                  507,657$                  203,834$                  -$                        363,234$               161,011$           225,570$                  3,659,454$           
Investments -                                1,624,893                 -                                2,428,546                 2,583,004                 1,037,127                 -                          1,848,169              732,689             1,147,720                 14,717,346           
Accrued interest receivable -                                4,292                        -                                6,415                        6,823                        2,739                        -                          4,882                     -                        3,032                        32,131                  
Deposits held by others -                                -                                -                                687,300                    300                           -                                -                          5,000                     -                        -                                692,600                
Other receivable -                                -                                -                                429,972                    -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        -                                691,458                
Due from other governments -                                52,460                      -                                -                                -                                52,460                      677,799              12,653                   -                        384,900                    1,439,989             
Due from other funds -                                47,772                      -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          773,890                 -                        -                                828,455                
Inventory -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        -                                60,000                  
Advance from other funds -                                -                                -                                141,476                    -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        -                                141,476                

Total assets 62,623                      2,048,769                 -                                4,171,009                 3,097,784                 1,296,160                 677,799              3,007,828              893,700             1,761,222                 22,262,909           

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities -                                112,638                    -                                29,229                      309,852                    -                                -                          71,367                   -                        -                                911,051                
Wages payable -                                -                                -                                2,688                        -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        -                                73,623                  
Due to other funds -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                677,799              -                             -                        -                                723,800                
Advance to other funds -                                -                                62,340                      -                                -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        -                                62,340                  

Total liabilities -                                112,638                    62,340                      31,917                      309,852                    -                                677,799              71,367                   -                        -                                1,770,814             

Deferred inflows:
Unavailable revenue -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        368,501                    566,403                

Fund balances:
Nonspendable -                                -                                -                                687,300                    300                           -                                -                          5,000                     -                        -                                752,600                
Restricted 3,804                        1,891,698                 -                                1,818,803                 2,787,632                 1,296,160                 -                          2,555,863              746,652             1,392,721                 16,976,545           
Assigned 58,819                      44,433                      -                                1,632,989                 -                                -                                -                          375,598                 147,048             -                                2,258,887             
Unassigned (deficit) -                                -                                (62,340)                     -                                -                                -                                -                          -                             -                        -                                (62,340)                

Total fund balances 62,623                      1,936,131                 (62,340)                     4,139,092                 2,787,932                 1,296,160                 -                          2,936,461              893,700             1,392,721                 19,925,692           

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances 62,623$                    2,048,769$               -$                              4,171,009$               3,097,784$               1,296,160$               677,799$            3,007,828$            893,700$           1,761,222$               22,262,909$         

Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Nonmajor Governmental Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

 

Grant Fund
Juvenile 

Fund
Park & 

Recreation Fund
Emergency 

Operations Fund
Technology 

Fund
Welcome 

Center Fund
Police Impound 

Fund
Street & Alley 

Fund

Police 
Special 

Projects Fund
Police Lab Fee 

Fund

Convention/
Visitors 
Bureau 

Fund
REVENUES

Taxes -$                           -$                   518,439$             352,140$                -$                  179,351$           -$                          -$                      -$                    -$                         334,789$      
Intergovernmental 662,660                 -                     -                           -                              -                    -                        -                            529,784            -                      -                           -                    
Charges for services -                             -                     -                           27,250                    303,406        -                        73,500                  -                        -                      -                           -                    
Investment income 205                        1,618              11,267                 16,669                    10,859          7,603                 3,308                    104,032            3,570              449                      3,900            
Fines & forfeitures -                             103,409          -                           -                              26,913          -                        -                            -                        15,730            9,149                   -                    
Licenses & permits -                             -                     -                           -                              24,800          -                        -                            -                        -                      -                           -                    
Miscellaneous 18,864                   -                     41,534                 -                              83                 24,986               -                            -                        6,067              -                           -                    

Total revenues 681,729                 105,027          571,240               396,059                  366,061        211,940             76,808                  633,816            25,367            9,598                   338,689        

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government -                             -                     -                           -                              446,334        -                        -                            -                        -                      -                           -                    
Public safety 163,918                 162,238          -                           365,171                  -                    -                        1,837                    -                        20,136            10,784                 -                    
Streets -                             -                     -                           -                              -                    -                        -                            58,500              -                      -                           -                    
Culture and recreation -                             -                     307,481               -                              -                    170,199             -                            -                        -                      -                           -                    
Economic development 583,733                 -                     -                           -                              -                    -                        -                            -                        -                      -                           287,294        

Capital outlay 32,304                   -                     80,254                 86,078                    -                    17,469               22,365                  855,845            9,760              3,507                   1,029            
Debt service:

Principal retirement -                             -                     -                           -                              -                    -                        -                            -                        -                      -                           -                    
Interest and fiscal charges -                             -                     -                           -                              -                    -                        -                            -                        -                      -                           -                    

Total expenditures 779,955                 162,238          387,735               451,249                  446,334        187,668             24,202                  914,345            29,896            14,291                 288,323        

Revenues over (under) expenditures (98,226)                  (57,211)          183,505               (55,190)                   (80,273)         24,272               52,606                  (280,529)           (4,529)             (4,693)                  50,366          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 148,808                 25,000            -                           18,750                    45,673          -                        -                            60,708              -                      -                           -                    
Transfers out (137,665)                (429)               (647)                     (46,209)                   (601)              (589)                  (1,682)                   -                        -                      -                           (428)              

Total other financing sources (uses) 11,143                   24,571            (647)                     (27,459)                   45,072          (589)                  (1,682)                   60,708              -                      -                           (428)              

Net change in fund balances (87,083)                  (32,640)          182,858               (82,649)                   (35,201)         23,683               50,924                  (219,821)           (4,529)             (4,693)                  49,938          

Fund balances - beginning of year 346,045                 107,717          409,930               771,178                  525,818        335,419             114,526                1,725,959         179,937          22,161                 163,735        

Fund balances - end of year 258,962$               75,077$          592,788$             688,529$                490,617$      359,102$           165,450$              1,506,138$       175,408$        17,468$               213,673$      

(continued)
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Nonmajor Governmental Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

Debt Service Fund

Urban Renewal 
Authority

General 
Government 

Sales Tax 
Fund

Tax Increment 
Financing Fund

Downtown 
Development 

Authority
2002 Street Project 

Fund
Dedicated Tax 

2012 Fund

Sales Tax 
Capital 

Improvement 
Fund

Capital 
Improvement 

Fund
Capital Outlay 
Reserve Fund

G.O. Debt Services 
Fund Totals

REVENUES
Taxes -$                       430,394$         1,166,123$          -$                        -$                               430,394$         5,558,011$         106,669$               -$                         1,511,910$               10,588,220$         
Intergovernmental -                         -                      -                          -                          -                                 -                      -                          -                            -                           8,013                        1,200,457             
Charges for services -                         -                      -                          1,455,775            -                                 -                      -                          -                            -                           -                                1,859,931             
Investment income 687                    118,450           1,072                   154,705               188,554                      67,342             2,628                  130,086                 19,913                  83,896                      930,813                
Fines & forfeitures -                         -                      -                          -                          -                                 -                      -                          -                            -                           -                                155,201                
Licenses & permits -                         -                      -                          -                          -                                 -                      -                          162,795                 -                           -                                187,595                
Miscellaneous -                         28,600             -                          1,857                   141,648                      -                      -                          -                            -                           33                             263,672                

Total revenues 687                    577,444           1,167,195            1,612,337            330,202                      497,736           5,560,639           399,550                 19,913                  1,603,852                 15,185,889           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government -                         114,296           174                      -                          -                                 -                      -                          -                            -                           -                                560,804                
Public safety -                         -                      -                          -                          -                                 -                      -                          -                            -                           -                                724,084                
Streets -                         -                      -                          -                          23,402                        12,041             -                          -                            -                           -                                93,943                  
Culture and recreation -                         -                      -                          -                          -                                 -                      -                          -                            -                           -                                477,680                
Economic development 6,868                 -                      -                          170,130               -                                 -                      -                          -                            -                           -                                1,048,025             

Capital outlay -                         746,994           -                          330,146               769,723                      213,847           -                          391,698                 -                           -                                3,561,019             
Debt service:

Principal retirement -                         -                      -                          -                          -                                 -                      -                          -                            -                           1,400,000                 1,400,000             
Interest and fiscal charges -                         -                      48,222                 -                          -                                 -                      -                          -                            -                           143,669                    191,891                

Total expenditures 6,868                 861,290           48,396                 500,276               793,125                      225,888           -                          391,698                 -                           1,543,669                 8,057,446             

Revenues over (under) expenditures (6,181)                (283,846)         1,118,799            1,112,061            (462,923)                    271,848           5,560,639           7,852                     19,913                  60,183                      7,128,443             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 65,000               133,290           -                          -                          -                                 -                      -                          657,415                 -                           -                                1,154,644             
Transfers out -                         -                      -                          (501,017)             -                                 -                      (6,252,669)          (180,000)               -                           (32,442)                     (7,154,378)            

Total other financing sources (uses) 65,000               133,290           -                          (501,017)             -                                 -                      (6,252,669)          477,415                 -                           (32,442)                     (5,999,734)            

Net change in fund balances 58,819               (150,556)         1,118,799            611,044               (462,923)                    271,848           (692,030)             485,267                 19,913                  27,741                      1,128,709             

Fund balances - beginning of year 3,804                 2,086,687        (1,181,139)          3,528,048            3,250,855                   1,024,312        692,030              2,451,194              873,787                1,364,980                 18,796,983           

Fund balances - end of year 62,623$             1,936,131$      (62,340)$             4,139,092$          2,787,932$                 1,296,160$      -$                        2,936,461$            893,700$              1,392,721$               19,925,692$         

Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds
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Combining Schedule of Net Position – Midwest City Municipal Authority Accounts – June 30, 2016 
 

Water Account Sewer Account
Sanitation 
Account

Conference 
Center/Hotel 

Account
Drainage 
Account

Debt Service 
Account Total

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 257,664$                 1,396,110$               305,689$               379,762$             104,422$                -$                        2,443,647$             
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             2,652,850            2,652,850               
Investments 1,172,520                6,334,566                 1,555,372              888,874               475,178                  -                          10,426,510             
Accounts receivable, net 986,800                   1,094,080                 805,536                 184,875               62,913                    -                          3,134,204               
Other receivable -                               -                                -                             82,954                 -                             -                          82,954                    
Accrued interest receivable -                               12,824                      4,108                     2,348                   -                             -                          19,280                    
Inventory 150,560                   95,908                      -                             -                          -                             -                          246,468                  
Due from other funds 27,271                     993                           50,744                   12,203                 -                             643,909               735,120                  

Total current assets 2,594,815                8,934,481                 2,721,449              1,551,016            642,513                  3,296,759            19,741,033             

Non-current assets:
  Due from other funds 1,330,785                62,340                      -                             -                          -                             -                          1,393,125               
  Land, construction in progress, and water rights 6,632,098                1,114,420                 712,036                 5,444                   1,250                      -                          8,465,248               
  Other capital assets, net 17,260,543              80,907,336               3,732,921              22,184,367          13,968,027             -                          138,053,194           

Total non-current assets 25,223,426              82,084,096               4,444,957              22,189,811          13,969,277             -                          147,911,567           

Total assets 27,818,241              91,018,577               7,166,406              23,740,827          14,611,790             3,296,759            167,652,600           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding -                           -                            -                         -                      -                         927,989               927,989                  

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 513,884 3,066,739 210,671 299,201 35 -                          4,090,530               
Wages payable 98,874                     131,986                    38,490                   69,313                 10,368                    -                          349,031                  
Due to other funds 1,384                       -                                -                             740,000               -                             -                          741,384                  
Accrued interest payable -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             777,621               777,621                  
Accrued compensated absences 124,957                   146,690                    34,561                   35,511                 12,661                    -                          354,380                  
Refundable deposits -                               -                                -                             48,208                 -                             -                          48,208                    
Notes payable 216,090                   -                                -                             -                          -                             -                          216,090                  
Revenue bonds payable -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             4,185,000            4,185,000               

Total current liabilities 955,189                   3,345,415                 283,722                 1,192,233            23,064                    4,962,621            10,762,244             

Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 249,914                   293,380                    69,121                   7,101                   25,322                    -                          644,838                  
Net OPEB obligation 636,685                   1,026,912                 328,612                 -                          82,153                    -                          2,074,362               
Notes payable -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             -                          -                             
Revenue bonds payable, net -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             56,028,024          56,028,024             

Total non-current liabilities 886,599                   1,320,292                 397,733                 7,101                   107,475                  56,028,024          58,747,224             

Total liabilities 1,841,788                4,665,707                 681,455                 1,199,334            130,539                  60,990,645          69,509,468             

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 23,676,551              82,021,756               4,444,957              22,189,811          13,969,277             (59,285,035)        87,017,317             
Restricted for debt service -                               -                                -                             -                          -                             1,871,171            1,871,171               
Unrestricted (deficit) 2,299,902                4,331,114                 2,039,994              351,682               511,974                  647,967               10,182,633             

Total net position 25,976,453$            86,352,870$             6,484,951$            22,541,493$        14,481,251$           (56,765,897)$      99,071,121$           

Midwest City Municipal Authority
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Midwest City Municipal Authority Accounts – Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

Water Account Sewer Account Sanitation Account

Conference 
Center/Hotel 

Account Drainage Account
Debt Service 

Account Total
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 6,443,139$               7,810,908$               5,737,874$               5,363,322$               447,488$                  -$                              25,802,731$             
Fees, licenses and permits 12,000                      20,050                      -                                -                                -                                -                                32,050                      
Miscellaneous 5,612                        98                             18,135                      -                                733                           -                                24,578                      

Total operating revenues 6,460,751                 7,831,056                 5,756,009                 5,363,322                 448,221                    -                                25,859,359               

OPERATING EXPENSES
  Personal services 2,377,828                 3,614,324                 1,200,000                 2,379,854                 295,370                    -                                9,867,376                 
  Materials and supplies 884,601                    514,307                    797,341                    1,258,346                 68,070                      -                                3,522,665                 
  Other services and charges 1,514,545                 2,520,393                 1,989,102                 1,597,715                 38,659                      -                                7,660,414                 
  Depreciation and amortization 636,540                    2,640,864                 439,116                    939,947                    269,001                    -                                4,925,468                 

Total operating expenses 5,413,514                 9,289,888                 4,425,559                 6,175,862                 671,100                    -                                25,975,923               

Operating income (loss) 1,047,237                 (1,458,832)                1,330,450                 (812,540)                   (222,879)                   -                                (116,564)                   

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 111,443                    432,980                    118,103                    43,716                      12,927                      5,214                        724,383                    
Interest expense and fiscal charges (11,739)                     -                                -                                -                                -                                (1,233,052)                (1,244,791)                
Gain (loss) on asset retirement 560                           981                           1,956                        (2,114)                       -                                -                                1,383                        

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 100,264                    433,961                    120,059                    41,602                      12,927                      (1,227,838)                (519,025)                   

Income (loss)  before contributions and  transfers 1,147,501                 (1,024,871)                1,450,509                 (770,938)                   (209,952)                   (1,227,838)                (635,589)                   
                      

Transfers in 250,073                    733,174                    -                                -                                215,746                    15,455,312               16,654,305               
Transfers out (816,060)                   (2,173,629)                (1,511,820)                (360,000)                   (804)                          (9,261,684)                (14,123,997)              

Change in net position 581,514                    (2,465,326)                (61,311)                     (1,130,938)                4,990                        4,965,790                 1,894,719                 

Total net position - beginning 25,394,939               88,818,196               6,546,262                 23,672,431               14,476,261               (61,731,687)              97,176,402               

Total net position - ending 25,976,453$             86,352,870$             6,484,951$               22,541,493$             14,481,251$             (56,765,897)$            99,071,121$             

Midwest City Municipal Authority
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Combining Schedule of Cash Flows – Midwest City Municipal Authority Accounts – June 30, 2016 
 

Water Account Sewer Account Sanitation Account

Conference 
Center/Hotel 

Account Drainage Account
Debt Service 

Account Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 6,593,454$               7,816,542$               5,693,302$               5,424,029$               447,382$                  -$                              25,974,709$                       
Payments to suppliers (2,247,685)                (2,582,126)                (2,784,274)                (2,871,317)                (128,868)                   -                                (10,614,270)                        
Payments to employees (2,298,279)                (3,243,514)                (1,171,683)                (2,366,782)                (262,185)                   -                                (9,342,443)                          
Receipts (payments) from interfund loans (13,966)                     (939)                          (1,899)                       326,574                    -                                (643,909)                   (334,139)                             

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,033,524                 1,989,963                 1,735,446                 512,504                    56,329                      (643,909)                   5,683,857                           

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 250,073                    733,174                    -                                -                                215,746                    15,455,312               16,654,305                         
Transfers to other funds (816,060)                   (2,173,629)                (1,511,820)                (360,000)                   (804)                          (9,261,684)                (14,123,997)                        

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities (565,987)                   (1,440,455)                (1,511,820)                (360,000)                   214,942                    6,193,628                 2,530,308                           

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased (1,375,308)                (2,160,669)                (399,451)                   (357,636)                   (295,185)                   -                                (4,588,249)                          
Principal paid on capital debt (212,039)                   -                                -                                -                                -                                (4,055,000)                (4,267,039)                          
Payments of interfund loan for capital purchases (1,330,785)                1,118,799                 -                                -                                -                                -                                (211,986)                             
Interest and fiscal charges paid on capital debt (11,739)                     -                                -                                -                                -                                (1,489,935)                (1,501,674)                          
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 560                           981                           -                                3,425                        -                                -                                4,966                                  

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (2,929,311)                (1,040,889)                (399,451)                   (354,211)                   (295,185)                   (5,544,935)                (10,563,982)                        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale (purchase) of investments 1,099,360                 (40,832)                     4,893                        100,010                    13,638                      -                                1,177,069                           
Interest and dividends 111,272                    408,091                    110,129                    39,146                      12,927                      5,322                        686,887                              

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,210,632                 367,259                    115,022                    139,156                    26,565                      5,322                        1,863,956                           

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (251,142)                   (124,122)                   (60,803)                     (62,551)                     2,651                        10,106                      (485,861)                             

Balances - beginning of year 508,806                    1,520,232                 366,492                    442,313                    101,771                    2,642,744                 5,582,358                           

Balances - end of year 257,664$                  1,396,110$               305,689$                  379,762$                  104,422$                  2,652,850$               5,096,497$                         

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 257,664$                  1,396,110$               305,689$                  379,762$                  104,422$                  -$                          2,443,647$                         
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            2,652,850                 2,652,850                           

Total cash and cash equivalents 257,664$                  1,396,110$               305,689$                  379,762$                  104,422$                  2,652,850$               5,096,497$                         

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
  (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 1,047,237$               (1,458,832)$              1,330,450$               (812,540)$                 (222,879)$                 -$                          (116,564)$                           
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
   by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 636,540                    2,640,864                 439,116                    939,947                    269,001                    -                            4,925,468                           
Loss on impairment of capital asset -                            826,576                    -                            -                            -                            -                            826,576                              

Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (99,385)                     (14,514)                     (62,707)                     47,381                      (839)                          -                            (130,064)                             
Other receivable 232,088                    -                            -                            6,876                        -                            -                            238,964                              
Due from other funds (14,152)                     (939)                          (1,899)                       (3,426)                       -                            (643,909)                   (664,325)                             
Inventory (14,380)                     978                           -                            -                            -                            -                            (13,402)                               
Accounts payable 165,841                    (374,980)                   2,169                        (15,256)                     (22,139)                     -                            (244,365)                             
Due to other funds 186                           -                            -                            330,000                    -                            -                            330,186                              
Due to employees 9,491                        24,946                      2,657                        15,354                      2,513                        -                            54,961                                
Refundable deposits -                            -                            -                            6,450                        -                            -                            6,450                                  
Unfunded OPEB obligation 48,002                      254,265                    34,270                      -                            26,964                      -                            363,501                              
Accrued compensated absences 22,056                      91,599                      (8,610)                       (2,282)                       3,708                        -                            106,471                              

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,033,524$               1,989,963$               1,735,446$               512,504$                  56,329$                    (643,909)$                 5,683,857$                         

Midwest City Municipal Authority
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Combining Statement of Net Position - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds – June 30, 2016 
 

 

Utilities Authority Utility Services
Utilities Capital 

Fund
Customer 

Deposit Fund
Golf Courses 

Fund
29th & Douglas 

Fund Total
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 177,472$                 56,204$                    154,888$               -$                       30,456$                  -$                         419,020$            
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted -                               -                                -                             234,475             -                             -                           234,475              
Investments 807,595                   255,758                    704,827                 -                         128,924                  -                           1,897,104           
Receivables:
  Other receivable -                               -                                -                             -                         3,349                      -                           3,349                  
  Interest -                               -                                -                             3,150                 -                             -                           3,150                  
  Due from other funds -                               58,958                      846,845                 1,384                 546                         -                           907,733              
  Accounts receivable, net -                               68,407                      -                             1,399                 -                             -                           69,806                
Inventories -                               -                                -                             -                         3,121                      -                           3,121                  

Total current assets 985,067                   439,327                    1,706,560              240,408             166,396                  -                           3,537,758           

Non-current assets:
  Investments, restricted -                               -                                -                             1,193,028          -                             -                           1,193,028           
  Land, construction in progress, and water rights 415,063                   1,936                        74,129                   -                         232,057                  5,500,000            6,223,185           
  Other capital assets, net 2,808,142                20,734                      6,166,143              -                         1,477,964               -                           10,472,983         

Total non-current assets 3,223,205                22,670                      6,240,272              1,193,028          1,710,021               5,500,000            17,889,196         

Total assets 4,208,272                461,997                    7,946,832              1,433,436          1,876,417               5,500,000            21,426,954         

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 39,123 16,736 135,763 -                         10,471                    -                           202,093              
Wages payable -                               34,065 -                             -                         35,755                    -                           69,820                
Unearned revenue -                               -                                -                             -                         -                             -                           -                          
Due to other funds -                               -                                58,958                   13,592               -                             -                           72,550                
Accrued compensated absences -                               29,449                      -                             -                         45,889                    -                           75,338                
Refundable deposits -                               -                                -                             143,230             -                             -                           143,230              

Total current liabilities 39,123                     80,250                      194,721                 156,822             92,115                    -                           563,031              

Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences -                               58,898                      -                             -                         91,779                    -                           150,677              
Net OPEB Obligation -                               287,535                    -                             -                         164,306                  -                           451,841              
Refundable deposits -                               -                                -                             1,276,614          -                             -                           1,276,614           
Advance to other funds -                               -                                1,330,785              -                         -                             181,059               1,511,844           

Total non-current liabilities -                               346,433                    1,330,785              1,276,614          256,085                  181,059               3,390,976           

Total liabilities 39,123                     426,683                    1,525,506              1,433,436          348,200                  181,059               3,954,007           

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,223,205                22,670                      6,240,272              -                         1,710,021               5,500,000            16,696,168         
Restricted for other purposes 216,134                   48,038                      -                             -                         50,251                    -                           314,423              
Unrestricted (deficit) 729,810                   (35,394)                     181,054                 -                         (232,055)                (181,059)              462,356              

Total net position 4,169,149$              35,314$                    6,421,326$            -$                       1,528,217$             5,318,941$          17,472,947$       
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

Utilities Authority Utility Services
Utilities Capital 

Fund
Customer Deposit 

Fund Golf Courses Fund
29th & Douglas 

Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services -$                              1,036,016$               -$                              -$                              1,114,869$               100$                         2,150,985$               

Total operating revenues -                                1,036,016                 -                                -                                1,114,869                 100                           2,150,985                 

OPERATING EXPENSES
  Personal services -                                854,775                    -                                -                                781,714                    -                                1,636,489                 
  Materials and supplies -                                30,284                      3,675                        -                                183,027                    -                                216,986                    
  Other services and charges -                                167,554                    -                                -                                115,546                    27,279                      310,379                    
  Depreciation and amortization 23,988                      4,424                        384,649                    -                                101,872                    -                                514,933                    

Total operating expenses 23,988                      1,057,037                 388,324                    -                                1,182,159                 27,279                      2,678,787                 

Operating income (loss) (23,988)                     (21,021)                     (388,324)                   -                                (67,290)                     (27,179)                     (527,802)                   

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 57,408                      6,420                        16,065                      82,076                      3,490                        -                                165,459                    
Other non-operating revenue -                                79,530                      71,639                      -                                -                                -                                151,169                    
Gain (loss) on sales of capital assets -                                -                                -                                -                                4,645                        -                                4,645                        
Interest expense and fiscal charges -                                -                                (29,964)                     -                                -                                -                                (29,964)                     

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 57,408                      85,950                      57,740                      82,076                      8,135                        -                                291,309                    

Income (loss)  before contributions and transfers 33,420                      64,929                      (330,584)                   82,076                      (59,155)                     (27,179)                     (236,493)                   
                      

Capital contributions -                                -                                -                                -                                3,591                        -                                3,591                        
Transfers in 522,309                    -                                874,867                    -                                -                                135,894                    1,533,070                 
Transfers out -                                (100,789)                   -                                (44,841)                     (4,019)                       -                                (149,649)                   

Change in net position 555,729                    (35,860)                     544,283                    37,235                      (59,583)                     108,715                    1,150,519                 

Total net position - beginning 3,613,420                 71,174                      5,877,043                 (37,235)                     1,587,800                 5,210,226                 16,322,428               

Total net position - ending 4,169,149$               35,314$                    6,421,326$               -$                              1,528,217$               5,318,941$               17,472,947$             
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds – June 30, 2016 
 

Utilities Authority Utility Services
Utilities Capital 

Fund
Customer Deposit 

Fund Golf Courses Fund
29th & Douglas 

Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers -$                              1,114,327$                     71,639$                       741$                           1,115,479$                100$                          2,302,286$                
Payments to suppliers (44,935)                     (197,738)                         (492,836)                     -                                 (301,467)                   (27,279)                     (1,064,255)                
Payments to employees -                                (764,961)                         -                                  -                                 (704,949)                   -                                (1,469,910)                
Payments of interfund loan -                                -                                      (846,845)                     13,391                        9,577                         -                                (823,877)                   
Receipt of customer deposits -                                -                                      -                                  520,622                      -                                -                                520,622                     
Return of customer deposits -                                -                                      -                                  (492,830)                    -                                -                                (492,830)                   

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (44,935)                     151,628                          (1,268,042)                  41,924                        118,640                     (27,179)                     (1,027,964)                

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 522,309                    -                                      874,867                       -                                 -                                135,894                     1,533,070                  
Transfers to other funds -                                (100,789)                         -                                  (44,841)                      (4,019)                       -                                (149,649)                   

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 522,309                    (100,789)                         874,867                       (44,841)                      (4,019)                       135,894                     1,383,421                  

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased (709,373)                   (2,966)                             (63,996)                       -                                 (49,749)                     -                                (826,084)                   
Proceeds from interfund loan for capital purchases -                                -                                      1,398,797                    -                                 -                                -                                1,398,797                  
Payments of interfund loan for capital purchases -                                -                                      (68,012)                       -                                 -                                (108,715)                   (176,727)                   
Interest and fiscal charges paid on capital debt -                                -                                      (29,964)                       -                                 -                                -                                (29,964)                     
Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                                -                                      -                                  -                                 4,645                         -                                4,645                         

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (709,373)                   (2,966)                             1,236,825                    -                                 (45,104)                     (108,715)                   370,667                     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale  (purchase) of investments 131,162                    (42,491)                           (704,827)                     (98,978)                      (128,924)                   -                                (844,058)                   
Interest and dividends 57,285                      6,420                              16,065                         78,783                        3,490                         -                                162,043                     

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 188,447                    (36,071)                           (688,762)                     (20,195)                      (125,434)                   -                                (682,015)                   

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (43,552)                     11,802                            154,888                       (23,112)                      (55,917)                     -                                44,109                       

Balances - beginning of year 221,024                    44,402                            -                                  257,587                      86,373                       -                                609,386                     

Balances - end of year 177,472$                  56,204$                          154,888$                     234,475$                    30,456$                     -$                              653,495$                   

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 177,472$                  56,204$                          154,888$                     -$                               30,456$                     -$                              419,020$                   
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -                                -                                      -                                  234,475                      -                                -                                234,475                     

Total cash and cash equivalents 177,472$                  56,204$                          154,888$                     234,475$                    30,456$                     -$                              653,495$                   

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
  (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (23,988)$                   (21,021)$                         (388,324)$                   -$                               (67,290)$                   (27,179)$                   (527,802)$                 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
   by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 23,988                      4,424                              384,649                       -                                 101,872                     -                                514,933                     
Other non operating revenue -                                79,530                            71,639                         -                                 -                            -                                151,169                     

Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net -                                (1,219)                             -                                  741                             610                            -                                132                            
Due from other funds -                                -                                  (846,845)                     (201)                           9,577                         -                                (837,469)                   
Accounts payable (44,935)                     100                                 (489,161)                     -                                 (2,476)                       -                                (536,472)                   
Inventory -                                -                                      -                                  -                                 (418)                          -                                (418)                          
Due to other funds -                                -                                      -                              13,592                        -                            -                                13,592                       
Due to employees -                                1,784                              -                                  -                                 4,695                         -                                6,479                         
Refundable deposits -                                -                                      -                                  27,792                        -                            -                                27,792                       
Accrued compensated absences -                                2,855                              -                                  -                                 18,142                       -                                20,997                       
Net OPEB obligation -                                85,175                            -                                  -                             53,928                       -                            139,103                     

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (44,935)$                   151,628$                        (1,268,042)$                41,924$                      118,640$                   (27,179)$                   (1,027,964)$              
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Combining Statement of Net Position– Internal Service Funds – June 30, 2016 
 

Public Works 
Administration

Fleet Services 
Fund

Surplus Property 
Fund

Risk 
Management 

Fund
L & H Benefits 

Fund Totals
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 51,153$                       157,531$                  61,162$                 538,915$               73,239$               882,000$            
Investments 232,775                       -                                244,548                 2,742,047              1,490,251            4,709,621           
Receivables:
Accounts receivable -                                   -                                767                        51,833                   31,566                 84,166                
Accrued interest receivable -                                   -                                -                             7,243                     3,936                   11,179                
 Due from other funds -                                   599                           -                             -                             -                           599                     
Inventories -                                   53,639                      -                             -                             -                           53,639                

Total current assets 283,928                       211,769                    306,477                 3,340,038              1,598,992            5,741,204           

Non-current assets:
Capital Assets:

Non-depreciable -                                   1,141                        -                             -                             -                           1,141                  
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 154,784                       870,103                    92,249                   -                             -                           1,117,136           
Total non-current assets 154,784                       871,244                    92,249                   -                             -                           1,118,277           

Total assets 438,712                       1,083,013                 398,726                 3,340,038              1,598,992            6,859,481           

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,258 100,689 917 27,346 197,741 329,951              
Claims liability -                                   -                                -                             552,000                 549,088               1,101,088           
Wages payable 34,674 32,341 946 6,787 1,586 76,334                
Due to other funds -                                   -                                236,923                 -                             -                           236,923              
Accrued compensated absences 49,693                         34,394                      522                        10,681                   731                      96,021                

Total current liabilities 87,625                         167,424                    239,308                 596,814                 749,146               1,840,317           

Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 99,385                         68,789                      1,045                     21,361                   1,461                   192,041              
Net OPEB obligation 164,306                       266,997                    20,538                   20,538                   20,538                 492,917              
Claims liability -                                   -                                -                             1,252,000              -                           1,252,000           

Total non-current liabilities 263,691                       335,786                    21,583                   1,293,899              21,999                 1,936,958           
Total liabilities 351,316                       503,210                    260,891                 1,890,713              771,145               3,777,275           

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 154,784                       871,244                    92,249                   -                             -                           1,118,277           
Unrestricted (deficit) (67,388)                        (291,441)                   45,586                   1,449,325              827,847               1,963,929           

Total net position 87,396$                       579,803$                  137,835$               1,449,325$            827,847$             3,082,206$         
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Internal Service Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

Public Works 
Administration

Fleet Services 
Fund

Surplus Property 
Fund

Risk Management 
Fund

L & H Benefits 
Fund Totals

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 912,824$                  2,179,638$               44,070$                    1,931,986$               5,272,997$               10,341,515$             
Miscellaneous -                                524                           274                           3,109                        72,711                      76,618                      
Total operating revenues 912,824                    2,180,162                 44,344                      1,935,095                 5,345,708                 10,418,133               

OPERATING EXPENSES
  Personal services 934,923                    1,047,211                 49,596                      180,648                    53,218                      2,265,596                 
  Materials and supplies 7,251                        1,354,772                 398                           31,303                      -                                1,393,724                 
  Other services and charges 96,915                      79,173                      10,302                      4,123,649                 16,520                      4,326,559                 
  Insurance claims and expenses -                                -                                -                                (2,205,000)                5,748,711                 3,543,711                 
  Depreciation and amortization 33,328                      63,789                      4,353                        -                                -                                101,470                    

Total operating expenses 1,072,417                 2,544,945                 64,649                      2,130,600                 5,818,449                 11,631,060               

Operating income (loss) (159,593)                   (364,783)                   (20,305)                     (195,505)                   (472,741)                   (1,212,927)                

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Investment income 5,936                        1,846                        6,622                        201,224                    107,543                    323,171                    
Gain (loss) on capital asset disposal -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                

Total non-operating revenue 5,936                        1,846                        6,622                        201,224                    107,543                    323,171                    

Change in net position (155,405)                   (365,530)                   (13,790)                     5,430                        (365,359)                   (894,654)                   

Total net position - beginning, restated 242,801                    945,333                    151,625                    1,443,895                 1,193,206                 3,976,860                 

Total net position - ending 87,396$                    579,803$                  137,835$                  1,449,325$               827,847$                  3,082,206$               
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Internal Service Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 

Public Works 
Administration

Fleet Services 
Fund

Surplus Property 
Fund

Risk 
Management 

Fund
L & H Benefits 

Fund Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 912,824$                  2,180,162$               45,790$                     1,883,384$         5,348,194$                10,370,354$              
Payments to suppliers (107,614)                   (1,366,505)                (10,097)                      (4,153,140)         (16,520)                     (5,653,876)                
Payments to employees (734,369)                   (760,596)                   (29,101)                      (163,093)            (32,418)                     (1,719,577)                
Claims and benefits paid -                                -                                -                                 1,804,000           (5,611,391)                (3,807,391)                
Payment from (to) other funds -                                (524)                          12,996                       -                         -                                12,472                       

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 70,841                      52,537                      19,588                       (628,849)            (312,135)                   (798,018)                   

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating transfers out (1,748)                       (2,593)                       (107)                           (289)                   (161)                          (4,898)                       

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities (1,748)                       (2,593)                       (107)                           (289)                   (161)                          (4,898)                       

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased (7,329)                       (14,597)                     -                                 -                         -                                (21,926)                     

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (7,329)                       (14,597)                     -                                 -                         -                                (21,926)                     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale (purchase) of investments (53,808)                     -                                (17,315)                      272,651              21,058                       222,586                     
Interest and dividends 5,936                        1,846                        6,622                         187,131              107,957                     309,492                     

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (47,872)                     1,846                        (10,693)                      459,782              129,015                     532,078                     

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13,892                      37,193                      8,788                         (169,356)            (183,281)                   (292,764)                   

Balances - beginning of year 37,261                      120,338                    52,374                       708,271              256,520                     1,174,764                  

Balances - end of year 51,153$                    157,531$                  61,162$                     538,915$            73,239$                     882,000$                   

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 51,153$                    157,531$                  61,162$                     538,915$            73,239$                     882,000$                   

Total cash and cash equivalents 51,153$                    157,531$                  61,162$                     538,915$            73,239$                     882,000$                   

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
  (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (159,593)$                 (364,783)$                 (20,305)$                    (195,505)$          (472,741)$                 (1,212,927)$              
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
   by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 33,328                      63,789                      4,353                         -                         -                                101,470                     
Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net -                                -                            1,446                         (51,711)              2,486                         (47,779)                     
Due from other funds -                                (524)                          -                                 -                         -                                (524)                          
Inventory -                                14,851                      -                                 -                         -                                14,851                       
Accounts payable (3,448)                       52,589                      603                            1,812                  127,803                     179,359                     
Claims liability -                                -                                -                                 (401,000)            9,517                         (391,483)                   
Due to employees 10,134                      2,064                        (347)                           834                     (465)                          12,220                       
Due to other funds -                                -                                12,996                       -                     -                                12,996                       
Net OPEB obligation 164,306                    266,997                    20,538                       20,538                20,538                       492,917                     
Accrued compensated absences 26,114                      17,554                      304                            (3,817)                727                            40,882                       

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 70,841$                    52,537$                    19,588$                     (628,849)$          (312,135)$                 (798,018)$                 
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Debt Service Coverage Schedule - Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 
 

2011 and 2011A
Revenue Bonds

GROSS REVENUE AVAILABLE:
Water revenue 6,460,751$                  
Wastewater revenue 7,831,056                    
Pledged sales tax 13,849,343                  
Investment income 544,423                       

           Total Gross Revenue Available 28,685,573                  

OPERATING EXPENSES:
          Total Operating Expenses 11,425,998                  

Net Revenue Available for Debt Service 17,259,575$                

Average Annual Debt Service
  2011 Revenue Bonds 1,808,379$                  
  2011A Revenue Bonds 4,709,500

6,517,879$                  

Computed Coverage   265%

 
Coverage Requirement 125%
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General Government Expenditures by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 
 

Fiscal Year
General 

Government Public Safety Streets
Health and 

Welfare
Culture & 
Recreation

Economic 
Development Debt Services Total

2006-07 4,638,916$        19,653,099$            2,860,439$            1,060,332$           1,269,324$          4,286,769$           1,874,210$           35,643,089$            
2007-08 4,433,847          22,751,353              4,704,754              9,065,571             1,833,511            4,151,318             3,096,734             50,037,088              
2008-09 4,731,952          28,025,096              5,832,627              23,077,926           1,720,807            4,523,604             2,241,289             70,153,301              
2009-10 4,341,709          25,474,931              14,974,806            1,491,596             1,657,029            4,648,669             2,811,624             55,400,364              
2010-11 6,459,976          25,157,469              6,006,443              160,983                1,120,863            4,915,834             3,679,296             47,500,864              
2011-12 5,423,037          27,570,275              3,702,871              629                       1,989,113            4,813,173             3,745,698             47,244,796              
2012-13 5,216,187          27,388,784              3,460,381              110,935                2,841,490            4,704,086             3,856,073             47,577,936              
2013-14 6,972,885          27,386,699              4,382,912              463,886                2,112,589            5,028,554             3,753,029             50,100,554              
2014-15 6,704,404          28,657,862              5,138,517              410,969                1,746,966            3,792,050             3,650,604             50,101,372              
2015-16 7,714,835          27,494,864              4,865,569              755,691                2,037,909            4,644,064             3,505,294             51,018,226              
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Governmental Revenues By Source 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 

Fiscal Year Taxes
Intergov-
ernmental

Licenses & 
Permits

Charges for 
Services

Fines & 
Forfeitures

Investment 
Income

Misc 
Revenues Total

2006-07 28,111,696$       1,173,791$      566,845$     1,851,771$     1,458,500$    11,216,338$     612,269$         44,991,210$       
2007-08 31,705,767         8,261,565        413,183       1,766,807       1,916,846      (3,275,268)        1,162,943        41,951,843         
2008-09 32,399,044         4,903,868        420,663       2,127,414       2,104,237      (9,252,051)        775,469           33,478,644         
2009-10 33,166,047         4,906,373        385,949       2,066,991       1,878,424      6,582,036         2,445,317        51,431,137         
2010-11 33,566,216         6,440,504        395,511       2,193,602       2,001,322      14,546,261       552,201           59,695,617         
2011-12 36,586,145         * 5,462,968        330,553       2,636,087       2,170,041      2,749,217         742,978           50,677,989         
2012-13 39,796,809         5,205,283        392,512       2,249,961       1,960,694      10,846,574       1,492,193        61,944,026         
2013-14 40,546,435         5,668,145        304,395       2,545,726       1,976,580      15,736,403       2,367,115        69,144,799         
2014-15 39,781,445         5,543,732        349,439       3,662,747       2,045,294      8,377,665         2,381,400        62,141,722         
2015-16 40,296,979         5,367,958        567,942       4,259,051       1,971,146      3,546,362         1,938,936        57,948,374         

* A new sales/use Tax became effective January 1, 2012 changing the rate from 3.3 to 3.85
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Assessed Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 

Fiscal Year Real Property
Personal 
Property

Public Service 
Property

Veteran and 
Homestead 
Exemption Assessed Value

Estimated Actual 
Value

2007 216,308,965$       27,831,980$      12,095,233$      10,654,076$        245,582,102$       2,232,564,564$         11%
2008 233,726,705         27,869,971        12,100,868        14,043,632          259,653,912         (1) 2,360,490,127           11%
2009 244,609,641         29,359,839        12,004,561        14,504,429          271,469,612         (1) 2,467,905,563           11%
2010 252,013,094         27,856,671        13,374,321        10,453,302          278,216,075         (1) 2,529,237,045           11%
2011 258,517,927         27,728,562        13,697,571        10,398,494          284,605,074         (1) 2,587,318,855           11%
2012 259,775,001         27,954,136        13,431,063        10,164,671          285,884,862         (1) 2,598,953,291           11%
2013 263,908,805         28,917,523        11,834,175        15,286,274          289,374,229         (1) 2,630,674,809           11%
2014 267,452,466         28,135,094        11,407,389        15,250,420          291,744,529         (1) 2,652,222,991           11%
2015 272,926,268         26,469,753        11,878,425        9,320,146            296,030,326         (1) 2,691,184,782           11%
2016 283,028,134         25,089,341        11,544,013        9,165,223            304,059,153         (1) 2,764,174,118           11%

(1) New established exemption for veterans

Total Actual
Ratio of Total 

Assessed Value  
to Total 

Estimated 
Actual Value
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Property Tax Rates – All Overlapping Governments 
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Value) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 

Fiscal Year

City 
Sinking 
Fund

MWC 
Schools

Rose State 
College

Oklahoma 
County

Total 
Midwest 

City 
Resident

Choctaw 
Schools

Total 
Midwest 

City 
Resident

OKC 
Schools

Total 
Midwest 

City 
Resident

2007 8.32 64.31 17.67 22.29 112.59 63.11 111.39 56.73 105.01
2008 7.29 65.05 17.30 23.18 112.82 66.66 114.43 52.48 100.25
2009 7.24 65.83 17.40 24.79 115.26 68.50 117.93 58.43 107.86
2010 6.81 65.60 17.32 24.27 114.00 69.41 117.81 58.70 107.10
2011 6.62 64.64 17.18 24.06 112.50 70.22 118.08 62.09 109.95
2012 6.09 66.55 17.10 23.97 113.71 72.49 119.65 59.29 106.45
2013 5.78 64.98 17.02 23.87 111.65 76.19 122.86 60.39 107.06
2014 5.44 70.32 20.33 23.58 119.67 76.18 125.53 59.36 108.71
2015 5.18 71.03 19.88 23.72 119.81 76.17 124.95 59.71 108.49
2016 0.96 70.64 19.65 23.81 115.06 76.17 120.59 59.36 103.78
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Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
June 30, 2016 

 
Net assessed valuation $304,059,153

Debt limit (a) $30,405,915

Applicable bonds outstanding $2,700,000

Legal debt margin $27,705,915

(a) Article 10, Section 26 of the Constitution of the State of Oklahoma limits municipal debt to 10% of net assessed 
valuation for certain types of general obligation bonds.
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Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Bonded Debt 
To Total General Governmental Expenditures 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 
 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest (1)
Total   Debt 

Service

Total General 
Governmental 
Expenditures 

Ratio of Debt    
Service to 

Government 
Expenditures

2006-07 1,075,000$      599,313$         1,674,313$      35,643,089$           4.70%
2007-08 1,350,000        1,102,596        2,452,596        50,037,088             4.90%
2008-09 1,400,000        635,560           2,035,560        70,153,301             2.90%
2009-10 1,400,000        569,623           1,969,623        55,400,364             3.56%

2010-11 1,400,000        503,685           1,903,685        47,500,864             4.01%
2011-12 1,400,000        437,342           1,837,342        47,244,796             3.89%
2012-13 1,400,000        370,754           1,770,754        47,577,936             3.72%
2013-14 1,400,000        304,167           1,704,167        50,100,554             3.40%
2014-15 1,400,000        259,975           1,659,975        50,101,372             3.31%
2015-16 1,400,000        190,700           1,590,700        51,018,226             3.12%
(1) Excludes bond issuance and other costs
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Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Bonded Debt 
To Assessed Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
 
 

Fiscal Year Population Assessed Value 
Gross Bonded 

Debt

Less Debt 
Service 
Money 

Available 
Net Bonded 

Debt

Ratio of    Net 
Bonded Debt 
to Assessed 

Value

Net 
Bonded 
Debt Per 
Capita

2006-07 54,088 245,582,102$       15,250,000$      1,961,500$   13,288,500$      5.41% 246
2007-08 54,088 259,653,914 13,900,000 1,683,112 12,216,888 4.71% 226
2008-09 54,088 271,469,612 12,500,000 1,513,528 10,986,472 4.05% 203
2009-10 54,088 278,216,075 11,100,000 1,500,619 9,599,381 3.45% 177
2010-11 54,371 284,605,074 9,700,000 1,504,457 8,195,543 2.88% 151
2011-12 54,371 285,884,862 8,300,000 1,551,565 6,748,435 2.36% 124
2012-13 54,371 289,374,229 6,900,000 1,428,884 5,471,116 1.89% 101
2013-14 54,371 291,744,529 5,500,000 1,373,216 4,126,784 1.41% 76
2014-15 54,371 296,030,326 4,100,000 1,364,980 2,735,020 0.92% 50
2015-16 54,371 304,059,153 2,700,000 1,392,720 1,307,280 0.43% 24
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Revenue Bond and Note Coverage 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 

Fiscal Year
Gross 

Revenues

Direct 
Operating 
Expenses

Net Revenue 
Available for 
Debt Service

Maximum 
Annual     

Debt Service

Debt 
Service 

Coverage

2006-07 11,389,730$      7,378,584$      4,011,146$      2,000,344$      2.01
2007-08 14,201,820        7,372,367        6,829,453        2,000,344        3.41
2008-09 14,535,584        8,191,452        6,344,132        2,000,344        3.17
2009-10 14,822,864        7,867,225        6,955,639        2,000,344        3.48
2010-11 15,207,582        8,004,126        7,203,456        2,000,344        3.60
2011-12 17,702,453        8,669,659        9,032,794        6,517,879        1.39
2012-13 27,258,461        9,443,537        17,814,924      6,517,879        2.73
2013-14 28,567,824        9,583,902        18,983,902      6,517,879        2.91
2014-15 28,465,993        9,581,604        18,884,389      6,517,879        2.70
2015-16 28,685,573        11,425,998      17,259,575      6,517,879        2.65
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Demographic Statistics 

 
 

Year Population

Population 
Percent 
Change

1950 10,166         0.00%
1960 36,058         254.69%
1970 48,212         33.71%
1980 49,559         2.79%
1990 52,267         5.46%
2000 54,088         3.48%
2010 54,371         0.50%

Population is taken from US Census conducted every 10 years.
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New Construction 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 
 
 

Fiscal Year
Number   of 

Units Value
Number   
of Units Value

Total 
Construction

2006-07 245 49,578,946$         618$          33,434,637$      83,013,583$      
2007-08 251 44,469,520           537            29,373,333        73,842,853        
2008-09 264 28,032,074           504            29,169,569        57,201,643        
2009-10 184 11,614,006           457            18,846,251        30,460,257        
2010-11 98 14,052,174           203            23,937,338        37,989,512        
2011-12 28 97,003,650           237            20,332,200        117,335,850      
2012-13 27 54,561,650           120            19,020,411        73,582,061        
2013-14 8 6,398,000             69              11,878,466        18,276,466        
2014-15 15 6,748,210             103            16,365,722        23,113,932        
2015-16 26 69,362,500           126            23,727,017        93,089,517        

Commercial Construction Residential Construction
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Miscellaneous Statistics 

June 30, 2016 
 

Date of Incorporation 1943
Form of government Council-manager
Square miles in city limits 28
Miles of streets 565 Lane miles

Education
Number of primary schools 8
Number of secondary schools 3
Number of High schools 2
Number of colleges 1

Police Protection
Number of officers 94

Fire Protection
Number of stations 6
Number of headquarters 1
Number of personnel per shift 24

25

Public Works
Water storage capacity (millions of gallons) 9.5
Miles of water lines 300.5
Miles of sanitary sewer lines 281.4
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Miscellaneous Statistics, Continued 
June 30, 2016 

 
 

Fiscal Year
Full Time 

Government

Full Time 
Hotel/Conference 

Center

2006-07 503 -                         
2007-08 499 -                         
2008-09 499 -                         
2009-10 502 60
2010-11 494 62
2011-12 493 62
2012-13 491 -                  
2013-14 489 -                  
2014-15 477 -                  
2015-16 472 -                  

City Employees
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Miscellaneous Statistics, Continued 
June 30, 2016 

 
City Water Usage (Gallons) 

 

Fiscal Year Annual Usage
Average 

Daily Usage

2006-07 2,021,890,000       5,539,425      
2007-08 1,863,117,000       5,104,430      
2008-09 1,931,741,887       5,292,444      
2009-10 1,910,755,000       5,234,945      
2010-11 1,953,204,878       5,351,246      
2011-12 2,025,176,197       5,548,428      
2012-13 1,902,831,000       5,213,236      
2013-14 1,699,549,985       4,656,301      
2014-15 1,604,378,570       4,395,558      
2015-16 1,778,171,000       4,857,417      
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 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
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  City Manager 

100 N. Midwest Boulevard 
Midwest City, OK  73110 

 Office: 405.739.1204 
Fax: 405-739-1208 

www.midwestcityok.org 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: J. Guy Henson, City Manager 
 
DATE: February 14, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of 1) entering into executive session, as allowed under 25 

O.S. § 307 (B) (2) to discuss negotiations concerning employees and representatives of 
employee groups; and 2) in open session, authorizing the city manager to take action as 
appropriate based on the discussion in executive session. 

 
 
Appropriate information will be available.  
 
 

 
J. GUY HENSON, AICP 
City Manager 
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MIDWEST CITY MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY AGENDA 

City Hall, Midwest City Council Chambers, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard 
 

February 14, 2017 - 7:01 PM 
 

A.      CALL TO ORDER. 

B.      CONSENT AGENDA.  These items are placed on the Consent Agenda so that trustees of 
          the Midwest City Municipal Authority, by unanimous consent, can approve routine 
          agenda items by one motion. If any item proposed does not meet with approval of all  

trustees, or members of the audience wish to discuss a proposed item, that item will be 
removed and heard in regular order. 
 
1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the staff briefing and regular 

meeting of January 24, 2017, as submitted. (Secretary - S. Hancock) 

2. Discussion and consideration of awarding a bid and entering into a contract to 
refurbished four (4), six (6) and eight (8) Yard New Front Load Refuse Containers 
from MCS Heartland LLC. (Public Works - P. Streets) 

3. Discussion and consideration of declaring one (1) 2008 Jacobsen 522 mower, serial 
#BAA! 6808201887, one (1) 2003 Ezgo Workhorse model 1200 c-203, serial 
#1579744 from John Conrad Golf Course, and twelve (12) empty polymer totes from 
the Water Resource Recovery Facility surplus property and authorizing their disposal 
by sealed bid or auction. (Public Works - V. Sullivan) 

C.      NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC DISCUSSION. 

D.      ADJOURNMENT. 
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Notice of regular meetings for staff briefings for the Midwest City Municipal Authority was filed 
for the calendar year with the City Clerk of Midwest City and copies of the agenda for this 
meeting were posted at City Hall and on the City’s website, accessible to the public for at least 
24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR STAFF BRIEFING FOR 

MIDWEST CITY MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY TRUSTEES 
 

January 24, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. 
 

This regular meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Conference Room on the second 
floor of City Hall, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of 
Oklahoma. The following members were present: Chairman Matt Dukes; Trustees Susan Eads, 
Pat Byrne, Rick Dawkins, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff Moore; and Secretary Sara 
Hancock. Absent: none.  
 
Chairman Dukes called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Clarification of agenda items, handouts, and presentation of new or additional information 

for items on the Municipal Authority agenda for January 24, 2017. The Trustees had no 
questions about the individual agenda items. City Manager Guy Henson asked the Trustees to 
pull Consent Agenda item four and take no action.   
 
Chairman Dukes closed the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 _______________________________________ 
ATTEST: MATTHEW D. DUKES, II, Chairman 
 
 
____________________________________ 
SARA HANCOCK, Secretary 
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Notice of regular Midwest City Municipal Authority meetings was filed for the calendar year with the 
City Clerk of Midwest City and copies of the agenda for this meeting were posted at City Hall and on 
Midwest City’s website, accessible to the public for at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MIDWEST CITY MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY MEETING 
 

January 24, 2017 - 7:01 p.m. 
 
This regular meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Chambers, 100 North Midwest Boulevard, 
Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of Oklahoma. The following members were present: 
Chairman Matt Dukes, Trustees Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, Rick Dawkins, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and 
Jeff Moore; and Secretary Sara Hancock. Absent: none. Chairman Dukes called the meeting to order at 
8:41 p.m. 
 
Consent Agenda. Motion was made by Dawkins, seconded by Allen, to approve the items on the 
consent agenda, as submitted, except for item four. 
 
1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the staff briefing and regular meeting of 

January 10, 2017, as submitted. 
 

2. Discussion and consideration of accepting the report on the current financial condition of the 
Sheraton Midwest City Hotel at the Reed Center for the period ending December 31, 2016. 
 

3. Discussion and consideration of declaring one (1) Range Servant ball dispenser, serial #08GL1003, 
one (1) Range Servant golf ball picker, serial #SL90 and one (1) Husky 33 gallon air compressor 
model 516-051, serial #20110058425 from the John Conrad Golf Course surplus property and 
authorizing their disposal by sealed bid or auction. 
 

4. Discussion and consideration of declaring one thousand (1,000) cubic yards of compost from 

the Wastewater Department surplus property and authorizing its disposal by sale at a cost of 

$20.00 per cubic yard loaded, or delivered within 25 miles at a cost of $100.00 plus the cost of 

the compost. No action was taken on this item.  
 
Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Dawkins, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Mayor Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: none. 
Motion carried. 
 

New Business/Public Discussion. There was no new business or public discussion. 
 

Adjournment. Chairman Dukes adjourned the meeting at 8:42 p.m. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________________ 
 MATTHEW D. DUKES II, Chairman 
 
____________________________________ 
SARA HANCOCK, Secretary 
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Public Works Administration  

Vaughn Sullivan, Director 

vsullivan@midwestcityok.org 
R. Paul Streets, Assistant Director 

                                              rstreets@midwestcityok.org 
      www.midwestcityok.org                                                8730 S.E. 15th Street, 

                                                                   Midwest City, Oklahoma  73110 
                                                              O: 405-739-1060 /Fax: 405-739-1090 

        

Memo 

 

 

To:  Honorable Chairman and Trustees 
Midwest City Municipal Authority 

 

From:   R. Paul Streets, Assistant Public Works Director  

 

Date:  February 14, 2017 

 

Subject: Discussion and consideration of awarding a bid and entering into a contract to 

refurbished four (4), six (6) and eight (8) Yard New Front Load Refuse Containers 

from MCS Heartland LLC. 
 
 

On Tuesday, January 31st, 2017 at 2:00 p.m., bids were opened for refurbished front load refuse 
containers.  Bids were submitted by MCS Heartland LLC and Custom Manufacturing.  MCS 
Heartland LLC submitted the lowest and best bid, and as such, we recommend awarding them the 
bid for refurbished four (4), six (6), and eight (8) yard front load refuse containers. 
 
Funds to purchase these new containers are available in the Sanitation Capital Outlay Account.   
 
Staff recommends approval. 

 
R. Paul Streets 

Assistant Public Works Director 
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Bid Tab 1/31/17 Four, Six & Eight Yard Refurbished Front 
Load Containers

Description:

MCS Heartland LLC 4 Yard 6 Yard 8 Yard

Replace Floor w/3 Skid Channels $125.00 $150.00 $150.00
Replace Plastic Lid $10.00 $10.00 $10.00
Replace Fork Pockets (per pocket) $72.00 $72.00 $72.00
Repair Fork Pockets (per pocket) $10.00 $10.00 $10.00
Replace Bump Plate $24.00 $24.00 $24.00
Repair Bump Plate $10.00 $10.00 $10.00
Replace Hinge Pin & Cotter Keys $10.00 $10.00 $10.00
Replace Warning Sign Inc. in paint cost Inc. in paint cost Inc. in paint cost
Replace Drain Plug N/C N/C N/C
Replace Drain Coupling $24.00 $24.00 $24.00
Repair Drain Coupling $30.00 $35.00 $40.00
Paint Midwest City Green $30.00 $35.00 $40.00
Replace Plastic Sliding Side Door $10.00 $10.00 $10.00
Replace Casters 5.00ea 5.00ea 5.00ea
Repair Casters 5.00ea 5.00ea 5.00ea
Replace Lock Bar $20.00 $20.00 $20.00
Repair Lock Bar $20.00 $20.00 $20.00

Custom Manufacturing Inc

Replace Floor w/3 Skid Channels $225.00 $265.00 $315.00
Replace Plastic Lid $50.00 $62.00 $62.00
Replace Fork Pockets (per pocket) $21.00 $21.00 $21.00
Repair Fork Pockets (per pocket) $10.00 $10.00 $10.00
Replace Bump Plate $20.00 $20.00 $20.00
Repair Bump Plate $9.00 $9.00 $9.00
Replace Hinge Pin & Cotter Keys $13.65 $13.65 $13.65
Replace Warning Sign $55.00 $55.00 $55.00
Replace Drain Plug $9.00 $9.00 $9.00
Replace Drain Coupling $8.25 $8.25 $8.25
Repair Drain Coupling $8.25 $8.25 $8.25
Paint Midwest City Green $150.00 $175.00 $210.00
Replace Plastic Sliding Side Door  $30.00(per door)  $30.00(per door)  $30.00(per door)
Replace Casters $120.00 $120.00 $120.00
Repair Casters N/A N/A N/A
Replace Lock Bar $75.00 $75.00 $75.00
Repair Lock Bar N/A N/A N/A

Freight Cost $28.50 per container
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NOTICE TO BIDDERS

Notice is given that the Midwest City Municipal Authority, a public trust, will receive sealed bids in the office ofthe
Secretary, Midwest City Municipal Center, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, Oklahoma, until 2: 00p.m., 
Tuesday the 31" day of January, 2017, for: 

Four, Six & Eight Yard Refurbished Front Load Refuse Containers

Any bids received more than ninety-six ( 96) hours, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays, before the time set
for opening ofbids, as well as bids received after 2: 00 p.m. on the above date will be returned unopened. Bids shall
be made in accordance with the bid documents, all of which are on file and available for public examination at the

Office of the Secretary in the Midwest City Municipal Center. Complete sets ofbid documents may be obtained
from the City of Midwest City, Public Works Administration, 8730 SE 15", Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110. 

Bids filed with the Secretary shall be opened publicly and read aloud in the City Council Chambers at the time stated
above or later. All bids shall be considered by the Chairman and Trustees of the Municipal Authority prior to the
contract being awarded. The Municipal Authority shall consider award of the bid at or after 7: 00 pm on February
14 h, 2017, to the lowest and best bidder meeting specifications. The Municipal Authority may lay the same over to a
subsequent meeting for comparison and computation. 

The bidder shall use the Municipal Authority bid documents only and all forms must be signed and
notarized/attested. The bidder shall file his/her bid in a sealed envelope. Each envelope shall bear a legible notation

thereon that it is a bid upon the item proposed. The bid shall be filed with the Secretary in the City Clerk's office. 
All bids shall be typewritten or in ink. 

The specifications are complete as written. No oral representations made by any agent or employee ofthe Municipal
Authority or its affiliate agencies shall be of any force or effect unless reduced to writing and submitted to all
prospective bidders at least 24 hours in advance of the bid opening. 

Any protest of the award of this proposed contract shall be in writing, shall specify the grounds for the protest in
specific terms and shall be received by the Midwest City Municipal Authority within three (3) business days after the
award of the contract by the governing body. The governing body reserves the right to review all bids and make the
award to the lowest and best bidder. All other provisions of the specifications shall also apply. 

Additional information may be obtained from the City ofMidwest City, Public Works Department, Donna Akin, 
Office Manager, 8730 SE 15th, Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110 (405) 739- 1064. 

The Chairman and Trustees of the Midwest City Municipal Authority reserves the right to reject any or all bids

SW10- dim. k
Sara Hancock, Secretary
Midwest City Municipal Authority

NTB- 1
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Invitationfor Sealed Bids

MIDWEST CITY MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY

100 N. MIDWEST BLVD. 

MIDWEST CITY, OKLAHOMA 73110

Write legibly in ink or use typewriter. 

Published hi Dates Advertised

The Journal Record January 10, 2017
January 17, 2017

Bids must be in the Office of the Secretary By: INVORTANT: Bid envelope must indicate bid item enclosed and date of bid opening. 
Tuesday, January31, 2017 no later than 2: 00 p.m. 

Description 4 Yard G Yard 8 Yard

Replace Floor w/3 Skid Channels jzt

Replace Plastic Lid w

Replace Fork Pockets ( Per Pocket) Z
Repair Fork Pockets ( Per Pocket) w- W
Replace Bump Plate zq. zu _ 

e1CRepair Bump Plate iD. a O. 
Replace Hinge Pin & Cotter Keys bo. lx

Replace Warning Sign A)— A fV, -q
Replace Drain Plug
Replace Drain Coupling IV ZN. zq. w
Repair Drain Coupling
Paint Midwest City Green
Replace Plastic Sliding Side Door 1'

3U, 

l0. ca
Replace Casters 41a

Repair Casters a s } 
Replace Lock Bat Z w21 13 
Repair Lock Bar, 7, 0, W

THE MIDWEST CITY MUNICIPAL, AUTHORITY IS EXEMPT FROM PAYMENT OF OKLAHOMA SALES TAX AND FEDERAL. EXCISE, TAX. 

1 have examined the specifications and agree, provided I am awarded a contract within thirty (30) days from the date fixed for opening bids, to provide the above described
items for the sun shown, in accordance with the ternis and conditions attached to this sheet as " Agreement By Bidder," - 

DELIVERY WILL BE MADE IN  DAYS OR LESS FROM DATE OF ORDER. DATED THIS oV DAYOF :TAL) 14 A . 2017. 

FIRM & G5 LI: BY

ADDRESS `. o.   t APF-rr TITLE_ 

Accepted by the MIDWEST CITY MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY this day of , 2017. 

MATTHEW D. DUKES, I1, Chaimian

SARA HANCOCK, Secretary

Approved as to form this day of , 2017. 

PHILIP ANDERSON, City Attorney
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REFURBISHED FRONT LOAD REFUSE CONTAINER BID SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL

The prospective bidder shall submit a bid to refurbish front load refuse containers, also known as
dumpsters. It is the intent that the successful bidder will either pick up and repair offsite or
repair onsite at the Midwest City Public Works location, 8730 Southeast

15th

Street and restore

them to new or like -new condition. If bidder choses to repair onsite, proof of liability
insurance must be submitted with bid. The area that will be designated for use to perform the

work will be made available during normal business hours ( 8: 00 AM to 5: 00 PM). Every effort
must be made to prevent or alleviate all fire risks and leave access for work traffic. An enclosed

space, accessible by overhead garage door, will be made available for the purposes of painting
the dumpsters. Inspecting this space should be done before providing any bid. Billing will be
based on actual, agreed upon, scope of repair for each container and said container will be given
an inventory control number upon completion. 

SCOPE

This specification covers steel front load refuse containers with lids made of plastic, suitable for

use with front loading compaction type refuse collection trucks. All containers shall meet or

exceed the following specifications. Equipment shall be refurbished to a " like new" condition. 

Prices shall be quoted FOB 8730 Southeast 15th Street, Midwest City, Oklahoma, 73110 by unit
price and shall reflect any applicable discounts for volume purchases or five percent change in
the cost of steel. It is the intent of the Authority for this contract to expire February 13, 2022. 
Upon agreement by bidder and the Authority, the contract may be extended annually under the
same terms and conditions. The bidder and or the Authority shall have the option of terminating
the contract by giving at least sixty (60) days notice of intent to cancel. This notice may be given
at any time during the contract period. 

DESCRIPTION

1. Four (4) cubic yard, slant front, front load containers with plastic lids. 

2. Six (6) cubic yard, low, one door, front load containers with plastic lids. 

3. Eight ( 8) cubic yard, high, front load containers, one door, with plastic lids. 

When factory -printed literature, submitted to support the bid, does not indicate compliance with
the specifications, the vendor must notify, in writing, the suggested modifications. This

information must be submitted at the bid opening as a part of the vendor' s bid. Bidder must state
make and model number of the unit being offered. Bids submitted shall concern the latest
current model equipment available. 

MATERIAL

All material shall be of standard grades, regularly used by container manufacturers for standard
commercial containers. 
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Specifications

Front Load Containers

Page 2

DESIGN

1. The containers shall be completely compatible with the container hoisting devices of the
refuse collection trucks in use by the City of Midwest City. 

2. A drain hole not less than 1- 1/ 2" in diameter nominal pipe size, fitted with a treated plug, 
shall be provided at the bottom of one end side wall of each container. 

3. Lift Pockets, Gussets, and Blunderbuss must be constructed from a minimum of 7 gauge
steel. 

4. Floor support must have three 3 inch structural channels
5. All inside seams are to be welded continuously
6. The primer thickness on the inside and outside of the container must be Oxide primer or

equivalent, measuring at least 1. 5 mils in depth. 
7. Finished exterior must be a " emsco green Enamel' and measure at least 1. 5 mils in depth. 

In addition to other requirements specified herein, requirements for metal bodies, lids and doors
shall be as follows, with plastic bodies of comparable strength: 

N IES: 1) thickness of metal shall be determined from a cleaned, bare sheet without rust, 
scale, or paint coating. ( 2) Dimension is measured from the approach side to the opposite side. 

3) All container widths must be 72 inches. 

CONSTRUCTION

Metal containers shall be constructed in accordance with the following requirements. Plastic

containers should meet factory standards for strength and durability meeting or exceeding the
following requirements. 

HOISTING ATTACHMENTS

The container shall have hoisting attachments suitably located on each end wall and designed to
accommodate the lifting forks of a two- point container hoisting device. The container shall be of
boxed sleeve construction, sleeves shall be no more than 38. 5 inches in length. All hoisting
attachments shall be designed, reinforced, braced, and welded to withstand a pull of not less than
4, 000 pounds and accommodate forks 43 inches in length. 

TOP LIDS

Unless otherwise specified, all containers shall have top lids. 
All four ( 4) yard lids shall have a positive lid hold back, allowing the lids to be locked in an open
position slightly past perpendicular and a device for preventing the lids from falling on back over
away from the open position. The four ( 4) yard lids shall be provided with a handle suitably

side Door

Capacity Length Height Thickness Side Width End

4 cubic yd. 54 inches 48 inches 10 gauge 10 gauge n/ a n/ a

6 cubic yd. 66 inches 60 inches 10 gauge 12 gauge 30 inches X 30 inches
8 cubic yd. 66 inches 80 inches 10 gauge 12 gauge 30 inches X 30 inches
N IES: 1) thickness of metal shall be determined from a cleaned, bare sheet without rust, 

scale, or paint coating. ( 2) Dimension is measured from the approach side to the opposite side. 
3) All container widths must be 72 inches. 

CONSTRUCTION

Metal containers shall be constructed in accordance with the following requirements. Plastic

containers should meet factory standards for strength and durability meeting or exceeding the
following requirements. 

HOISTING ATTACHMENTS

The container shall have hoisting attachments suitably located on each end wall and designed to
accommodate the lifting forks of a two- point container hoisting device. The container shall be of

boxed sleeve construction, sleeves shall be no more than 38. 5 inches in length. All hoisting
attachments shall be designed, reinforced, braced, and welded to withstand a pull of not less than

4, 000 pounds and accommodate forks 43 inches in length. 

TOP LIDS

Unless otherwise specified, all containers shall have top lids. 
All four ( 4) yard lids shall have a positive lid hold back, allowing the lids to be locked in an open

position slightly past perpendicular and a device for preventing the lids from falling on back over
away from the open position. The four ( 4) yard lids shall be provided with a handle suitably214



located for manually opening and closing of the lid. The lid of each container shall have a hinge
shaft of no less than one ( 1) inch outside diameter. 

Specifications

Front Load Containers

Page 3

FLOOR SKIDS

Floor skids full length three inch x four inch x three -sixteenths inch ( 3" x 4" x 3/ 16") formed

channel with both ends fully enclosed. Three ( 3) skids must be repaired or installed on any or all
four (4) yard containers, six (6) yard and eight ( 8) yard containers. 

CASTERS

Casters must be six ( 6) inches in diameter and made of non-metallic material. Two ( 2) must be

stationary and two ( 2) must swivel. 

DRAIN PLUG

Drain plug — one and one- half (1 % 2) inch threaded flange welded to side of container flush with
bottom. 

SIDE DOORS

End doors on the six ( 6) and eight ( 8) yard container shall not be less than twelve ( 12) gauge
thickness. The doors shall slide in upper and lower " C" channel tracks and be equipped with a
stop -handle of sufficient size to allow the door to be opened from inside the container and also to
act as a retainer to keep the sliding door from coming out of its guide track. 

REINFORCEMENTS

1. All refuse containers shall be fully reinforced to withstand stresses form heavy loading
and rough usage and provide rigidity to resist buckling. 

2. All lift brackets shall be reinforced with two ( 2) gussets at the top on each end and two
2) at the bottom on each end. Each gusset shall be not less than three -sixteenths ( 3/ 16) 

inch thickness and welded solid at least one ( 1) side at both its contact points. 
3. All lift brackets are to have an opening of not less than three and seven -eighths ( 3- 7/ 8) 

inches. Vertically, this dimension should not be less than nine ( 9) inches. The bottom of
the lift bracket should not be less than sixteen and one-half ( 16- 1/ 2) inches from the
ground. This is a must for the four ( 4) and six ( 6) yard containers. The eight ( 8) yard

container should not be less than twenty-six (26) inches concerning the same dimension
4. All containers shall be fitted with two ( 2) wraparound type bumper plates of no less than

one- fourth ( 1/ 4) inch thicluiess and with a bearing surface each of three ( 3) inches on the
approach wall and three ( 3) inches on the side wall. Each pad shall be of at least sixteen

16) inches in length. 
5. The front of the container shall have a boxed reinforcement running from side to side and

capped on the ends. The reinforcement shall be not less than ten ( 10) gauge thickness
and have no less than three ( 3) bends. This reinforcement shall also be used on the hinge
side of the container. 
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Specifications

Front Load Containers

Page 4

6. The six ( 6) and eight ( 8) yard containers shall have the same reinforcement at the top as
they four (4) yard containers with the exception that the side wall, to which the large lid
hinges affix, shall have a two x two x one- fourth ( 2 x 2 x !/ 4) inch structural angle full
width of the container. 

7. The six(6) and eight ( 8) yard containers shall have a one- fourth x one and one- fourth x
one and one-fourth ( 1/ 4 x 1- 1/ 4 x 1- 1/ 4) inch angle underneath the doors running form
the pickup wall to the back wall of the container. 

8. The six ( 6) and eight ( 8) yard container shall have a V -type corrugation in the pickup
wall and one in the wall opposite the pickup wall running vertically, this corrugation shall
be located in the center of the container and shall be a minimum of one and one-half (1- 
1 / 2) inches in depth. 

TREATMENT AND PAINT

Metal containers shall be cleaned of all weld splatter, smut, oil, excessive rust and given a light
washing in preparation for painting. Container should be painted inside and outside with an
industrial enamel — "emsco green" in color. 

WARNING SIGNS

A warning sign measuring four and one- half x five ( 4- 1/ 2 x 5) inches with distinctive white
letters on a red background shall be permanently affixed to the outside of the container opposite
the pickup wall. The sign shall read as follows: " WARNING STAY CLEAR AT ALL TIMES
WHEN CONTAINER IS OFF THE GROUND". " WARNING" shall be Gothic type not less
than seven -eighths ( 7/ 8) inches in height and " STAY CLEAR AT ALL TIMES WHEN
CONTAINER IS OFF GROUND" shall be in Gothic type no less than three -eights ( 3/ 8) inches
in height. 

IDENTIFICATION MARKING

Each container shall have identification markings affixed as prescribed or required by the
Midwest City Sanitation Supervisor or Commercial Route Coordinator, displaying a unique
identification number. 

WELDING

Welding of the metal container shall be done by certified welders only. Metal containers are to

be welded solid inside and waterproof up to the first opening, which may be the lid or side door. 
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Specifications

Front Load Containers

Page 5

DECRIPTION 4 YARD 6 YARD 8 YARD

Replace Floor w/3 Skid Channels I L15 IQ 15b.' s SSQ, GU

Replace Plastic Lid b, I7 a. OR ld, 

Replace Fork Pockets ( Per Pocket) 12 • by 7Z . 

Repair Fork Pockets ( Per Pocket) 16, ` 49. 

Replace Bump Plate 47", Z%,, _ 

Repair Bump Plate 0

Replace Hinge Pin & Cotter Keys o O, '-' O 

Replace Warning Sign
OdL ji' 

Replace Drain Plug N L

Replace Drain Coupling zy I

Repair Drain Coupling 3D, 3$-, ;b- 

Paint Midwest City Green 3, , 02 35. 

Replace Plastic Sliding Side Door 0,", fLS, 

Replace Casters S' ''' ec 

Repair Casters S On 5 • j

Replace Lock Bar 7-A 'V 2L

Repair Lock Bar 4, 

For any questions concerning this bid please contact Donna Akin at ( 405) 739- 1064 or Jerry
Summers at (405) 739- 1075. 

Vendor

Contact

Address
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BID AFFIDAVIT

THIS AFFIDAVIT MUST ACCOMPANY THE BID

STATE OF KLA I 11' lA
SS

COUNTY: ;) 

of lawful age, being first duly sworn, on oath says that
he/s ie is the agent authorized by the Bi der to submit the attached Bid. Affiant further states that the
Bidder has not been a party to any collu ' on among bidders in restraint of freedom ofcompetition by
agreement to bid at a fixed price or to refrain from bidding; or with any city official or employee as
to quantity, quality or price in the prospective contract, or any other terns of said prospective
contract; or in any discussions between bidders and any city official concerning exchange ofmoney
or other thing of value for special consideration in the letting of a contract. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of , 20Z,, 1. 

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: 

1s7 111 42

OFFICLtL

SEALV
DONNA POSTON

NOTARY PUBLIC OM ANOMA
WOODWARD COUNTY

COMM. NO. 680 NIG EV. i146% 

BA -1
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NON COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF D" Q A ) 

SS. 

FS TJ' l J:i

M • J , of lawful age, being first duly sworn, on
oath says that (s) he is the agent authorized  the bidder to submit the attached bid. Affiant further

states that the bidder has not been a party to any collusion among bidders in restraint of freedom
of competition by agreement to bid at a fixed price or to refrain fiom bidding; or with any City
or Municipal Authority official or employee as to quantity, quality, or price in the prospective
contract, or any other prospective contract; or in any discussions between bidders and any
City or Municipal Authority official concerning exchange of money or other things of value
for special consideration in the letting of the prospective contract. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this
e day of

2017

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: 

MAL

DONNA POSTON
NOTARY PUBLIC OKLAHOMA

WOODWARD COUNt11' 
COMM. NO. ou" 10 EV..11- 1
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BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS AFFIDAVIT

THIS AFFIDAVIT MUST ACCOMPANY THE BID

STATE OF
e a a 1Z/y ) SS

COUNTY OIT''— ) 

l , of lawful age, being first duly sworn, on oath says that (s) he is
the agent authorized by the bidd r to submit the attached bid. Affiant further states that the nature of any
partnership, joint venture or other business relationship presently in affect or which existed within one ( 1) 
year prior to the date of this statement with the architect, engineer or other party to the project is as follows: 

IN

Affiant further states that any such business relationship presently in affect or which existed within one ( 1) 
year prior to the date of this statement between any officer or director of the bidding company and any
officer or director of the architectural or engineering firm or other party to the project is as follows: 

Affiant further states that the names of all persons having any such business relationships and the positions
they hold with their respective companies or firms are as follows: 

If none of the business relationships hereinabove mentioned exist, affiant

Subscribed and sworn to before me this V_day of

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: 

oFF" WA
DONNA POSTON

NOTARY PUBLIC OiaAHOMA
WOOD- .WARD COUNry

COMM. No. O" Mi0 EW. 114 BRA
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AGREEMENT BY BIDDER

11IESE TERMS APPLY TO AND BECOME PART OP TIM TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF BID. ANY EXCEPTION MUST BL' IN WRITING. 

1. Bids must be submitted on the attached form only. Each bid must be placed in a separate envelope. Each envelope must
be completely and properly identified and sealed, showing the date of bid opening and the subject advertised. 

2. The Midwest City Municipal Authority reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive any technicalities in the
bidding, and to award each item to different bidders or all items to a single bidder. 

3. No bidder may withdraw his bid within a period of thirty (30) days after the date and hour set for the opening of bids. 
A bidder may withdraw his bid at any time prior to the time fixed for file opening of bids. 

4. All bids must be accompanied by bidder' s bond or cashiers check in the amount shown on the Invitation for Sealed Bids
form when required by the Midwest City Municipal Authority. This amount may be retained by the Midwest City
Municipal Authority as liquidated damages in the event the successful bidder ( or bidders) fails to comply with the terns of
this bid. The Secretary will return the deposits to the unsuccessful bidders after the contract has been awarded. 

5. All prices shall be quoted F.O.B. Midwest City, Oklahoma, and delivery to Midwest City Municipal Authority location
shall be without additional charges unless otherwise stated in specifications. 

6. The bidder shall attach the manufacturer' s name of (he equipment or materials to be furnished, type, model numbers, 

manufacturer' s descriptive bulletins and specifications. All guarantees and warranties must be clearly stated. This data
shall he in sufficient detail to describe accurately the equipment or material to be fiunished. Manufacturer' s specifications
in respect to the successful bidder Shall be considered as part of his contract with the Midwcst City Municipal Authority. 

7. The bidder shall show in the bid both (he unit prices and total amount, where required, of each item listed. In the event of

error or discrepancy in the mathematics, the unit prices shall prevail. 

g. Any exceptions to these items or conditions or deviations from written specifications shall be shown in writing and
attached to the bid form. 

9. In the event cash discounts are offered by the bidder, the discount date should begin with the date of invoice or the date of
receipt of all material covered by the purchase order. 

10. The bidder' s attention is directed to the fact that the purchase of certain items of equipment or material by the Midwest
City Municipal Authority is exempt from Federal .Excise Tax. In such cases the bidder shall quote prices which do not
include Federal Excise Tax. The Midwest City Municipal Authority will execute exemption certificates upon presentation
by the bidder at the time of purchase. 

it. Information to bidders and specifications are on file in the office of the Secretary and copies may be obtained from the
Municipal Building, 104 N. Midwest Blvd., Midwest City, Oklahoma. 

12. Bids must show number of days required for delivery under normal conditions. Failure to state delivery time obligates
bidder to complete delivery in fourteen ( 14) calendar days. Unrealistically short or long delivery promises may cause bid
to be disregarded. Bidder must keep Purchase Department advised at all times of status of order. Default in promised
delivery or failure to meet specifications authorizes the Midwest City Municipal Authority to purchase bid items elsewhere
and charge full increase of cost and handling to defaulting contractor. Consistent failure to meet delivery promises without
valid reason may cause removal from bid list, 

13. Bidder agrees to defend and save the Midwest City Municipal Authority harmless from and against all demands, claims, 
suits, costs expenses, damages and judgments based upon infringement of any patent relating to goods specified in this
order or the ordinary use or operation of such goods by the City or use or operation of such goods in accordance with
bidder' s direction. 

14. Bidder may bid on one or all items but bids may not be tied together unless specifically stated in specifications, 

15. Tile specifications are complete as written. No oral representation made by any agent or employee of the Municipal
Authority, or its affiliate agencies, shall be of any force or effect unless reduced to writing and submitted to all prospective
bidders at least 24 hours in advance of the bid opening. 

16. Any protest of the award of this proposed contract by a bidder on ( lie contract shall be in writing, shall specify the grounds
for the protest in specific terms and shall be received by the Municipal Authority within three ( 3) business days after tile
award of the contract by the governing body. All other provisions of these specifications shall also apply. 

17. Each bidder when affixing his signature to the " Invitation for Sealed Bids" states that fie has not, directly or indirectly, 
entered into any agreement, express or implied, with any other bidder or bidders, having for its object the controlling of the
price, or amount of such bids, the limiting of (he bids of bidders or the paying to any one any stoney for promotion
expenses. the parceling or farming out to any bidder or bidders or other persons of any part of the contract or any part of
the subject matter of the bid or the profits thereof. 

No bidder shall divulge the information in his scaled bid to any person whomsoever, except those having a partnership or
other financial interest with him in said bid, until after the sealed bids are opened. 

A violation of any one of the foregoing provisions on the part of a bidder shall be sufficient reason for file rejection of his
bid or making void any contract made by him with the City based upon such bid. 
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Public Works Administration  

Vaughn Sullivan, Director 

vsullivan@midwestcityok.org 
R. Paul Streets, Assistant Director 

                                              rstreets@midwestcityok.org 
      www.midwestcityok.org                                                8730 S.E. 15th Street, 

                                                                   Midwest City, Oklahoma  73110 
                                                              O: 405-739-1060 /Fax: 405-739-1090 

Memorandum 
 
 
TO:   Honorable Chairman and Trustees, Midwest City Municipal Authority 
 
FROM: Vaughn K. Sullivan, Public Works Director 
 
DATE:  February 14, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:  Discussion and consideration of declaring one (1) 2008 Jacobsen 522 mower, serial 

#BAA! 6808201887, one (1) 2003 Ezgo Workhorse model 1200 c-203, serial 
#1579744 from John Conrad Golf Course, and twelve (12) empty polymer totes from 
the Water Resource Recovery Facility surplus property and authorizing their disposal 
by sealed bid or auction.  

 
 
The equipment listed has been removed from service. There are no other operational applications 
available within the City. 
 

(1) One (1) 2008 Jacobsen 522 mower, serial #BAA! 6808201887 
(2) One (1) 2003 Ezgo Workhorse model 1200 c-203, serial #1579744 
(3) Twelve (12) empty polymer totes 

 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
Vaughn K. Sullivan 
Public Works Director 
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PUBLIC DISCUSSION 
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AGENDA 
 

 

 

 

             

 
224



MIDWEST CITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AUTHORITY AGENDA 

City Hall, Midwest City Council Chambers, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard 

 
February 14, 2017 - 7:02 PM 

 
A.      CALL TO ORDER. 

B.      DISCUSSION ITEMS. 

1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the staff briefing and regular 
meeting of January 24, 2017, as submitted. (Secretary - S. Hancock)   

2. Discussion and consideration of approval of 1) Landlord Estopped Certificate; 2) 
Ratification by Hospital Authority and; 3) the First Amendment to Mortgage, Security 
Agreement and Financing Statement; and 4) Lien and Possession Affidavits pertaining 
to the financing for Sooner Town Center II. (City Manager - G. Henson) 

3. Discussion and consideration of action to reallocate assets, change fund managers or 
make changes in the Statement of Investment Policy, Guidelines and Objectives. 
(Secretary - S. Hancock)  

C.      NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC DISCUSSION. 

D.      FURTHER INFORMATION. 

1. Discussion and consideration following the Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority 
Trust Board of Grantors’ recommendation for approval and authorizing distribution of 
the following grant awards totaling $450,000.00 for the 2015-16 fiscal year: $209,956 
to the MWC Chamber of Commerce for "MWC/Tinker 75th Anniversaries"; $75,000 
to Friends of the OK History Center for "MWC Historic C-47 Exhibit"; $25,000 to 
Divine Wisdom Worship Center for one van; $21,304 to Mid-Del Public Schools for a 
John Deer Gator; $20,000 to MWC Parks & Rec. for "Shuttle Golf Cars"; $18,500 to 
MWC Community Development for "Changeable Message Sign"; $16,000 to MWC 
Park & Rec. for "Mid-America Park Master Plan Proposal"; $15,000 to Rose State 
College Foundation, Inc. for "MWC Heritage Day"; $10,000 to MWC Kiwanis Club 
for "Light the Park"; $10,000 to MWC Park & Rec. for "Blue lights for Lions Park”; 
$10,000 to The Eden Clinic, Inc. for "Pregnancy and Wellness"; $9,450 to Rose State 
College for "OK Business Conference”; and $9,790 to the MWC Fire Department for 
"Equipment upgrades" from the current application, along with granting them 
permission to change the use of the $50,210 from their previous year grant funds to be 
used at their discretion per the identified items in their attached memo.  (City Manager 
- G. Henson) 

E.      ADJOURNMENT. 
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 DISCUSSION ITEMS 
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Notice of regular meetings for staff briefings for the Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority 
was filed for the calendar year with the City Clerk of Midwest City and copies of the agenda for 
this meeting were posted at City Hall and on the City of Midwest City’s website, accessible to 
the public for at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR STAFF BRIEFING FOR 

MIDWEST CITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
 

January 24, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. 
 

This regular meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Conference Room on the second 
floor of City Hall, 100 N. Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of 
Oklahoma. The following members were present: Chairman Matt Dukes; Trustees Susan Eads, 
Pat Byrne, Rick Dawkins, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and Jeff Moore; and Secretary Sara 
Hancock. Absent: none.  
 
Chairman Dukes called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Clarification of agenda items, handouts, and presentation of new or additional information 

for items on the Hospital Authority agenda for January 24, 2017. The Trustees had no 
questions regarding the individual agenda items.  
 
Chairman Dukes closed the meeting at 7:01 p.m. 
 
 
  
 _______________________________________ 
ATTEST: MATTHEW D. DUKES, II, Chairman 
 
 
____________________________________ 
SARA HANCOCK, Secretary 
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Notice of regular Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority meetings was filed for the calendar year 
with the City Clerk of Midwest City and copies of the agenda for this meeting were posted at City Hall 
and on the City of Midwest City’s website, accessible to the public for at least 24 hours in advance of 
the meeting. 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MIDWEST CITY  

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
January 24, 2017 - 7:02 p.m. 

 
This regular meeting was held in the Midwest City Council Chambers, 100 North Midwest Boulevard, 
Midwest City, County of Oklahoma, State of Oklahoma. The following members were present: 
Chairman Matt Dukes; Trustees Susan Eads, Pat Byrne, Rick Dawkins, Sean Reed, Christine Allen, and 
Jeff Moore; and Secretary Sara Hancock. Absent: none.  
 
Chairman Dukes called the meeting to order at 8:43 p.m. 
 

Consent Agenda. Motion was made by Dawkins, seconded by Byrne, to approve the Consent Agenda, 
as submitted. 
 

1. Discussion and consideration of approving the minutes of the staff briefing and regular meeting of 
January 10, 2017, as submitted. 
 

2. Discussion and consideration of authorizing the rezoning of a portion of the Midwest City Memorial 
Hospital Authority’s property located on SE 12th Street described as a tract of land lying in the 
Southwest Quarter (SW/4) of Section Four (4), Township Eleven (11) North, Range Two (2) West 
of the Indian Meridian, City of Midwest City, Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, and being more 
particularly described as follows: Commencing at the southwest corner of the said Southwest 
Quarter of Section 4; thence north along the West line of said Southwest Quarter, a distance of 1320 
feet; thence east, parallel with the South line of said Southwest Quarter, a distance of 848.5 feet to 
the point of beginning (“POB”); thence continuing east, parallel with the south line of said 
Southwest Quarter, a distance of 330 feet; thence south, parallel with the west line of said Southwest 
Quarter, a distance of 660 feet;  thence west parallel with the South line of said Southwest Quarter, a 
distance of 330 feet; thence north, parallel to the West line of said Southwest Quarter, a distance of 
660 feet to the POB; LESS AND ACCEPT the northernmost 25.00 feet, which is reserved for Road 
purposes. (also known as 5800 SE 12th ST, 5812 SE 12th ST and 5820 SE 12th ST); and authorizing 
Robert Stearns to make the zoning amendment application for the described property and to take all 
actions necessary or appropriate to amend the zoning of the described property. 

 
Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Dawkins, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Chairman Dukes. Nay: none. Absent: none. 
Motion carried. 

 
Discussion Item. 

 
1. Discussion and consideration of action to reallocate assets, change fund managers or make 

changes in the Statement of investment Policy, Guidelines and Objectives. No action was taken. 
 
New Business/Public Discussion. There was no new business or public discussion.
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Executive Session. 

 

1. Discussion and consideration of 1) entering into executive session, as allowed under 25 O.S. § 

307(C)(10), to confer on matters pertaining to economic development, including the transfer of 

property, financing or the creation of a proposal to entice a business to remain or to locate 

within the City; and 2) in open session, authorizing the general manager/administrator to take 

action based on the discussion in executive session. 

 
Motion was made by Reed, seconded by Byrne, to go into executive session. The Council went into 
executive session at 8:44 p.m.  
 
Mayor Dukes reconvened the meeting in open session at 10:22 p.m. Motion was made by Dawkins, 
seconded by Allen, to authorize the city manager to take action as appropriate based upon the discussion 
in executive session. Voting aye: Eads, Byrne, Dawkins, Reed, Allen, Moore, and Mayor Dukes. Nay: 
none. Absent: none. Motion carried. 
 
Adjournment. There being no further business, Chairman Dukes adjourned the meeting at 10:23 p.m. 
  
 
 

______________________________________ 
               MATTHEW D. DUKES, II, Chairman  
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
SARA HANCOCK, Secretary 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Honorable Chairman and Trustees 

Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority 
 
FROM: Guy Henson, General Manager/Administrator 
 
DATE: February 14, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of approval of 1) Landlord Estopped 

Certificate; 2) Ratification by Hospital Authority and; 3) the First 
Amendment to Mortgage, Security Agreement and Financing Statement; 
and 4) Lien and Possession Affidavits pertaining to the financing for 
Sooner Town Center II. 

 
 
Please see attached letter from the Sooner Investment Group requesting the above 
actions. This financing pertains to that part of the Town Center Project known as Sooner 
Town Center II (STC II), which encompasses the Dick’s Sporting Goods, Office Depot, 
and McAlister’s. This part of the Town Center Project was implemented in a manner 
similar to the balance of the project. 
 
The Hospital Authority and Sooner Town Center provided the land and leased said land 
to STC II, which in turn financed and built the buildings and leased said buildings to the 
aforementioned tenants. Net income from the lease proceeds are equally divided 
between the parties. Approval of these actions will allow STC II to no longer be required 
to provide personal guarantees on the loan, which was required by First National Bank 
on the original loan, to secure a fixed interest rate to be determined in five year 
increments, and extend the note period from 2018 to 2038. The interest rate has 
increased from 3% over LIBOR to 3.5% in excess of treasury rate. Lastly, having this 
loan in place may be beneficial when it comes time to refinance the Town Center Project 
later this calendar year.    
 
I have attached the documents referred to in the agenda item as well as the original Loan 
Agreement and First Amendment to Loan Agreement.   
 
Representatives from the Sooner Group will be available at the meetings to answer any 
questions. 
 
 

 
J. Guy Henson, AICP 
General Manager/Administrator 
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Landlord Estoppel Certificate 

 

TO: FNB Community Bank  

 

RE: Sooner Town Center II, L.L.C. 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 

The undersigned hereby states that as of the present date: 

 

1. It is a party to that certain Westside General Ground Lease dated as of June 1, 2012 (the 

"Lease") between the undersigned as Lessor and Sooner Town Center II, L.L.C., an 

Oklahoma limited liability company, as Lessee. The original term of the Lease is fifty 

(50) years commencing July 1, 2012 and expiring October 31, 2062.  

 

2. The undersigned has not sent any notice of default to Lessee under the Lease which 

default has not been cured, and to the best of the undersigned's knowledge, no default, 

nor any matter which with the passage of time would constitute a default, exists. 

 

3. The Lease is in full force and effect and has not been amended or modified by any 

written instrument between the undersigned and Lessee. 

 

4. As of the date hereof, the current Annual Lease Payment is $1.00, and Participation Rent, 

if any is due, shall be payable annually in arrears on the 15th day of each January.  As of 

the date of this Certificate, Lessee is current on the payment of the Annual Lease 

Payment, Lessee owes the undersigned $78,355.00 in Participation Rent for 2016, and 

Lessee is current on the payment of all other charges to be paid by Lessee under the 

Lease. 

 

5. Capitalized terms used in this Certificate which are not otherwise defined shall have the 

same meanings as set forth in the Lease. 

 

EXECUTED effective the 10th day of February, 2017. 

 

Very truly yours, 

  

MIDWEST CITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 

AUTHORITY 

 

By:_______________________________________ 

 Matthew D. Dukes II, Chairman 

 

 

 
 
01077627.DOC 
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Return recorded instrument to: 

Phillips Murrah P.C. 

Corporate Tower, Thirteenth Floor 

101 N. Robinson  

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102 

Attention: J. Mark Lovelace 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 FIRST AMENDMENT TO MORTGAGE,  

SECURITY AGREEMENT AND FINANCING STATEMENT 

 

A POWER OF SALE HAS BEEN GRANTED IN THIS MORTGAGE.  A POWER OF SALE 

MAY ALLOW MORTGAGEE TO TAKE THE MORTGAGED PROPERTY AND SELL IT 

WITHOUT GOING TO COURT IN A FORECLOSURE ACTION UPON DEFAULT BY 

MORTGAGOR UNDER THIS MORTGAGE.  

 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO MORTGAGE, SECURITY AGREEMENT AND 

FINANCING STATEMENT (this "Amendment") is made as of the 10th day of February, 2017, 

between MIDWEST CITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AUTHORITY, a public trust (the "Grantor"), 

and FNB COMMUNITY BANK, an Oklahoma state banking corporation, formerly First National 

Bank, Midwest City, Oklahoma (the "Lender"). 

 

 W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

WHEREAS, the Grantor has heretofore and for the purpose of securing the payment of a loan 

in the maximum principal amount of $9,136,970.00 (the "Loan") to Sooner Town Center II, L.L.C., 

an Oklahoma limited liability company (the "Borrower"), executed a certain Mortgage, Security 

Agreement and Financing Statement dated September 18, 2012 in favor of the Lender and recorded 

in Book 12034 at Page 1816 in the Records of Oklahoma County, Oklahoma (the "Mortgage"), 

which Mortgage covers the real property described on attached Exhibit "A", and the appurtenances, 

improvements and Collateral as described in the Mortgage (collectively, the "Mortgaged Premises"); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Lender has agreed to grant the Borrower's request for an extension of the 

final maturity of the Loan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Grantor and Lender agree as follows: 

 

1. The paragraph beginning "WHEREAS" on page 1 of the Mortgage is hereby deleted 

and amended and restated in its entirety as follows: 
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WHEREAS, pursuant to a Loan Agreement dated September 18, 2012 as amended by 

a First Amendment dated February 10, 2017, Sooner Town Center, L.L.C., an Oklahoma 

limited liability company (the "Borrower"), is justly indebted to the Lender in the sum of 

$8,512,235.85 with interest thereon at a variable rate of interest according to the terms of an 

Amended and Restated Promissory Note of the Borrower dated February 10, 2017 (the 

"Note"), such Note having a maturity date of February 10, 2039, and being an amendment 

and restatement of a Promissory Note dated September 18, 2012 in the original principal 

amount of $9,136,970.00. 

 

2. Except as specifically amended by this instrument, the Mortgage shall continue in full 

force and effect according to the terms and conditions therein contained and the liens thereby created 

shall continue without abatement or interruption. 

 

[signatures on following pages] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor and Lender have executed this Amendment as of the 

date first written above. 

 

"GRANTOR":     MIDWEST CITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 

AUTHORITY, a public trust 

 

 

      By:        

      Name:        

      Title:        

   

 

STATE OF OKLAHOMA  ) 

    )  SS. 

COUNTY OF     ) 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of February, 2017, by 

_________________________, as ________________________________________ of Midwest 

City Memorial Hospital Authority, a public trust.  

 

 

  

Notary Public, Commission No.:    

 

My commission expires: 

__________________ 

 [SEAL]  
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"LENDER":     FNB COMMUNITY BANK, an Oklahoma state 

banking corporation, formerly First National Bank, 

Midwest City, Oklahoma 

 

 

      By:        

      Name:        

      Title:        

   

STATE OF OKLAHOMA  ) 

    )  SS. 

COUNTY OF  OKLAHOMA  ) 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of February, 2017, by 

_________________________, as ________________________________________ of FNB 

Community Bank, an Oklahoma state banking corporation, formerly First National Bank, Midwest 

City, Oklahoma.  

 

 

  

Notary Public, Commission No.:    

 

My commission expires: 

__________________ 

 [SEAL]  
 

 
01076203.DOC 
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LIEN AFFIDAVIT AND INDEMNITY 
 

STATE OF OKLAHOMA) 
) SS: 

COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA) 
 
On this_____ day of February, 2017 before me, personally appeared Matthew D. Dukes II, Chairman of 
the Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority, a public trust, to me personally known, who being duly 
sworn on her oath, did say that, all of the persons, firms and corporations who have furnished services, 
labor or materials on or before February _______, 2017 (the Effective Date), with respect to the 
premises hereinafter described, or the improvements located thereon, have been paid in full and that 
such work, if any, has been fully completed and accepted by the Borrower. 
 
Affiant further says that, except as shown, no claims have been made to Midwest City Memorial 
Hospital Authority by, nor are any suit now pending on behalf of, any contractor, subcontractor, laborer 
or materialman, and further that no chattel mortgages or conditional bills of sale have been given or are 
now outstanding as to any materials, appliances, fixtures or furnishings placed upon or installed in the 
aforesaid premises. 
 
Affiant makes this Affidavit for the purposes of inducing FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE 
COMPANY, by and through its agent FIRST AMERICAN TITLE & TRUST COMPANY, to issue its 
Policy of Title Insurance (the Title Insurance Policy) to FNB COMMUNITY BANK pursuant to its 
Commitment No. 2176078 without exception to claims of mechanics, materialman and laborers, and in 
consideration thereof, Current Borrower does agree to indemnify and hold said title company harmless, 
except as to claims specifically listed above, of and from any and all loss, cost, damage and expense of 
every kind, including attorneys' fees, which the title company shall or may suffer or incur or become 
liable for under the provisions of the Title Insurance Policy arising from claims for labor performed 
upon or materials delivered to the aforesaid premises prior to the Effective Date. This indemnity shall 
apply to any title insurance policy now issued, or any reissue, renewal or extension thereof, or new 
policy at any time issued upon said real estate, part thereof or interest therein, arising, directly or 
indirectly, out of or on account of any such mechanics' or materialman's lien or liens or claim or claims 
or in connection with the enforcement by the title company of its rights under this agreement. 
 
The real estate and improvements referred to herein are situated on Lot One (1) in Block One (1) of 
TOWN CENTER WEST to Midwest City, Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, according to the recorded plat 
thereof. 
 
"Affiant"       "Indemnitor'' 

MIDWEST CITY MEMORIAL  
HOSPITAL AUTHORITY, a public trust 

 
 
By: __________________________     By: __________________________ 
       Matthew D. Dukes II, Mayor           Matthew D. Dukes II, Chairman 
 
Executed, subscribed and sworn to before me the day and year above written. 
 
My Commission Number and Expiration:                                   __________________________ 

       Notary Public 
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POSSESSION AFFIDAVIT 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA ) 

) SS.  
COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA ) 
 
The undersigned, being first duly sworn, on oath states: 
 

1. That the statements made herein pertain to real property and improvements thereon and legally 
described as Lot One (1) in Block One (1) of TOWN CENTER WEST to Midwest City, 
Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, according to the recorded plat thereof. 

 
2. Affiant states that Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority, a public trust, is the Owner of 

said property and warrants that it has the right to mortgage and encumber title thereto. 
 

3. Affiant states that as of this date, the only outstanding unrecorded leases affecting the Property 
are such unrecorded leases to tenants in possession, none of whom have an option to purchase or 
right of first refusal. 

 
4. Affiant states that there are no unrecorded deeds or agreements relating to the Property of which 

he has knowledge, except the loan transaction now being consummated. 
 

5. The undersigned admits that he has read and understands the foregoing and realizes the legal 
aspects of any misrepresentations and/or untrue statements made herein. 

 
 

MIDWEST CITY MEMORIAL 
HOSPITAL AUTHORITY, a public trust 

 
 

By: _____________________________               
       Matthew D. Dukes II, Chairman  

 
Executed, subscribed and sworn to before me this____ day of February, 2017. 
 
       
My Commission Number and Expiration Date:  _____________________________ 
          Notary Public 
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT 

 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT (this "First Amendment") is 

made effective as of the 10th day of February, 2017, by and between SOONER TOWN CENTER 

II, L.L.C., an Oklahoma limited liability company ("Borrower"), and FNB COMMUNITY 

BANK, an Oklahoma state banking corporation, formerly First National Bank, Midwest City, 

Oklahoma ("Lender"). 

 

 W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Borrower, certain Guarantors and Lender entered into that certain Loan 

Agreement dated September 18, 2012 (the "Original Loan Agreement"); 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Original Loan Agreement, the Lender extended a 

construction loan to the Borrower; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Borrower and Lender desire to amend the Original Loan Agreement 

pursuant to this First Amendment to extend the term of the Loan, and to modify and amend other 

terms. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein 

contained and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, the Borrower and Lender agree as follows: 

 

 1. Defined Terms.  Except as otherwise defined herein, all terms defined in the 

Schedule "A" to the Original Loan Agreement will have the same meaning in this First 

Amendment. 

 

 2. Loan Agreement Definitions.   

 

 2.1 New Definition. The following definition is hereby added to Schedule "A" 

to the Original Loan Agreement:  

 

First Amendment.  The First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated 

effective February 10, 2017. 
 

2.2 Amended Definitions.  The following definitions in Schedule "A" to the 

Original Loan Agreement are amended as follows: 

 

Dick's Lease. The lease agreement dated March 1, 2012, as amended, 

between the Borrower and Dick's for occupancy by Dick's of approximately 

50,000 square feet of the building constructed on the Site for operation of a retail 

sporting goods store. 

 

Loan.  The extension of credit having an outstanding principal amount of 

$8,512,235.85 as of the date of the First Amendment made by the Lender to the 
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Borrower pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and all extensions, renewals, 

increases, consolidations and modifications hereof. 

 

McAlister's Lease.  The lease agreement dated June 18, 2012, as amended, 

between the Borrower and McAlister's for occupancy by McAlister's of 

approximately 3,600 square feet of the building constructed on the Site for 

operation of a deli restaurant. 

 

Note.  The First Amended and Restated Promissory Note executed by the 

Borrower and delivered to the Lender to evidence the Loan in the form and 

containing the terms attached as Schedule "A" to the First Amendment, and all 

extensions, renewals and modifications thereof. 

 

Office Depot Lease. The lease agreement dated October 31, 2013, as 

amended, between the Borrower and Office Depot for occupancy by Office Depot 

of approximately 15,400 square feet of the building constructed on the Site for 

operation of a retail office supply store. 

 

2.2 Deleted Definitions.  The definitions of "Guarantors" and "Guaranty 

Agreement" in the Original Loan Agreement are hereby deleted, and all references to 

such terms in the Original Loan Agreement are hereby deleted. 

 

 3. Lending Agreement.  Sections 1.2.2 and 1.3 of the Original Loan Agreement are 

hereby deleted and replaced in their entirety by the following: 

 

1.2.2 Permanent Period.  During the Permanent Period, the Note will 

bear interest on the unpaid principal balance accrued at a fixed rate of interest 

equal to three and one-half percent (3.50%) per annum in excess of the Treasury 

Rate, adjusted on each five (5) year anniversary date of the First Amendment 

based on the Treasury Rate as of such date, calculated on the actual days elapsed 

based on a per diem charge computed over a year composed of three hundred 

sixty (360) days. The initial Treasury Rate is 1.94%, and the initial rate of interest 

payable under the Note is 5.44%.  Installments of principal and interest on the 

total amount disbursed under the Note in an amount based on a twenty-two (22) 

year amortization will be paid monthly on the tenth (10th) day of each month 

commencing March 10, 2017.  On each 5-year anniversary date of the First 

Amendment prior to maturity, the Lender shall recalculate the monthly 

installment of principal and interest, based on the interest rate as adjusted on such 

date, which shall be due on the next following installment due date through and 

continuing on each installment due date thereafter including the installment due 

date on the next 5-year anniversary date in order to maintain the original 22-year 

amortization schedule of the Note. 

1.3 Maturity.  The entire unpaid balance of principal and accrued but unpaid 

interest owing on the Note will be due and payable on February 10, 2039. 
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4. Limited Guaranties.  Section 2.6 of the Original Loan Agreement is hereby 

deleted, and the Guarantors are released from their respective Guaranty Agreements executed 

and delivered contemporaneously with the Original Loan Agreement. 

 

5. Notices.  The notice addresses in Section 10.5 of the Original Loan Agreement 

are hereby amended as follows: 

 

If to the Borrower, at: 

 

c/o Collett & Associates, LLC  

1111 Metropolitan Avenue, Suite 700 

Charlotte, North Carolina 28204-3424 

Attn:  Mr. Robert Collett 

E-mail: mail@rcollett.com 

 

With a copy to (which will not constitute notice for any purpose): 

 

Troutman Sanders LLP 

301 S. College Street, Suite 3400 

Charlotte, North Carolina 28202 

Attention: Michael F. Tomlinson, Esq. 

michael.tomlinson@troutmansanders.com 

 

  If to the Hospital Authority: 

 

  Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority 

  100 Midwest Boulevard 

  Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110 

  Attention: City Attorney 

 

  If to the Lender: 

 

  FNB Community Bank 

  P.O. Box 10600 

  Midwest City, Oklahoma 73140 (for U.S. Mail) 

  2911 S. Air Depot 

  Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110 (for personal delivery and overnight delivery) 

  Attention: Theresa Privette, Vice President 

  E-mail:  tprivette@fnbmwc.com 

 

With a copy to (which will not constitute notice for any purpose): 

 

Phillips Murrah P.C. 

Corporate Tower, Thirteenth Floor 

101 North Robinson Avenue 

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102 

Attention:  J. Mark Lovelace, Esq. 
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E-mail: jmlovelace@phillipsmurrah.com 

 

6. Conditions to First Amendment.  The obligation of the Lender to perform the 

Original Loan Agreement as amended by this First Amendment is subject to the performance of 

the following conditions precedent: 

 

6.1 Loan Documents.  This First Amendment, the Note, the First Amendment 

to the Mortgage from the Borrower in the form of attached Schedule "B", the First 

Amendment to the Mortgage from the Hospital Authority in the form of attached 

Schedule "C", a Release from the Guarantors in favor of the Lender in the form of 

attached Schedule "D", and all other documents required by the Lender shall have been 

duly executed, acknowledged (where appropriate) and delivered to the Lender, all in form 

and substance satisfactory to the Lender. 

 

6.2 Authority.  The Borrower shall have delivered to the Lender such 

resolutions and other documents reasonably required to authorize the execution, delivery 

and performance of this First Amendment and the other Loan Documents described in 

Section 6.1, all in form and substance satisfactory to the Lender. 

 

6.3 Appraisal.  The Lender shall have received a satisfactory current appraisal 

of the Site with the completed Project. 

 

6.4 Survey.  The Lender shall have received an acceptable, current as-built 

ALTA survey of Parcel 1 subject to the Ground Lease. 

 

6.5  Title Insurance.  The Lender shall have received such endorsements 

acceptable to Lender to update the effective date of the existing Title Policy to reflect the 

filing of amendments to the Mortgages pursuant to Section 6.1 and the current as-built 

survey provided pursuant to Section 6.4. 

 

6.6 Landlord Estoppel from the Hospital Authority.  The Lender shall have 

received an executed landlord estoppel executed by the Hospital Authority regarding the 

Ground Lease. 

 

 7. Post-Closing Covenants.  The Borrower shall exercise its best efforts to promptly 

obtain current tenant estoppels for the benefit of the Lender from each of Dick's, McAlister's and 

Office Depot in accordance with their respective Leases. 

 

 8. Miscellaneous. 

 

8.1 Effect of Amendment.  The Original Loan Agreement, as amended, 

modified and supplemented by this First Amendment (as amended, the "Loan 

Agreement"), shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with its covenants and 

terms and is hereby ratified, restated and reaffirmed in every respect by the Borrower and 

Lender, including any security interests granted pursuant thereto, as of the date hereof.  

The Borrower's representations and warranties contained in the Loan Agreement and 

other Loan Documents are true and correct as of the date hereof and with the same force 
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and effect.  To the extent that terms of this First Amendment are inconsistent with the 

terms of the Original Loan Agreement, this First Amendment shall control and the 

Original Loan Agreement shall be amended, modified or supplemented so as to give full 

effect to the transaction contemplated by this First Amendment. 

 

8.2 Release.   In consideration of the agreements of the Lender set forth in or 

contemplated by this First Amendment, the Borrower hereby releases and forever 

discharges the Lender and its agents, servants, employees, officers, attorneys, successors 

and assigns (collectively, the "Released Parties") from all damage, loss, claims, demands, 

liabilities, obligations, actions and causes of action whatsoever which the Borrower might 

now have or claim to have against the Released Parties, whether presently known or 

unknown, and of every nature and extent whatsoever on account of or in any way 

concerning, arising out of or founded on the Loan Documents or the Original Loan 

Agreement, including, without implied limitation, all such loss or damage of any kind 

heretofore sustained or that might arise as a consequence of the dealings among the 

parties based on a theory of "lender liability," bad faith, breach of contract, laches or 

estoppel, or any theory similar to any of the foregoing based on or resulting from any 

action or inaction of any Released Party either directly or indirectly, actively or passively, 

in connection with the Original Loan Agreement, the other Loan Documents or other 

dealings among the parties.  This release will not extend to any claim arising after the 

date of this First Amendment to the extent such claim is based on acts or omissions of 

any Released Party occurring after the date of this First Amendment except that such 

release is specifically intended by the parties to include the transactions contemplated by 

the Original Loan Agreement and this First Amendment. 

 

8.3. Expenses.  The Borrower will pay all of the reasonable fees and expenses 

of counsel employed by the Lender in connection with the negotiation and preparation of 

this First Amendment. 

 

8.4 Descriptive Headings.  The descriptive headings of the sections of this 

First Amendment are inserted for convenience only and shall not be used in the 

construction or the content of this First Amendment. 

 

8.5 Multiple Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in one or 

more counterparts, each of which shall, for all purposes of this First Amendment, be 

deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

 

(see attached signature page) 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

SOONER TOWN CENTER II, L.L.C., an Oklahoma 

limited liability company 

 

 

     By:          

      Robert C. Collett, Manager 

 

     ("Borrower") 

 

FNB COMMUNITY BANK, an Oklahoma state banking 

corporation 

 

 

     By:         

      Theresa Privette, Vice President 

 

     ("Lender") 
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RATIFICATION BY HOSPITAL TRUST 

 

 THIS ADDENDUM is executed by MIDWEST CITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 

AUTHORITY, a public trust (the "Hospital Trust"), and attached as an integral part of the 

foregoing First Amendment to Loan Agreement (the "First Amendment"), of even date, executed 

by SOONER TOWN CENTER II, L.L.C., an Oklahoma limited liability company (the 

"Borrower"), and FNB COMMUNITY BANK, an Oklahoma state banking corporation, 

formerly First National Bank, Midwest City, Oklahoma (the "Lender").  Unless otherwise 

defined herein, the words bearing initial capital letters are intended to have the meanings defined 

in Schedule "A" to the Loan Agreement as amended by the First Amendment. 
 

A G R E E M E N T S: 
 

 In consideration of the agreements by the Lender to extend the maturity date of the Loan 

to the Borrower and amend certain other terms thereof as set forth in the First Amendment, the 

benefits to be derived by the Hospital Trust therefrom and other good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Hospital Trust 

hereby represents to and agrees with the Lender as follows: 

 

 1. Consent.  The Hospital Trust has examined and hereby consents to the Borrower's 

execution and delivery of each of the First Amendment and related Loan Documents executed by 

the Borrower. 

 

 2. Amendment to Mortgage.  The Hospital Trust agrees to execute and deliver to 

Lender the First Amendment to the Mortgage from the Hospital Authority in the form of 

Schedule "C" attached to the First Amendment. 

 

   IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Hospital Trust has executed this instrument effective 

February 10, 2017. 

 

MIDWEST CITY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 

AUTHORITY, a public trust 

 

 

     By:          

     Name:        

     Title:        

     

 
01075551.DOC 

 

245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



 
 

 

 
 
 
 

J. Guy Henson 
General Manager/ 

Administrator 
 

Trustees 
Matt Dukes 
Susan Eads 
Pat Byrne 
Rick Dawkins 
Sean Reed 
Christine Allen 
Jeff Moore 

 
Board of Grantors 

Sherry Beaird 
John Cauffiel 
Marcia Conner  
Pam Dimski 
Dara McGlamery 
Joyce Jackson 
Charles McDade  
Nancy Rice  
Sheila Rose 

Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority 
100 North Midwest Boulevard 

Midwest City, Oklahoma 73110 
(405) 739-1204 FAX (405) 739-1208 TDD (405) 739-1359 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
TO: Honorable Chairman and Trustees 

Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority 
 
FROM: Sara Hancock, Secretary 
 
DATE: February 14, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration of action to reallocate assets, change 

fund managers or make changes in the Statement of Investment 
Policy, Guidelines and Objectives. 

 
 
 
 

Jim Garrels, President, Fiduciary Capital Advisors, asked staff to put this item on 
each agenda in the event the Hospital Authority’s investments need to be 
reallocated, an investment fund manager needs to be changed or changes need to 
be made to the Statement of Investment Policy on short notice. 

 
Action is at the discretion of the Authority. 
 

 
 
 
 

   __________________ 
   Sara Hancock, Secretary 
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MEMORANDUM 
 

 

TO: Honorable Chairman and Trustees  
 Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority 
 

FROM: Guy Henson, General Manager/Administrator 
 

DATE: February 14, 2017 
 

   SUBJECT: Discussion and consideration following the Midwest City Memorial 
Hospital Authority Trust Board of Grantors’ recommendation for approval 
and authorizing distribution of the following grant awards totaling 
$450,000.00 for the 2016-17 fiscal year: $209,956 to the MWC Chamber 
of Commerce for "MWC/Tinker 75th Anniversaries"; $75,000 to Friends of 
the OK History Center for "MWC Historic C-47 Exhibit"; $25,000 to 
Divine Wisdom Worship Center for one van; $21,304 to Mid-Del Public 
Schools for a John Deer Gator; $20,000 to MWC Parks & Rec. for "Shuttle 
Golf Cars"; $18,500 to MWC Community Development for "Changeable 
Message Sign"; $16,000 to MWC Park & Rec. for "Mid-America Park 
Master Plan Proposal"; $15,000 to Rose State College Foundation, Inc. for 
"MWC Heritage Day"; $10,000 to MWC Kiwanis Club for "Light the 
Park"; $10,000 to MWC Park & Rec. for "Blue lights for Lions Park”; 
$10,000 to The Eden Clinic, Inc. for "Pregnancy and Wellness"; $9,450 to 
Rose State College for "OK Business Conference”; and $9,790 to the 
MWC Fire Department for "Equipment upgrades" from the current 
application, along with granting them permission to change the use of the 
$50,210 from their previous year grant funds to be used at their discretion 
per the identified items in their attached memo. 

 

 
The Trust Board of Grantors (the Board) met on January 26, 2017 to consider funding 
for the grant applications submitted for the 2016-17 Midwest City Memorial Hospital 
Authority (the Authority) grant year with a funding allocation total of $450,000.00. The 
Authority received 19 eligible grant applications totaling $2,619,076.39 in requests. 
The Board is recommending that thirteen grants totaling $450,000.00 be funded in 
2016-17. Last year, the Authority funded eleven grants for a total of $425,000.00. 
 
Attached you will find a spreadsheet of the nineteen eligible 2016-17 grant applicants. 
The attachment includes the first page of each grant application, the Board’s ranking 
scores, and the summary of the thirteen recommended grants. Copies of the full grant 
applications are available in the City Manager’s office. I’ve also included the memo 
from the Fire Department to the Board of Grantors asking for re-use of awarded grant 
funds. 

 
J. Guy Henson, AICP 
General Manager/Administrator 335
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Applicant Name Grant Title Project summary/Purpose/Purchase
Desired 

Amount
Contact Phone Address

Mid-Del Public Schools John Deere Gator/Storage 
Shed

Utility vehicle for MWC High School and storage 
shed to be used for multiple uses. 

$24,000.00 Ryan Baker 739-1741      
x5168 

213 Elm Dr., MWC, OK 
73110

The Eden Clinic, Inc Pregnancy and Wellness Provide free medical and educational services to teens 
and young people.

$10,000.00 Linda Cozadd 579-4673 1315A Gateway Plaza, 
MWC, OK 73110

RSVP of Central OK, Inc. RSVP of Central OK, Inc. Educational tools: Banner, brochures and newsletters 
for non-driving elderly.

$5,900.00 Beth Patterson 605-3110 7401 NE 23rd St., OKC, 
OK 73140

MWC Park and Rec Blue Lights for Lions Park Purchase of 3 emergency blue phones. $19,200.00 Vaughn Sullivan 739-1060 8730 SE 15th St., MWC, 
OK 73110

Team Tinker Home Away 
from Home

Team Tinker Home Away 
from Home

Team Tinker Home Away from Home expenses. $47,094.76 Pam Kloiber 503-5041 PO Box 45522, Tinker 
AFB, OK 73145

MWC Park and Rec Shuttle Golf Cars Six Passenger Shuttle Style Golf Cars for special 
events etc.

$20,000.00 Vaughn Sullivan 739-1060 8730 SE 15th St., MWC, 
OK 73110

MWC Park and Rec Mid-America Park Master 
Plan Proposal

Create a Master Plan for existing park and the newly 
acquired 30-acre parcel for a 49-acre park.

$16,000.00 Vaughn Sullivan 739-1060 8730 SE 15th St., MWC, 
OK 73110

MWC Kiwanis Club Light the Park Install 3 Blue Light call boxes at Kiwanis Park. $15,000.00 Johnny Thompson 739-1661 
1201x

1609 Felix Place, MWC, 
OK 73110

MWC Community 
Development

Changeable Message Sign 
(trailer)

To purchase a changeable message sign (trailer). $18,500.00 Billy Harless 739-1228 100 N. Midwest Blvd., 
MWC, OK 73110

Carl Albert HS Band 
Booster, Inc.

CAHS Band Enhancement Purchase a trailer and instruments. $44,189.00 Richard Stephens 732-2323 9404 Orchard Blvd., 
MWC, OK 73130

MWC High School 
Museum, Inc./Vietnam 
Memorial Project Com.

MWC HS Vietnam 
Memorial 

Build a Vietnam Memorial to honor former students. $179,860.88 Bob Osmond 642-0277 2101 Pearson Dr., 
MWC, OK 73110

Friends of the Oklahoma 
History Center

MWC Historic C-47 Exhibit To preserve and restore historic WWII C-47 
manufactured at the Douglas Plant in 1944 for 
exhibit.

$75,000.00 Dan Provo 522-5380 800 Nazih Zuhdi Dr., 
OKC, OK 73105

Rose State College OK Business Conference To provide scholarships to MWC small businesses 
and 2 MWC celebrities stipends. 

$9,450.00 Stan Greil 733-7488 6420 S.E. 15th St., 
MWC, OK 73110

Divine Wisdom Worship 
Center

Van Purchase Purchase 2 vans for after school program. $50,000.00 Theodis Manning 
Sr.

625-4305 8320 N.E. 10th, MWC 
OK 73110

MWC Chamber of 
Commerce

MWC/Tinker 75th 
Anniversaries

Purchase/Payment for Gala, 75th Anniversary 
Documentary, Sculpture, Concert, Commemorative 
coins. 

$219,250.00 Bonnie Cheatwood 733-3801 5905 Prosper Blvd., 
MWC, OK 73110

MWC Fire Dept. Equipment upgrades Purchase various items for enhanced job 
performance.

$32,200.00 David Richardson 739-1342 8201 E. Reno, MWC, 
OK 73110

Rose State College 
Foundation, Inc.

MWC Heritage Day with 
RSC Foundation

To purchase displays and provide demos to preserve 
the history of MWC and Tinker

$15,000.00 Cindy Mikeman 736-0315 6420 S.E. 15th St., 
MWC, OK 73110

Hope for Hope Foundation Van Purchase/Equipment To purchase a van and various equipment/uniforms. $68,431.75 Beverly Coate 371-1115 1608 McGregor Dr., 
MWC, OK 73130

Crutcho Community 
Foundation

Crutcho Land 
Purchase/Track

To purchase land for a new school and build a 
running track. 

$1,750,000.00 Antonia Jennings 606-5949 2401 N. Air Depot, 
OKC, OK 73141

Total Grant Application Requests: $2,619,076.39

Disqualified Applications Reason

Carl Albert Homerun Club Incomplete application. Building an awning over blearchers and new fence. $200,000.00 Dusty Alexander 669-8361 4729 Newport Dr., Del 
City, OK 73115

Literacy Link, Inc. Requested this previously. Upgrade computer software - Rosetta Stone/Eng. 
Curriculum and reading materials. 

$1,000.00 John Amicon 732-2737 8143 East Reno, MWC, 
OK 73110
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2016-17 MWC MHA Grant Applicants - Board of Grantors Ranking Scores (Averages from highest or most fundable to lowest) $450,000 Allotment

Applicant Desired Purchase
Amount 

Requested 
#1 #2 #3 #4 #5 #6 #7 #8 #9

Total 

Scores

Average 

Scores

BOG Evaluation Comments                                                                                                                                                                      

(Red = Question, Blue = Answers, Black = other comments)

Final BOG $ 

Proposed after                      

01-26-17 meeting

MWC Community Development Changeable Message Sign (trailer) $18,500.00 100 100 80 97 95 100 100 75 80 827 92 Full amount. / Helpful to our smooth-running traffic. 
18,500.00

MWC Fire Dept. Equipment upgrades $32,200.00 100 100 30 99 100 100 100 50 100 779 87 Keeping our firemen safe is essential. / 100% for parial funding of $10,400 - yes to the bullet proof vests and 
badges…other items should be in budget. / Of the items requested, two standout, the bullet proof vest and the Home 
Safety mailers = $8,600. / Fully fund all except badges at 70%. 

9,790.00

MWC Park and Rec Mid-America Park Master Plan 
Proposal

$16,000.00 100 75 65 70 93 100 100 100 70 773 86 Partial fund for $8000. / Need a plan to best utilize the gift of donated land. / This park and extension of our trial 
system is very nice. A question I have is does the Police Dept. think safety could be an issue in this crime-ridden part 
of town? No, per Chief / Great improvement to family life on the North side of MWC. / Unclear project outcome 
evaluation process. 

16,000.00

MWC Kiwanis Club Light the Park $15,000.00 100 100 42 94 90 100 40 90 90 746 83 Partial fund for $7500. / Visitors to the park will enjoy a sense of security. / Should be combined with request #4 and 
perhaps purchased together for savings? / Children/young teens use this park. 10,000.00

RSVP of Central OK, Inc. Educational tools: Banner, 
brochures and newsletters for non-
driving elderly

$5,900.00 100 100 63 90 96 0 100 90 90 729 81 Full amount. / Much needed for the aging population of MWC. / Second request for consumables (funded in 2014-15) - 
This is worthwhile; however, it is reocurring expenses. / This is of great value to our elderly. 0.00

MWC Parks & Rec. Blue lights for Lion's Park $19,200.00 100 75 50 95 90 100 0 90 100 700 78 Partial fund for $9600. / Good for entire community - provide security. / Worthwhile use of our funds, which are one-
time and benefit MWC citizens. / Wonder about the outcome of the blue lights at Regional? Per the EOC and Police, 

the Blue Lights at Regional are worth the expense and occasional miscall as they increase public safety. 
10,000.00

Rose State College Foundation, Inc. MWC Heritage Day with RSC 
Foundation

$15,000.00 50 100 49 92 98 100 40 80 90 699 78 I recommend we fund $7500. / Community needs more things like this! / Seems like a fun project for MWC's citizens. 
/ This would duplicate parts of Grant #16, if is is approved. 15,000.00

Rose State College OK Business Conference $9,450.00 25 75 60 98 94 80 70 100 90 692 77 Full amount. / Business helps the City, which helps citizens. / This request has merit, but aren't local business owners 
already aware of the topics to be discussed at this conference? 9,450.00

Team Tinker Home Away from Home Mentorship and activities for TAFB $47,094.76 0 100 40 85 95 100 100 75 85 680 76 No benefit to MWC residents. / Can this happen without the assistance? Yes, but funds would broaden the scope of 

services. Partial fund for $28,000. / Very commendable program. / Worthwhile, but we should not fund a salary -even 
for a year. 100% for project #2 $28,500, plus for computer and printer = $30,500. / I believe this project helps 
strengthen our relationship with Tinker. / Parial fund. / Ongoing funding for salary is uncertain - future funding 
resources unknown.

0.00

The Eden Clinic, Inc. Pregnancy and Wellness $10,000.00 100 75 52 3 80 100 100 70 90 670 74 Partial fund for $5000. / While applauding the cause, this does not benefit the entire community. / Sadly, this type of 
service is all-too-needed in our City. Supplies - once only. 10,000.00

Friends of the Oklahoma History Center MWC Historic C-47 Exhibit $75,000.00 75 100 70 60 94 80 100 80 0 659 73 Full amount. / This request meets the critiera, but is very expensive. / Preserving MWC/Tinker History. / Plan of 
operation, objectives, and budget are all somewhat unclear - worthy project, but possible private funding needed for 
completion. 

75,000.00

MWC Chamber of Commerce MWC/Tinker 75th Anniversaries $219,250.00 75 100 55 50 98 100 100 0 49 627 70 Maybe fund $55,000 for Documentary and coins. / Important, but a big chunk of our funds. / 100% for partial funding 
only of $30,000 - The scupture should be displayed at City Hall where more people can see it. / Recusing myself - 
serve on 75th Anniversary Committee. / Plan of Operation seems only partially reasonable - objectives only somewhat 
clear - Pride is not a measurable evaluation for a project outcome - A=90%; B=75%; C=40%; D=90%; E=0%.   

209,956.00
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2016-17 MWC MHA Grant Applicants - Board of Grantors Ranking Scores (Averages from highest or most fundable to lowest) $450,000 Allotment

Applicant Desired Purchase
Amount 

Requested 
#1 #2 #3 #4 #5 #6 #7 #8 #9

Total 

Scores

Average 

Scores

BOG Evaluation Comments                                                                                                                                                                      

(Red = Question, Blue = Answers, Black = other comments)

Final BOG $ 

Proposed after                      

01-26-17 meeting

MWC Parks & Rec. Shuttle Golf Cars for Special Events 
Etc. 

$20,000.00 100 80 52 75 92 0 90 60 70 619 69 Partial fund for $10,000. / Helpful for entire community - useful for events. / Worthwhile; however, our funds are 
limited. / Funding for ome cart in full, but both 70%. 20,000.00

Mid-Del Public Schools John Deere Gator/Storage Shed $24,000.00 25 100 0 80 95 100 50 60 100 610 68 It's important to help our schools during their budget crunch. / Very well done application. Objectives are clearly 
stated. / Replacement = ongoing? Fund actual cost. 21,304.00

Carl Albert HS Band Booster, Inc. CAHS Band Enhancement $44,189.00 0 100 0 4 95 100 80 60 80 519 58 Small number will benefit. / This is limiting as to who it helps - not the community at large. / I like the application; if 
needed, we could fund just the trailers and trailer enhancements. / Does C.A. own a Semi-truck to pull that trailer? 
They do not, but plan to rent or borrow one (as other groups do) and they do have a volunteer driver with a 

Class A license to help them. Isn't replacing tires maintenance expenses? Yes to a partial. / Partial funding of 80% for 
part two and three, but 95% funding for part one.

0.00

Divine Wisdom Worship Center Van Purchase $50,000.00 0 100 5 65 90 100 0 10 80 450 50 Great program helping at-risk children - these type of programs are essential in helping these students. / 100% for one 
truck ($25,000) - Worthwhile program for at-risk youths. / Statement of need, future funding, budget needs are 
unclear.

25,000.00

Hope for Hope Foundation Van/Equipment Purchase $68,431.75 0 100 0 96 85 0 50 0 0 331 37 Does Hope for Hope have facilities to house the vans? No, per Ms. Coate / Much needed. / We must help our at-risk 
children for our community to grow. / Although this is a whorthwhile project, I would consider partial funding if this 
Foundation was already up and running. / Unclear if this organization is up and running - objectives are worthwhile, 
but not realistic - how the budget needs will be met are unclear (bake sales, donations are mentioned) - organization 
does not appear to exist.

0.00

MWC High School Museum, Inc./Vietnam 
Memorial Project Com.

MWC HS Vietnam Memorial $179,860.88 25 75 0 15 95 0 0 20 50 280 31 Although very worthwhile, our City has a Veterians Memorial honoring all our veterans. / This project is too narrow in 
scope. It has limited impact for the City as a whole. / Plan of operation only somewhat clear - only 22 veterans are 
mention (too small for large community) - Future funding unclear, will maintance be required of Mid-Del Schools? 
Routine maintenance such as landscaping and light bulbs they will continue to take care of as they do now for 

the museum. The Committee will handle any electronic failure for the new computer. - I would like to see a 
memorial building in a more central MWC location to honor all from MWC, but we already have a veterans memorial 
at Regional Park so why not add to that? 

0.00

Crutcho Community Foundation Land/Track Purchase $1,750,000.00 0 80 0 10 93 0 0 0 0 183 20 Too expensive. / Future funding resources needs work. / Not sure what we could give them would help much. / Good 
cause; I'd rather fund more grants than give all funds to this. Perhaps, parital funding. / I love the running track. We 
just don't have the available funds. / This grant seems incomplete - rather vauge. / Plan of operation, statement of need, 
objectives, outcome evaluation, future funding, and budget are all unclear - This is very unrealistic - smaller walking 
path is more feasible - new school will be at different location - waste of $ for walking path.

0.00

$450,000.00$2,619,076.39
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM AWARD AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

MWC Police Protective Cooling Vests for 2 K-9s $1,175.94 $1,175.94 $0.00
MWC Police Training Simulator $146,101.90 $146,102.00 $0.00
MWC Economic Development Heritage Park Mall Redev. Feasibility Study $27,500.00 $27,500.00

Mid-Del Schools Foundation, Inc. Subscribe to Ready to Learn/First Book $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $0.00
MWC Community Development Innovation District Plan $62,500.00 $62,500.00

MWC Tree Board 2015 Parklawn Beautification Project $38,000.00 $38,000.00

MWC Tree Board 2015 Hudiburg Dr. Island Irrigation Project $28,300.00 $28,300.00

MWC Fire Fire wish list for equipment $100,000.00 $100,000.00

Rose State College Amphitheater Modernization $8,495.00 $8,495.00

Mid-Del Food Pantry, Inc. Dry Storage Building $4,000.00 $4,000.00

MWC Parks & Recreation Festival Inflatables Project $1,927.16 $1,927.16 $0.00 This was not enough money for the purchase. 
Total Award Amount $425,000.00

Sub-Totals $154,277.94 $0.00 268,795.00

Current year funding approved by Council $425,000.00

Total FY 13-14 Grant Expenditures 154,277.94

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account 0.00

Total FY 13-14 Grant Monies Remaining 270,722.06

Updated 05/20/16 JD Totaling 425,000.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2015-16
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

MWC Police - (Capt. Jonathon Goforth) Wearable Video Camera System
$61,000.00 $61,000.00

On-going do to law passed beginning of Nov. Update: We 
are going out to bid again for the Body Cams and 
hopefully will be on the February 23rd Council Agenda. 

Rose State College (Cindy Mikeman) Atkinson Heritage Center Revitalization Project II $47,581.00 $47,581.00 $0.00
MWC Grants Management (Teri Craft) Midwest City Boys and Girls Club Pilot Program $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $0.00
MWC Public Relations (Kay Hunt) Stories of Christmas $91,000.00 $91,000.00 $0.00 On-going
MWC Fire (Jarett Metheny/David Richardson) Community Risk Reduction Partnership (CRRP) $27,848.26 $27,738.13 $110.13 Left a voice mail on 11-2-15
Mid-Del Public Schools (Pam Deering) Sprigeo - A Safety Initiative $16,794.60 $16,794.60 $0.00 Sent an email on 11-2-15
MWC Tree Board (Vaughn Sullivan) 29th & I-40 Island Beautification $14,800.00 $14,963.78 $0.00
MWC Parks and Recreation (Vaughn Sullivan) Emergency Blue Phone Project $38,776.14 $36,638.98 $2,137.16 $0.00
RSVP of Central OK Inc. (Beth Patterson) RSVP Provide-A-Ride Medical Trans. $1,900.00 $1,900.00 $0.00
MWC Tree Board (Vaughn Sullivan) Midwest Blvd Street Beautification $25,300.00 $20,463.21 $4,836.79

Total Award Amount $400,000.00

Sub-Totals $332,079.70 $2,137.16 $65,946.92

Current year funding approved by Council $400,000.00

Total FY 13-14 Grant Expenditures $332,079.70

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $2,137.16

Total FY 13-14 Grant Monies Remaining $65,783.14

Updated 11/03/15 - JD Totaling $400,000.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2014-15
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

City of Midwest City/Fire Dept Fire Command Training Center $32,000.00 $32,000.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Golf Course First Tee National Program $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00

City of Midwest City/311 App City Of MWC Mobile 311 App $20,000.00 $19,924.00 $76.00 $0.00

Kay Hunt is including this app in a "Stay 
Connected" marketing campaign and will use 
the remaining $76 as part of the ad campaign. 
Reminder email sent 11-2-15.  

Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Town Center Electronic Event Billboard $80,584.87 $41,188.21 $39,396.66

1st half of bill paid on 9/29/16 and 2nd half to 
be paid upon completion. Due to construction 
on the site of the Billboard (29th & Air Depot) 
this grant is extended

MWC Parks and Rec Dept Mobile Stage $155,000.00 $155,000.00 $0.00
$5060.00 authorized for transfer to cover costs. 
Total spent $160,000.00 

Rose State College - Atkinson Atkinson Heritage Center Project - landscaping $52,415.13 $52,415.13
Total Award Amount $350,000.00

Sub-Totals $310,527.34 $76.00 $39,396.66

Current year funding approved by Council $350,000.00

Total FY 13-14 Grant Expenditures $310,527.34

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $76.00

Total FY 13-14 Grant Monies Remaining $39,396.66

Revised 11/03/15 - JD Totaling $350,000.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2013-14
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

City of Midwest City/Fire Dept Firefighter safety & health equipment $18,755.00 $18,755.00 $0.00

Letter requesting receipts and outcome report sent on 
4-8-14,  Email request for receipts and outcome 
reports sent on 6-10-14

City of Midwest City/Golf Course Replace fence south side golf course $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00
A 6-month extension approved on 3-7-14, Email 
request for expenditures sent 6-10-14 

City of Midwest City/Grants Mgmt Original mile median improvement project $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00
A 6-month extension approved on 2-5-14, a 6-month 
extension approved 11-24-14

City of Midwest City/Police Dept Covered parking specialty equipment & vehicles $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $0.00 Outcome Report and expenditures submitted
Midwest City Rotary Club Erection of Veterans' Memorial - 2 grant year total $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $0.00 Outcome Report and expenditures submitted
Midwest City Tree Board SE 15th Street Beautification Project $35,000.00 $32,064.20 $2,935.80 $0.00 A 6-month extension approved on 3-7-14 

Mid-Del City Public Schools Foundation Bot Ball educational Robotics $25,000.00 $22,923.38 $2,076.62

Budget modification approved on 12-2-13, Letter 
requesting receipts and outcome report sent on 4-8-
14, Email request for receipts and outcome reports 
sent on 6-10-14, Letter to be sent 11-26-2014 

Regional Food Bank of OK Expansion of MWC childhood hunger programs $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00
Expenditures submitted, Email request for Outcome 
report sent 6-5-14

YMCA of Greater OKC Purchase & install addtl. playground equipment MWC $22,245.00 $22,200.00 $45.00 $0.00

Outcome Report and expenditures submitted, $45.00 
owed back to the Trust, Email request for the $45.00 
sent on 6-5-14, Letter to be sent 11-26-14; money 
returned 11-5-15

Total Award Amount $300,000.00

Sub-Totals $294,942.58 $5,057.42 $0.00

Current year funding approved by Council $300,000.00

Total FY 12-13 Grant Expenditures $294,942.58

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $5,057.42

Total FY 12-13 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Updated 11/03/15 JD Totaling $300,000.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2012-13
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

City of Midwest City Green Machine $20,000.00 $18,468.38 $1,531.62 $0.00 money returned to Finance / Extension through 8/1/13
City of Midwest City/Golf Course Replace fence $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 Recipient pd overage $32,990.75
City of Midwest City/Police Dept. Segway $8,025.00 $7,533.96 $491.04 $0.00 Recipient returned $491.04 to Finance 11/6/12
City of Midwest City/Police Dept. Off-road UTV & Trailer $12,300.00 $12,299.63 $0.37 $0.00 Recipient returned .37 to Finance 11/6/12
Healing Hearts Health Clinic Medical & Office Equipment $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 Recipient pd overage $58.82
Kiwani's Club of MWC 2011 Concrete Kiwanis's Park Trails $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $0.00 Recipient pd overage $2,248.64
Literacy Link Adult Literacy Software $2,941.35 $2,899.30 $42.05 $0.00 Recipient returned $42.05 to Finance 11/8/12
Metropolitan Library System Library Garden Restoration $25,000.00 $19,970.92 $5,029.08 $0.00 Recipient returned $5,029.08 to Finance 2/14/13
Midwest City Rotary Club Veteran's Memorial project $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 Extension through 7/21/13
Rose State College RSC Pilot Program (6-12 grades) $60,500.00 $60,500.00 $0.00 Extension through 9/14/13
YMCA Greater OKC MWC YMCA Community playground $29,577.65 $29,577.65 $0.00 Recipient pd overage $422.35

Total Award Amount $380,344.00

Sub-Totals $373,249.84 $7,094.16 $0.00

Current year funding approved by Council $380,344.00

Total FY 11-12 Grant Expenditures $373,249.84

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $7,094.16

Total FY 11-12 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Updated 11/03/15 JD Totaling $380,344.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2011-12
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

City of Midwest City - Police Department Replace Irreparable Speed Sign Trailer $16,800.00 $16,800.00 $0.00
Mid-Del Food Pantry Freezer & Shelving Upgrade Project $21,700.00 $21,700.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,318.44
Mid-Del Group Homes, Inc. AED's Group Homes & Workshop $2,800.00 $2,800.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $662.54
Mid-Del Group Homes, Inc. Mini-bus w/wheelchair accessibility $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $791.50
Mid-Del Schools Random Student Drug Testing (lab expenses only) $25,357.00 $25,357.00 $0.00
Mid-Del Schools - Carl Albert Middle School Playaways encourage reading (Library equipment) $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $7.83
Midwest City Tree Board Free container grown trees Arbor Day $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00
Oklahoma Honor Flights Fund 3 flights @ 1/3 increments (as trips occur) $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $192,702.23

Total Award Amount $169,657.00

Sub-Totals $169,657.00 $0.00 $0.00

Carryover to FY 2011-12 $80,343

Current year funding approved by Council $250,000.00

Total FY 10-11 Grant Expenditures $169,657.00

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $0.00

Total FY 10-11 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Updated 11/03/15 JD Totaling $169,657.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2010-11
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

City of Midwest City - Community Development Dept. North Oaks Redevelopment Plan $160,000.00 $160,000.00 $0.00 Recipient pd overage $61,558.62
City of Midwest City - Community Development Dept. Soldier Creek Pedestrian Bridge $47,943.46 $47,943.46 $0.00 Recipient pd overage $2,000
City of Midwest City - Fire Department Low Speed Rescue/Apparatus $24,045.00 $24,045.00 $0.00 Recipient pd overage $415.35
City of Midwest City - Grants Management Dept. Original Mile Enhancement Study $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 Recipient pd overage $21,341.65
City of Midwest City - Police Dept. Automatic License Plate Recognition $20,880.00 $20,109.00 $771.00 $0.00 Recipient returned $880.00 to Finance
Mid-Del Schools/Cleveland Bailey Elementary Walking Track $18,105.89 $18,105.89 $0.00
Mid-Del Schools/Country Estates Elementary, PTA Community Fitness Track $19,394.65 $19,394.65 $0.00 Recipient pd overage $56.30
Douglas Blvd. United Methodist Church Feed His People $33,800.00 $33,800.00 $0.00 Recipient pd overage $4,578.43
Mid-Del Farmers' Market Association Equipment & Promotional Materials $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 Recipient pd overage $14.83

Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Seed $ Charles J. Johnson Youth Dev Ctr $41,157.00 $41,157.00 $0.00
Extension through 3/10/13, a 6 month extension 
approved on 11-24-14

Total Award Amount $415,326.00

Sub-Totals $414,555.00 $771.00 $0.00

Carryover from 2008-19 $90,261.57

Current year funding approved by Council $330,000.00

Total FY 09-10 Grant Expenditures $414,555.00

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $771.00

Total FY 09-10 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00
Updated 11/03/15 JD Totaling $415,326.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2009-10
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

Choctaw-Nicoma Park Public Schools Drug Awareness/Drug Testing $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Community Development Department Public Art $20,000.00 $17,374.66 $2,625.34 $0.00 Recipient returned $2,625.34 to Acctg 1/18/11
City of Midwest City/Street Department City Wide Reforestation $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $2,684.44
Defenders of Dreams Seek professional assistance to develop Master Plan $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00
Mid-Del Group Homes, Inc. Computers $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,001.92
Mid-Del Public Schools Foundation S.M.I.L.E.  $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,666.56
Mid-Del Schools/Ridgecrest Elementary Walking Track $28,196.96 $28,196.96 $0.00
Mid-Del Schools/Traub Elementary Walking Track $16,107.47 $16,107.47 $0.00
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Capital Building Project $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $16.26
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Exhibition Display & Equipment Project $16,869.00 $16,869.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,899.90
Rose State College Continuing Education & Community Services $43,565.00 $37,135.05 $6,429.95 $0.00 Recipient returned $6,429.95 to Acctg 3/8/10
Sustainable East Oklahoma County (OSN) Mid-Del Farmer's Market Start-up $11,000.00 $11,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $248.90

Total Award Amount $409,738.43

Sub-Totals $390,683.14 $19,055.29 $0.00

Carryover to FY 2009-10 $90,261.57

Current year funding approved by Council $500,000.00

Total FY 08-09 Grant Expenditures $390,683.14

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $19,055.29

Total FY 08-09 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Updated 11-03-15 JD Totaling $409,738.43

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2008-09
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THERE WERE NO GRANT MONIES AWARDED FOR THIS GRANT YEAR 2007-08
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

City of Midwest City Nursing student housing stipend $36,000.00 $26,062.78 $9,937.22 $0.00 Recipient returned $9,937.22 to Finance 1/12
City of Midwest City Oklahoma Centennial Street Clock $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $10,321.36
Eastern Oklahoma County Tourism Council Star Spangled Salute $85,884.26 $85,884.26 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $5,685.94
Literacy Link Health Literacy Initiative $1,510.00 $1,507.02 $2.98 $0.00 Recipient returned $2.98 to Finance 6/09
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Phase I - Emergency Children's Shelter $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $2,125.77
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce 2007 Youth Excel Leadership Program $5,000.00 $4,422.05 $577.95 $0.00 Recipient returned $577.95 to Finance 11/08
Midwest City Martin Luther King Jr. Prayer 
Breakfast Comm, Inc. Prayer Breakfast $6,000.00 6,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $3,438.00
Project Concern Project Concern $20,605.74 $20,605.74 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $124.06
Studio Mid-Del, Inc. Construction to complete Community Arts Center $250,000.00 $250,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,776.72
Tinker POW/MIA Committee Construction Community POW/MIA Memorial $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00

Total Award Amount $500,000.00

Sub-Totals $489,481.85 $10,518.15 $0.00

Total FY 06-07 Grant Expenditures $489,481.85

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $10,518.15

Total FY 06-07 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Revised 1/24/12 Totaling $500,000.00  

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2006-07
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

City of Midwest City/Animal Welfare Veterinarian Assistance Program $12,000.00 $11,970.00 $30.00 $0.00 Recipient returned $30.00 to Acctg.
City of Midwest City/Animal Welfare Illuminated Signs $5,000.00 $4,828.00 $172.00 $0.00 Recipient returned $172.00 to Acctg.
City of Midwest City/Animal Welfare Roof for Facility $46,500.00 $35,480.63 $11,019.37 $0.00 Recipient returned $11,019.37 to Acctg. 
City of Midwest City/Com.Devel. Dept. Consulting Services Development of Rail & Trail Master Plan $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Com.Devel. Dept. Review & Update City's Subdivision Regulations $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $10,560.36
City of Midwest City/Convention & Visitors Bureau Sponsorship Assistance $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,500.85
City of Midwest City/Emergency Management CERT Training & Response Supplies $5,000.00 5,000.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Fire Department Fire Hydrant Locator Reflectors $6,500.00 $6,380.00 $120.00 $0.00 Recipient returned $120.00 to Acctg.
City of Midwest City/Golf (John Conrad) Complete Concrete Curbs $27,500.00 $27,500.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Grants Management Dept. MWC Juvenile Modification Camp $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Parks & Rec Department Electronic Message Sign - City Hall Complex $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $9,150.00 
City of Midwest City/Police Department Taser Conduct Energy Weapons, Simulator Suite & Taser Cartridges $19,095.50 $19,084.28 $11.22 $0.00 Recipient returned $11.22 to Acctg.
City of Midwest City/Police Department Digital Video Recorder & Cameras (Detective Division) $6,821.49 $6,821.49 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,287.14
City of Midwest City/Police Department Forensic Lab, CSI Vehicle $28,462.00 $28,462.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,673.00
City of Midwest City/Street Department Landscape & Irrigate Air Depot Blvd. from SE 15th to SE 29th $25,000.00 $24,997.15 $2.85 $0.00 Recipient returned $2.85 back to Acctg.
Eastern Oklahoma County Tourism Council Star Spangled Salute Celebration $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $0.00
Heartline, Inc. Central Oklahoma 2-1-1 Project Start-up Costs $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $227.29
Holiday Lights Spectacular, Inc. Upgrade Electric Infrastructure & Refurbish Displays $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $244.67
Literacy Link Educational Materials for Adult non-readers $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $15.60
Mid-Del Group Homes, Inc. Delivery Truck $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $3,400.00
Mid-Del Public Schools Foundation S.H.A.R.P. (Sequoyah books Help Accelerate Reading Progress) $1,840.00 $1,501.68 $338.32 $0.00 Recipient returned $338.32 to Acctg. 
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Play Therapy Room $4,425.75 $4,425.75 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $458.72
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Youth Excel $5,000.00 $4,958.62 $41.38 $0.00 Recipient returned $41.38 to Acctg.
Midwest City MLK Jr. Prayer Breakfast Comm. Annual Prayer Breakfast $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $2,664.86
Midwest City Rotary Club #5750 Rotary Pavilion (Regional Park) Water Fountain $11,000.00 $10,942.71 $57.29 $0.00 Recipient returned $57.29 to Acctg.
Midwest City Tree Board Landscape & Irrigate Phase 2 Reno Ave. $46,400.00 $46,372.31 $27.69 $0.00 Recipient returned $27.69 to Acctg. 

Total Award Amount $449,544.74

Sub-Totals $437,724.62 $11,820.12 $0.00

Total FY 05-06 Grant Expenditures $437,724.62

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $11,820.12

Total FY 05-06 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Totaling $449,544.74

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2005-06
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

City of Midwest City Electronic Digital Sign $29,800.00 $29,800.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $759.40
City of Midwest City/Convention & Visitors Bureau Tourism Sponsorship Assistance $10,000.00 $7,640.87 $2,359.13 $0.00 Recipient returned $2,359.13
City of Midwest City/Devel. Services Dept. Architectural & Engineering Services/Phase I MWC Community Outreach Center $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $37,641.40
City of Midwest City/Devel. Services Dept. North Oaks Revitalization Plan $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Devel. Services Dept. Consulting Services/Zoning Ordinance & Subdivision Regulation Overhaul $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Golf Course Completion Concrete Cart Trails $33,000.00 $32,456.19 $543.81 $0.00 Recipient returned $543.81 to Acctg.
City of Midwest City/Park Department Reno Swim & Slide Irrigation and Landscape $49,388.00 $49,388.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Police Department Fitness Equipment/Police Workout Room $20,497.24 $20,490.00 $7.24 $0.00 Recipient returned $7.24 to Acctg.
Eastern Oklahoma County Tourism Council Star Spangled Salute $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $11.94
Holiday Lights Spectacular, Inc. Additional Light Displays & Upgrade Infrastructure $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $2,737.01
Junior Achievement of Greater Oklahoma City, Inc. Investing in MWC Youth/JA Program Monroney JHS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $340.00
Literacy Link, Inc. Networking Hardware, Educational Software/Literacy Computer Lab $4,900.00 $4,900.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $707.71
Mid-Del Food Pantry, Inc. New Carpeting/Mid-Del Food Pantry $4,855.00 $4,855.00 $0.00
Mid-Del Group Homes, Inc. 8-Passenger Van/Disabled Transportation $20,000.00 $19,046.65 $953.35 $0.00 Recipient returned $953.35 to Acctg.
Mid-Del Group Homes, Inc. Replace Appliances Group Home $4,000.00 $3,915.34 $84.66 $0.00 Recipient returned $84.66 to Acctg.
Mid-Del Public Schools Foundation Children Reading Across Mid-Del (CRAM) $3,910.00 $3,525.64 $384.36 $0.00 Recipient returned $384.36 to Acctg.
Mid-Del Schools Stranger Danger $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00
Mid-Del Youth and Family Center, Inc. Van Purchase $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $5,544.50
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Youth Excel $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $54.84
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Reduce Loan on Building $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00
Midwest City Martin Luther King Jr. Prayer 
Breakfast Committee Annual Prayer Breakfast $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,101.64
Midwest City Optimist Club Continued Development/Optimist Park $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $835.34
Midwest City Rotary Club #5750 Volleyball Court/MWC Regional Park/Renovation Project $15,000.00 $14,045.79 $954.21 $0.00 Recipient returned $954.21 to Acctg. 
Midwest City Tree Board Reno Avenue Irrigation and Landscape $46,400.00 $46,400.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $2,155.11
Project Woman Coalition, Inc. Operation Outreach Midwest City/Breast Screening $8,724.76 $8,724.76 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $504.85
Rose State College Math & Science Workshops K-12 $25,125.00 $14,326.96 $10,798.04 $0.00 Recipient returned $10,798.04
Tinker Inter-Tribal Council Third Annual MWC Pow Wow $8,750.00 $8,750.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $18.79
Tinker POW/MIA Committee Construction Community POW/MIA Memorial $13,150.00 $13,146.72 3.28 $0.00 Recipient returned $3.28 to Acctg.

Total Award Amount $500,000.00

Sub-Totals $483,911.92 $16,088.08 $0.00

Total FY 04-05 Grant Expenditures $483,911.92

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $16,088.08

Total FY 04-05 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Totaling $500,000.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2004-05
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

City of Midwest City/Animal Welfare Department Pet Adoption Trailer $21,455.00 $21,455.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $805.28
City of Midwest City/Municipal Court Remodel Payment Counter/Lobby Revitalization $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $581.41
City of Midwest City/Neighborhood Services Neighborhood Gatherings & Cleanup $20,000.00 $19,994.46 $5.54 $0.00 Recipient returned $5.54 to Acctg. 2/10/05
City of Midwest City/Neighborhood Services Operation Paint Brush $10,000.00 $9,480.34 $519.66 $0.00 Recipient returned $519.66 to Acctg. 1/9/06
City of Midwest City/Police Department Digital Cameras for CAO's $1,197.00 $1,196.00 $1.00 $0.00 Recipient returned $1.00 to Acctg. 1/18/05
City of Midwest City/Police Department Jail Entry Equipment $2,400.00 $2,288.46 $111.54 $0.00 Recipient returned $111.54 to Acctg. 1/18/05
Contact Crisis Helpline, Inc. 24-hour Referral Hotline & Staff Program $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00
Eastern Oklahoma County Tourism Council Star Spangled Salute $30,000.00 7,223.47 $22,776.53 $0.00 Recipient returned $22,776.53 to Acctg. 2/15/05
Holiday Lights Spectacular Holiday Lights Display $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage 663.92
Leukemia & Lymphoma Society Patient Services Eastern Oklahoma County $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage 109.35
Literacy Link Educational Materials $2,464.00 $2,464.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $48.46
Mid-Del Technology Center Electric Vehicle Demonstration $854.85 $854.85 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $3,240.15
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Garden Shed, Mower & Equipment $6,200.00 $6,200.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $335.97
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Youth Excel Leadership Program $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $125.32
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Complete & Construct New Facility $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $13,356.49
Midwest City Dr. M.L. King Jr. Prayer Breakfast 
Committee Annual Prayer Breakfast $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $3,336.68
Midwest City Dr. M.L. King Jr. Prayer Breakfast 
Committee Diversity Workshops $3,950.00 $3,894.00 $56.00 $0.00 Recipient returned $56.00 to Acctg. 3/9/05
Midwest City High School/DECA MWC High Flower Power Project $2,339.15 $2,282.59 $56.56 $0.00 Recipient returned $56.56 to Acctg. 3/7/05
Midwest City Kiwanis Club Repair & Replace Pavilion Roof $26,000.00 $25,485.00 $515.00 $0.00 Recipient returned $515.00 to Acctg. 2/3/05
Midwest City Optimist Club Add Development Optimist Park $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $331.33
Midwest City Public Art Board ARTOklahoma 2004 $2,140.00 $1,687.35 $452.65 $0.00 Recipient returned $452.65 to Acctg. 8/1/05

Total Award Amount $250,000.00

Sub-Totals $225,505.52 $24,494.48 $0.00

Total FY 03-04 Grant Expenditures $225,505.52

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $24,494.48

Total FY 03-04 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Totaling $250,000.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2003-04
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

Choctaw Park Foundation Veterans Memorial @ Choctaw $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $3,850.25
City of Midwest City/Development Services Dept. Comprehensive Plan $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Fire Department Risk Watch Program $10,860.39 $10,860.39 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $140.02
City of Midwest City/Fire Department Thermal Imaging Camera $25,800.00 $25,800.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Fire Department Rapid Intervention System $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Grants Management Division Weed & Seed Program $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $13,064.00
City of Midwest City/Grants Management Division Business Incentive Program $107,328.76 107,328.76 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $198,677.24
City of Midwest City/Neighborhood Services Dept. Operation Paintbrush $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Neighborhood Services Dept. Neighborhood Gatherings & Cleanups $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Street Department Crutcho Creek Nature Trail Bridge $25,000.00 $17,177.77 $7,822.23 $0.00 Recipient returned $7,822.23 to Accounting 
Crutcho Public Schools MWC Waterline Project $20,460.85 $20,460.85 $0.00
Del City Chamber of Commerce Del Quest Program $3,400.00 $3,400.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $83.26
Holiday Lights Spectacular, Inc. Displays, Tree Wraps, etc. $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $520.94
Literacy Link Books, Office Equipment $3,040.00 $3,040.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $160.06
Mid-Del Schools Great Expectations Program $25,000.00 $24,424.47 $575.53 $0.00 Recipient returned $575.53 to Accounting
Mid-Del Schools Stranger Danger Program $5,310.00 $5,310.00 $0.00
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Four (4) Computers $2,800.00 $2,790.40 $9.60 $0.00 Recipient returned $9.60 to Accounting
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Youth Excel Program $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $96.16
Midwest City Community Playground Project Replace Aging Playground Equipment/Regional Park $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $89,524.82
Midwest City Martin Luther King Jr. Prayer 
Breakfast Committee Prayer Breakfast $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $2,297.34
Midwest City Martin Luther King Jr. Prayer 
Breakfast Committee Workshops $3,500.00 $951.90 $2,548.10 $0.00 Recipient returned $2,548.10 to Accounting 
Midwest City Public Art Board ART Oklahoma 2003 $3,000.00 $2,940.22 $59.78 $0.00 Recipient returned $59.78 to Accounting
Midwest City Public Library Large Print Materials & Shelving $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $3.39
Midwest City Rotary Club Renovate Rotary Pavilion/Regional Park $35,000.00 $30,211.42 $4,788.58 $0.00 Recipient returned $4,788.58 to Accounting
Tinker Inter-Tribal Council Establish Annual MWC Pow Wow $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $951.32

Total Award Amount $500,000.00

Sub-Totals $484,196.18 $15,803.82 $0.00

Total FY 02-03 Grant Expenditures $484,196.18

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $15,803.82

Total FY 02-03 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Totaling $500,000.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2002-03
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

City of Midwest City/EOC Lightning Protection for 8 Sirens $11,385.00 $9,604.00 $1,781.00 $0.00 Recipient returned $1,781.00 to Accounting 11/02
City of Midwest City/Fire Department Hazardous Material Training $32,191.03 $32,191.03 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,594.97
City of Midwest City/John Conrad Golf Course Modernization of Golf Course $10,000.00 $7,877.13 $2,122.87 $0.00 Recipient returned $2,122.87 to Accounting 7/03
City of Midwest City/MIS Network/Overhead Projector $17,400.00 $17,400.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $39.25
City of Midwest City/Neighborhood Services Dept. Operation Paintbrush $7,500.00 $7,326.74 $173.26 $0.00 Recipient returned $173.26 to Accounting 2/03
City of Midwest City/Neighborhood Services Dept. Neighborhood Gatherings & Cleanups $20,000.00 $19,917.72 $82.28 $0.00 Recipient returned $82.28 to Accounting 2/03
City of Midwest City/PWA Fitness Program $21,000.00 $18,361.27 $2,638.73 $0.00 Recipient returned $2,638.73 to Accounting 7/03
Crutcho Public Schools MWC Water Line Installation $12,119.15 $12,119.15 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $20,460.85
Holiday Lights Spectacular, Inc. Upgrade Electrical System $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $367.00
Holy Family Name/Catholic Charities Stove Hood & Fence $13,527.00 $13,527.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $201.00
Literacy Link Books, Office Equipment $2,303.80 $2,303.80 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $36.04
Martin Luther King Jr. Prayer Breakfast Committee Prayer Breakfast $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $227.07
Mid-Del Group Homes, Inc. Pallet Jacket $500.00 $381.63 $118.37 $0.00 Recipient returned $118.37 to Accounting 11/02
Mid-Del Group Homes, Inc. Building Addition $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $25,412.56
Mid-Del Schools Senior Link Program $9,877.00 $9,224.18 $652.82 $0.00 Recipient returned $652.82 to Accounting 4/04
Mid-Del Schools Great Expectations Program $25,000.00 $24,944.10 $55.90 $0.00 Recipient returned $55.90 to Accounting 12/03
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Nit Medical Supplies $405.00 $405.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $22.29
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Loss Prevention WIA Youth Dev. Program $737.00 $737.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $46.37
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Replace Roof Children's Shelter $9,306.46 $9,306.46 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $439.27
Midwest Choral Society, Inc. 2002 Concert Performances $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $4,294.19
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Youth Excel $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $447.69
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Construct New Facility $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $50,433.50
Midwest City Kiwanis Club Landscaping Improvements Kiwanis Park $9,459.56 $9,459.56 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $224.57
Midwest City Public Art Board Tents, etc., ARTOklahoma Event $9,875.00 $9,875.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $231.16
Midwest City Public Library Signage for Entranceways $10,015.00 $8,863.30 $1,151.70 $0.00 Recipient returned $1,151.70 to Accounting 7/03
Midwest City Rotary Club #5750 U.S. Flag Project $15,000.00 $14,664.79 $335.21 $0.00 Recipient returned $335.21 to Accounting 7/03
Mission Mid-Del, Inc. 15-Passenger Van $24,000.00 $24,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $743.00
Retired Senior Volunteer Program Central Oklahoma, 
Inc. Blues Program $9,600.00 $9,600.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $306.33
Studio Mid-Del, Inc. Construct Facility $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,003.00
YWCA of Oklahoma City SANE Program $30,799.00 $30,799.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,704.08

Total Award Amount $500,000.00

Sub-Totals $490,887.86 $9,112.14 $0.00

Total FY 01-02 Grant Expenditures $490,887.86

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $9,112.14

Total FY 01-02 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Totaling $500,000.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2001-02
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

Catholic Charities/Holy Family Name Van $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $10,300.00
Central Oklahoma Habitat for Humanity Construct 10 homes $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $41,616.23
City of Midwest City/Fire Department Pulse Oximetry, etc. $6,472.50 $6,465.25 $7.25 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Fire Department Fire Safety Libraries (10) $3,000.00 $2,999.56 $0.44 $0.00 Recipient returned monies to Accounting office 5/01
City of Midwest City/John Conrad Golf Course Clubhouse Upgrade $85,000.00 $85,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $5,675.00
City of Midwest City/Municipal Golf Course Gazebos $12,900.00 $12,900.00 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Neighborhood Services Operation Paintbrush $7,500.00 7,283.55 $216.45 $0.00 Recipient returned monies to Accounting office 2/02
City of Midwest City/Police Department Audio/Recorders/Equipment for Jail $4,092.50 $4,092.50 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Police Department Camera/Microphone/Equipment for Jail $5,218.60 $5,177.05 $41.55 $0.00 Recipient returned monies to Accounting office 8/01
City of Midwest City/Police Department Mats/Physical Skills Employee Training $2,400.00 $2,148.33 $251.67 $0.00 Recipient returned monies to Accounting office 6/01
City of Midwest City/Police Department Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) $18,345.00 $0.00 $18,345.00 $0.00 Recipient returned monies to Accounting office 9/01
City of Midwest City/Police Department Voice Messaging Notification System $27,400.00 $26,816.98 $583.02 $0.00 Recipient returned monies to Accounting office 1/02
City of Midwest City/Soldier Creek Nature Trail South Trail Upgrade w/Hard Surface $23,400.00 $23,400.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $4,746.99
City of Midwest City/Soldier Creek Nature Trail Bird Watcher's Lane $9,466.76 $7,613.95 $1,852.81 $0.00 Recipient returned monies to Accounting office 8/02
City of Midwest City/Street Department Tree Spade $18,100.00 $18,100.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $36.16
Holiday Lights Spectacular, Inc. Upgrade Electric System $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $7,484.00
Literacy Link Reading & Writing Materials $3,008.04 $3,008.04 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $8.66
Mid-Del Congress of Parents & Teachers Clothing Room $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $6.38
Mid-Del Group Homes, Inc. Forklift $10,000.00 $9,804.45 $195.55 $0.00 Recipient returned monies to Accounting office 12/01
Mid-Del Schools Academic Center Outdoor Classroom $5,840.00 $5,840.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $10.85
Mid-Del Technology Center Neighborhood Electric Vehicle Demo. Project $7,108.00 $7,108.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,581.00
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Computer $1,457.83 $1,457.83 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $47.30
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Safe Place Program $6,190.53 $2,840.98 $3,349.55 $0.00 Recipient returned $3,349.55 to Accounting office 4/9/02
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Curriculum Second Step Program $505.00 $505.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $132.72
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Storage Building $2,443.18 $2,418.76 $24.42 $0.00 Recipient returned $24.42 to Accounting office 4/9/02
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Type and Talk Translator $378.26 $0.00 $378.26 $0.00 Recipient returned $378.26 to Accounting office 4/9/02
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Prevention Youth Violence Program $1,985.00 $0.00 $1,985.00 $0.00 Recipient returned $1,985.00 to Accounting office 4/9/02
Midwest City High School Museum, Inc. Museum $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $194.00
Midwest City Tree Board Irrigation system/Adair Boulevard median $38,878.80 $38,789.95 $88.85 $0.00 Recipient returned $88.85 to Accounting office 4/02
MWC Martin Luther King Jr. Prayer Breakfast 
Comm. Prayer Breakfast $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,263.45
OK Country Soccer Club Marquee signs (2), additional seating & benches $18,910.00 $18,910.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $275.20
Studio Mid-Del, Inc. Build New Facility $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 Building Fund account "seed money"
United Scottish Clans of Oklahoma, Inc. United Scottish Clans Festival $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $5,698.49

Total Award Amount $500,000.00

Sub-Totals $472,680.18 $27,319.82 $0.00

Total FY 00-01 Grant Expenditures $472,680.18

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $27,319.82

Total FY 00-01 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Totaling $500,000.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 2000-01
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

Central Okla. Habitat for Humanity Construct 8 houses $56,000.00 $56,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $17,548.38
City of Midwest City Irrigation system $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $31,755.00
City of Midwest City/EOC Replace 8 emergency warning sirens $58,440.00 $58,440.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $44,260.90
City of Midwest City/Fire Department Directional Arrow Bar $7,456.00 $7,448.71 $7.29 $0.00 Recipient returned $7.29 to accounting office 2/01
City of Midwest City/Holiday Lights Spectacular Holiday Display $791.27 $791.27 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $7,335.73
City of Midwest City/Holiday Lights Spectacular Storage Building $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $2,050.00
City of Midwest City/MIS Department WAN/LAN Computer Interface $48,000.00 $43,833.74 $4,166.26 $0.00 Recipient returned monies to accounting office 11/01
City of Midwest City/Parks & Recreation Pavilion/restroom Project $99,310.00 $99,310.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $359.20
City of Midwest City/Police Department 12 sets Turbo Flares $5,548.20 $5,548.20 $0.00
City of Midwest City/Soldier Creek Nature Trail Present Trail enhancements $40,750.00 $40,750.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $11,215.78
Literacy Link Reading & writing materials $2,446.53 $2,446.53 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $4.15
Mid-Del Group Homes Van $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $13,529.60
Mid-Del Public Schools Foundation, Inc. Biology/Math project $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $27.72
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Replace 3 sofas Children's Shelter $600.00 $600.00 $0.00
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Replace various appliances Childrens Shelter $4,553.00 $4,553.00 $0.00
Mid-Del Youth & Family Center, Inc. Network/juvenile offenders $6,605.00 $6,605.00 $0.00
Midwest City Amateur Athletic Assoc. Boxing facility $48,000.00 $0.00 $48,000.00 $0.00 Recipient returned check to accounting office 7/00
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Business/Industrial Park $25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 Recipient returned monies to accounting office 2/01
Midwest City Chamber of Commerce Youth Excel Program $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $19.15
United Scottish Clans of Oklahoma United Scottish Clans Festival $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $11,061.73

Total Award Amount $500,000.00

Sub-Totals $422,826.45 $77,173.55 $0.00

Total FY 99-00 Grant Expenditures $422,826.45

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $77,173.55

Total FY 99-00 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Totaling $500,000.00

MWC HOSPTIAL AUTHORITY GRANT RECIPIENTS FY 1999-00
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GRANT RECIPIENT PURCHASE ITEM

AWARD 

AMOUNT EXPENDITURES

MONEY 

RETURNED BALANCE REMARKS

MWC Downtown Development $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $45.80

MWC Fire Department Projector $7,281.00 $7,487.82 $0.00
 $206.82} Combined balances 2 grants = $411.19 
returned to accounting 8/00

MWC Fire Department Infrarad Camera $20,805.00 $20,186.99 $411.19 $0.00 -$618.01} 
MWC John Conrad Golf Course Irrigation System $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $25,213.64
MWC Municipal Golf Course Fencing, Carpet $19,020.00 $19,020.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $2,887.67
MWC Soldier Creek Nature Trail $28,103.00 $23,986.08 $4,116.92 $0.00 $4,116.92 balance returned to accounting 8/00
Holiday Lights Spectacular Light Display $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,148.56
MWC Senior Advisory Committee Van $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $1,289.00
Associated Catholic Charities Holy Family Home $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $25,491.11
Autumn House Van $26,452.00 $26,452.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $21,447.78
Carl Albert High School Visual Arts Equipment $1,536.00 $1,536.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $32.00
Central Oklahoma Habitat for Humanity Homes built in MWC $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $24,861.40
Communication Connection "Dog Ears" 2 Dogs & Training for Hearing Impaired $6,800.00 $5,894.16 $905.84 $0.00 *$905.84 balance returned to accounting 7/31/00
Literacy Link Printer, educational material (books) $3,658.00 $3,658.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $0.18
Mid-Del PTA Council Clothing $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $762.58
Mid-Del Schools Youth/Senior Citizens $12,894.00 $12,894.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $567.40
Mid-Del Youth & Family Carpet, etc. $7,950.00 $7,950.00 $0.00 $1,167.37 

Mid-Del Youth & Family Storm Shelter $4,600.00 $4,600.00 $0.00
$730.00/Combined balances 3 grants = 
$959.63/Recipient paid overage

Mid-Del Youth & Family Building Renovation $11,605.00 $11,605.00 $0.00 -$2,857.00
Midwest City Choral Society Musicians, etc. $3,800.00 $3,800.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $6.29
MWC MLKing Jr. Prayer Breakfast Committee Prayer Breakfast $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $726.68

OMNI Neighborhood Assoc. Playground $10,000.00 $9,926.63 $73.37 $0.00
$73.37 balance remaining returned to accounting 
7/10/00

Optimist Club Park $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $6,250.00
United Scottish Clans of Oklahoma Festival $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $0.00 Recipient paid overage $116.48

Total Award Amount $392,504.00

Sub-Totals $386,996.68 $5,507.32 $0.00

Total FY 98-99 Grant Expenditure $386,996.68

Monies Returned to Hospital Authority Account $5,507.32

Total FY 98-99 Grant Monies Remaining $0.00

Totaling $392,504.00

MWC Hospital Authority GRANT RECIPIENTS 1998-99
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Midwest City Fire Department 
8201 E. Reno Avenue 

Midwest City, OK 73110 
Office 405.739.1341 

Fax 405.739.1384 
 
 

 
 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Midwest City Fire Department 
We exist to reduce risk, provide emergency assistance, and add value to our community. 

www.midwestcityok.org 

 
 

MEMO 
 
To:  Hospital Authority Board of Grantors 
 

From:   Bert Norton, Fire Chief 
 

Date:  January 23, 2017 
 
Subject: Discussion and consideration of approving the Midwest City Fire Departments' 

request for permission to change the awarded grant money from the fiscal year 
2015-16. 

 
 
Dear Board of Grantors, 
 
In fiscal year 2015-16, you may recall that you generously awarded the Fire Department grant 
funds in the amount of $100,000. I am writing to request a change to the use of money awarded.  
 
As indicated in our grant application, $50,210 of the funds would be used to purchase the 
electronic accountability system that enables the ability to track firefighters while working inside 
structure fires.     
 
In 2015-16, we also applied for a Federal grant “Assistance to Firefighters Grant” from FEMA. 
We have previously applied for this Federal grant and have high hopes of being a recipient this 
time. The Federal grant would be used to replace all of our current Self-Contained Breathing 
Apparatus (SCBA). As technology would have it, these new SCBAs now have electronic 
accountability systems built into them.  
 
Thus, if we are awarded the Federal grant funds, we would not need to purchase the system 
described in our application to you and feel that it would not be good stewardship of the Hospital 
Authority Grant funds to purchase the obsolete accountability system.  
 
Would you please consider allowing us to use the $50, 210 for other highly desired purchases not 
reflected in our current grant application for the fiscal year 2016-17?  
 

 Firefighting Helmets for $21,484 – Currently, 40 out of the 82 helmets will expire next 
year with the remaining 42 helmets having different expiration dates based upon hire 
dates. The new style of helmet, we would like to use, features enhanced safety and a 
design that allows debris runoff to move away from the wearer. We would like to replace 
all helmets at the same time to remain uniform as a Department and increase all 
firefighter’s personal protective gear.  
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Midwest City Fire Department 
8201 E. Reno Avenue 

Midwest City, OK 73110 
Office 405.739.1341 

Fax 405.739.1384 
 
 

 
 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Midwest City Fire Department 
We exist to reduce risk, provide emergency assistance, and add value to our community. 

www.midwestcityok.org 

 
 Wifi for the Fire Stations for $12,043.86 – In an effort to reduce the cellular data usage 

we incur at five of our stations, we would like to install a wireless network (The Fire HQ 
is the only station with Wifi currently). Our iPads are a necessity as they are the lifeline 
of data from dispatch to the fire crews when responding to emergency calls. All our iPads 
have a data plan with them that requires a monthly service fee, but with the station Wifi 
we could eliminate that cost. 
 

 Apple TVs for the Fire Stations for $1,200 – To enhance our training plans known as Job 
Performance Requirements, we are asking for Apple TVs, dependent upon the Wifi. 
Some of the training plans feature videos and PowerPoint presentations. Currently, the 
firefighters gather around a single small computer monitor. With the Wifi and Apple TVs 
we could stream videos, PowerPoints, and lesson plans from the iPads to a television.  
 

 Fire Marshal Truck Bed Cover for $3,500 – The Fire Marshal truck was purchased with 
limited funds in 2015. Those funds did not allow us to add a cover for the bed to protect 
the tools and items needed for investigations from weather and theft. Further 
complicating the issue is that most investigation equipment must be kept out of the cab as 
to not contaminate the cab with carcinogens or they are too filthy. Many times the 
investigator may be out of sight of the vehicle during an investigation leaving valuable 
equipment at risk of theft.  
 

 Administration Office Flooring Update/Nozzles and Hoses for $11,982.14 – Station 1 
was constructed in 1976 with cast iron plumbing. Over the last ten years, the plumbing 
has corroded and caused leaks that have accumulated in the administration area. As this is 
the area that all visitors must come through, we are requesting this funding to change the 
current stained carpet out for solid surface flooring that will be easier and more efficient 
for maintaining. We are awaiting a final quotes on the flooring and if they are less or 
considerably less, we would like to ask you for the option or ability of applying the 
remainder of the $50,210 to purchase fire nozzles and/or 50’ sections of firefighting hose.             

 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Bert Norton, Fire Chief 
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	02-14-17 Staff Briefing 
	City Council Agenda
	CC Consent Agenda
	CC - C1 - Mins of the special mtg and staff briefing and reg mtg of 01/24/17 (SH)
	CC - C2 - Replace Daniel on the various ACOG Boards (GH)
	CC - C3 - Replace Daniel on the RTA Board (GH)
	CC - C4 - Replace Daniel w/ Susan on the Original Mile Reinvestment Committee (BH)
	CC - C5 - Replace Daniel - Council Appointment to the Residential Parking Review (MS)
	CC  - C6 - Accept Permanent Easement from Hari Aum L.L.C.  (PM)
	CC - C7 - Maint Bonds H&H Plumbing-Boulevard at Oakwood East (PM)
	CC - C8 - Accept Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement from Hudiburg (PM)  
	CC - C9 - MWC Elementary Trail Extension Design Contract ODOT (PM)
	CC - C10 - Survey Reno MW to Douglas - Cedar Creek Inc (PM)
	CC - C11 - Star Spangled Salute Aviator Reception Star Solutions Agreement (VS)
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	CC - C13 - I.T. Surplus of Computer Equipment (RR)

	CC Discussion Item
	CC  - D1 - Financial Audit for the year-end June 30, 2016. (CB)

	CC New Bus/Pub Dis
	CC Executive Session
	CC - E1 - ES - Labor Negotiations (GH)


	Municipal Authority 02-14-17
	MA Consent Agenda 
	MA - C1 - Mins for the Staff Briefing and Reg Mtg of 01/24/17 (SH)
	MA - C2 - Approving Contract for Refurbished Front Load Containers (RPS)
	MA - C3 - Surplus Equipment for Golf & WRRF (VKS)

	MA New Bus/Pub Dis

	Hospital Authority 02-14-17
	HA Discussion Items
	HA - D1 - Mins for the Staff Briefing and Reg Mtg of 01/24/17 (SH)
	HA - D2 - STC II Landlord Certificate, Amend. to Mortage, & security agrmt.
	HA - D3 - Reallocation Memo (SH)

	HA New Bus/Pub Dis
	HA Further Information
	HA - F1 - BOG Grant Recommendations (JD)





